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ROYAL COMMISSION ON COLLIERIES. 

PROGRESS REPORT ON THE ACCIDENTS AT LITIIGOW 
VALLEY COLLIERY. 

June, 1886. 

To His Excellency the Right Honorable CIIARLES ROBERT BARON CARRINGTON, 

Knight Grand Cross of the Most Distingu ished Order of Saint Michael and 

Saint George, Governor and Commander-in-Chief of the Colony of New South 

Wales and its Dependencies. 

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY,— 

The Commission appointed to make a diligent and full inquiry into the 
causes of the accidents that recently occurred to the Ferndale Colliery, in the District 
of Newcastle, in this Colony, and also to report upon the condition of the collieries 
adjacent thereto,—also to make an inquiry into the disaster that happened at the 
Lithgow Colliery, and to report upon the working and ventilation of the coal seams, and 
more especially the thin coal seams of the said Colony—have concluded their inquiry 
into the cause of the accidents at Lithgow Colliery in February and April last, and, 
with the aid of evidence transcribed from the shorthand writers' notes, have unani-
mously agreed upon the following statement descriptive of the mine and nature of 
the accidents, also a vsuiié of the operations and of the evidence taken, and their 
findings or report on the same. These, together with the documents detailed on the 
margin hereof, the Commission have the honor to present to Your Excellency. 

A general meeting, at which all the members of the Commission (except one) 
attended, was held in Sydney on the 29th day of April, when, at the request of the 
Honorable the Minister for Mines, the Commission agreed to open the inquiry into 
the Lithgow accident before that of Ferndale. Accordingly, they proceeded to 
Lithgow, and at once commenced their investigations. After spending two (lays in 
minutely inspecting the underground workings of Lithgow Valley Colliery, to whicli 
access could be obtained, in examining the colliery plan, and in obtaining necessary 
information from the Government officers, the colliery owners, and their officials, and 
in discussing and arranging the form of procedure and the evidence required from 
witnesses, the Commission formally opened their inquiry into the causes of the 
accidents referred to, on the morning of Monday, the 3rd day of May ultirno, and 
continued their examination of witnesses till Wednesday, the 12th May, when, from 
the lack of further evidence, the inquiry was closed. 

During these sittings thirty-four witnesses were examined. On the comple-
tion of the work of transcribing the shorthand writers' notes the Commission again 
met, at Newcastle, on Wednesday, the 26th day of May, and, while the preliminaries 
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for commencing the inquiry into the accident at Ferndale Colliery were being 
completed, the various points brought to their notice chiring the exhaustive inquiry 
and examination of witnesses at Lithgow were discussed, together with two special 
reports by members of the Commission, being the result of— 

An examination of the workings of Lithgow  Valley Colliery, with the 

view of discovering (if such existed) the preseiice of photo. or light 
carburetted hydrogen gas (the fire-damp, stythe, or choke-damp of 

nliners), and 

An inspection by those members of the Commission on the condition of 
the coal workings on the adjoining estate of Eskbank along its 
southern i)onndary, to ascertain whether an actual connection exists 
between the abandoned coal workings at Lithgow Valley and Eskbank 
Collieries, sufficient to permit the passage of water or of air between 
these two collieries ; points which, from the remarks to follow and the 
exhaustive evidence, illustrated as they are by maps, plans, sections, 
and documents appended hereto, Your Excellency will readily perceive 
are of importance in forming opinions on the possibility of the under-

ground fire in the first-named colliery 1)eing fed by air derived from 
the abandoned coal-workings of the latter, and on the consequences 
that may befall that colliery should an attempt be made to extinguish 
the underground fire in Lithgow Valley Colliery by flooding that mine. 

In obtaining evidence, collecting and preparing information bearing upon 

the lamentable accidents that occurred in Lithgow Valley Colliery—the first on the 
13-14th February ultimo, whereby three men, including the manager of the mine, 
lost their lives, and the second on the afternoon of Monday, the 19th day of April 
Tiltimo, whereby five men lost their lives—the Commission sat thirteen days, from 
the 29th April to the 13th of May, both days included; and the sittings, while taking 
evidence, averaged eight hours each day, irrespective of the necessary work of prepar-
ing points to be elucidated on the following day. This occupied much time, and 
could only be accomplished after the ar(hiOns investigations of the ciny had ended. 

Lithgow Valley is the name given to the deep hollow at the foot of the Great 
Zigzag on the Great Western Railway, and is distant 94 miles from Sydney. This 
valley marks the western line of the Blue Monntains—a broad belt of sandstone—
once an extensive plateau, which, by the incessant operation of natural causes of 
climate and time, has been worn and eroded into a confused theatre of tortuous 
valleys or glens, l)Oundled by profound precipices, the depths bristling with dense 
prinva1 vegetation, and obscured by a blue mysterious haze that has given to this 
broad mountainous belt its name. The mass of time Blue Mountains is composed of 
the Hawkesbury Sandstones, that rise to an elevation of about 5,000 feet above sea-
evei, and overlie the coal-measures of the Colony. The latter measures in vertica1 

thickness about 600 feet, and are for the most part composed of sandstone, con-
glomerate, and arenaceous shales, the top being marked by a stratum of red 
aluminous shale. Thiroughomit this thickness the coal-seams are found in strati-
graphical order or succession. The coal-beds of the Western Coal-field are no doubt 
identical with those that occur in time Newcastle and Southern Coal-fields ; but, on 
account of the character of the separating or intervening strata, the work of identify-
ing or correlating the beds in the several districts has not hitherto been attempted. 

The 



5 

The Western Coal-field is therefore a part of the great coal-fleld of the Colony 

that has by some stupendous force been elevated many thousands of roet above the 
original level. 

The profound valleys, such as those of Kaniml)la, the Grose, .Tamieson, and 
others, which form the feature of this broad mountain ijelt, have been (lelUJ(lPd out 
of and through the great thickness of the Iiawkesl)ury Sandstones—tlie coal 
measures, and below these into rocks evidently of 1)evonian age. 

The coal-beds in the Western District have a general but a very low angle of 
dip or pitch to the east of north. Very few faults or dislocations of the strata 
interrupt the continuity of the 1)e(lS. This angle of flu1) and rise gradually brings 
the coal-beds to the horizon towards the west, so that at Lithgow, at an elevation of 
2,90() feet above the sea, the lowest coal-1)ed of the series is llfl(lerlVing the 1)Ottom 
of the valley, and preservilig its natural rise, comes to the surface a slioit (histalice 
from the railway station. 

The line of outcrop of the Litligow coal-scam is marked by, and can be traced 
under, a low escarpment of l)eh)1)1y  sandstone that shetches iii a non ii and south lin 
across the valley, and is continued SOuTh distance f(t1thler under the cover aflouded by 
the extension of the carl)onuleroiEs sandstone in tinit. direction. The coal-seam 
measures about 10 feet in thickness (see section No. 6). it is divided by thin layers 
or l)ands of stone. The roof consists of a remarkal)ly thick and strong post or bed of 
sandstone, with a few shale or ''chitter" layers contiguous to the to1) of the coal. The 
true floor is composed of a very hard close-graiiied sandstone. The pout of the 
seam worked is shown on section \o. 6, and will be seen to consist of from s' 4" to 
Ci' of coal ; from 6" to is" of worthless splinty coal being left on the floor, called 

bottoms," and from 3' to t' of coal on the root, called " tops" or " top-coal" 
this lies innne(hatelv under the sandstone. The coal in appearance is dull and coun-
paratively lustreless ; it is hard 011(1 has a cul)ical fracture, and contains apparently a 
bigh percentage of ash. 

This coal has been worked for many years at the Bowenlels, Lithgow Valley, 
hermitage, and Iron \orks Tun iiel, and at the Eski)ank, \ale of Clwvdd, and Zig-
zag coal-pits, and is in extensive. (lelna nfl. The estates owned 1 y the proprietors of 
the collieries enumerated, together witli the position of their working shafts, and, in 
the case of Fskbank and Lithgow Valley, the area and position of the coal worked, is 

approximately shown on p1an NO. H. (in iefeii'iiig to this plaiu it will be seen that 
the line of outcrop of the seam Crosses the western pait of the estate belonging 
to this Company, at a point a few hiuiidred yards south of then northierii 1)oun(havy. 

About fourteen years ago a tunnel (position shown on plans os. 3 and H) 
WOS l)egu]I 011 tiie outcrop of the coal-seam, and continued almost due east, following 
the dip or tlu' seam; this has continued t:) be thio main outlet by which coal has 
been won. By re:ferring to plall 	3 the method of winning and working the coal- 
seam may be seen and followed. 'flue tunnel has been dniveui (Lie east and almost 
direct to the dip (the pitch or the seam averaging about 141 in that direction) for a 
distance of about 52 chains=1,144, yards from the outlet. 

The method of winning the coal has been that known 05 l)ord and pillal', 
leaving pillars varying from 1 to 2() yards to support the supenincunilient strata. 
About 120 acres (with the exception to be referred to) have been worked in this way, 
the pillars remaining intact. 	 The 



The ventilating currents are shown by arrows, and are actuated by two furnaces. 
It will be seen that the main inlet for fresh air (intake) is the tunnel, and that the 
"returns" for the exhausted air are two in number, and are shown by arrows pointing 
towards the west. Both of these "returns" pass over ventilating furnaces, and are 
shown on plan No. 3. The ventilating current has been guided and controlled by 
stoppings composed of slack or small coal, strengthened in some cases by timber. 

The coal-seams throughout the Colony enjoy an enviable immunity from the 
presence of fire-damp—only in comparatively few instances has any accumulation of 
this gas been seen in any of the collieries. The presence of "fire-damp" has never, it 
would appear, been observed in this or in any of the adjoining collieries, although 
it has been repeatedly looked for (see evidence of J. Davies, R. Grant, Jos. Campbell, 
and Mr. Inspector Rowan, and special report No. 4). 

In respect to the mode of winning coal, the size of pillars, and the methods 
employed to induce and control the ventilating currents, this colliery appears not to 
have in any way differed, but to have followed the practice of this and the other 
mining districts in the Colony. 

To the north of the main tunnel the coal workings were extended to and 
stripped the boundary of the adjoining colliery of Eskbank. While doing so it 
would appear that the workers in Lithgow Valley discovered, an encroachment that 
had been made from the lands of Eskbank. This, of course, forms a link of 
communication between the two collieries. As the tunnel in iLithgow Valley 
proceeded it became necessary to deal with the water that collected in the dip 
workings; and advantage was taken of this encroachment, and the fact that the 
coal-seam formed a hollow or "swallow" contiguous to that spot, to discharge the 
water removed from the dip workings into this hollow, and from thence it percolated 
and found its way into the adjoining coal workings in Eskbank estate, from whence 
it was pumped. Another hollow of some extent, to the north of the tunnel and 
contiguous to the boiler, is partially shown on plan No. 3. A third hollow is shown 
on same plan, near to the left-hand furnace. These hollows were full of water. 
The limits of the second-named hollow seem to have covered a greater area than is 
shown on the plan, and to have crossed the tunnel. It was from this reservoir that 
the supply of water was derived that was used to play upon the underground fire. 

The Litligow Valley mine was managed for several years, prior to the accident 
of February, by Mr. John Doig; and the owners, who were personally ignorant 
of mining, and who practically never entered the mine, reposed the utmost confidence 
in the ability and judgment of Mr. Doig. To him they delegated the full control 
and management of the colliery in all its branches and details. (T7icle evidence of 
Mr. T. Wilton and Mr. F. Gell, corroborated by Mr. Inspector Rowan, Mr. Dixon, 
S. Passmore, and others.) 

Mr. Doig appears to have been a man of much decision of character, but one 
remarkable for his reticence. The reasons he had for pursuing a given course do not 
seem to have been required of him, or if asked were not given. Unfortunately 
Mr. Doig lost his life in the accident of 13th and 14th February. The evidence 
that he, had he survived, would have given, the Commission feel, might have cleared 
up many points referred to in the inquiry that appear only to have been known or 
could have been satisfactorily explained by him. 	

After 
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After entering the main tunnel a small split of air was allowed to enter No. 
7 cross-cut (see plan No. 3), a few yards below or to the east of the right-hand 
furnace. The bulk of the air was carried down the tunnel, and at F, 38 chains from 
the outlet, or 30 chains from the right-hand furnace, another split of air of uncertain 
amount was taken to supply the boiler furnace—to be after mentioned. Opposite F 
a secure stopping had been put across, and effectually stopped the passage of air 
into the main level, marked and known as Tyndall's heading ; this stoppiig was 
composed of timber, and was air-tight. The main body of air coursed past this 
point, and was conducted in the tunnel as one stream to the bottom, where it was 
split or divided. About 2,000 feet per minute was taken to supply the few men 
who were kept working in 1)OrdS to the north of the tunnel. This current ventilated 
about nine bords, until it impinged against a solid barrier of coal, left, it is alleged, 
to prevent the water in the hollow referred to from reaching the lower workings. 
The air current was then bent to the south till it reached within one pillar of the 
main tunnel, when it was again swerved to the west and curved round the boiler at 
F. At this point it was joined l)y the smoke and heated gases, and any air that 
escaped over or alongside the boiler; and again turning to the right, then to the left, 
it was conducted over the accumulation of water in the hollow, as delineated by 
arrows on plan No. 3. After leaving this hollow this return or flue enters an empty 
bord, and follows this for many chains, and, before entering the left-hand furnace, it 
again crosses another hollow filled with water to within a few inches of the roof, 
and finally enters the left-hand furnace and escapes to the outer air. With respect 
to this left-hand return, it appears that from the boiler upwards towards the furnace 
it has not been travelled or inspected for years. The reason for this is that the level 
of the water in these hollows reached within 12 or 18 inches of the roof; and this, in 
the opinion of the Commission, formed an important factor, not only in causing 
quantities of smoke to collect in the main tunnel spoken of by the majority of the 
witnesses, but in hampering the easy and rapid exit of the sudden displacement of 
foul gases, on the 19th of April, by the furnace which caused the death of five men 
in the second accident. 

The right-hand or south return air-ways are also shown by arrows on plan 
No. 3. This is the principal air-way in the mine, and in the districts ventilated by 
it nearly the whole of the men worked. Reference to the plan will show that to 
ventilate the south side workings below the cross-cut the air is divided or split into 
two currents; the principal current enters Sam's heading, and is conducted through 
the bords above that heading. A smaller current was permitted to pass this heading, 
and at the bottom of the tunnel this was divided, one portion going to ventilate the 
northern bords, as narrated; the other portion was conducted to the right, and, after 
ventilating the few bords below Sam's heading, joined the main stream of air that 
was introduced by that air-way. 

The conjoined currents then ventilated the working bords, and, crossing No. 1 
cross-cut by an overcast, was carried direct to the right-hand furnace and escaped 
up the ventilating shaft. The bord in which this furnace was built was continued 
to the left, and passing out to day, constituted the second outlet prescribed by the 
Coal Mines Regulation Act. With respect to the ventilating furnaces. The left-
hand furnace was practically kept for inducing a draught in the flue from the 
underground boiler, and was of small area. The sectional area of the return was 
about 30 cubic feet, being that of an air-way about 7 yards wide, with an open 

space 
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space about 18 inches between the level of the water and the top-coal. The exact 
area of this could not be accurately ascertained, and considerable differences of 
opinion existed as to the height of the open space above the water (see J. B. Turn-
bull's and Inspector iowan's evidence). Under these circumstances the Commission 
have taken the area suggested by Mr. Inspector iowan. The area of the left up-

cast shaft is about 24 cubic feet. 

The right-hand furnace was of larger area, and was capable of rarefying 
from 10,000 to 12,000 cubic feet of air per minute, and of maintaining an adequate 
ventilating current for the number of men employed. Both of these furnaces were 
built quite close to the main tunnel, and communicated therewith by a narrow 
passage, closed not by a double but a light single door. These furnaces have been 
built in the centre of an ordinary Lord. The ashes drawn from them do not seem 
ever to have been relnoVe(l. In the case of the left-hand furnace these were 
wheeled down the return and ti1)1)Cd into the water, over which the return air and 
gases passed; while at the right-hand furnace the ashes, after being soaked with water, 
were built up in one large pile against the coal pillars. A large heap had, at the 
date of the inspection by the Commission, accumulated, and it was brought out in 
evidence that on one occasion a fire had occurred here ; but that the warning thus 
given of danger had been disregarded, and no attempt was afterwards made to 
remove them from the mine. 

It has been already explained that the mode of winning the coal in this 
colliery was that known as Lord and pillar, and was systematically pursued, and 
that, following this system, about 120 acres of coal had been worked, leaving the 
pillars standing to support the roof. The pillars left in this colliery are of ample 
size. Over a very considerable portion of the area worked the pillars left to sup-
port the superincuml)ent strata measure about 20 yards square, against 7 yards of 
Lord worked ; so that nearly two-thirds of the whole coal-seam has been left 
unworked. To the north of the tunnel, and adjoining Eskbank boundary, pillars 
over the space of about one or one and a half acres have been wholly taken out. 
The probable position of this space is slmowii on the plaim No. 3. It is doUl)tful also 
whether some pillarmg operations have not been conducted contiguous to the 
encroachment from Eskbank ; at any rate, the pillars there are very much smaller 
than those left in other parts oC the mine. No very accurate information could be 
obtained by the Commission as to the state of the pillars in this part of the workings. 

It would, 1iovever, appear that considerable falls of the roof had taken place 
near to this, and that the open waste or goaf was (when last. visited by R. G-rant, 
R. Davis, and others) full of carbonic acid gas (the choke-damp or stythe of miners). 

It may not be out of place, although anticipatlng future reconimendations 
connected with other branches of the inquiries entrusted to the Commission, to 
remark that to have such extensive areas of pillars intact is not only a waste of 
national resources, but an instance of defective and of a. wasteful and thoughtless 
system of mining. Were it made a rule that all collieries should take out pillars in 
districts, and as soon as possible after they are formed, the roof would subside 
equally, and, closing upon the small coal and rubbish, would leave no open spaces 
where falls could occur or quantities or poisoiloits gases could accumulate. A large 
area of open goaf may be considered as a storehouse or magazine purposely left 
for the storage of black-damp or white-damp. These deleterious gases are given off 

by 
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by all coal-seams, and are also the results or the products that represent the waste 
of animated existences, or are generated by the use of explosives or from the 
burning of coal or oil. A carefully (1CViSCd and conducted mine should, where 
circumstances will periiit, have none of these open spaces from whence, on the 
occurrence of a sudden and unforeseen accident, large quantities of gases inimical 
to human life could—as in the case of the accident of 19th April at Lithgow 
Colliery—be forced into a main intake, and there to asphyxiate five men in their 
nervous struggle to reach daylight and a place of safety. 

At F, in plaii No. 3, a small boiler about 13 feet in leiigtli was erected about 
three years ago. This boiler supplied steam to a special immp that forced the mine 
water into a hollow or depression on the north side of the tunnel, from whence it was 
supposed to find its way into the coal workings of the adjoining estate. Such, however, 
was the state of the underground arrangements that there is a strong proialnlity 
that a propoition of this water did not reach Eskbank, but returned to the lower 
hollow, and was thus repeatedly pumped. This boiler was erected in an ordinary 
bord 38 chains from the tunnel-mouth, or in bor(l No. 30, and only a few feet off the 
main tunnel. 

It has been mentioned that some inches of a coarse splmt coal is left unworked 
next to the floor of the coal-seam ; the Comniission asoertained this on the occasion 
of their first inspection of the colliery, and particular attention was directed to this 
circumstance (luring the examination of witnesses. Sitnuriel iPassrnore and lleniy 
Grant, on being interrogated on the point, thought that this coal had been lifted at 
least ufl(le1 the boiler, but were uncertain. These men had not seen it erected. 
Grant affirmed that this coal had not been lifted in front, where the hot ashes Were 
rake(l out. The evidence of It. Davies, the former deputy, left no doubt on the mind 
of the Commission that this boiler had actually been built (L'ide II. Davies' evidence) 
upoii 15" of coal. 

The top-coal had not been taken down above this boiler, a space of al)OUt 20" 
or 2' only intervening. 

The sides of the coal pillars were not protected. An open space of about S' 
existed on the left-hand side of the boiler seat. Across this, and in a line with the 
front of the boiler, a brick stopping had been built, leaving a small door-wa, which 
was c1osd by a piece of bag. Through this opening access could be had to the flues 
and back of the boiler; a brick wall was likewise carrie(l up to the roof in front. 

Behind, two 18" fire-clay pipes were joined into one a few feet from the 
damper, carried the smoke and waste gases back for 15 yards or so into the left 
return. The top-coal had not been taken down, except over a space measuring 6' 
square at the end of the fire-clay flues referred to. rI1iese  fire-clay flutes were 
snpporte(i 011 brick pillars and trestles of iron rails, at a Ireighit of about 3' above 
the floor. The joints of these pipes were said to have been cemented. It would 
appear that the tail or the end of the water from the hollow behind approached the 
back of the boiler, and that these pipes discharged the waste gases above the water. 
This precaution seems to have satisfied the management. Aix undant evidence was 
adduced (see S. Passrnore, It. Grant, 1. Davies, IL R. 1)ruery, and others) that along 
the left side of the boiler, and also below the fines, a considerable quantity of small 
coal had accumulated. The temperature arising from the fire and waste steam was 
in these positions very great, and this was sufficient to cause the top-coal and the 

576—B 	 unprotected 
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unprotected coal pillars to crumble, and the small coal resulting from this disinte-
gration, instead of being removed, was allowed to accumulate, and, being heated to a 
high temperature, supplied the materials for an underground fire on slight provocation. 
The flues appear to have been too small, considering the sooty character of the coal, 
and thrice every week the attendants required to clean these out in a somewhat 
primitive fashion. They depended on the men whose duty it was to clean these flues 
discovering a fire, if it occurred, behind the boiler. Soot had accumulated at the end 
of the pipes, which was never removed, although it was known that in it fire 

occasionally smouldered. 

Very soon after the erection of this underground boiler—about three years 

ago—a flue WÜS cliscoveuecl in the accumulatiom of small coal referred to behind the 

boiler and under the pipes. This was after some difficulty extinguished by means of 

buckets and water. 

Some months elapse, and the witness (II. Davies) describes another fire that 
occurred, and as the circumstances appear to be nearly identical with the accident of 

13-14th February, it may be narrated thus :- 

Fire was discovered on the Sunday afternoon; the man in charge going down 
to raise steam was arrested by a wall of smoke in the main tunnel, about 3 chains 
above the boiler. The witness, having been joined by the manager, stirred up both 
furnaces, and opened a communication from the right of the tunnel, so as to permit 
the body of air to rush directly into the right-hand furnace. The effect of this was 
that the left-hand furnace, inducing an air current from below, drew the smoke 
from the tunnel; that enabled the boiler to be reached and the fire extinguished; 
this was a work of some difficulty. It would appear that Davies after this felt anxiety 
as to danger arising from this boiler, and expressed his fears to Mr. John Doig of 
the likelihood of a recurrence of this accident, but did not suggest to Mr. Doig to 

have the small coal removed. 

After these two fires no steps were taken to remove the inflammable materials 

from around the boiler. 

A third fire is spoken of by the night engine-man, 11. Grant, who also 

suspected the recurrence of the fire, but did not express his fears to Mr. Doig. 

About six weeks or so before the accident of 13thi-11thi February a serious 
fire was agaill (hiScOvCrCCl among the sanie accumulation of small coal among which 
the previous fires had taken place. To extinguish this fire R. R. Druery and Sam 
Fassmore were employed the whole of one day. Mr. Doig was present during these 
operations, and, remarkable to relate, the man in whom was reposed such implicit 
trust did not report these occurrences to the Inspector of Mines, or even to his 
owners, but deliberately disregarded these repeated .warnings of danger, and took no 
steps whatever to remove the cause of these fires or prevent their recurrence. It is 
scarcely credible that a man who for years was a colliery manager could have been 

guilty of such culpable negligence. 

It dOCS not appear that the Government Inspectors had investigated the 

manner in which this boiler was erected, nor had they travelled, or attempted to 
travel, the left-hand retmm. It is right for the Commission to mention that the 
Government Inspectors do not seem to have been averse to perform their duty in a 

thorough 
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thorough manner. The boiler, it is supposed, was erected in the interval that elapsed 

between the last visit of Mr. Inspector Dixon and the appointment of the l)rcsent 
Inspector, 'Mr. Howa.u, to this district, and that Mr. iowan took it for granted that 
Mr. Dixon had satisfied himself that all was right. had the occurrence of these 
fires been rel)orted  to Mr. iowan, doubtless a fliorougli investigation would have 
resulted in that cal)able  officer compelling the manager to make the structure and 
its accessories secure and safe. It is reniarkable that the accumulations of small 
coal referred to and the pll1Ce of the top-coal above the boiler escaped the 
attention or failed to excite suspicion in the mind of the Inspector. 

It has i)edn explained, when describing the character of the left-hand return, 
I hat the air from the northern Lords, together with the gases and smoke from the 
boiler fire, passed for some chains in length over a "swallow" filled with water, the 

surface of which reached within 18" or 20" of the roof ; the air and products of 
corninistion then passed through open Lords, and again, for it space o about 3 chains 
over another hollow, in which water had collected to within a. few inches—li" to 
18"—of the roof. The water no doubt had the effect of re(lticing the teml)erature of 
these gases, and pronl a drag or im1)edinlent to the free passage of the ventilating 
current over its surface ; in consequence, whenever the left-hIami(i furnace was 
allowed to huriv down (as on Saturday nighits, the smoke, instead of Comitinitiimg to 
irsue its proper course, as it would have (lone under inome hiivoitiahle circumstances, 
r'mained motionless, 01 was di:wmi into the tunnel or "intake" 011(1 lodged in the 

iequalities of the roof where time top-coal had fallen. A small cloud of smoke hung 
in this situation and was seen iy workmen in prOcee(liilg to their work, 011(1 it 
remained until the sudden and uncertain eddies caused by the rapid miiotiwi of Ira ins 
of skips dislodged it, when it was swept away by the ventilating current. This Al as 
of itself a clear and unerrilig sign of a detective " return.' 

The last recorded fire had been ext.imiguished, but the warning of danger had 
been disregarded ; the materials for another conflagration remained iiiitouc.hieth, and 
were doubtless augmented by the inevitable crumbliuig of the roof coal and from the 
coal pillars. The defective state of the left return does not seem to have iml)ressed 
the management, and large quantities of ashes continued to be ple(l against the 
coal pillars in the tunnel. Just opposite, and for some (histailCe below, this boiler [to 
the east] the tunnel was of unusual width [from nine to ten yards], notwithstanding 
about this time the Manager comniemiced to i)isect the corner pillar just below the 
entrance to the boiler, thins increasing the width and abstracting the support which 
the corner afforded to the roof. The fool's 1)aradise wbich fliose in authority had 

so long enj oyed could no longer exist: the easy state of chronic indifference and utter 
disregardi of all warnings of danger culminated on Saturday, the 13th, or Sunday, 
the 14tli of February last. 

On the afternoon of that day (13th) S. Passrnore, the deputy-day enginemnan 
and furnace-maim, damped downi the fire under this boiler, passed l)ehimld the structure 
to attend to some detail, and, lie affirms, left the boiler " all right," and \vent out of 
the mine about 4 o'clock p.m. One and a half hours or so thereafter, four mmers 
(Geo. hall, Wni. hall, Walter Riddle, and Joseph Buzza), who were working in the 
Lords to the right of the tunnel at the very dip of the mule, discovered a small 
quantity of smoke in the road adjacent to their working i)laces; they remarked this, and 

wending their way to the tunnel found flint, it increased in quantity, and continued 
to do so as they pioceeded upwards. As they approached the boiler they were 

ol)higed to stoop to clear the increasing volume of smoke ; in (loing so \Vimi. .1 loll 

became unwell. On arriving at the boiler, and getting into uncontaminated air, Will. 

hiall 
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Hall continued on his way, while his son George went into the boiler and dliscovered 
that smoke was rolling outwards, some comiiig over the top of the boiler. On arriving 
at the mouth of the tunnel these men saw S. Passmore, the deputy, conversing with 
Charles Younger, the banksman (now deceased). The Halls informed Passmore that 
a great quantity of smoke had collected in the tunnel, and was coming from the 
boiler. These men did not, however, specially impress upon Mr. Passmore that 
something very serious and unusual had occurred, but continued on their way, Mr. 
Passmore remarking "all right," or that. " smoke had often been there before," or 
words to that effect. Mr. Passmore admits the verity of these men's statements; he 
impressed the Commission, as did the whole of the witnesses, most favourably. Mr. 
Passmore appears to have been an unusually dutiful and faithful servant, earnest 
and truthful. The miners referred to likewise gave most intelligent evidence, but 
the Commission cannot do otherwise than express their surprise at the incurious 
minds possessed by these men, and the apparently incorrigible indifference of Mr. 
Passmore in not at once proceeding to this boiler, which lie was well aware had been 
the scene of former fires, and satisfying himself that all was "right." No doubt 
in the honest belief that the smoke referred to by the Halls was not.hing more than 
that which he knew always collected in the tunnel, Mr. Passmore went home. 

On Sunday, the 14th, as was his custom, lie went to the colliery and proceeded 
down the tunnel. About 23 chains from the mouth, or about 15 chains from the 
boiler, his progress was arrested by a dense wall of smoke that completely filled the 
roadway. This lie endeavonred to penetrate, but finding it to increase in density 
lie returned and found that a slight current of air was going downwards. Mr. 
Passmore, apprehending that something serious had occurred, returned to bank, 
called upon Charles Younger, the banksman, and sent for John Doig, the manager. 
On their arrival the three men proceeded into the tunnel, inspected the smoke, 
and endeavoured to beat it back with their coats, but finding this impossible they 
returned to the right-hand furnace. Passmore was then requested to fire-up this 
furnace, and finding no coal convenient lie proceeded to the face to procure fuel, 
where lie became overpowered with choke-damp, and had to be removed from the 
mine and restoratives applied, with the effect that lie recovered. The deceased 
William Bawe and the witness William Martin (who, on the day following, with Henry 
Grant, behaved with such conspicuous bravery in recovering the bodies of the ill-fated 
men), hearing from Charles Younger's wife that something was wrong in the mine, 
at once proceeded down the tunnel and offered their services to Mr. Doig. The 
four men again attempted to waft or beat back the smoke in the tunnel by means of 
brattice-cloth, but in this they were unsuccessful. They then resolved (and it seems 
incredible that they did so) to enter No. 2 cross-hut and attempt to work their way 
down to Tyndall's heading by way of the right-hand return. On arriving at the 
junction of this cross-cut William Martin felt overcome by the smoke and black-
damp, and expressed his inability to proceed. The three men, John Doig, manager, 
Charles Younger, banksman, and William Hawe, miner, for some unaccountable 
reason, left their stock of oil at the junction, and proceeded on their perilous and 
foolhardy journey, William Itawe requesting Martin to iiform his family where lie 
was. Williani Martin returned to his home, went to bed, informed no one of the 
proceedings of the evening, and in the Inolnhlig resolved that lie would not go to his 
work that day. 

On Monday morning, 15th February, ratrick Siieedv and another, arriving 
very early, proceeded down the tunnel into No. 2 cross-cut and commenced work in 

their 
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their bord, and remarked nothing very unusual in the ventilation. They continued 
at work until warned by one 1. H. Druery of the accident, and the presence of 
lilack-daiìip in the mine. Other workmen on passing' (Town the hmnel, and 
discovering the wall of smoke, Caine out an(l sprea(l the alarm. 	Tlii' workivieii 
assembling, sent for Charles Xoung('r, when they were infornied that he had gone into 
the mine with Mr. Doig and Hawe on the afternoon before, and had not returned. 

Mr. Gel!, one of the proprietors, who resided close by, was then apprised of 
the situation, who in turn informed Mr. Wilton, the commercial director of the 
Company. On arriving at the mine, Messrs. Gell and Wilton found time workmen 
in a state of consternation, and for the first time heard of the accident and of their 
Manager and the other two men 1)emg in the mine. They then ascertained that 
some of the men, feeling the want of a leader, had sent for Mr. J. B. Turnluull, 
Manager of the adjoining colliery of Vale of Ciwycid. Whilst waiting his arrival 
some of the men suggested that the traiii of skips that was at the time in time minc 
should be drawn out, iii the hope of restoring time ventilating current. When this 
was attempted the engine-man discovered that the tail-rope was fast, and in con-
sequence the engine would not move. Suspicions of a fall in the tunnel (afterwards 
verified) appear to have been assigned as the cause of this. Meantime telegrams 
were despatched to the l\[ining i)epartment and to Mr. Mackenzie, Examiner of 
Coal-fields, who in turn telegraphed the news to Mr. Inspector ilowan, while Mr. 
Mackenzie, with Mr. Inspector Dixon, of Newcastle, who at the moment was in 
Sydney, pioceecled to Lithgow by special train. Wnhlilc  the body of men waited the 
arrival of Mr. Turnimil, several of the workmen, realizing time position and the 
necessity of instant action, with commendable resource, organized theniselves into a 
search party, and led by the witnesses Mr. Rodham, Mr. Nor'svood, and others, 
entered No. 2 cross-cut, saw where Mr. Doig and his companions had taken down a 
stopping, and thinking they had -one to Tyndall's hlea(linL, boldly pemietrated time 
right-hand returmi or " goaf," and pioceeded downwards. The party, strange to 
relate, did not find time air in these returns unbreathable, but tolerably goo(I. Time 
intention of this party was to broach time stopping in Tyndall's heading, opposite time 
boiler. This, it is also believed, was the pnpose that Mr. Doig had in view when lie 
took the unaccountable course of entering the righ 	 s t-hand return, which, from ally-
thing lie knew, ought to have been more hopelessly fouled with smoke and carl)oiiic 
acid gas than the main intake or tunnel, which, in a normal condition of things, 
ought not to have contamed such accumulations of smoke or gas Had any of these 
1)alties succeeded in their purpose it is doubtful whetiier a man of thiem would have 
come out alive. Roddamu's exploring party seem to have been to some extent 
ignorant of these 01(1 workings, and time Commission failed to thmoroughily satisfy 
themselves on the exact locality that they reached. Messrs. Rodham and Norwood 
affirmn that they actually did reach Tyndall's heading, when Norwood became affected 
with breathing time partially fouled air, and the party returned, carrying him to the 
tunnel. They found no traces of Mr. Doig or his companions, altliough.m they must 
have passel close to the bodies. 

Another party of searchers, under James Doig and Williamn Martin, also 
penetmatcdl some distance into these returns without finding traces of the missing 
men, and were recalled to put up the stopping. 

Meantime Mr. Turnbull had arrived, and having been put in chiarge by the 
owners proceeded with a party of men into the tunnel, and having lJrocuu1edl bratticmg-
cloth 1)egan operations by opening sto))uigs on the right-hand side of the tunnel for 

a 
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a return air-way, carrying down air, and by its means beating, or forcing, or sweeping 
away the smoke. Mr. Turnbull was not aware that while he was so engaged parties 
of workmen were already far below him in the comparatively pure air of the right 
returns, while he, in his endeavours to clear the tunnel

'
was forcing foul air directly 

into the returns where these search parties were. Of course Mr. Turnbull was not 
aware that search parties were in the waste. 

About 10 o'clock a.m. John Sheedy met William Martin, and hearing from the 
latter that Mr. Doig, with Younger and Rawe, had entered the right-hand workings 
the night before, and had not returned, they resolved to search again for their mates. 
Although ignorant of the roads, they, on their own responsibility, entered the second 
cross-cut, passed into the return, and striking by accident the return air-way kept 
straight on for six or eight pillars, when, hearing a heavy sigh and a groan, they 
went a few yards off the road and found Mr. Doig. Jno. Sheedy, with a single-
mindedness that sheds a nobility on his unassuming courage, first removed the 
young man Martin, who was affected by the foul air, and placing his lamp on Doig's 
body found that it would not burn. Mr. Doig was lying in a stratum of choke-
damp. lie lifted Doig in his arms and carried him part of the way out, when he 
received help from J. Doig, and the Manager, still alive, was removed to the surface, 
where, in an unconscious state, he lived for a period of twelve hours, when lie expired. 

Wrn. Martin again returned, in company with Henry Grant, furnace-nian, 
and proceeded to the spot where John Doig had been found. A pillar length off 
another party, consisting of Wm. Tait and Edward Power, were also searching, when 
Edward Power discovered the bodies of Charles Younger and William Rowe, both 
quite dead (vide evidence of these witnesses). The bodies bore no marks of injury 
or of burning; it was but too evident that they died from the inhalation of carbonic 
acid gas. On this no two opinions exist ; they fell victims to their rashness and 
their zeal. It is most probable that, their oil having failed—their lamps being 
empty—the poor men had lost their way, and having wandered for hours in the waste 
workings, more or less charged with carbonic acid gas, they at last, feeble and 
unable longer to walk, lay down to die. The Commission cannot but express surprise 
that such an attempt should ever have been made with an intake full of smoke and 
"stythe," more especially by a Manager with the experience of Mr. John: Doig. 

Meantime Mr. Turnbull was making progress in the work of clearing the 
tunnel of smoke. In the afternoon Mr. Wilson, Manager of the Zigzag Colliery, 
visited the scene of the accident, bringing the witness H. Davies with him, and 
introduced him to Messrs. Gell and Wilton as a former deputy, who was conversant 
with the mine, and recommended him to their notice. It would appear that Mr. 
Gell, suffering from a chronic illness, was much affected at the moment on account 
of the terrible loss of life that had occurred, was in no humour to engage in matters 
of business, and does not recollect saying much, if anything, to Davies (see E. Gell's 
evidence). Mr. Wilton, with more composure, affirms that Mr. Gell said nothing to 
Davies, and that he asked him to go and consult with Mr. Turnbull, who was in 
charge, and explain to him what lie would propose to do, or words to that effect. 
Mr. Davies proceeded down the tunnel, met Mr. Turnbull coining out, asked him to 
lend him the plan, which he refused to do ; Mr. Turnbull proceeded to the surface, 
and remained there some hours. Mr. Davies thereupon went down to the tunnel—
and here the statements of the two witnesses are at variance. Mr. Turnbull, who 
had never before been in the mine, positively affirms that he was taking down the 
smoke at the rate of 40 yards an hour, and that when he met Davies it was down 

to 
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to within 3 chains of the boiler (vicle evidence of J. B. Tnrnbull) ; while Davies, 
with an intimate knowledge of the tunnel, as positively affirms that when lie entered 
the tunnel the smoke was not less than fifteen chains from the boiler, and without 
hesitation marked its position in the tunnel as it stood at point G, plan No. 3. 
Misconceiving his status, and unaware of the state of the tunnel (discovered subse-
quently), Mr. Davies, pursuing the course that Mr. Doig and lie had successfully 
followed on the occasion of the first fire, at oiice opened the brattice in No. 2 cross-
cut, also the right-hand door leading to that furnace, fired-up the left-hand furnace 
in the expectation that, as narrated (page 10), the smoke would be drawn out by that 
channel, and with ait intrepidity which cannot but be admired, entered alone these 
right-hand wastes, and remained in them so long that a search paity was beiiig formed 
to look for him when lie (ippeared. Mr. Davies positively asserts that on his return 
the smoke had, on account, of his efforts, receded in the tunnel. Mr. rIlui.uii)ull  On 
the other hand, asserts that his actions undid all that lie (Tiirnbull) had (lone, and 

that the ground so lost could not be recovered. An angry altercation ensued 
between Tnrnbull, Davies, and the Examiner of Coal-fields. The last-named 
gentleman appears at this stage to have advised closing the mine, and Mr. Turnhull, 
imotwithistanding his statements that the alleged lost ground could not be recovered, 
set to work to convince the Examiner of Coal-fields that the source of the fire could 
be speedily reached—a lingering suspicion existing that the origin of the fire was at or 
near to the boiler. Mr. Turnbull asserts that for three hours lie again swept the smoke 
out of the main tunnel at the rate of 40 voids per hour. Mr. Mackenzie (hoes not 
corroborate this (c/c/c evidence of parties). The Commission are inclined to think that 
Mr. Mackenzie and Mr. Dixon (lid not receive the ocular demonstration referred to, 
and time whole of the parties, sceptical of their ability to reach the seat of fire, agreed 
to close the mine. 

One Norwood, a miner, who had been engaged with Mr. rTurni)llil having 

prooumled a scheme for separating the workings above No. 2 cross-cut from tIme body 
of the dip or east workings (since carried out), Mr. Tuinhull requested permission 

to have some surveys and nieasurements made with a view to consider, with tim(, 
Government officials, whether this scheme was practicable. 

Soon after this survey was conimeiieed Mr. Tnrnhull became affected with 
choke-damp in No. 2 cross-emit, and was removed out of the mine by his comnpaimions. 
At the advice of the Government officials the mine was then closed 1)V brick 
stoppings across the outlets. 

The coal-mine remained closed for the simae of four weeks, and during this 
time certain experiments were made as to the pressure oii the stoppins and the 
nature of the gas that had accumulated behind them. For some reason that 

could not be clearly a.scertamed—probaldv no valid reason existed. Mr. Tnrnhull 
believed that fire-damp would be fouimh, and from time to time experiments were 
instituted with the O1)eCt of setting this point at rest.. As might have htt'eii 
anticipated, no fire-damp was :foumd, bitt choke-damp or carbonic acid gas issued 
from the st.opi)ins and extinguished the lamps. 

The mimiers eulpl()ye(l at this mine appear to i mave been a steady and altogether 
siij erior class of,  ineim. 	The inaoritv hla(l 1)eeii eIlfl )i( uved for years Al i ii the Ii ito, alu(l 
had lutilt for themselves lit fly cnttaes ad;aeenl to the colliery. A iii ui utah remanl :uuid 
sympathy existed, and they were lotutli to leave the scene of their avocations. rilhley  

were 
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were anxious that the mine should be opened, and the owners, conscious of this, 
appointed Mr. Joseph Campbell as manager, and consulted the Government 
Inspectors, with the result that, in the expectation of finding the fire extinguished, 
the mine was re-opened, and in process of time reached the seat of the fire—the 
underground boiler. Disappointed in finding the fire still burning, but as no 
provision had unfortunately been made for extinguishing an actual fire, the men 
were withdrawn, and orders were given to reclose the mine. Bricklayers had 
actually commenced this work, when the workmen, discussing the position of affairs 
in groups on the pit-brow, and persuaded that they could of themselves extinguish 
the fire, agreed to request the owners to permit them to take the work into their 
own hands. Accordingly, a considerable number being of this mind, repaired to 
Mr. Gell and Mr. Wilton, who were standing near, and with excellent and com-
mendable feeling informed these gentlemen that they (the men) sympathised with 
them in their losses and disappointments, and stated that, feeling satisfied that if 
the work was entrusted to them, and if they were supplied with the materials they 
required, they would at once recommence operations, and were willing to give a 
week's trial and ask nothing for their services. Impressed with the chord of 
sympathy thus unexpectedly struck, the owners consulted the Government officials, 
-%idtli the result that the proposals made by the men (except their gratuitous services) 
were acceded to, and the volunteers there and then assembled in the tunnel, arranged 
their shifts, chose their leaders, and at once commenced work. 

They beat back the smoke, and when they again got to the boiler it was 
agreed to extinguish the fire by playing high-pressure steam upon it. The means 
employed toward this end appear to the Commission to have been of a pernctory 
character. A canvas brattice, not even tight, was stretched across the tunnel, and 
steam was laid on for eighty hours, playing into a portion of the fire. It is difficult 
to see what good effect could have been expected from the employment of this agent 
in this way, when no steps had been taken to confine or circumscribe the fire by 
perfectly air-tight stoppings. On turning off the steam it was apparent that the 
experiment had entirely failed, and it was only after the work of five all-round shifts 
that the fire could again be approached, and attacked by the direct application of 
water. In the interval the fire had increased in intensity; the supply of water 
from the surface having failed the necessary supply was obtained from one of 
the " swallows" referred to, which had crossed the tunnel some yards above the 
boiler. The air was kept to the face by "Iratticing" carried down the centre of 
the tunnel; and by opening stoppings on the right-hand side a return was 
secured for the smoke. 

Opposite the boiler, and extending upwards for about half a chain, a very 
large fall of rock was observed to obstruct the ventilating current; and the 
Commission are of opinion that this fall was the cause of the absence of smoke in 
the right-hand returns that enabled Doig, Younger, and Rowe to wander in these 
wastes, as well as the search parties who discovered them on the following day. The. 
top-coal under this fall was on fire, and the roof rock was intensely hot. The fire 
was seen burning, but not briskly, to the left, over the boiler, and along Tyndall's 
heading. It was necessary to play water on a portioii of it, and when cooled it was 
filled into the skips and drawn from the mine. This very greatly impeded the 
progress of the operations, during which the fire gained ground. 

The 
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The top-coal, with flakes of the superincumbent rock, had L  
fallen from the tunnel to the left, over and behind the boiler. The 	 _____ !' //'l r// workrrien had removed the inam body of the fall in the tunnel, had 
put out the fire in Tyndall's heading, and had oj)ened the stOp)nIg 
there, in order to o.ive theni relief from some of the steam and 
smoke. They had cleared the burning top-coal off the top and 
a1on the left side of the boiler. The coal was seen burnin at the _______ 	(1 	/ - 	- -hack of the boiler above the flues, and the men were on Thursday, 	/ , j  
the 15th of April, preparing to deal ivith this, when on the falIino  
of a piece of rock above the corner of the pillar, near to the end of  
the boiler, the fire was discovered burning briskly in the bord thatTyfl(uiIS 	41OW Boiler 

had been driven at an acute angle towards the tunnel and through 	' 

the pillar. The position is marked a on marginal sketch.  

The men opened out this stopping and saw a brisk fire burning in the bords 
to the rise of the boiler, and fed with fresh air from the tunnel, by way of the boiler. 

This fire may have spread in the top-coal. Next day, namely, on Friday, the 16th 
April, the deceased Isaiah 1Iyd' discovered an extension of this fire inside the first 
stopping, above the boiler, in the tunnel marked b of marginal plan. The men were 
then withdrawn from the fall in the main tunnel, and were employed cutting clown 
the top-coal to give room to play water on the fire. The following shift discovered 
an extension of the fire in the next bord, fuitlier up the tunnel, at c on marginal 
plan, and at once attacked this as explained. The men at this time seem to have 
got uneasy, and 1)eheved the fire had crept up behiiiid them ; in conseqnence, Sam 
Passmore macic a special search in a bard higher up the tunnel than the last named, 
and proceeded some distance into the goaf, but discovered no fire. 

About this time Mr. Campbell, the manager, who had a few clays before 
tightened the stoppings to the east of C in No. 29 stopping (vicle plan No. 3) 
accidentally discovered that it was open, and that a quantity of air was escaping over 
it into the waste, but saw no fire through it. I-Ic called the attention of the owners 

and the Examiner of Coal-fields to the circumstance, and these gentlemen believing 
that the stopping had beeii surreptitiously tampered with by some inaliciou P°11 
with the object of endangering life, the owners offered a reward of £50 for the 

conviction of the supposed culprit. The Commission regret that this received such 
promhuience. Campbell, the manager, Mr. Mackenzie, and others were closely 
examine(l upon the point. The workmen in the tunnel do not seem to have noticed 

any deficiency in the amount of air while this stoppin is supposed to have remaine(l 
open. The furnace-men at the illoitth 01 the tunnel had received instructions not td) 
admit anyone into the mine who was not iiniiiediately employed flierein, and there 
is no evidence that they were remiss iii iiiei (1 itties. With teii men at work in chose 
proximity, and wit.h. no objeet to gain by clomg so, the Conmmission cannot conceive 
of the possibility of such all occurrence taking place, except by one of the mcii 
employed. The oiler or a rcvarcl under these circumstances might he coiistiued into 
reproach on the bo)?fides of valorous macn, every one of whom the Coimnissioiu 
-feel satisfied were impressed with a lofty sense of their duty. 	The state that 
Campbehl found this stopping iii is ('xplainal)le iii inaiiv ways ; and stoppings iii a 
similar state are seen every day within all extensive manic. No flIfl Was (lone, tin 
escape of air from the tunnel was trilling, and the Commission see no justification 
for the action that the proprietors were advised to take. 

570—C 	 On 
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On Sunday, the 18th of April, the workmen had satisfied themselves that 
with fire in the bords marked a b c ci 'e (on sketch plan, page 17) fed by fresh air 
coming over the boiler they could scarce hope, unless the plan of the operation was 
altered, to cope with the conflagration, which they had satisfied themselves was 
confined to the borcis and pillars for about 2 chains square referred to above. 
1-laying quenched the flames, in that situation, for about a chain back from the 
tunnel they put in tight stoppings in the two borcis above the boiler, with the 
intention of removing the fall remaining in the tunnel, and afterwards, by an 
alteration in the circuit of the air-current, to attack the fire at about the points 
marked on sketch, marginal plan, page 17. 

During these arduous operations the Examiner of Coal-fields and Mr. 
Inspector Rowan were in constant attendance, taking no responsibility, but seeing 
that the men did not incur unnecessary risk, and ready to withdraw them should 
unforeseen danger arise. They mingled with the men, remained for hours with the 
shifts who battled with the fire, and while giving them a helping hand were ever 
warning the workmen not to endanger their lives. They formed a part of the busy 
band of toilers who for some weeks laboriously struggled as one man, auirnated with 
one desire to successfully accomplish the work they had begun, sharing with these 
men whatever risk and danger existed, as well as the discomforts of the situation. 

The owners and their Manager and subordinates also appear to have shown 
an equal interest and an unusual solicitude for the safety of the men worthy of all 
commendation. They were present daily for hours at the very front of the operations, 
encouraging by their presence, yet urging the workmen to withdraw rather than 
incur risk, and supplying all their requirements with a willing alacrity. The Com-
mission feel it to be at once a pleasure and their duty to comment favourably upon 
the part taken by these gentlemen, and refer to the evidence given by the witnesses 
who were employed at these operations, every one of whom seemed pleased to 
express their approbation of the help given, and the anxiety felt, by the inspectors, 
owners, and Manager for their common safety. 

On Mofiday, the 19th April, the men had commenced operations in the tunnel; 
about 11,700 cubic feet of air was passing to the foot, and everything appeared 
favourable. The Inspector of Collieries, with a parting word of admonition to the 
men, left for Sydney. 

The position of the bratticung is shown on plan No. 0, appended. About 
3.30 p.m. the shift, composed of the following ten men, were at work, namely :—
Archibald Dune, Gilbert Kirkwood, Chas. Norwood, John Duncan, William Mantle 
(all of whom were saved), and of Isaiah Hyde, Lancelot Allison, Thomas Rawe, 
Thomas Mantle, and Joseph Buzza, who lost their lives. At the hour named a loud 
crash was heard, supposed to come from a point up the tunnel. The canvas 
bratticing, saturated with steam and hot water, fell upon and entangled John 
Duncan, scalding his arms and person. The crash was followed by a strong rush of 
wiud down the tunnel, carrying dust and fragments of grit, and extinguished 
every light, but does not seem to have knocked down any of the men or overturned 
a skip. A second crash and second rush of air, less strong, immediately followed, 
and a gust of air rushing over the boiler carried quantities of smoke and gas back 
upon the men. Gilbert Kirkwood, the leader of the shift, at once shouted to the 

men 
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men to run for their lives, and a rush was made for the skips that were standing some 
distance above. The air current at once resumed its course, but in diminished volume, 
and carried with it quantities of choke-damp, which SpCC(lilV began to affect the terror-
stricken men. They tumbled into the skips that were. provi(le(1 to carry out rubbish. 
Some confusion seems to have arisen as to signalling. r11115 was ultimately relegated 
to Archibald Dinie, who, however, considered that the signal had become deranged, 
while the men on the surface affirm that no signal was given. 

On the surface a sudden jet of smoke was seen to emerge out of the left-hand 
furnace-shaft, and a belch of air and dust came out of the tunnel mouth, but was not 
repeated ; while II. Grant, who is evidently endowed ivith an enlarged or-an of 
wonder, affirms that lie was ejected for over a hundred yards out of the tunnel, and 
for many yards into the open air. This is an incredible story, and the Commission 
feel satisfied, as the inaii received no injury, and was one of the first to run into 
the tunnel to render assistance, that the incident referred to did not occur. They 
refer to the evidence of II. Grant, and the reliable evidence of Joseph Campbell, who 
was standing near the spot indicated by Grant. 

Seeing that something serious had occurred, Jos. Campbell considered it 
prudent to have the skips drawn out of the mine. 

Meantime the men in the mine being in the dark, and feeling that ihie air-
current was sluggish and contained choke-dam1), and a gust of smoke having only a 
moment before come from the boiler, and believing that the tunnel had closed 
hurriedly, got out of the skips and made for the pit-bank. When, however, the 
skips began to move C. Norwood and John Duncan got into them. As they 
proceeded some rubbish from the stoppings, that had 1)ee]l l)loWn out, was strewn 
across the road. Over this the skips were drawn, awl in consequence they left the 
rails. The jolting thus occasioned threw out Duncan. Al,  they were passig him 
Kirkwood managed to throw his arni over the end of the last skip, and, hanging on 
with desperate energy, succeeded in being dragged out of danger. Jno. Duncan 
afterwards caught the rope, and by it was dragged upwards; while Arch. Dune, with 
William Mantle leading, walked or crept to positions of safety. For a graphic 
account of the catastrophe the Commission would refer to the evidence of A. Dune 
and the other four men saved, viz., C. Norwood, G. Kirkwood, J. Duncan, and Wm. 
Mantle ; and for the positions where the bodies of the other five men were found, 
see evidence of Jos. Campbell, also plan No. 3. 

a promptitude deserving of the highest praise Joseph Campbell at once 
emitered the mine. He was accompanied by I-I. Grant and Wm. Martin, both of 
whom for the second time rendered signal service; and after passing several of the 
saved men the search party, under Campbell, now augmented by many willing 
volunteers, observing that the stoppings were more or less blown down, and from 
the openings choke-damp was emanating, hurriedly repaired the breaches, and in 
this way restored the ventilating current, so that in a remarkably short space of time 
tile searchers were enabledi to reach the 23rd stopping from the tunnel mouth. 

At this point the bodies of the unfortunate men, Isaiah ilyde and Thomas 
Raw-c, were fouwl, and knowing that no other bodies were in the mine the searchers 
withidirew, and the smoke and choke-damp remained stationary at the 2211d stoppuig 
thereafter. 

The 



20 

The five men saved from the catastrophe assert that on their progress up the 
tunnel they passed over some live coal opposite some of the stoppings. The Com-
mission satisfied themselves in examining witnesses that no fire existed so far as is 
known beyond the 31st stopping, and none was observed through the blown-out 
stoppings as far down as the 22nd. (See Jos. Campbell's evidence.) They fail to see 
how the fire centred at the boiler could extend over the "swallow" of water referred 
to in the time, and can only refer to the apparently reasonable hypothesis set forth 
by Mr. Inspector Rowan when examined on this point (vide Rowan's evidence). On 

this subject they cannot offer any further remarks. 

The evidence is most decisive that succeeding the rush of air after the loud noise 
that gave intimation to the unfortunate workmen that a serious accident had taken 
place the ventilation resumed its course, and carried before it down the tunnel waves 
or quantities of choke-damp that affected all the men. Some of the saved noticed 
that the state of the atmosphere deteriorated as they approached some of the stop- 

ings a considerable distance up the tunnel. 

The evidence of Campbell, the then Manager, clearly explains the state of 
these stoppings a few minutes after the accident. Portions of the loose material 
with which they were composed had been blown out across the road. Towards the 
top of the tunnel very little damage had been done, and that contiguous to the roof. 
Further down a greater quantity of the packing had been scattered across the road 
from left to right, thus indicating the source and direction of the force, whilst 
others had been bodily shif ted. So far as one can judge, the chief force of the blast 
appears to have been concentrated below the 15th stopping, and extended down as 
far as the place where the bodies of 1-Tyde and Rowe were found, but the evidence of 
the survivors goes to show that probably below that point damage had been done to 
stoppings. 

As to the cause of this serious accident, as might have been anticipated, two 
theories have been propounded. It would appear that of the five survivors some 
were too nervous and agitated to think of a cause. In the case of others, such as 
A. Duiie, the idea of a fall of the roof seems to have shot through their minds ; pro-
bably none of the survivors really did formulate any cause until their recovery and 
had time for reflection. flow far their own judgment was then influenced by the 
anxious inquiries and conversations of friends it is impossible to judge. The causes 
assigned for this accident have been as follows :- 

An explosion of Fire-damp. 
A fall of the Roof. 

With respect to the first or explosion theory the Commission consider that they have 
sifted the subject to the bottom. The theory appears to have emanated from men 
possessing no mining erudition and ignorant of the chemistry of gases, and to have 
been accepted by some of them as a convenient reason to assign for a most deplor-
able and somewhat obscure accident—by men who were groping for light, and who 
were, from their evidence, perfectly ignorant of the laws that regulate the explosion 
of fire-damp. To some extent this was looked upon as the cause of the accident by 
the witness Kirkwood, who, however, considered that the gas that did explode was the 
smoke that issued from the fire. This, the Commission feel, need only be referred to 
that its utter absurdity may be seen. in 1ustice to this witness lie did not insist 
upon his opinion, nor apparently was he positive that he was treading upon safe 
ground. The witnesses J. Davies, R. Grant., and A. Dune, likewise, were inclined to 

accept 
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accept this doctrine. The whole of these men had never seen or heard of fire-clamp 
having been seen in the colliery ; the former thought that smoke might explode. 
The second (II. Grant) believed that a reservoir of fire-damp had accumulated 
toward Eskbank boundary, and in a position where lie himself admitted choke-clamp 
—the antithesis of firc-damp---had formerly existed. This man, as may be seen from 
his evidence on the point, had not considered how many difficulties presented them-
selves before his theory was possihile. He admitted that fire-damp had not been 
seen, and was ignorant of the nature and comj)osition of explosive mixtures. 
A. Dune (page 56-57), in his evidence, thought at first that the accident was due to 
a heavy fall, aiid lie only afterwards inclined to the belief that it might be clue to an 
explosion. On this point lie was by no means certain, nor had lie cogent reasons for 
the belief lie had subsequently entertained. If the evidence tendered by these 
witnesses be taken in connection with that given on the point by witnesses such as 
Messrs. Mackenzie, iowan, Dixon, Campbell, Turnbull, and Davies, the Commis-
sion feel that little remains to be said further than to mention that the whole of the 
witnesses agree in stating that the ordinary and positive signs or sequela of an 
explosion were absent. No flame was observed, no superheateci atmosphere existed, 
no steam was seen, no evidence of burning on the pihlais or woodwork, or on the 
l)odies of the unfortunate men. nude  was no derangement of the air-current ; the 
force went with the wind. 	The pl'ol)OuifldieIs  of the explosion theory could not 
explain : 1st. how it was possible for a mule in which no gas had ever been seen to 
have an accumulation of this at Fskhaiik boundary, and why this place should have 
been chosen by it, so to speak, as a magazine; 2nd. Or where the gas was generated; 
3rd. Or how, if exploded, when no light was near ; 4th. Or how it was possible for a 
reservoir of highit carimnetted hydrogen to get mixed with the requisite volumes of 
fresh air to render it explosive, with open wastes surrounding it, full of smoke and of 
carbonic acid gas ; or 5th. Nor had they considered that in the event of carburetted 
hydrogen gas existing it could not explode if, whieui rendered explosive by the 
adl(htlon of the requisite volume of air, it became mixed i6th a very small per cen-
tage of choke-damp ; and, finally, that with light carl)uretted hydrogen gas in an 
explosive condition, contiguous to Eskbank or thereabout, it was not pOssil)le 
for an explosion to occur, seeing that to draw it out of its lurking place it 
must pass through wastes filled with smoke and carbonic acid gas, and that at the 
moment the heft-hand return contained or was passilug an amount of carbonic 
acid sufficient to qualify and reuider inert any explosive mixture. The Commission 
feel that it is supererogation to remark that the laws that regulate the explosion of 
photo-carburetted hydrogen gas are fixed and inexorable, and if, as stated, this is 
(1uahfiedl with the admixture of carbonic acid gas an explosion is impossible. 

The evidence of an explosion was, from the first, not only weak, but was not 
supported by a single intelligible statement or reason. 

With respect to the cause being assigned to the occurrence of a heavy fall of 
the roof, the Commission feel that they are treadling upon solid ground. 

Falls of the roof appear to have been of frequent occurrence on the north side 
of the tunnel ; lIen. Grant, in his evidence, refers to his hearing the soundi of falls 
in this locality. While Samuel Passmore refers to one fall that occurred in the 
waste behind the boiler, whell the rush of air, caused by the displacement, blew the 
doors of the underground boiler open. C. Norwootl speaks of a fall that took place 
behind the boiler only the dlav before the accident, that blew out smoke and dust, 
and extinguished lights. Everyone conversant with mining operations knows how 
frequently heavy falls occur in the old and abandoned workings of a mine. 

In 
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In the present case the fall that suddenly displaced a quantity of air sufficient 
to partially blow out so many of the stoppings on the left-hand side (northern) of 
the tunnel, and to have forced open the trap-doors at the furnaces, and displaced the 
ashes on the grate, and, rushing up the left-hand up east, started the wooden slabbing 
and clay plaster on the sloping tunnel that connected that up-cast shaft with the 
chimney, must have been a fall of some magnitude, but not necessarily greater 
than falls that occur, and are soon forgotten, in mines where the wastes do not 
contain accumulations of carbonic acid gas. 

Mr. Inspector Dixon spoke of a fall that had recently occurred at ILambton 
Colliery, where the rush of air, had it been directed, as it was not, against stoppings, 
would probably have demolished them. Mr. Inspector Howan instanced a fall 
where the rush of air -,-.-as so great that it forced the winding-cage in the shaft 
through the "midwall" or partition; while the Examiner of Coal-fields and others 
described the blast occasioned by a great fall at the Wailsend Colliery as sufficient 
to knock down horses and men, to level and demolish brick stoppings, and dash the 
skips about. Other witnesses gave similar incidents from their own experiences, 
and the Commission, conscious of similar catastrophes, endorse these statements. 
The Commission feel that although in the present condition of the colliery it is 
impossible to ascertain the locality, yet they are satisfied that to a fall of the roof, 
and to that alone, that occurred towards the left of the tunnel, and probably in the 
vicinity of the encroachment from Eskbank workings, this lamentable accident is to 
be attributed. 

It is well known that over a considerable area in that neighbourhood the 
pillars were removed, and from that towards the point G (plan No. 3) the pillars 
were of small size, and the bords were unusually wide. This part of the mine has 
been abandoned for years, consequently the timber that originally supported the 
roof coal must have decayed, and the roof and small pillars, yielding to the decay 
incident to exposure, must have been considerably weakened, and in a fit state to 
subside. On account of the fire these old working must have been filled with 
steam, carbonic acid gas, and the products of combustion. They did contain before 
the fire quantities of "stythe." A heavy fall occurriig in this locality would 
suddenly displace a quantity of air and gas that would rush impetuously and 
unrestrained across the open bords, sweeping before it the contained choke-damp 
until it found relief. The left return, already passing a full quantity of air across 
the narrow space that existed between the water and the roof, could not give it vent, 
but a portion of the force was spent in urging the air in that return onward, forcing 
the door and displacing the slabbhg above the up-cast shaft. The residual force 
spent itself in blowing the stoppings, and the top of these, being thinnest, and 
offering least resistance, yielded to the extent required. 

The resistance of the water in the lower hollow may have been sufficient to 
prevent any serious blast to travel over the site of the fire, and the slight rush of 
smoke after the first blast had ceased may represent the amount of force that was 
spent in that direction. 

The stoppings on the left or north side of the tunnel giving way allowed the 
foul air and carbonic acid gas from the wastes to pour into the tunnel, and this 
force caused the "wind" that rushed downwards after the first crash was heard by 
the men engaged at the fire. The incoming air carried or rolled this heavy gas 
downwards until it became diffused and met the men on their way out, with the 
dire results narrated. 	 Having 
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ilaving thus, at some length, descril)ed the history, mode of working, character 
of the same, its condition and arrangements, the Commission, after considering  the 
evidence, have unanimously agreed to present to Your Excellency the following 
findings :— 

First—That the underground fire i hat occurred on Saturday or Sunday, 
the 13th or 14th of February of this year, arose at the u]1derroun(l 

In 

boiler, and was in all prolability caused by the defective arrangements 
explained, arising from the stolid and implacable indifference and 
disregard of the managenient to the unsafe condition of the under-
ground arrangements. 

Second—That John Doi g, .Tianager, Charles Younger, banksmani, and 
William Rawe, miner, met their deaths by the inhalation of carbonic 
acid gas, while in the wastes on the righthawl side o. the tunnel. 

The reasons that induced these men to penetrate these wastes is inexplicable, and 
the Commission, although most unwilling to proiuouunce judgnment upon the actions 
of those who have lost their lives while in the discharge of their duty, cannot come 
to any other opinion than that the deaths of these three men are due to a grave 
error in judgment, for which they themselves were alone responsible. 

Third—That the second accident, of the 19th April, was caused by a cc willd 
blast," the result of a fall of the top-coal, or of the overlying rock, of 
unknown extent, and in all unascertained locality of the old workings 
to the north of the tunnel—probably in the vicinity of the encroach-
ment from Eskbank—that forced the foul and exhausted air, smoke, 
and carbonic acid gas, or carbonic oxide gas, that filled these wastes, 
as well as the foul air of the left-hand return, through the stoppings, 
into the main intake or tunnel. 

Fourth—That Isaiah Ilyde, Thomas Rawe, Lancelot Allison, J. Mantle. 
and Joseph Buzza were killed by the inhalation of carbonic acid gas, 
and others as detailed. 

Fifth—That this lamentable occurrnce was a Imm aceidciit, one that 
could not have been foreseen, and was unprcventihie, for which 110 one, 
in the Opinion of the Commission, is to blame or can be held responsible. 

The Commission have given great consideration to other points connected with the 
arrangenuents in this mine, and would most respectfully desire to report upon these to 
Your Excellency. 

The deceased manager, John Doig, was vested with the whole and sole control 
of the mine and its accessories, and lie had not been in the habit of reporting events 
to the proprietoms. The mine gave thenu no concern, and was on all hands con-
sidered to be a singularly safe one, and the proprietors, being unskilled men, were 
quite willing not to be troubled with details. 

The stoppings were constructed of small coal, strengthened in Some cases, 
where required, with timber. They seeni to have been carefully constructed ; and 
the fact that no complaints have ever been made by the men about the ventilation; 
that it exceeded the quantity prescribed by the Coal Mines Regulation Act; that the 
Inspectors were perfectly satisfieLl; and that, during the operations for extinguishing 

the 
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the underground fire, the quantity of air reaching the 	men amounted to 14,750 
cubic feet per minute: the Commission can come to no other conclusion than that 
these were sufficient, and served all the purposes of stoppings. In constructing 
these of small coal this Colliery followed the custom of the district, and of other 
districts of the Colony, where large daily outputs are obtained. 

In the case of returns that convey smoke and hot gases from the fires of under-
ground boilers, the veriest novice in coal-mining ought to have readily seen and 
apprehended the nature of the danger. It was enough that the pillars of coal over 
this long return were perfectly unprotected ; but to add to the danger by controlling 
this important circuit by means of stoppings composed of slack coal appears to the 
Commission to be inexcusable. The condition and character of this return was far 
from satisfactory, and forms but a link in a comparatively long chain of lax arrange-
ments and indifference for the safety oF the mine. This was, it is true, not the cause 
of the accident, and, at the best, had only an indirect influence in determining the 
course taken by the blast. 

For reasons given, the Commission do not attribute the melancholy loss af life 
that resulted from these stoppings being partially blown out to the character of the 
stoppings. The accident was not foreseen, nor could it under any conditions have 
been anticipated. The residual or marginal force inherent in the blast, after blow-
ing the stoppings, must have been considerable, but it is impossible to estimate what 
that marginal force was. Brick stoppings, though more worknanlike, offer but a 
poor resistance to a sudden blast where the energy of the air has been suddenly and 
forcibly generated. In this Colony such stoppings have been demolished by the air 
force generated by a fall of the roof. Had the stoppings along the tunnel been of 
brick it is doubtful whether they would have resisted the sudden shock or push of 
this "wind" blast; and if they had yielded there can be no doubt that the damage would 
have been greater, and probably not one of the five men saved would have come out 
of Litligow tunnel alive. At the same time the Commission are of opinion that 
brick stoppings ought in all cases to control the course of every return that conveys 
the gases from underground furnaces; that all returns should be easily accessible, 

and should be travellable ; and that stoppings of brick, or' of some substantial 
and imperishable material, should control main air-currents. In a future report the 
Commission hope to give, at length, their views on stoppings as bearing upon 

ventilation. 

The rapper-wire, at the moment after the accident, was, it is believed, 
deranged. The men requiring its aid were in a state of desperate ccitement; 
probably the signals were not properly managed, but if they were, the Commission 
see in the damaged stoppings a reason for the derangement of the wire. It was 
impossible to foresee this accident, and this being so, it is difficult to protect a 
signalling apparatus from the effects of an accident that could not have been 
anticipated. The signalling wire seems to have been properly hung, to have been 
hung in the usual manner, and to have acted before the accident to the satisfaction 
of the very men who, at the moment of danger, found it., to their horror, unworkable. 
The wire must have been covered by the debris from the blown-out stoppings. To 

protect a wire in tubes would be to curtail its usefulness, and prevent the possibility 
of effecting repairs or inspecting its condition; neither would this protect it from all 
accidents. The Commission, in absolving the management from any blame in 

respect 
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respect to the rapper-wire, would desire to point out to your Excellency that the 
signalling apparatus was not used for the purpose of signalling the embarkation of 
men, but was only provided for the sole purpose of indicating when a train of coal-
skips was ready to be drawn out of the mine. 

The practice of permitting large accumulations of ashes contiguous to a 
ventilating furnace, as has been the custom at this colliery, is a most unsafe and 
reprehensible one, and betrays a reckless disregard for the general safety of property; 
these ought, in all cases, to be removed at once out of the mine. 

The Inspector of Collieries appears to have visited this colliery regularly and 
periodically in accordance with the Act, and found no cause to complain of the 
manner in which it was conducted. The Commission regret that such a zealous 
officer as Mr. Inspector Rowan had not his attention directed to the condition and 
arrangements of the under boiler of this colliery, and also that lie did not consider it 
necessary to make any exhaustive inspection either of this structure or of the state 
of the left-hand return. Had this been done the Commission are confident that his 
experience and natural caution would have caused the glaring defects elicited during 
this inquiry to have been removed, and thus have averted a calamity that has 
brought sorrow to many happy homes, and cast a gloom over the peaceful village of 
Lithgow. 

Although this may be no part of their duty the Commission hope that Your 
Excellency will pardon them for remarking, that in their opinion, special provisions 
ought to be taken by the owners to isolate the portion of their workings to the rise 
of No. 2 cross-cut, and that have been sealed off from the eastern workings l)y very 
strong 27" brick stopping, shewn upon plan No. 3. The doubt that exists as to the 
exact position of the old bords, on account of the irregular manner that surveys have 
been taken, is very great. To broach these lower workings that are now full of 
carbonic acid or kindred gases might lead to grave results. The ordinary flank and 
straight-in bore-holes in the exploring drifts may not prove sufficient, and a direct 
safety road and separate opening to the air (a shaft) in advance of the faces should 
be carried out without loss of time. 

The Commission feel it at once their duty and their pleasure to absolve the 
Inspector of Collieries from all blame or reproach in being ignorant of the occurrence 
of the previous fires referred to, and which were not reported to him. The anxiety 
and the good work done by this gentleman during the progress of the operations for 
extinguishing the fire is beyond all praise, and deserves special record. 

The encroachment that has taken place from the coal workings, in Eskbank 
into those of Lithgow Valley, invests the question of extinguishing the fire in the 
last-named Colliery with a peculiar interest, and may yet be productive of baneful 
results. From the Report of the Committee appointed by the Commission to iiispect 
Eskbank southern workings, it would appear that, along the 1)oundary of Lithigow 
Valley estate, the pillars of coal have been taken out and the roof allowed to fail. 
(T7de Re1)ort No. 5.) T1111( Reporters attest, and other Commissions corroborate, that 
an appreciable current of air is coursing through the crevices of these falls towards 
Lithigow Valley workings. if this aii is finding its way into the wastes of: this mine, 
and is StlI)1)lyi !lg oxygen to t lie C()IlflaLnitiOIl agilig tIieie, flU other course is open to 
the owners, if they desire to recover their property, thaim to form a large dam and 
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impound surface waters, and at all hazards to flood their mine. If this is done, the 
Commission have no doubt that, after rising a certain height in the workings, the 
water will flow into Eskbank. If the fire is fed with air from Eskbank, and flooding 
is not carried out, there does not appear to be any limit to the extent over which this 
fire may not eventually travel. 

The operations connected with the attempt to extinguish the underground fire 
in ILithgow Valley Mine appear to the Commission to have been planned and 
conducted with judgment and circumspection. The work was cautiously carried on 
by efficient and capable men, every one of whom were conversant with their duties, 
and alive to their responsibilities and danger. But for the deplorable accident of 
the 19th of April success would soon, in all probability, have rewarded their long 
continued efforts. The Commission, from their experience of such accidents, can 
fully estimate the trying and arduous nature of the work, and can the more readily 
appreciate efforts that unfortunately came to nought. 

In the recovery of the bodies of the eight men who met an untimely death 
while in the discharge of their duty in this mine the Commission desire to record, 
that in addition to the men whose names have already been referred to, many others 
rerformed deeds of true heroism, that prove them to have been imbued, when facing 
danger, with that unselfish humanity and chivalrous gallantry that from all time has 
been the characteristic feature of, and has lent a peculiar nobility and manliness to 
those immediately engaged in mining pursuits. 

Certified under our hands and seal on this the 10th day of June, 1886 :-

(L.s.) JAMES H. M. ROBERTSON, l'resideut. 
J. Y. NEILSON. 
JOHN JONES. 
JAS. SWINBTJRN. 
WILLIAM TUHNBULL.. 
WILLIAM DAVIES. 
JOHN THOMAS. 
JOHN USHER. 
JAMES CURLEY, 

Witnesses—W. HOGAN, 

0. F. Fisu. 
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Du. ROBERTSON, M.D., F.R.S., C.E., PRESIDENT. 

Mn. .T. USHER. 	 Mn. JAS. CURLEY. 
Mn. J. ThOMAS. 	 Mu. WM. DAViES. 
Mn. J. Y. NE1LSON. 	 Mn. JOHN JONES. 
Mn. J. SWINBURN. 

Thomas T. Wilton was the first witness called. 
President, before administering the oath, said: We propose, Mr. Wilton, to examine you upon 	Mr. 

some general points connected with the calamities that have recently occurred at your colliery. 	T. T. Wilton. 
Mr. Wilton: May 1 be allowed, Mr. President, to ask one or two questions. Of course you will 

understand what I am going to ask is merely intended for our own protection, and in your interests as 3  MaY; 188 
well. I want to know ,if you please, what are the powers of the Commission? Can you compel the 
attendance of any one, for instance? 

President: Undoubtedly. The Commission have very large powers. 
Ji&. Wilton : Will the inquiry be a secret one—with closed doors, I mean? 
President: Yes, I believe it will be conducted with closed doors, and that the evidence will 

not be made public till it is complete. 
Afr. Wilton: Then I l:ave to ask you can any of us be present, or can we be represented, so as to 

enable us to elicit the whole truth, because we feel that statements may be made to you by witnesses 
which perhaps the Commission would be unable to judge the value of under cover of the secrecy with 
which these proceedings are to be conducted. It might occur that certain damaging, and at the same 
time untruthful, statements might be made by some witnesses for interested purposes. At the same time,, 
I wish it to be clearly understood that I am fully convinced the desire of the Commission is to have tF 
fullest and fairest inquiry so far as possible. 

President: Yes, Mr. Wilton. 
.Afr. Wilton: Now, unless some care be taken—such care, I mean, as only a trained or skil1 dI 

advocate can bring to bear in such inquiries—the Commission might be misled by statements which h:asa 
no truth in fact to support them. This inquiry is placed in a very different position from that of an 
ordinary Commission. You are charged with an inquiry which may involve us in very serious core 
quences. Now, in common fair_play and justice, we should not be standing in the position. of 
accused persons with evidence brought behind their backs, and at the same time possibly to bnve 
damaging statements made without any chance of refuting them. In a word, we want to know liat 
charges are brought against us. This is the difficult position in which you and we are placed. 

President: Ave have not yet considered that point, Mr. Wilton. Have you any others to 
bring forward, if not, we will ask you to be good enough to retire while we consider the question youi 
have raised. 

Mr. Wilton : Perhaps it is better to finish one or two other matters first. I want to ask you will 
the evidence be taken on oath? 

President: Yes, by every witness. 
Mr. Wilton : What 1 want to get at is this : We have nothing to conceal, and we wish for the. 

fullest and most open inquiry. 
President : I think we have already decided that the principals ought not to be present. 
Mr. Wilton : And yet, Sir, that appears to be the only way in which we could protect oure1ves 

by furnishing you with testilnomly in reply to anything that may be charged against us. 
President : The Commission propose in the event of any serious charge being made to recall 

any witness against whom such a charge may be made, so that lie may have an opportunity of answer- 
ing it. Any unsubstantiated allegation must go for nothing, and we are anxious to institute the most 
thorough and searching investigation into the accidents. 

Mr. Wilton : Let us suppose that a witness said a man who was dead had told him something or 
other. 

President: Unless that something could be proved it would go for nothing, and surely in t1ke  
case you suggest the proof would be extremely difficult. 

Mr. Wilton: All I ask you, gentlemen, is, to place youi'selves in our position and consider how you 
would like to have an inquiry conducted with closed doors which might involve the question as to whether 
you were responsible for the loss of several lives through neglecting to supply certain necessary apphiammees 
for any kind of works, or some other culpable neglect. flow would you like to feel that such things 
might be said which would leave an impression unfavourable to you on time minds of i's appoiited 
to conduct such inquiry? Besides which, I would point out that no reporters being present statements 
might be made which would very likely embarrass the Commission in any m'eport that they may make. 

Mr. Swinb urn I think we are quite able to judge of those who may come before us as witnea 
We shall be able to form our own judgment of the statements that may be made. 

Mr. Wilton : If the Commission would do this—that in case of any charges being made they 
would kindly give us an opportunity of knowing what those charges are,—that is all I ask. 

President: I hope I made it plain to you that I would recall you, or the principal witness, in 
the event of a charge being made. 

Mr. Neilson: As a magistrate, I can assure you that witnesses will only be allowed to speak of 
facts within their own knowledge. The examination will be carried out here in the same way as in the 
ordinary Courts. 

Mr. Wilton asked if it representative could be present. 
The President pointed out that if the privilege were granted to the owners it would have to be 

extended to others. 
21L. Wilton : I do not want any solicitor. We are confident of our own position. But can we have 

a representative present? 
[At this stage Mr. Wilton was asked to retire, while time Commission discussed the matter brought 

under their notice.] 
President : Well, gentlemen, I ain not surprised that this point has been brought up. It is 

one that I expected when the Commission was appointed, and I strongly urged several members of the 
Government 
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T. T. 	overnment to appoint some barrister upon the Commission in order to meet this particular point. I do Wilton.
iton, not think it is a point we need to be surprised at. It is one I should have raised myself, and it is one 

3 	 which we have to consider. As constituted, we cannot cross-examine. It will only be an examination-in- 
chief. Every member of the Commission has the right to amplify the first examination, and put any 
question he may think has been omitted. But such a thing as cross-examination is out of our 
province. 

Air. Usher: Surely, as some member has put it to Mr. Wilton, we have brains sufficient to see if 
any person exhibited a strong prejudice against the Company, and then we should recall witnesses who 
might be able to give rebutting evidence. 

President: We must do that in common fairness to parties. 
Air. Davies: But I understand he wishes to be represented. 
President: No; I think he is satisfied with being given an opportunity of being recalled, if 

necessary. 
Mr. Davies: I want to be more clear as to the meaning of Mr. Wilton. He seems to insinuate 

that there will be witnesses here hostile to the Company, 
President: I think he only raised a hypothetical case. 
Mr. Davies: Well, it seems to me that we are here to judge impartially of the value of the 

evidence. 
Mr. Jones: I understand that to be also the feeling of Mr. Wilton. But that if statements con-

sidered damaging to the Company were made—and as this is a close inquiry—they should be made 
acquainted with them, and be allowed to call evidence in rebuttal. 

Mi. Ourley: In a private inquiry like this the Company will be examined, and they and their witnesses 
will give the fullest information they possibly can. The other witnesses who may come forward will do the 
same. How then is Mr. Wilton, or any of the Company, to be informed of what may be stated here unless 
we supply them with such information, If we give them the information, we aord them an opportunity 
of producing other evidence in rebuttal of any charges that may be made; and if they had this oppor-
tunity, the parties giving the information they object to would need to be informed of the nature of the cvi-
demce, in order to allow them an opportunity of supporting the testimony they had given in chief. 

President: Gentlemen, Mr. Wilton probably misunderstands the objects of the Commission. 
It is not to place any one in danger. We cannot cast anyone in damages, or fine. Our duty is simply to 
report to the Governor, and to state our impressions as to the cause or causes of certain accidents. 

Mr. Jones: I think we all understand that. If we like to recall one witness, we can recall 
another. 

President: Certainly, if a man makes a serious statement, we may say, "Are you in a position 
to prove it? " If he says, "I am not personally, but it was told me by another," then he must produce 
that other. If the other cannot be preduced, then we have to consider what value should be attached on 
the evidence of the person who in the first place made such a statement. 

.Mr. Davies: The question Mr. Wilton put as to the powers of the Commission seemed to embrace 
his meaning. 

President: We can easily satisfy him on that point by handing him the Commission for 
ins pection. 

Mr. Davies: Concerning Mr. Mackenzie, sir, I think it right that I should express the opinion 
that it is out of place that the Chief Examiner of Coal-fields should be Mr. Wilton's guest. I know it 
does not come within our power to do anything in the matter. But it seems very much out of place. 

President: I think we may all have an opinion on that subject. But at the same time, as you 
say, it is not a part of our Commission to deal with it. however; 1 tell you what is part of our power. 
You can put questions to the Chief Examiner when he is before us as to any question arising out of or 
depending upon that. I think it is probably imprudent for him to do so, and you can examine him upon 
that. It would be no fault of Mr. Wilton, for instance, if he, out of a spirit of hospitality, invited the 
members of this Commision to take up our residence with him. It would be our fault if we did so. Do 
not press this side issue. 

After some further conversation Mr. Wilton was called in, and,— 
The President explained the feeling of the Commission in reference to the representations laid 

before them on behalf of the Company. He said, looking at the matter in all its aspects, we think it 
would be undesirable for any representative of the Commission to be in the room while the inquiry is 
proceeding. At the same time, in the event of any point being raised such as you, Mr. Wilton, have 
hypothetically put before us, you must have perfect reliance on the oath we have taken, and upon our 
judgment and spirit of fairness as to the recalling of any witness where it would seem desirable to do 
so. 	I think, Mr. Wilton, you may feel at ease with this assurance. 

Mr. Wilton expressed himself as perfectly satisfied, and was then examined. 

Thomas T. Wilton sworn :- 
President.] Mr. Wilton, will you state to us the names of the owners of the Lithgow Valley 

Colliery? The Lithgow Valley Colliery belongs to a registered Company consisting of eight or nine 
shareholders, and registered under the Companies Act. 

Two accidents have occurred at the Lithgow Valley mine, I believe, during the present year? Yes. 
Can you give the date of the first accident? Either on the 14th or 15th February hist. It was on a 

Monday morning that the discovery was made that something had gone wrong in the mine. 
How many men lost their lives in connection with the first accident? Three (3). 
What were their names? John Doig, the manager; Charles Younger, the banksm.an ; and William 

Rowe, a miner. 
0. Can you give us the date of the second accident? It was about a fortnight ago. 
7. Can you give us the date? I think it was on the 19th of last month, but there has been so much con-
fusion I cannot be certain. 
S. How many lost their lives on account of that accident? Five. 

Their names? I cannot give you their christian names. I can give you some. There was Isaiah 
Hyde, Launcelot Allison, and Mantle—whether William or Thomas I don't remnember—and a man named 
Buzza, and young Rawe. 

Mr. Doig was the manager who was lost in the first accident; how long had he been manager to 
your 
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your Company previous to the accident? I suppose ten or twelve years. I cannot tell exactly, but I T. TWiln 
know it dated somewhere from 1875. 

Did you consider him a capable manager? Yes; he was a very excellent man. 
Who is your present manager? Mr. Campbell. 	 3 ay, 1886. 

When was he appointed? Shortly after the date of the first accident. 
A few days, I suppose? Yes, after the first accident we took all the men over to the Hermitage Colliery. 
Returning to Mr. Doig, late manager of the Litligow Valley Colliery, will you state what powers you 

or your Company gave him as manager? He had entire control and all power. 
10. Was he endowed with all powers as to ordering material for the use of the mine, for example? Yes, 
certainly, unless any very serious expense was involved. If any sudden necessity arose for his getting 
anything, he would go to the accountant, and say you must get so-and-so (whatever It might be), and he 
would order it. 

What powers did lie possess in the case of an emergency as to the purchase or ordering of 
material? Well, no special provision was made for that, because the occasion never arose. Besides, Mr. 
C-eli, one of my partners, was living here, and was nearly always on the ground, and in nearly all cases 
reference was made to him. Last year Mr. C-eli was away, and then they were in constant communica-
tinn with me, and I was telegraphed to if any immediate cause arose. But, so far as our experience goes, 
there never has occurred such an emergency as you suggest. 

Wore the proprietors conversant with the condition of the mine? No. 
Have you special rules for the colliery? Oh, yes. 
Could you lodge copies of them with the Commission? Yes, certainly. I may say that the owners 

were not at all conversant with mining. 
Did you not in any way control the operations of the mine? Not at all; there was one general 

instruction given as to the management. 
To whom did you delegate the conducting of operations? To the manager-that was to keep on with 

the main headings, for we were anxious to define our boundaries. 
You delegated the control of all your mining operations above and below to the manager? Yes. I 

may tell you that it had been a matter of common remark that since we had been working the mine we 
had had no trouble at all. We had infinitely more trouble given to us about other branches of the 
business. But, as I have said, we do not understand the practical work of mining, and we left it to Mr. 
Doig. I do not know one of the people except to see them on pay-day. 
21. Do you know if the mine was inspected regularly by the Inspectors of Coal-fields? I believe so. 
25. Did Mr. Doig intimate to you or to the Company that such inspections had been held ? No, 1 have 
heard nothing about it. As I have said, the mine was managed by him, and gave us no trouble; the coal 
regularlycame out, and the matters you refer to were taken as ordinary details. If the inspectors caine 
I never know of it; I never saw one; but they may have been there for all that. 
20. Have the Company ever received any official complaint from the Inspector or Examiner of Coal-fields 
as to the condition of the mine P No, never. At one time we were told that we ought to have a second 
opening to the day. 

Who told you? The Examiner of Coal-fields, I think, or Mr. Rowan. 
When was that? It must be some years ago now. 
How many years ago P I do not know; it may be two or three years; another witness will be able 

to tell you that. 
What other witness is that? Mr. C-eli, I should say; or Mr. Campbell ought to know. At that time we 

looked upon it that we should be compelled to undertake the work; but other people did not believe that 
a second entrance was necessary. 

When you received this communication from the inspector, what course did you pursue? We immne-
diatelv complied with hia request. 

Did the manager ever report the mine to be in a defective or dangerous condition? Never. 
Are you acquainted with the provisions of the Coal-fields Regulation Act-have you ever read the 

Act? I have read the Act through. 
Then, Mr. Wilton, you are aware that the owners are compelled, under the Coal-fields Regulations Act, 

to keep an accurate plan of the mine? Yes. 
Who did you appoint to make plans of the mine? Mr. Doig. 
And were you satisfied that this work was performed regularly? Yes, or we should have had notice 

from the G-overnmnent authorities. 
Have you ever received any official or other complaint from the examiner or inspector as to the con-

dition of the plan? No, unless something of a general complaint that it was not presentable, but no com-
plaint in any way impugning its accurateness. 

When was that complaint made? There was no formal complaint; it was more the result of a conversation. 
Then do 1 understand you to say that you have received no actual complaint? Yes, never. 
This is the plan of your mine, I believe, Mr. Wilton [pointing to plan oil the table]? I believe so; 

it was frightfully knocked about on the day of the accident, as you may see. 
Are you aware of the provisions of the Coal-fields Regulations Act as to the scale which colliery plans 

should be drawn up on? Yes, 2 chains to the inch, I believe. 
This is the only plan of your colliery, is it? That is the only plan I know of. 
You do not possess a working plan and a finished or office plan. Can you explain why the planof the 

workings has not been prepared to the scale prescribed by the Coal-fields Act? No; I fancy this colliery 
commenced before the present Act came into forco, and I suppose it was carried on with this plan in 
accordance with the way the work was commenced. 

Do you know whether the manager and surveyor took regular and periodical surveys of the mine? I 
do not, really. I can only say that, from the absence of any complaint, I believe it was done. No com-
plaint was made by any Government official on the subject. 

I believe you have an underground boiler in your mine, Mr. Wilton? Yes. 
40. What was the object of putting it there? For pumping operations. 

You had a pump connected with it? Yes. 
Was it within your knowledge that the arrangement of this underground boiler was defective and 

unsafe? No; I (10 not know anything about it. 
Is it within your knowledge that a fire, or several fires, had occurred in connection with this boiler 

before 
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Mr. 	before the fire of the 14th or 15th February of this year? No; we have heard it since, and were very 
T. T. Wilton. much astonished. 

When did you hear it? Since the 14th of February. The manager was a very reticent man, and I 3 May, 188G. 
snppose did not think it worth his while to say anything about this. They appeared to have been small 
fires, because they were put out instantly. 

Then you know of no precautionary measures taken against the occurrence of fire in that particular 
part of the mine? No ; as I have told you, I never heard of a fire having occurred until lately. 

Who was the underground manager of this mine under Mr. Doig? I do not know. Oh, yes, there 
was a man named Passmore. 

He had to look after this particular fire. He was the fireman, and I suppose would carry out the 
instructions of Mr. Doig? I do not know; Doig was a man who would wholly trust to no one. 

Do you know whether Fassmore travelled the mine and superintended operations? I really do not 
know he may have done so. 

But were not the ordinary means adopted-was there not a system to follow? Doig made an 
excellent system for working the mine. 

He was an anxious manager? Yes, very much so. 
What was done after the accident, Mr. Wilton P When did you arrive? Well, a message was sent 

to Mr. C-eli first, and he sent one of his daughters to the Hermitage for myself. 
Was this on Friday or on Monday? It was on Monday morning. I received intimation of the 

accident at about a quarter past 7 o'clock, and I went over as quickly as I could. 
Yes, and what next? Well, I found Mr. G-cll waiting for me at the mouth of the tunnel, and of 

course there was a great commotion. 
Yes? Before we-that is, Mr. C-eli and myself-came on the scene the men had sent for Mr. J. B. 

Turnbull. 
Can you account for the men having sent for Mr. Turnbull? I have no idea. Of course the proper 

step would have been to apprise us first. 
What did you discover on the Monday morning when you went dow-n? Did you ascertain that the 

fire was discovered? Only that the men could not get into the pit, and I heard that a message had been 
sent to Mr. Turnbull. 

Had he arrived? No. 
Did you ascertain that there were men in the pit? Not immediately. I heard from Mr. C-eli that 

there were men in the mine, and then I was told that three men were in, namely, Doig, Rowe, and 
Younger-that they had gone in on the previous evening, and had not come out again. 

When did Mr. Turnbull arrive? About a quarter of an hour after I arrived. 
Well, was there a consultation? Yes. 
And I suppose there was a resolution arrived at? Yes; Mr. Turnbull expressed his regret, and said that 

he would be anxious to do anything he could for us in the way of rescuing the men; and we placed him 
in charge, and told him to do anything he thought necessary. 

You gave the fullest power to Mr. Turnbull? Yes; we were very grateful to him for his assistance. 
What action was taken thereupon? Well, one of the men described the workings to Mr. Turnbull, 

who then asked for the plan to enable him to better understand. We went to the manager's (Doig's) 
office, and found the door locked; Doig had the key in his pocket; we burst the door open and found 
the plan on the table; then a miner-I do not know his name-pointed out to Mr. Turnbull certain 
things. 

The nature of the workings and airways? Yes; the underground workings; and he explained where 
he thought the men had been making for in order to get out. 

Can you recollect who that man was, Mr. WiltonP I do not know at all. 
Did you not then ascertain that one of the men who had gone in on the previous night had returned? 

Yes, we heard that, but I did not see him. 
Who was that man? I think it was Win. Martin. 
What post did lie fill about the mine? I do not know. 
Well, after the consultation at the ofilce, what was done? Mr. Turnbull took charge, and they got 

canvas and props to try to make a brattice, in order to get down to a point at which they should branch 
off, for the purpose of making an exploration in search of the men; but while this was going on, I believe 
Martin and Sheedy and another miner made an exploration on their own account, and Doig was 
dliscovcred still alive, the bodies of the other two men being found within 27 yards of where Doig was 
discovered. 

Do you know the part of the mine where Doig and the bodies of the other two men-Rowe and 
Younger-were found? I do now; it was in the direction of the two cross-cuts to the south. 

How long did Doig live after he was brought out of the mine? He was breathing for eleven (11) 
hours afterwards. 

Did he make any statements? He never regained consciousness. 
Can you describe the details of the operations taken after that? I must tell you of another remark-

able thing that occurred. Mr. Turnbull was engaged trying to get down to the brattice, when he came 
back to go to lunch. His object was, I think, to get at the fire, and he was pushing forward his brattice 
with that view. During his absence at lunch, however, a man entered the mine, passing the man in 
charge and saying that he had instructions from Mr. C-eli to do anything he could to assist in the opera-
tions; I think the man's name is Davies. When Mr. Turnbull came back he complained of what this 
man had done. He had torn up the stoppings in places which Mr. Turnbull had closed, and had taken 
down a portion of the bratticing, and, in fact, had brought about such a state of things that it was useless 
to attempt to do anything more. Mr. Turnbull came to us to complain of this interference. I may 
state that this particular man w-as brought to us by Mr. Wilson of the Zig-Zag Colliery. 

What was his christian name? I do not know. 
Was it Robert? I cannot say. After the appointment of Mr. Turnbull, Mr. Wilson introduced 

this man to me, and said he would be a capital man to assist us in the emergency; that he had been an 
underground manager in the mine; that he knew the whole of the workings, and that we should avail 
ourselves of his services. He (Mr. Davies) expressed his willingness to do anything he could. I know I 
told him that we had placed everything in the hands of Mr. Turnbull, but no doubt any knowledge of 
the underground workings he possessed would be of value to Mr. Turnbull, and that if he would kindly 

go 



ROYAL COMMISSION ON COLLIERIES—MINUTES OP EVIDENCE, 	 31 

go and assist that gentleman we should be very glad; but I spoke both to him and Mr. Wilton, and told T. TWIt 
them that as we had placed Mr. Turnbull in charge of operations we could not place any one else in the . . Wilton. 
same position and have a divided authority; I know it has been alleged that Mr. Gell, my partner, gave 36 Davies authority, but the facts are as I have stated them. 

Who alleged this? The man Davies. When Mr. Turnbull challenged him for undoing this work 
he said that Mr. Gell hadgiven him instructions ; now Mr. Gell never gave him those instruction; I was 
the only person who spoke ; I and Mr. Gell were together, and I told Davies what I have told you; I 
asked him to refer any suggestion lie might have to Mr. Turnbull; it was after Mr. Turnbull left that be 
went into the mine and opened the stoppings, as I have described to you I do not know with what 
object, but I do know that the effect was to prevent our getting at the fire at all ; lie was romid the works 
so long that a search party was about being formed to go in search of him when lie came out. 

What time was this ? About from 4 o'clock; then Mr. Turnbull accused him of this thing ; I never 
saw him, and did not actually know how it occurred until later on. 

After Mr. Turnbull came, what happened ? Well, Mr. Turnbull intimated that on account of the 
action of this man lie was unable to get down to the seat of the fire. 

That is to say, Davies had by his action undone the work of the morning? Yes, that was the 
result. 
80. And what took place next? A special train was sent up from Sydney with the Examiner of Coal-fields 
and Inspector Dixon. A consultation then took place. and it was suggested to darn the mine up ; previous 
to that a man named Korwood su 	 menggested a plan by which mi might be started to work at the second 
cross-cut. Mr. Turnbull came up to see the Examiner and Inspector, and suggested that this might be 
done, and an attempt was made with this idea of carrying the air up to the second cross-cut--that is, an 
exploration was made to see whether this was feasible. Then Mr. Turnbull became affected by the foul 
air himself, and had to be carried out of time pit's mouth, and it was sometime before lie recovered. After 
this, we thought it would not be right to incur any more danger, and it was resolved that the mine should 
be sealed up. A water-gauge was inserted in one of the stoppiiigs, and tests were periodically made. 

What stopping was the water-gauge put in P A brick one in the main tunnel ; one was also put 
across the furnace, on the right-hand side. 

What pr ssure did the water-gauge show ? It never showed any from first to last. 
SO. And did you ever suppose it would? No. 
00. how long did the mine remain sealed up P For three weeks. The tests made showed her to be full 
of carbonic acid gas. 

What induced you to re-open the mine? We re-opened the mine because we were led to believe the 
fire was out. 

By whom were you led to believe that? Well, everybody thought so; ourselves, and also Mr. 
Turnbull. Everybody believed the fire was out. 

Did the miners think so ? Well, we would not ask the miners. But they were anxious to go to work. 
Who gave orders for the re-opening of the brick stoppings? No (hrcct orders were given. It was 

generally understood. 
Was no request made to you to re-open the mine P The men were constantly asking when we thought 

it would be opened. The general imprcssion when it was closed was that it would not be for very long. 
Mr. Campbell was then plmteccl in charge. 
DO. Before commencing operations, did you communicate with the C overnmneut ? Yes ; and asked for the 
-is sistuiee of the Governnient officials, urging that they should be allowed to take charge of the mine 
but this the Minister declined to accede to. 
07. have you copies of the communications that passed to and fro ? I eanimot say ; but I can give you 
the substance of the Minister's reply to our comnictuication. It was that the Government would take no 
respomisibility whatever ; that the inspectors would be present to see that notlnng was done to endanger 
the lives of the men; but that the Govermnent would take no responsibility as to the re-opening. 
OS. Did the inspectors accordingly visit the mine P They proceeded to iLithgow. 
99, Was this before you comnienced the work of re-opening? Nd) I travelled up with the inspector. 
We had deterinined to open it on a pam'ticular day, and it bad been delayed in order that tests might be 
made in the tisual way. it was then decided to commence operations at 8 o'clock at night, because we 
(lid not know whatmight come from that furnace, and we did not want a crowd about. Operations 
were commenced at about S o'clock at night, in the dark. 
1100. Did you organize shifts of workmen from among the miners ? Yes. 

Did you put before them the danger that was incurred in the operations upon which they were 
entering? Yes, repeatedly. 

Were they perfectly aware of the condition of the mine? I can only tell you what they were told. 
Did you believe, Mr. Wilton, that they were conversant with the danger attachable to the operations? 

It was only reasonable to suppose so. Nobody anticipated the terrible resdilt that followed. 
When was the mine re-opened-------the date I mean P 1 really cannot remember; things have got so 

mixed up. It must be about six or seven weeks ago—the 6th or 7th of i pril. 
Well ? Operations were commenced. They made their way down the tunnel by brattieing, heating 

the smoke back, and meeting with nothing but carbonic acid gas and smoke. They carried on in this 
way until about a week after they got down to the seat of the supposed fire, and saw a glimmer and 
flickering at the end. This was about 3 o'clock in the morning. 
100. I have to asic you this. During the progress of this work, did the owners in any way stint the supply 
of mnaterial—was any requisition that was made to you ProimWtly  complied with P Undoubtedly ; it was 
to our interest to do everything we could to facilitate the operations but apart from that, we should have 
clone so, and did actually do 50. 

What were the general imistructions as to providing material P That they were to have all necessary 
appliances, and that no risk whatever was to be run. in speaking to the men, when it was decided to 
carry out this work, I myself told them, when they were all assembled, that the whole property was not 
worth one humnamm life. I begged and prayed of them not to rush into any danger whatever—to be very 
careful in everything that was done. I have repeatedly said that, and Mr. Gell and immyself have urged 
the different shifts as they went imi, if not for their owmi sakes, for ours, to run no risks. 

Did you visit the mine yourself? I always went with the men; I was in three times a day. I 
thought it my duty to be there ; they will tell you so themselves. 

- 	 109- 
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Mr. 	109. When you got to the seat of the fire, what steps did you take? When they first commenced they 
T. T. Wilton. thought there would be nothing but the debris of the fire to remove, but on inspection it was discovered 

that fire existed in the vicinity of the boiler and further down. They sent for Mr. Mackenzie, who had 
3 May, 1886. gone away about 11 o'clock, and the inspectors  Mr. Bwan, and the manager. Individually, I did no 

know anything itntil the following morning. The mager also sent for Mr. Gell; all went dowfl the 
mine, and when they saw the fire they said it would be better to close the mine up again. The men were 
withdrawn, and when I came down at 9 or 10 o'clock on the following morning the matter was under 
discussion. The men were all at the mine, and were of opinion that it would be a great pity if any one 
was to run away from the fire, and that the proper thing was to tackle it. 

What men were there—can you mention their names? No, I cannot tell you the names; but all the 
men that were there expressed the opinion that it would be desirable to try and extinguish the fire. In 
fact they came to us with the request that we would give them permission. They said they could stamp 
it out. 

Who came to you, Mr. Wilton—it is important that the Commission should know? I really cannot 
tell you the names ; they will tell you themselves. They were all standing about, and one of them was 
spokesman. Perhaps Norwood will be able to tell you. 

Then, I understand from you, that, notwithstanding the opinions of the inspectors and the manager, 
the men held meetings among themselves, and came to you in a body, and requested you to allow them to 
try and put the fire out? Yes; they called us up—they seemed to have had some consultation—and said 
something to this effect: that we (the Company) had been put to a great deal of expense, and they were 
quite sure the fire could be put out, and they offered to work a week for nothing if we would allow them 
to make the attempt. 

It would be desirable, Mr. Wilton, if you could condescend upon some of the names of those who 
made this requisition to you. It is highly important that we should know. I suppose it would be no 
trouble to you to ascertain their names? I think I can get you the names of the miners ; but the thing 
is well known, and you will experience no difficulty in finding out their names. 

Very well. Then in answer to the requisition, what did you do? It did not really rest with us; 
it was in the hands of the Government officials. I may say that we had been receiving communications 
by letter from all of the Colonies making suggestions as to the best means of grappling with the difficulty. 
Among them was one from a miner in Gympie, and I think some one in Melbourne suggested the appli-
cation of steam, giving an instance at Home where all sorts of efforts had been made to extinguish a fire 
in a pit, when an engineer came from Glasgow and, applying steam to the smouldering mine, the fire went 
out like magic. 

I know the place; but was it not steam in connection with something else? We had a recommen-
dation from another party, namely, the pouring in of carbonic acid gas by means of the furnace. There 
was a man working with us who wanted permission to put out the fire at an estimated cost of £40, with 
two or three men besides himself, the method being to supply steam. We thought the suggestion might 
be worth a trial, especially having a regard for the safety of the men; consequently we laid our plan 
before the Examiner of Coal-fields and the nlspector, the idea being to attach pipes to the boiler and pour 
steam on to the fire, and thus extinguish it. There was a discussion of about two hours as to whether it 
would be likely to be a success or not. The Government officials did not think it would be of much value, 
but admitted that it would be worth a trial. Accordingly the attempt was made. This was on the 
Saturday. We had to go down some 400 yards, but we had a strong force of men on, and carried down 
our brattice with us, as ground had to be recovered by forcing the smoke back. Eventually the connec-
tion with the piping was made, and the men withdrawn. The stoppings they had commenced to build in 
the mouth of the tunnel were taken down again, because it was thought that the fire would be put out in 
about four days. At the end of the four days the steam was shut off. The men were continually moving 
the stuff from the tunnel till they got down upon the fire. We suspected that the whole thing had been 
lit up again. It was intended to reserve the opening to the left-hand of the furnace to the very last, so as 
to avoid the danger of the fire relighting. 

1-low many men were on each shift? Eight or ten at this time. 
With an overman to each, I suppose? Yes. 
And the general instructions were to allow no risk to be incurred if it could be avoided—I think I 

understood you to say that? Oh, certainly. 
Do you know the names of the foremen or leaders of the different shifts? There was Kirkwood 

and John Davies, I know. There was one to each shift, but I cannot remember the names of the others. 
I happened to call on Mr. Gell after lunch, and lie informed inc that the men had been over to him and 
said they could not get along, and proposed to open the left-hand furnace. I do not know whether the 
men had heard us talking that morning, but we had been in consultation as to whether we should open 
that left-hand furnace. The work was going very slowly, and great difficulty was experienced in getting 
a proper and effective return. 

Was the right-hand furnace going then? Yes, all the time. It was lit almost immediately after 
we opened the mine. We had been talking about opening the other furnace, Mr. Gell being present, 
and the examiner, inspector, and manager happening to be there, and I fancy the men must have heard 
it. When they came to Mr. Gell, he told them, "Very well, open it"; but to our amazement when we 
came back we found that they had opened this left-hand furnace and made no provision for lighting the 
fire. We at once took steps to remedy the mischief; first bratticing up behind the furnace, we got 
kerosene bags and wood and lit the fire, by which we established a good air-current. We were thus able 
to push on, and found ourselves amid a perfect wall of stuff, including great stones as big as pianos. 

Sandstone? Yes, a terrible mass. There was also steam and smoke, and so on, and much heat. 
We l)lkyecT water on it to cool it down, and the stuff was broken up and lifted into skips and carried 
away, as we were anxious to get it removed. 

What was done to extinguish the fire P They played on the hot mass for half an hour. First of all 
water was used from the steam-pipe, to which a hose was attached. 

There was not much force in that? The water of the rump  began to give out. Then some of the 
men informed us that any quantity of water was to be got by sinking. Accordingly we put down a hole 
and water came, but then a question arose, was that the water we had been pumping in? However, Mr. 
Gell started away at night to get a fire-engine from Sydney, and we got one. Meanwhile there was a 
waterhole outside, and the water came in from the old workings. Then the process of removing the 

debris 
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dhulja \vai cariied Oi, and as this was iloise the smoke and steam could be seen go iig up. The process 	MiItOfl. 
'Wks terribly slow, as they had first to pia- on the mass for a time, then wait till the steam cleared oft, T. T  
iJfei1 eommevc'o with the skips. and so on again. still we seemed to 'be gaining our way. At last we came 3 May, 1886. 

iii.i upon utstsikeable evidences of fire. (Inc of our ol)jeets was to get to I yndall s headin(r, because we 
knew wo .)iouId get a macmitre of relief from the smoke. Wliemi we got there there was a stopping ill 
aiisit A chaim, and they made a rush for this, and took the stopping away. 
1t24. That was the first stoppii On the right 	No. 36, at the seat of the hrc. \\ hen  We got iii) to 
f 1 the tops had been taketi away. There was a great current of air coining here. A imot brattice 

'Was put across the main tunnel outside TyndaUs headno, The oblect was to discover if auy fire exsteu 
in Tvndall's heading. So far as we knew, everything had been thus far confined to time (hf) side of the 
ivorkinLs. 
d2. That is the fire, I presume—you suspected the fire to be confined to the dip sideismnd the Tooler? We 
su9ected the boiler to be the seat of the fire We pulled away this stopping I have referred to, and 

ioke and Steam w r r himini about I feet hih Then m stroiig euucnt came in uid W q)t O\ ( i oUi licad,4.  

'tG. Did this current come ihowii the main tunnel 	1 cannot say 	1 hiimow it was very strong, bloviiig 
ihe li,,ht 'smi m 'ilmo t at ii lit iii ic 	I h 1 	W 'Is S mu'illei stopping at I nd'dl s lix idin 	it was ii 
about ii alf a c* 1111ill, amid wi en this sloppilig \va 5 removed we could ee cvi dcii c a of fire oii the tioor, go ii ig 
towards the direct ion of the oIlier sto1Ipiii. 	A I iiiiber stopping with a aiim-hole W IS ei'eeted coiit Igitoila 
s the iiiuiii tunnel. 	It was the opimiimiim of evei'vcne that it we could once get to I i0hilhlIi lieil(hllIg 010 

it'eflh))VC ihilit atoppilig We should get inniediate relief. At some pemiod it wts suddenly noticed that ther 
is fire oii t II llooi ni I\ iid ill a in Ini, in. u hit topion, 	Th( a thc tmun m ln stoppmn,, w i suit suiddc nl 

to  light. '\ ater was played oii that, and it was extinguished 	Aiiexphrut ion was made none distiiicu 
!heyond IIS by the nmauaner, who satisfied hinmself that ignition had been caused by the liotaur. it Wii4 

thioiit we were gaining rapidly, and operations were directed towards the fire at the boiler. There w il 
iiothiittg appalhi ig iii this work except the eirciinistance of men srorkng iii such an atmosphere. it \\ as  
ik 	a Turkish bath, They iiiiharm'ed the brickwork of the boiler, remiioved the greafer pin't of the fall, net 

tik'ieovered the pilaips. 'I'heii we not iced the flue', it was one mass of (lebris. 	( )n removing tins debi is, 

we suddemily caine upomi the fire O]i tue floor. We were afraid that thus fire imngiut extend nil lie direct ii ill 
of the main tunnel, but there would be no air-course above the deliria. The large fall referred to had 
closed the main I unnel below the ent malice to 1 lie 	The le  mleeessi I y was to attack the fire, amid, it 
possible, get behind it. The mcii were at this work, and 1 went away from here oil Ihimii'sdav, and reinaine 
away until time time of the ac cident. 
127. When you left the mine omi Thursday opeiat iomis were centred on removing this fire P 	1 es 	I h. 
last tine I was in the mine they were more intent on stopping the run (along T ndnhl s lieadiiig) amid 
relimoving the debi'is. That was being removed when 1 left, and subsequent ft t Was i'cnioved. They 
mmccc I rvilig to get belnnd the fall from the boiler, and fioni Tymidahl's heading. 	 - 
12. You are quite certain, _Mr. Wilton, that this large fall you have been tleseribinj lmhamc).td up the 
main heading P There is no doubt about it. 
129. Was there a split of air thiromighi Tvndall's Leading previous to the fire P No, 
I 3u. in your opinion, this fall was smm fliciemmt to stop the course of ventilation P Yes. eoniplcteiy. 

When you left on Thursday slufts were eugagemi cndeavouring to get behi id the fall frcni Tymalall's 
heading and from the front of the boiler P lea. 	[Here the witness furl her describemi the details of 
operatiomis.1 Operations were also directed to menioving the debris from Tvmo all's heading. t1 to the
last Tvndall's heading was always considered safe. 

Were mcmi operating in this  way when the accident occurred P Operations were proceeding 
lilt this way when the accident occurred. 

Themi, Mr. Wilton, we will comae to time time when you arrived on the scene. Tell us about that? I 
heard the miews in $vmlner, at 5 oclock, and proceeded by the mail train on time Monday night. If 1 
been there 1 should certainly have been one of the victims, because I always went into time mine at 3 
o'clock. 
13 1. \\iiat  had been done when you arrived? They were all pai'alvsed. All the men were out with him 
half ,in hioiu'. Tem'i'ible excitement lmrevmmled for a time. 	ubseqnently a eomisuhtation took place, and it 
was decided to seal up all the lower portions of the mimic, to the dip muid No. 2 Cross-cut, 

Who was present at the coimstmltation P 'l'ime Examiner of Coal-fields, the inspector, myself, and Mr. 
(hell. 

A. consultation, consisting of the proprietors, the mallager, and iimspeetor. Well, Mr. \\ ilton, what was 
doime P The questiomm was, could we not rescue some portions of the properly, and, instead of opemumig 

Ill) 
it anothem' place, could we not make use of the present m'oads—ilie fii'st amid second cross-cuts. 	N m'. Tlshier was present when  the mattem' was considered later. 

137.The suggestion hadbeen made before P les, a lomig tinme. 
13$ 	\\ hmut  sugm,estmoii was it that tiit se toppmn.,s should be put iii 	The brick sloppinga— it n 'm oum 
own, I tinuk, We decided that we would put in 27-inchi stoppings. Relays of mmmcii were put on, and a 
great anmouumt of work clomme, 
139. In carrying your opem'atiomms down the main tunnel, was your atteimtion ever directed to the stoppings 
between it and the back headmgs P No. 
110. Did they appear to be tight? \es. I may nmention here that one thiiimg liappenned which was 
really awful. A to lit ti im'ce or fm) ur wee l a go t lie mmmliii mm ger had t a k (ui do mvii some mu en, and had made scenic thu'ee stopping.s—eithei' 20, 30. aimd 31 	or 27, 2, mmiii 20. limit 29 WOs liii' miie tvhmichi was nimide lip. 
Next day the manager was in tIme sauie imlaee getti ig sOiimc tinibei', \vhmeit lie noticed his light draw I lie 
su mty it should not draw. On  searciiimig for time cause of this lie found that this stopping 11-hiell lie had 
made secure I lie day imcfom'e hail beentrn or cut away 13 feet om' 11 feet, by Ii inches deep. The stop 
piuig had apparently been carefully scraped away. The effect was to break the current of air, and as 
there had been Some commiplaint that the air was nut so good, it was evideut that time act of takiiii' dow ii 
the stopping was the re.ult of fearfully malicious design. 
i-il. Did you suspect anyone : I do notkniov that anyone was suspected. A rewam'd of £50 was 
offered by  the owners for infom'rnatiou mm hlcli would lead to ' the detection of the guilty party, but up to 
this date no iimfoi'mation has been received. 
112. 21[r. Davies.] Do I understand that Mr. Wilton saw this P No. It was reported to mc by Mr. 

m Campbell, But time spectoi' saw it, 	 - 
370—E 	
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Mr. 	143. How could a man remove 6 inches of the stopping from the top at such a distance P I do not know, T. T. 
Wilton. but a ,an might work for hours there and never be discovered. 

President.] When you arrived after this second accident, did you proceed into the tunnel on the 
3 May, 1886. Tuesday morning? Yes; I and Mr. Mackenzie went in about 22 chains, and were then confronted by a 

wall of black-damp. I did not notice much difference in the tunnel. There was a little coal spread over 
the bottom of it. I understand that before they had to throw open the stoppings that had been destroyed 
by the concussion. 

Was there anything observable besides the stoppings ? Only where the coal had been thrown out 
from the left-hand side to the right, and shifted the stoppings on the right-hand side. 

In other words, the small coal that obstructed the tunnel bore evidence that it had been thrown from 
the left-hand side? Yes, that is it. 

Have you ever received any suggestion to flood the mine after the fire? I know that it has been 
spoken of by people. I have read everything I could get on the subject, and I get confused by what I 
read and hear, there being so many contradictory opinions expressed. I was told, for example, that it 
would be useless to attempt flooding the mine, and a case was cited where flooding had failed. 

Is there any communication between the Lithgow Valley mine and the Eskbank Colliery P We,  
discovered some years ago two encroachments, one larger than the other, not very far from one another.. 
These encroachments were to our dip, and the water ran through them, also air. The Eskbank people. 
had fallen their country when we came to it, and immediately our men holed through they reported it.. 
We have a document from them taking an amount of responsibility for these encroachments. 

In view of this encroachment, what effect would the floocliig of your mine have upon Eskbank?,  
I should imagine they would get the water. They say they do not, as it is, but the impression of our late 
manager was that they did. On the other hand, I have heard that all their water difficulty is got right in. 
an hour. 

Do you pump any water out of that portion of your mine? I think we have been pumping our 
own Water. 
11. Where do you pmop your wafer to 	We used io iuiip up to this encroachment, 1 think, and 
there i 	pipe which carries the water out to the creek. Other people can tell you more about that than 
I can. The water difficulty was becoming a difficult one to deal with. The manager said about six. 
months ago we should have to put a shaft clown from the main tunnel and pump from there ; it would 
answer the purpose of an air-shaft as well. I told lijni lie had better wait till Mr. 0-eli came back, as he 
was the best man to decide about such things. When Mr. 0-eli came back a spot was selected for this 
shaft, at the head of the workings ; the contract had been let for about a fortnight, and the shaft was, 
going down when the firet accident occurred. 

The second outlet to your mine is contiguous to the main tunnel; how many yards separate? I 
suppose about 20 or 	yards; it comes with the return to the right-hand furnace. 

In the event f any accident occurring to or contiguous to the main tunnel, might it not affect the 
second outlet? 	do nt think it would be possible. 
134. How long previous to the first accident was it that Mr. Doig asked you for this second shaft? I do 
no renioniber When he mentioned it to me first Mr. 0-eli was away in England, and I asked him if it 
was a thing ie wanted to be commenced at once, and suggested that it might wait till Mr. 0-eli's return; 
the next 1 neard of it was when the contract had been let. 
155. 	Us1er.] Do you know if any dams have been erected by the Eskbank people at the point you 
have referred to? I do not know at all. 
1. .1r. Carley.j Was it the custom, Mr. Wilton, to receive any written official reports, periodically, 

om the, manager of your colliery? No, we never had anything of that kind. 
157

zn  
o that everything kimat was done between the Company and the manager was done in a verbal war; 

jg that what I un 	you to mean? No occasion ever arose for anything of that kind. 
8. Bcityou muift 'have had consultations? No, we never had any consultations with the manager. 

1159. 'or example., now, you have just said that Doig came to Vol' about putting down this shaft? Well, 
lie came to me and saw me, and I may have met him on the road, for I was up very often, as 1 had the. 
iresponsiblffit' of everything thrown upon my shoulders while Mr. 0-eli was away, and if he wanted anything 
,out of the ordinary run lie would come to me and tell me. I always saw him at pay-tinne with the 
aecowitant. Nothing of a grave nature ever happened; anything else was looked upon as ordinary 
charges of the mine, and he could have anything he wanted. 

Have you ever heard of fire-damp--light carburetteci hydrogen—being seen in this mine? No; the 
ventilation of the mine was exceptionally good. 

You have received no complaint or notice of fire-damp having been found in the mine? I never 
heard of such a thing. 

- 162. .Mi. Jones.] Did I understand you aright, Mr. Wilton, that the Minister for Mines refused to accept 
any responsibility in connection with the opening? Yes. 

Did the inspectors accept any responsibility when the men volunteered to put out the fire? I, do 
not know. I do not know where the responsibility was. They simply allowed the operations to go on -
it was not considered there was any danger. 

Then do I understand you to state now that all the responsibility rested on the inspectors? Oh, no 
it was clearly understood, because Mr. Mackenzie gave us distinct notice that they would accept no 
responsibility whatever. 

When the men applied to you to be allowed to make the trial, I understood you to say that when this 
was done you told them that all the responsibility rested with the inspector? No, that is scarcely correct. 
The Government officials came here to see that we did not run the men into danger. It was in their hands 
to say whether we should send the men into the mine or not. We could not say to the men, " Go in 
there." We had to say, " May we do this thing? Will you let them make the trial ?" 

.Mi. S'win burn.] Then you took no responsibility—the men took it all upon themselves? I do not 
know that our first question was, "May we make the trial ?" the first suggestion having come from the men. 
Had we taken it upon ourselves entirely, of course the owners would have been responsible for any accident 
that might occur. 

Who had charge of the mine at the time? The manager, Mr. Campbell, and ourselves. 
And he (the manager) allowed it to be openedf No; it would not be putting it correctly to say that 

he allowed it to 'be opened. 
160. 
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HiD. Who was it then, Mr. Wilton P The inspectors and the manager; it was agreed, after consultation, 	Mr. 
that the trial should be made. 	 T. T. Wilton. 

Did the inspectors and the manager have charge ? No, we had charge. They had ordered the mine 
to be closed, and when we arrived it was nearly closed. 

Presulentj In other words, Mr. Wilton, the Government officials put no difficulties in the way? 
No. 	At the same time they had no hope in the scheme indeed they ridiculed it. 

1iLi'. Davies.1 Did the men take possession of the mine forcibly? No ; they asked for permission. 
't'heii who gave them pernussion? I have already stated that it was a sort of general permission. We 

could not act without the authority of the inspectors. 
171. Presiileat.J There was a consultation held between the owners, inspectors, and the men P No 
we only wanted to know whether the Examiner and the inspectors would consent. 
175. Then you appeared on behalf of the men before the Examiner P Yes ; and in the interests of all 
involved. E may tell von this, that during the subsequent operations, for a fortnight the men were coii- 
tinually hoping that the Examiner and inspectors would keep awav-that they would not come. This was 
for fear of being stopped. 
170. I)o you know that of your own knowledge P Yes ; they have often said it to me. 

The result of the consultation was that the Government officers withdrew their objections, and allowed 
you to make the experiment? Yes ; to put on steam with the view of extinguishing this fire, and at the 
time we believed it to be really a very sniall thing. 

Mr. Davies.] 1 woit to be a little more clear about one point. When Mr. Doig wanted anything, did 
lie only apply to you, or did ii iomnmuli icate with anyone else',, 	lie would apply to the hoard, if the 
board were sitting ; but at this time there was only omit' director and myself left here ; the others were in 
England. 

Do you know whether Mr. Doig applied to the owners some considerable time ago for this second 
outlet, some years ago, say? No ; the thing is absurd. If lie had made application it would have been
attended to at once. 1 know something of the kind has been said, but it is a deliberate, a wicked falsehood. 
Mr. Doig never asked for any supplies to that mine that lie did not get iiiiniediately. 

President.] You had perfect confidence in his judgment P Yes ; he was a splendid man. 
Witness (being referred to the plan) said : Time shaft was begun about a fortnight before the aeci- 

(lent, to the dip of the main tummcl, to a point suimth-catt from Eskbank, and marked on the plan 
thus : O.X. 

J?rexidnf.] how far was it down P 	\Vhatever distance they could accomplish in a fortnight. 
Since then the men have not touched it. It is of no consequence now. 

Were the speeml rules hung up in your office P They were hung up at the mouth of the pit, 
wherever the Act prescribes. 

And you say you have never received any complaint from the Government officials as to the mode of 
working your mnmc P We have never received any eonipiaint from the Government with respect to our 
operations, either as to the ventilation or the carrying out of any of the operations of time Act. We have 
never had a charge brought against us, or been complained about in any direction. 

Smunuel Passinore sworn and examined :- 
1$. President.] What is your profession or busiiess, Mr. Passmnore P Well, mv profession has been 	Mr. 
thmiit of a labourer, sir, until I came ilere. 	 S. Passmore)  
180. 1 [ave you been engaged about mines P Not until I caine to Lithgow. 

How long ago is that P Abommt bye years. 	 3 Alay, 1886 

How long had you been iii the employment of time Lithgow Valley Colliery Conlpanv P About three 
years. 

Who appointed you P Mr. Doig, time manager. 
In what capacity did lie employ you P As a ilayinami. 
Were you employed on the smmrface P Yes ;lwas first on the surface for about six weeks. 
At what were ott emnplovecl (hmrimlg that time P Molding the damn bigger. 
Subsequently. how were you employed P I was afterwards taken into the pit. 

191. And what were your duties whemi you were takemi i "to the pit? I was employed as ummclerground 
boss. Mr. Doig told mile what to do. 

What did he tell you to do? To travel along the roads and put up stoppings. 
The work of a general sluftman, I suppose P Xes,sir. I succeeded Robert Davies when lie left 

thie employment of the C'ompanv. 
When did lie leave P About eighteen months or two years ago. 

1()8. What were your duties and powers at the time prior to the first accident P 1 was deputy tinder Mr. 
Doig, and had to look after the pump and boiler. 

Did your duties extend over the whole mimic P Yes, all over it, wherever ihme work lay. Yes, sir; I 
was instructed by Mr. Doig. lie was there every mnorning. 

had von any charge over the inilmeis P The only charge 1 had was to put themn into the bords. 
Your duties involved the nispeetiomi of time working places P Yes, sir. 
Did von direct operations-thiat is, did yougive the men general directions as to how to world these 

bords? \Tes, according to Mr. Doig's orders. 
Did you ever inspect these bords nmider Mr. h)oig's instructions P Yes, to see that they were going 

in straight. 
How is the Lithgow Colliery worked-on what systeni P Pillar and stall. 
Was it votmr duly to mark off and see that the bords were driven according to the instructions 

given I Yes. 

What general instructions were given as to the size of the pillars and the widthm and length  of the bords P The bords were 7 yards. 
And what pillars did you leave P They were 1-chain pillars. 

20$. In all eases, were they chain pillars P Yes, they have been all chain pillars since I have been there. 
Mhen I first went there there Was one in half a chain. 
209. When you took Davies's place the colliery was working half-chain pillars? No; they were all chain 
pillars except one. 

210. 
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Mr. 	210. Since Davies left, what instructions did you receive? I had to take a chain between the bords, and 
S. Passmore. that would leave 14 yards of a pillar. 

211. Was this size adhered to? Yes. 
3 May, 1886. 212. Were the bords never driven more than 7 yards P Sometimes the miners would go wider. 

213. If you noticed them working S yards, what did you do then? Generally speaking, Mr. l)rng would 
be there himself. He used to go round. every morning. The orders he gave me were that if they were 
onino• wide to go and put a chalk in them. 
14. Then it was you who measured off the width of the pillars? Yes; sometimes he measured them o ff 

himself. 
215. Did you ever know the pillars to be of less size than you mention? No. It might happen, but as a 
rule there was very little difference. 
210. What is the width of headings? Five yards. 

Did you have narrower bords in any part of the mine? No, sir. 
What was the width of the cross-cuts ? About the same as the headi11gs-5 yards. 
Do you know whether the amount of cover was taken into account when the size of the pillars and 

width of bords were arranged? No, sir, I do not know that. 
Do you know if there was any alteration in these dimensions in the deep workings under the 

mountain ? No; I do not know of any alteration. 
Did you occupy the position of oversman or deputy at the date of the first accident that occurred in 

this colliery? Yes, sir. 
Who controlled or had charge of forming the stoppings, and carrying out the ventilation? I had 

charge, my orders from Mr. Doig being to follow the men up, and carry out the ventilation. 
Tell us how these stoppings were formed? They were formed of slack. They would run about 7 

yards in width on the bottom, and. about 2 or 3 yards on the top-some wider and some narrower. 
22-1. In carrying round the ventilating current by means of stoppings, did you find these slack stoppings 
effectual? Yes, they were perfectly tight; we experienced no trouble with them. 
223. Did you ever receive any complaint as to the condition of these stoppings ? No. 

Did you ever receive any complaint from the mcii as to the quantity of ventilation ? No, sir, 
never. 

I think you said you had charge of the underground. boiler? Yes, sir. 
Wiiere was it situated? On the left-band going down the tunnel. 
How many chains down ? I should think about 36 chains. 
[The position of the furnace is mamked by a red spot and surrounded by a yellow circle on the plan.] 
How was the approach to the boiler protected from the main tunnel ? There was a brick wall in 

front between the boiler and the macin tunnel, and there was a brick wall from pillar to pillar. 
Was there a door in this brick wall? Yes. 
Was it separated from the tunnel by double doors ? No, single doors ; but that door [pointing to 

the plan] was never shut from the main tunnel. The boiler was supplied with fresh air from the main 
tunnel. 
231. What was the object of keeping the door open? I cannot say. 
23.5. What was the size of this door? About5d feet by 3 feet. 
230. Was the boiler built in an ordinary bard, or in a place specially prepared for it ? It was in an 
ordinary bord. 

How long is it since it was built ? I cannot say; it must be over three years ago. 
Did you observe the way the boiler was built? No; 1 cannot say as to that. 
What was the size of it P it was an ordinary boiler, not very big-about 15 feet long. 
Can vou get round about the boiler, between it and the coal pillar P Yes. 
[Here the witness described the position of the boiler and its surroundings by means of a rough 

slceteh.] 
Examination continued :-You could travel right round the boiler? The distance between the 

outside wall of the pillar and the boiler about 8 feet; on the other side it was nearer. The boiler was 
bricked right in altogether. 

Mr. (Jslmec.] What was the space between the top of the boiler and the roof? About 2 feet. 
P-resident.] What did the roof consist of? Coal, sir. 

214. What did the floor consist of? Coal. I was told that the coal floor was taken out under the boiler, 
but I am not certain. 
213. Who told you? I was told by the brickman and his labourer that they had taken down the 
foundation. 

Where the ashes were drawn out of the furnace, was the coal taken away there? No; the coal was 
left there. 

Then on cleaning out the fires the ashes would be left on the coal floor? No; there was a brick 
layer, and underneath the brick the coal. 

Who had charge of this furnace at or prior to the date of the accident on the 14th or 15th April? 
That was on the Saturday ; I had charge then. 

In addition to your other duties of inspecting the mine, you had charge of this boiler? Yes; I had 
charge prior to the date of the accident. 

What instructions did Mr. Doig give you as to removing the ashes from the furnaces? I had no 
]nstruetmons, only that I was to keep them alongside the main tunnel ; he said he wanted them to fill up 
the swallow. 
2.51. When you cleaned your fires, what did von do? We always threw water on the ashes and drenched 
them; the pump was close by. She did not make very much ashes. 
232. In all cases, were these ashes removed out of the mine? No ; they were put on the main road. 
233. Were they allowed to accmnula-te there? Yes, till there was a certain quantity. 
231. How many skips, for example P About twenty skips. 
233. How long would it take to accumulate twenty skips? I could not say exactly ; we used to take a 
lew skips as we wanted them. 
236. Leaving the boiler, the smoke and hot gas escaped into the flues; how were these flues constructed? 
They were 18-inch earthenware pipes, one running into the other; they were carried from the boiler 
about half a chain ; all the joints were mortared up tight. 

237. 
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Were these flues leading from the boiler to the up-cast regularly or peiiolica1ly cleared P Yes ; 
1 used to have to go in at the back and pass a wire through with some bushes attached to the end ; tins S. I assmoro 

used to be done sometimes two or three times a svcek. 	 3 f55 
You say that these pipes extended for about half a chain 	Yes. 

G. 

2i9. \licrc did the smoke go to I To the return air-course. 
\\as  that air-course iii any way profN'ted by brick I No. 
\\'as flit current coiitro let by small coal stopnngs I Yes. 
Then the smoke and heated gas escaped through these earthenware pipes into the ordinary return P 

Yes. 
And the smoke and heated gas coursed up this return, and inpinged directly upon the sides of the 

coal pillars and stoppings of small coal',' Yes, sir. 
26 I. \Vas there any small coal lying on the floor of the return P I cannot say. 
26-5. Was this flue regularly travelled from the boiler up to the furnace P No. 
200. Was it never inspected P No z you could not inspect it without stopping the boiler. 
297. As a matter of fact, this return that carried the smoke and heated gasses into the left-hand up_cast 
was not regularly inspected I No, sir. 
26. Of your own knowledge, (TO vou know whether it contained any accumulation of soot P Not so far 
as I am aware, only at the end. There was a good cleaT of soot at the end of the pipe where it entered the 
return. 
299. Then this flue was never regularly cleaned P You could not get at it to clean it. 

Then it never was cleaned I No, sir. 
And the sinolte and heated gas had been passing through that return for how inaily years P For 

I hree years. 
Did anyone ever travel the left-hand return P You could not travel it for water. here (pointing 

to the plan) were the pipes, and here was a great hotly of water at the end of them, over wInch the smoke 
passed and went up round till it reached the open. 

Did you understand the plan, Mr. Passmore P I understood very little about the plan. because it 
was never shown to inc. 

})o I understand you to say that the return air and smoke crossed over the top of this water? Yes. 
27.. how far does this water extend P The earthenware pipes that conveyed the smoke froiii the boiler 
to the return rested on brick pillars, and from the end of these pipes the smoke crossed over a body of 
water that filled the swallow (or hollow) in the coal. 
270. What spice was there between the top of the water and the return P About 2 feet. The smoke 
crossed over this hollow until it point was reached marked II ' on the plan, and opposite the encroach 
ment from Eskbanlc into the Lithigow Valley ground. 	ilevond this point the return air-way was clear. 
It contained at all times it considerable quantity of smoke. The return air-way was clear of ii ater until 
it approached the left-hand furnace, when it again crossed over a body of water lying in a swallow of 
lesser ext cut than that already referred to. 

You say, i\[r. Passniore, that these pipes rested on brick pillars-what height were these brick 
pillars I They were about three and a half feet high. 

Who removed the ashes from the boiler to the maul tunnel P Sometimes I removed them, and 
sometimes Mr. (i-rant. Grant was the night engine-man. We had a lot of water, and were obliged to 
keep it going. We piuuipc'd it up to go down to Brown's pit: (iiskbaiik). 

Are you quite sure that it had access into Brown's pit 7 Yes I told Doig about it. Ave were 
certainly under that impression. 
80. That is to say, if it (liii not go there, you were pumping a portion of the same water over again P 

Yes I told Mr. Doig about it, and he said it must be so. 
Was there any slack coal lying in a positioll contiguous to this boiler, Mr. Passmore P Yes ; I 

believe there was sonic en the left-hand side. 
What was the object in keeping this slack coal there'? I ails not aware that there was any particular 

obeet in keeping it there. 
Did you never think that such an accumulation of dry slack coal was a source of danger P 'Well, I 

do not think 1 ever thought there was really any danger, because I found fire in this direction twice 
previously, and it was put out immediately. 

When did you discover this previois fire P About six weekspreviously. 
On the former occasion-that is, the last before the one you have now mentioned-how long ago  

was it that the fire was discovered P I could not say how long;  I think it was inDavies',;time. 
You have suggested that you account for this soot taking fire because of the smoke and hot air 

discharging at the end of the pipes-were these pipes perfectly tight P The only reason I can give was 
the soot appearing to be so hot. There was a great cheal of it hanging about the end of the pipes. 

Did you ever observe whether any of this soot hanging about took fire P No, I never observed any-
thing of that kind. When the last fire occurred we found that had occurred (Mr. Doig was there). I 
told Inns that the slack had caught fire at the cnti of the pipes again. I saw the first fire. I assisted 
Davies to put it out. 

What was the locality of the first fire? it was just a bit on the top. It might be just half the 
width of this table from the end of the boiler. 

Did you have any difficulty in putting out the first fire P No ; Davies and I put it out w-ith 
buckets. But it was very hot in there. 

Was it always hot I it was very hot at that time, and in fact at all times. 
Where was the second fire located-was it of a serious nature P No ; 1 and two oilier men extin-

guished it. ]iobert Druery was one. 
Who was the other man P I think it was Wilhiam Ilaimnond. 

2,03. What, in your opimnon, was the cause of that fire? My opinion is that it originated at the boiler, 
where there was such a great heat ; it was there that I discovered it. 
291. i[ow did you discover it? 1 could not mnis it, because I had to go in every day to put water in the 
b 	 w boiler, and I was in there several times to seep the flues. 
295. Was it a difficult matter to put the lire out? No ; we put it out with buckets of water. 
299.  Was the coal pillar contiguous to this outlet for the smoke of any SIZe P It was a chain pillar. 
297. Have you ever heard of any other fires having been discovered at this point P No. 

298, 
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Mr. 	298. But you are quite positive that the Hues and the return air-course were never regularly inspected? 
S. Passmore Yes; they were not reularly inspected. 

M1886 299. Beyond the swallow when the encroachment from Eskbank took place, was there much soot lying a, 	
in the air-course P Not much. 

Was it very hot there P It was pretty warm. 
Did you know of any pillars being taken out there, or did you assist to take out any pillars? No, 

not in my time, but there have been pillars taken out down on the left-hand side. 
At what position on that side? So far as I have been given to understand, it was to this left side 

of the boiler-to the rise of where the boiler stands. 
Do you know of any pillars having been robbed in that neighbourhood? No. 
Do you know of any hord having been worked unusually wide at that spot? No; that was worked 

before I went there. 
Was the area where these pillars were removed of any considerable extent? I cannot say as to that. 

300. Do you know whether the roof caved in in this direction? I have been down with Mr. Doig in these 
old workings, when the top-coal had come away, leaving only the rock. It seemed to me that there was a 
very wide portion of ground then-it might be 20, or 30, or 40 yards wide-without any coal 
pillars standing The last time I was there was about fifteen months ago, that is about twelve months last 
Christmas. 

Have you known of any large falls taking place in that direction? Yes, I have heard some falls in 
that direction. 

Was it in the water? No I never heard falls in the water. I was there one night between 10 and 
11 o'clock; I was pumping, and had just put water into the boiler when a very heavy fall came and 
blew the fire-doors right open. 

On any other occasion, Mr. Passmore, have you heard falls? Yes, but I never took particular 
notice. 

At what time was this ? Oh, it was about nine or ten months ago. 
Was that near the boiler? It was down that way, but not to say near the boiler ; the falls always 

occurred on the north side of the tunnel. 
How do you account for these falls always occurring on the north side? Well, I have heard them 

on the right-hand side too. 
This fall you specially referred to as having occurred about fifteen or sixteen months ago yo u say 

was a very heavy fall? I should fancy so, seeing it blew the fire-doors open. 
Did it ever blow live coals out? No; it blew soot and dust out, but not hot coals. There was nobody 

there but myself at the time; I told Doig about it on the following morning. 
What did lie say when you told him about it? Oh, not much; lie said there must have been a heavy 

fall somewhere. 
310. Did you ever know the pillars in any part of the mine to be so thin that you could put your arm 
through them? No, sir, but I have known thein very thin when we have been working down below the 
boiler. 

In any other part? No, only in this part that I have mentioned, on the north side; I have known 
them to be 4 yards thick, and also 2 yards thick, that is near the boundary. 

Have you ever seen the bords cut into each other in any part of the mine ? No. 
310. Who worked that portion of the mine between the present stoppings in the main tunnel and No. 2 
cross-cut-was it worked in your day? No, sir. 

Were there any thin pillars in that part of the mine? I do not know anything about that portion 
of the mine. 

Do you think that any connection exists between the Eskbank and the Lithgow Valley Collieries? 
Certainly I do. I have been told that the Eskbank people broke through in three places. 

Did the water run from Lithgow Valley Colliery  to Eskbank through these encroachments? I 
believe the water flowed into Eskbank from the Lithgow Valley mine. 

JJb. Curie?.] Does this opinion you have formed regarding the communication between Fskbank 
and Lithgow Valley rest upon information obtained from others, or upon observations which you have 
made yourself both in the mine and on the surface P My own opinion is that the water was going down 
there, but I never visited that part myself; as you could not get there for black-damp. 

Oh airman.] Then, Mr. Passmore, on the several occasions when you endeavoured to get down 
towards the Eskbank boundary with Doig you saw appearances of black-damp ? Yes; it was full of 
black-damp down there. 

Can you state whether the coal-seam dips towards Eskbank? Yes. 
320. What swallows lie between-are they full of water P The water runs down that way. 

Then about west of the boiler, and towards Eskbank boundary, are the workings in the Lithgow 
Valley Colliery standing full of water at the present moment? Yes ; there must be now a quantity of 
water there. 

Now, Mr. Passmore, about the right and left hand furnaces-were these kept going continuously? 
Yes, when the engine was working. The right-hand furnace was the principal ventilating furnace. 

Can you give us the names of the furnace-men? I used to attend to the left-hand furnace. 
That is in addition to your other duties of inspecting generally the workings of the mine? Yes. I 

attended to the firing of the boiler that pumped the water, and also attended to the left-hand furnace. 
What was the name of the other furnace-man? There was no regular furnace-man at the right-

hand furnace. A man named Williani Richards attended to that. He worked on the roads as well. He 
was on duty at the time of the accident. The furnaces were not actually kept going continuously. The 
right-hand furnace was allowed to he damped down on Saturday afternoon and overnight. 

Did you find the air-current strong at 6 in the morning with the aid of the right-hand furnace? 
Les, sir, I did. 
33. What arrangement did you make for the removal of the ashes from these two ventilating furnaces? I 

used to stack the ashes against the coal. 
Where these ventilating furnaces are built, was 15 inches of coal left on the floor ? I cannot 

say; they were built before my time. 
Have any ashes been removed lately? No, not in my time. 

330. Have you ever discovered any heat or appearance of fire when these ashes were stacked? Yes, on 
one occasion at the right-hand furnace; that was up against a stopping. 	 337. 
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337. Then the ashes are stacked up against a coal stopping? Well, it was up against this coal stopping, Ir. 
and it cauht fire, and was put out. 	 S. Pasmore. 

33S. When did that occur, Mr. Passmore? It may be about sixteen months aao. 
3 May, 1886. 339. That was about the date you discovered the fire at the underground boiler? I cannot say whether 

it was at that time or not. 
310. What measures were adopted to extinguish the fire at the right-hand furnace? We had to tarn all 
the ashes away, and the s1ack and get water and put it out that way. 

And you believed that you had thoroughly extinguished it? Yes. 
Did not the occurrence of this fire at the right-hand furnace tempt you to rcmovo the ashes 

altogether? No. Mr. Doig was there all the time. They have not been removed to the surface. 
When did you discover the fire-this last fire on the 14th of February 	I did not discover the 

lire I discovered the smoke. 
When did you first see it? On Sunday evening, from about 5 o'clock till half-past. .1 was going 

down the mine to put fresh fire to the iindergroinid boiler. 
How fhr down did you discover the smoke P I got down a distance of about 20 chains, and 

could not get any further. 
34G. What occurred to you when you saw the smoke? Nothing occurred to me then. 
347. What I mean is, did you not speculate as to the cause of the smoke? No. I was that much fright-
ened at the time that I went straight out and proccekd to lounger's -that is the man who is (lead now-
and asked him if he would allow his boy to run for Mm.. l)oig ; I told him there was a great smoke at the 
tunnel, and that there must he a large fire somewhere in the tunnel. I may say that I arrived on the 
Saturday evening previous to that, and every thing was as usual. 
34. Was there anyone in the mine when you arrived oii the Saturday evening P Yes; there was George 
Hall, William hail, and Walter Riddle. 
349. Did these men discover anything wrong P As I have said, I went down on the Saturday evening to 
attend to the boiler. I went to the end of the pipes and shut off the valves, and coining back damped 
down the fire to keep it in; in fact I put everything in working order for a start on Monday, and having 
done so 1 went out and was talking vt h the man Younger, perhitjs for about an hour, when these men 
that I have iianied came out. George 1-fall told me that there was-, great smoke at the boiler. I replied. 
that is miothlilig tww. 1 mInnie tins mcmnamk because a great demil of,  smiiok us_sI to hang about there after tIme 
furnace was (iminiped down. 
350 Wa s that in the imiamit tunnel 	es ; a good deal of ;uioko tme-d to hang about I hem. 
.it. 1)o you mean on ordivai'v occasions P Yes. On the Saturo.Ltv evening there was 110 sign of any-
thing wrong when I left, and, as I have told you, when 1 went down on the Sunday evening I could not 
penetrate into the tunnel mom,e than it clistamice of about 20 chains. I then went to lounger's house. 
and having sent for J\Ir. Doig, I ret urmmed to the mine, and put fire on time right-hand furnace After that 
1 went to the left-hand furnace and got fire on that. 1 hail no coal ready, and went to the face to get some; 
it was there that choke-damp attacked moe. lounger then caine in, and I told him that I felt bad. I then 
went over to the furnace, when Doig emune in and asked Inc what was the matter. I said to him, I think 
I am ding, sir." 1 then got out of the mine, and on reachiig the fresh air I dropped and was taken home. 
They gave me some l.rawl. I really thought 1 was dying. That is all 1 know. 

You have told us that when the furnace was daniped down on Saturday evening that a heavy smoke 
hung around the furnace in the main tunnel (to von mean to say that the ventilation of the mine was 
stopped P it was very often when the smoke hung about there. lou will find that the men commiplained 
of the smoke. 

What cleared it away-where (lid the smoke go to? I cannot tell you, only that the furnace 
cleared it away for the inca to work ; there was a strong current of air down the maui tunnel. 
351. Was there any split of air taking in T\-ndlaU's level ? it went past Tyndali's level and down to time 
foot of the tunnel ; the main ttuinel was very wide just immmmncdiate]v below time opening to the boiler. 
355. How wide P Well, from rib to rib it might be about 9 yai'dls. 

\\T.5 there not a piliar removed omi themiorth side P No ; there was a split here in this pillar below 
time boiler. 

Was time ventilation of time north workings deficient P No. 
Had you been in the tunnel wiule the operations for extinguishing time fire were in progress P Yes. 
A heavy fall occurred in the mnain ttumel-whmat was the position of that fall P it seems to inc that 

it fell in the cross-roads. 
300. Were the tops down on this part before the fire P No, only time first tops. 
361. Was there any timber in to support the roof at this point? There was 110 timber here (pointing to 
the piami). There was no sign of the roof coming away at this point. 
302. Did this fall that we were talking about just now completely close the main tunnel? It looked to 
me as if it completely closed the tunnel. If it did not she would have taken her smoke round. 
363. That is to say, if the passage had not been obstructed the body of air coming down the tunnel would 
have carried the smoke away? Yes. 
361. And it did not carrhe y t smoke away P No. 

Where did it go to P it remained there-went up the tunnel. 
When you went down on Sunday night and discovered the smoke, did you notice whether there was 

any body of air coming dcivii time tunnel at all? Of course there was air coming  clown, or 1 Could1 not 
have got along. 
367. Was the imsmmal current of air coining down? icannot say that I met with a fresh breeze until I 
got into the smoke. 
308. iDid it not occur to you to examine time stremmgth of the ventilating curi'cnt ? Not at time time ; I was 
too iiilid'il excited. 
301). In travelling through the various parts of time pit ill time discham'ge of your chilies, have you ever seen 
fil'e-dlamnp P 1 have heardl the mumers taUd about it, but it has not been seemi in these parts, so far as 1 
kim ow. 

have you evem' heard complaints from time miners about any deleterious gas existing in the mine P 
No. 

1-lave you imeard any complaints about the quamitity of vemitilationP No, sir, because if there imad 
been aimy complaints they would have gone to Mr. Doig. 	 372. 
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Mr. 	372. But if there had been any complaints you would have heard of it P Very likely I should.. 
S. Passmore. 373. And you did not hem of any complaints P No. 
r' 	374. A&. 'Curley.] I think you have said that the men complained of the smoke at the boiler P Yes; that 

3 May, 1€8. was when they were passmg down. 
Pesiclent.] Did the smoke pass into the workings P It usei to go down the main tuunel a good 

bit. 1 have seen it quite thick. 
Was the smoke constantly coming out like that? No ; it was quite clear sometimes. 

ays than others P Yes. Mr. Doig said it was owing to the atnios- That is to say it was more some d
phere. 

Then, Mr. Passmore, did you consider that the ventilation of this colliery was ample and sufficient? 
Yes, I considered it so, and Mr. Rowan the Inspector. 

What was the distance between one cut and another? It runs a chain from one pillar to another. 
JIll'. Swinbcrm.] Is that in the ordinary workings P Yes. 
Had you ever any difficulty in getting material for the conduct of this mine P No. 
i1ll. UsJer.] Are we to understand you to say that there is no brickwork in the coal roof immediately 

above the boiler P Yes ; there was just the coal only. 
I believe the ashes were removed from the front side and back of the right-hand furnace between 

our first and secommcl visits to the mine P Yes. 
Why was that done P i cannot say, sir. 
2111'. Damies.] When hall came to von and said there was smoke in the mine, did it not occur to you 

that he would not draw your attention to that it it was a usual thing P No ; it might have appeared an 
unusual thing to him because he was seldom in there at that time. 
3S6. 2112'. Xeilson.] Do you know anything about a certain stopping having been knocked down by some-
body unknown P Yes I heard about it, but I did not see it. 

I think you have stated that it was on a Saturday that you discovered a fire six weeks before the 
accident'? Yes. 

Assuming that you had not discovered that fire, what time would you have got back? Any part of 
the day up to 6 or 7 or $ o'clock. 

Well, supposing the fire had escaped notice up to the Monday morning, it would have had a much 
stronger hold, I suppose P I have no doubt it would have had a much stronger hold ; I think it was on a 
Friday morning that I discovered the fire, and I put it out on time Saturday. 

Piesident.1 How was that P I tried to put it out on the Friday, but the heat was too great, so 
1 damped the furnace down, and rose no steam next morning, when we were able to get in, the place being 
cool. 

You know that the fire wa smouldering all that time then P Yes. 
And yet you left the mine P Yes ; I first clamped down, as I have stated, andput the fire out next 

day. 
Was it burning briskly P No ; it was only smoulclering. 
2i[r. Keilson.] And when You went in 011 the Saturday, how was it P It was smouldering still. 

39. Assuming that this fire is drowned out, would the water necessary to effect this also affect the Esk- 
bank Colliery 	Do you mean the fire at the present time? 
390. I want von to suppose that the Lithgow,  Valley mine was full of water up to the roof,-would that 
have the effect of flooding the Eskbanlc property P I should fancy it would. 

.21fi. Davies.] Did you have any conversation about ,in air-shaft being sunic? Mr. Doig did malce a 
remaric to me. I was with him about a fortnight before the accident, when we were pumping to see how 
much the pump would throw, and Mr. Doig then said to me, Sam, I am going to get at shaft put down 
here, and then we shall not be troubled so much with the water." 

Was that the first time he ever spolce to you about it? Yes. 
.President.] Was Doig a reticent man-a man who would readily express his thoughts P No ; ho 

was a very close man. 
And has this shaft been commenced? Yes, it has been commenced. 
jlIi'. Curley.] What quantity of ashes was there near the boiler when the fire took place? There 

were about half a dozen skips. 
At the right-hand furnace I understand there were two or three places where these ashes were 

deposited-what was the extent of the pillar from where they stood P I should say a chain, that is 
straight from the furnace. 

From the. mouth of the furnace to the side of it, do you know the distance P No, I do not know 
the distance that way. 

Did you ever notice Mr. Mackenzie, the Examiner of Coal-fields, often at the Lithgow Valley Colliery 
Previous to the accident? No; I did not know much about Mr. Mackenzie until the first accident. 
40. Did he ever examine the workings, do you know? I never saw him down there, but he may have 
been with Mr. Doig. 

Have you seen Mr. Inspector Rowan there? Oh, yes; I have been round with him several timnes. 
Call you tell me at what intervals P Every two or three months, I should say; I know it was not 

longer than three months. 
Did he ever make any observation to you about these ashes P No, sir; he made no observation to 

1110 concerning them. 
Did you ever see him visit the boiler you hal-c been speaking about P Yes; he has been in front of 

the boiler. 
And the furnaces P Yes. 
Did you see him look at the return at the end of the furnace P No, sir. 
Have you ever seen Mr. Inspector Dixon at the colliery? Yes; I have seen him there, but I was 

then on the roads. 
How long ago was that P It was iii Davies's time. I was not acquainted with him (Mr. Dixon). 
2111'. Swinbumn.1 You have had no complaint whatever from any of the inspectors who have visited 

the mine P No, none whatever. 
41. Pi'esidenl.] Were they likely to cnmpla-n to you, Mr. Passmnore? The only conlplaimit I ever 
heard was about some boards being knocked off in a certain place, and Mr. Rowan said they were to be 
fixed up again. 

410. 
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-116. JJL'. Ci€rl'q.] Are you aware whether these small fires you have spoken of were reported to the 	Mr. S. 
inspectors 	I intl 1101 aware, sir ; all I know is that I reported them to Mr. Doig. 	 VaLmnore. 

417. A ni u-hat did Doig say P his only remark was that it must be put out. 	 S  
3 Mi 188& 11$. Mr. .N'eilsom.] Was any report of these eireumnstaiicc's kept in the office 	i\ ot that I know of. 

419. AIr. Su'tnbtn'n.] Then YOU put out the fire in accordance with Doig's instructions P Yes. 
120. Was Doig with you when you did it P No, he was not with inc when I put it out, but he saw that 
it was out when I had completed the job. 

Mr. Davies.] if uivtlnmlg was wrong, I understrincl you reported to Mr. i)iog P Yes. I did not 
report in writing. 1 made my report on the ground. I only made reports if anything was wrong. 

1I&. Jones.] Did von ever notice any person making surveys for Mr. J)oig  P No, sir he did that 
himself. 

President.] Were these surveys made regularly P There was 110 stated time I never knew 
when he would go. 

AIr. Usher.] Did he leave marks in the roof indicating the result of the survey P Yes. 
Mr. Uurleq.J Did you ever consult together about the desirability of removing these ashes, and 

clearing them out of the mine altogether? I once suggested that we should move the boiler further 
down, and he said he would cut the coal down to the rock. 

How long was that ago? About three or four months ago. 
Was it done P No. I told him that unless something was done the water would beat us. 

Mr. \V. i\lartin sworn and examined :- 

\V'hat age-are you, and what is your occupation? I am twenty-thrce years of age, and I mini engine- 	Mr. W, 
driver in the Litiigov Yallcv Colliery. 1 have occupied •that position since the first accident prior to 	Martiu. 
that I wa-s employed as a tlav-mman. 
-[20. Wheim were von last- in the mine before he accitleiit P 1 think it was on a i'ridcy night. 	 3 May, 1886. 

40). Did you see amivtlming wrong. 	Not on the Friday miighi. I heard on the aturdav atternut'mm Iruiii 
Mr,. \ounger, who told me she had heard the pit; was full of stooke. I went to get my monte, 
AV1111alli Rowe, and we went into the pit together. I went; to the second furnace, a-nd saw l)oig. Doig 
l>assel the remark, 	What did we want there P " 1 said, we had heard the pit was full of smoke. 
We then went down to where the smoke was. It was about S chains down, and presented a WilitO 
smokcy appearance. We started buffeting the smoke with our coats and bags, in order to see if we could 
get- further down. We kept at that till about 10 o'clock, but made very little progress. We then went-
out and got some canvas, and then we bratticed up to the first eross-cut and took some more 
canvas with its to where we had been buffeting with our coats. We held the canvas to the 
m'oof to throw the draft over the top. There was it ventilating current running down the heading, 
though it was not very strong. In this way we made some progress, say about 6 chains, and we got- to 
where the tops had been cut down. When we got there, however, the smoke came back upon us, and we 
could get no further. Then Doig said it ivould be well to go down the return on the right-hand 
side. That was when we came back from where the smoke was. II is object was to go back to the 
second cross-cut, and then take the return, because he wanted to get to 'J'ymidll's heading to open a 
stoppmg there. 
431. Did. Mr. 1)oig say this was practicable P I did not hear inni say so 	lie said we had better try to 
go roitiid to Tynilall's heading that way. As we were gctt big back to the cross-cut, I said I would not 
go with hin, that I could not stay any longer, and I mvent home to bed. Tilis was on the $uiidav night - 
On the Molmdiay mnOrflnig, about 5 o'clock, I told my wife I would not go to work, as 1 did not feel well. 
At about 630 a-in, out of the men came and woke me up to tell me, that Doig and Yoummger had not 
come out of the pit, amid that the pit was full of smoke. i-fe wanted to know where I had left I)oig and 
his comnpamon. \Vlien I got to the pit I went inside and proceeded about as far as where I had left 
the men oii the night premious. They had left their thimigs Iw the second cross-cut. I went down to when' 
the tops were cut down, or close to that point, and I saw all the mi-tillers sitting there. I suggested 
that it would be well to go roumid the back workings .Ase arch party had already proceeded ahead, amid 
I ventured to go, thinking- that I could pem'haps tell where the missing mnemi had been goimig. I went ii. 
accompanied by James Doig and another, and got about 3 chains from the umaimi heading when we were 
called back again to put the stoppiugs up. I then asked some of the muon if they would go with nuc 
round the return. 1 did not know the road, but would go with any of them. Mr. Tnrnbuhl then came 
forward and ordered its all out, except six men he had with him. however, 1 went in again, accompanied 
by Jack Sheedy. TIe said he did not know the road, but we started and proceeded to the second cross-
cut. Mr. Turnbull and his party were below us. We got into where the stopping was dowmm, and we 
happened to strike the return. We left on the return for about 60 yards or more. When I had got 
this far I heard heavy breathing, and then a heavy sigh and a groan with it. I went ilto the bor(l 
where the sound appeared to commie from, and there I found Mr. .1 ohmu l)oig. 
-132. Was the air foul at this point P No ; the air-course appemred to be pretty good. 

[Tile witness pointed out on the plan where the body of John Doig was found. 	lieedv 
then pulled Doig out into the return, where the air was pretty middling. I daresav we staed in 
the return about ten minutes, and then went out, carryimig' ibtig with its. We met ,Jamnes Doig 
on the way, and he assisted its to carry i\[m'. Doig out. I then went back with Grant to show imimn 
where we found Mr. Doig, and just before we got to that spot we c'atne on top of the other two bodies. 
They were both dead. Where they were found the atmosphere was miuodcrately good. 

You said that you had been engaged as engiue-driver--hav 	ny c you a experience of engines P Yes; I have 
bceu engaged at engines ever siucb I left school. I have papers to show it. My experience of nmiueS his 
been gained in this Coloiav I was engaged as da-ymnan in this mine previous to the accident. I was to d 
anything that was rctluired of me above and belciw. I used to go into the uimue every morning. I hail 
charge of the rapper. I know tho undergiound boil6r, but I have never ciamhmed it. I have never scemi 
-in accumulation of coal about the boiler. There was a dOOr On the left-baud side, that is a doorway; ii 
piece of bag material was hung oter it; I never lroccIui  through that. I had hcai.1 that there had 
bce'u a flio thro 4b'dut- a uikith or six weeks before the accident. 

Did iiy roaioi.j oiellr to you as to the cause of this iwusual body of smoke that you found ii the 
5-76—F 	 mine 
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Mr. W. 	mine P No. I asked Doig the reason, and, lie thought it was the banking of the furnace. I have not seen 
Martin. any smoke hanging about the entrance to the furnace in the morning, nor during any other tune of the 

day in the main tunnel. I know nothing about the returns or flues from that boiler. 
3 May, 1886. 435.  Have you heard any man complain about poisonous gases or fire-damp, or choke-damn1) 	No. 

430. When ]Joig was found, were von engaged with 1\ir. Turnbull in extinguishing the fire 	No, not 
when Doig was found. 
437. Were you one of those who undertook to work with 1[r. Turnbull in extinguishing the fire ? No. 
The last work I did inside of the mine was to find Doig. I can say nothing about what occurred, in the 
mine since then. 

Thomas Doig sworn and examined: 
Mr. T. Doig. 438. ,PiesJentj 'What is your occupation P I am a miner, employed at the Lithgoiv Valley Colliers'. 

439. How long h ave you been employed there P About four years. 
S May, 1886. 440. Before that, were you working anywhere as a miner P Yes, in Neiveastle, for about the same 

period. 
Arc you any relative of the late manager? He was my uncle. 
Have you had any complaint to make of the quantity or quality of the ventilation in the mine P 

None whatever. 
413. Have you ever seen any accumulation of fire-damp in this colliery? No. 
441. Or of carbonic acid gas-choke-damp P I have seen what they call the black-damp. 

When and where? I never saw it before the late fire. 
41.0. Then you have no complaint to make as to the quality of the ventilation P No. 
447. Or of any other matter connected with the working of the colliery? No ; Ave got everything Nye 
wanted. 

Coming to the first fire in February, what do you know about that? I went in on the Monday 
morning about 0 o'clock,and mncta few more men, who said there were three men in the pit on the Sunday 
night. 

This was before Mr. Turnbull came P Yes. 
430. Where was the smoke standing in the tunnel, as near as you can tell? About 150 yards back from 
the furnace, below the second cross-cut. 
451. lIon' far below the second cross-cut? About 25 chains, or close on 30 chains from the tunnel 
mouth. 
432. That would be a considerable distance down the tunnel, within 0 chains of the boiler, would it not ? 
Yes, about that. 

You knew that Mr. Turnbull was endeavourmg to put back the smoke P Yes ; I was there. 
Do you know how far the smoke stood down the tunnel when lie had given it up P Yes; it had been 

put back about I daresay close on 3 chains below the starting-point. 
When you went in at 0 o'clock on the Monday morning, what did you do P We were looking' for 

the men. I went down to what is called the top fiat, below the second cross-cut, broke the stopping, and 
went through there; this was on time right-hand side, about the mouth, and before Mr. Turnbull came. 
450. Did the air conic in there P There was a little air coming in; the smoke was very thick. '\\ e went  
up there a considerable distance, came back again, and went into another place ; then Mr. Turnbull came 
and started bratticing to get down; and another party went in at the cross-edit. 
437. 'What party was that ? Martin and Jack Sheedy. They found John Doig. 
458. Did you go to the spot? No, I did not go to the spot where they found him. 
459. Did you form part of the other search party? No, -Ave were attending to Doig. 

Did you take any other part in connection with the first fire'? No. 
Do you recollect the mcmi holding a meeting P Yes. 
Can you tell -as why that meeting was held P On the Saturday morning when we came down, that 

is, the first time the fire was seen, Ave tried to open No. 33 stopping, but the black-damp was so bad we 
had to give it up. The men made headway for a time, but then it was concluded to close it up, and Nye 
were withdrawn. The men then went up to the office, after holding a meeting, at w'hich an opinion w'as 
expressed that they could put out the fire, seeing they had already got close to it. They saw Mr. Gell, 
one of the proprietors, and told him that if they were given permission they would put out the fire. The 
result of this meeting was that Ave were allowed to proceed with the work. 
103. JUi. U'urieqj Are you speaking of what you know yourself? Yes; I was one of the parties. 
lOt. ,President.] '\V'ere you one of those who formed a deputation to Mr. G'ell? Yes. 
10. Who managed the different shifts P The men themselves, I believe, and they selected their own 
leaders. 
460. You are perfectly certain of that? Yes. 
407. Did Mr. Campbell take an active part in the operations P Oh, yes, when they started. 
468. Did lie suggest leaders to you? I cannot say whether he suggested them, as I said, I believe the 
men selected them themselves. 
'109. And then you proceeded to work? Yes; Ave got down to the scat of the fire, and when ire came up 
to Tyndall's heading Ave saw a mass of loose coal burning, and Ave took it out. There was a chain burning 
by Tyndall's heading. In the main tunnel was a large fall which obstructed the ventilation. Very little 
air came along that direction. There was also fire about the boiler. We got right to the back of the boiler 
and saw fire burning there. Some stone and coal had fallen there. 
470. Did you get that removed? We got to the end of the brickwork of the boiler, and that is where we 
branched off. 
.171. There was a split pillar to the left-hand of the boiler going in-do you know whether that was 
closed with the stopping? I do not know, 1 am sure. 
472 Did you see fire extending to the left-hand side P Not before Ave broke 'through. When I was 
having a smoke in the main drive one morning, two 'pillars backfroin the boiler, I heard something crack. 1. 
pulled some of the stuff away from the stopping. and could then see a blaze through the stopping, 
that is No. 31. We cut the tops through, and tried to put it out, but did not succeed, and that is why we 
knocked off. I was not present at the accident; 1 knocked off at 0 o'clock that morning. As to the senond 
accident, I heard of it at 310. I w'ai between the town and 'the colliery going home. 1 returned to 'time 
colliery straight and, went in. 	 473. 
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173. TEal the bodies been got out the,,? They had not been got out. The ones that were rescued were Mr. T. Doig. 
close to thC tililliel mouth, having pulled tlicniscIves out. 
17 I. Wero the rescuing parties iii the pit when you arrived P 'rlicre were a few there, Mr. Campbell and 3 Msyj  1S6. 
others. 	'l'lmev could not get down until they closed some stopping. The first man Ave came upon was 
Bn'iza, who was about 18 or 19 chains down. 

Can you pm it out the spot? I do not know whether I can, as I was very muc
-
ti excited at the tune. 

When we got i3uzza we brought him out ; and the others, I think, were found a little distamico oft. I 
helped to take Buzza out; the others were got out shortly afterwards. 

In going down the tunnel, did you see any fire in the blown-out stoppigs? No I could see notinug 
but smoke. 

Then you know nothing about the positions where the other men were found ? No. 
Is that all you can tell us about this matter P Yes. 
Did you see any evidence of fire or flame inthe tunnel when you were going down? No 

1S0. 1 think you have told us that you never saw any fire-damp in this colliery P No, I have never 
seen any. 

lEave you ever heard of any P No. 
.2hIi. Daeies.j I would like to be a little clearer as to the reason why you were stopped. I understand 

that the manager or the inspector stopped you Wits that owing to the preva1eice of black-damp P 1 
think it was on aecouut of the black-damp, but the men were dissatisfied when a start was made to shut 
up the mine. 
4$3. So far as you know, you had no idea of any danger? No ; I had no idea of any danger, except it 
might be from the top-coal ; the top could not be seen. 
484. Mr. Jones.] Have you worked iii various parts of the mine P Ye. 
4$5. 'What was the usual width of the bords P Seven yards. 

Do they ever exceed that P Yes, sometimes; they might perhaps be 8, but they were supposed 
to go only 7 yards. 

Did you ever see a bord of from 12 to 13 yards? No. 
up. Cnrleq.] \Vhen you were down there eight or nine days ago, did you notice any fire on the left-

hand side of time tunnel? No, I did not. 
Did you notice whether any tops had fallen P No. 
Did you notice how high the small coal was blown out'? It varied. In some places you could walk 

in if you kept your head down; in other places you could not, because it was blown out very much. 
Are you qiute certain about that 	Yes, in one or two places it took us a- long time to close the 

stoppings iii). 
Did you ever go from the main heading into the back heading t1irougli any of these stoppings P 

T\ot before the first accident. 1 never went through any of these stoppings. 
193. You could see through them P 1 could not see anything through them. 
491. Did you look into them P 'Well, we were right in front ; we must have looked right into them. 

Did you never venture to go through P No. 
Or see anything? No. 
President.] The object of your closing the stoppings was to get down to the mine? Yes. 

-1-98. Mr. .N'eilson.] Previous to the second explosion some person found a spark of fire iii one of the 
stoppiigs when it was opened out. Is it not so 	Yes ; that was No. 31. 

When you got through, could you see the extent of the fire-the far end of it, I mean P We could 
see so far right up the bord towards the boiler; but 1 do not know how much further it went. 

TUESDAI' I 31411 1S8G. 

i1retuf 
TIrE PRESIDENT. 	 Mit. SWINI3UIiN, 
Mn. T58IIER. 	 Mit. ('URLEY. 
AN. T1I1)M,S. 	 Mn. DAVIES. 
Mit. li1LSON. 	 Mn. JONES. 

William Hall sworn and examined :- 
President.] What is your occupation, Mr. hall? I am a niiner. 	 Mr. W. Hall. 
How long have you been connected with nnmmiug? For fifty-seven years, between the old country 

and the Colonies. 	 4 May, 1886. 
How long have you been in this Colony P Thirty-one years . I first went to the diggings, but have 

been coal-nmining since. 
Had you a thorough knowledge of coal-mimi ung in time old country P Yes, a thorough knowledge. 

501. Where are you workimig now P In the Lithgow 'Valley mine. 1 was getting coal before the first 
accident. 

On the Saturday before the first accident you were the last man in the pit. I think PT was the last 
man in the pit that night ; my son was with inc ; lie Nvent out ahead of imie, 

'What did you find on your road out P 1 found some snmoke hanging about the fop of time rock. It 
had got almost down to where we were at work. We were working down iii the dip below the fire a long 
way. 

Where did you fimmd this smoke P I found time smoke the first shift- from ours. I noticed a queer 
smell. It was thick at the boiler, but most demise further along ; I have seen smoke there before, but 
never in such quantity. 

Did you see any fire? No ; amid never hemurd of it at this phmee before. 
'Wmis the ventilatiomm goiimg down the emmgimme-plane as good timimt 8mutimrdav mm glut as imsua iPleannot 

Y. 
Did you give any one not We of what you had seeimP Yes ; 1 gave not ice to Passmnore. 
had you anything to do with the rescuimmg of time first paity P 1 hind notiming to do with the first 

accident, except that I went in to help to get themcmi out. I did not hear of it till breakfast time, and 
then a lot of us went in to get the men out, and we had not got far in the headway when we found theni. 
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Mr. W. Hall, 512. Did it strike you then that the smoke you saw had had something to do with the accident? It did 
-' 	after the accident occurred. John Sheedy brought Doi out, at 11 o'clock on the Monday morning. 

4 May, 188& When we got down the second time the air was stronger,and then we found the bodies of the other two 
men. 

President.] Can you point out on the plan the position where the men were found? [Dictated 
by the President.] 

The witness, on the plan being inspected, pointed to a position two pillars to the south of that 
pointed out by Martin as the place where Charles Younger and William Rowe were found. 

President.] Was the smoke confined to the main tunnel? There was some smoke down the 
main tunnel. Mr. Turnbull had been putting some bratticing up there then. 
315. how far did you proceed down the return air-course P 1 went no further than where we found the 
bodies of the men. 
510. Did you see their lamps P I did not see their lamps ; but there were two lamps hanging on 
William Rowe's hat. They had no oil in them, and then it was we came to the conclusion that they had 
lost their way. 

How did you account for the bodies lying dead in a portion of the mine without smoke, and where 
other persons could live P The smoke had been there. When the first party went down it was full, but 
that was before the bratticiug had been put lip. 

You felt no effect of choke-damp when you put your head. down P Not when we fetched the men out. 
510. Did you work at the re-opening of the mine P Yes ; Ave were not satisfied at the mine being closed 
up, and we applied ourselves to try to get the fire out. 

You have had long experience in collieries, and you knew that this mine was full of smoke and 
poisonous gas ; you knew that Doig, Younger, and Rowe had been killed by inhaling poisonous gas; and 
that the mine had become so full of this gas that it was thought fit to abandon operations Now, when you 
made a requisition to the owners to be allowed to re-open the mine for the purpose of attempting to put 
out the fire, did you keep before yourself the fact that there was danger in the work? No; I did not 
think there was danger, if we kept the air along  with us. 

Did you keep in mind time nature of your employment, as a man of experience? Yes. 
You knew what you were doing, and going to attempt to do? Oh, yes; I was aware of what I was 

doing myself. 
Supposing that any accident had happened to you in the discharge of your duty, were you willing to 

take the risk of that? Yes; I was myself. I was determined to keep myself safe. 
Had you plenty of material supplied to you for carrying on the operations P Yes ; we had, every-

thing we wanted. 
The fact that there was an underground fire, was that a proof in your mind that gas did not exist? 

I am sure there is no gas in that coal. 
520. Have you ever tried for gas P Yes ; I have tried with my lamp, but never found any trace of it. 

During your operations, did the inspectors and owners and managers pay you frequent visits P Yes, 
every day. They frequently warned us also not to place ourselves in the slightest danger. 

From your experience in the old country, in the case of an accident from an explosion or other cause, 
have you ever seen a• management more anxious for the safety of the men than the owners of the 
Lithgow Yallery Colliery were for your safety in this mine P No; I never saw better people for doing 
their duty to the men. 

And about the inspectors-you have seen many of them no doubt-did you think the inspectors did 
their duty? Yes; I believe so, certainly. 
330. Did they share your dangers with you? Yes ; I have seen Mr. Rowau come right in with us fre-
quently. He repeatedly told us to be careful, and generally looked after our safety. 

Were you on shift when the second accident occurred P No; I was on the shift before; I was 
coining on tile shift to relieve these men. 

Were you satisfied with the ventilation of this mine? I was satisfied that so far as we went we had 
plenty of air. I never complained, and never had cause to complain. I have worked in other collieries in 
Lithgow. The ventilation is much the same there. 

Have you ever seen explosive gas in the district of Lithgow? No. 
531. Do you know how the stoppings are constructed? Yes; they are composed of slack. 
535. Do you consider them sufficient P No I do not consider slack stoppings are sucient. 

But do they answer their purpose P ii have always been used to brick stoppings at Home. 
However, if these stoppings are carefully put in, do they answer their purpose P Yes. 
Have you seen the effects of an explosion of gas in the old country? Yes; I have been in it. 
X,  r. 1)avie..] Where was that Mr. Hall? In the Farm Pit, Staffordshire. 
President.] Have you ever seen the bodies of men killed by an explosion of gas? Yes. 
What appearance do they present? I have seen the bodies roasted and the hair burnt off. I have 

had my Own hair burnt several times. 
Did you see the bodies of your unfortunate companions in this late accident P Yes. 

513. What opinion did you form as to the cause of their death P 1 thought they were smothered by 
black-damp. 

Did you think they had been killed by flames? No. I believe that the black-damp was blown upon 
them through the stoppings, in consequence of something that had happened in the mine. 

After having  had time to think over it, Mr. Hall, what do you think was the cause of the fire in this 
mine? I think it came from the boiler somewhere, 

Mr. Davies.] You say you have been in an explosion yourself, Mr. Hall? Yes. 
Have you not seen men who have been in an explosion without their hair being singed at nil P 

Yes, 
President.] That is from after-damp. Was the ventilation after this accident like what you 

would expect after an explosion? No. 
Mr. Thomas.] Did those men look as if they were asleep? Yes, just like that. 
Mr. Davies.] Have you had any conversation with Mr. Wilton this last day or two as to the evidence 

you are giving here to-day? No; 1 never had a talk with Mi'. Wilton about anything. 
The statements you have made emanate entirely from yourself? Yes, entirely from myself, from 

my own knowledge. I have never been taught by anyone. 	- - 	 552. 
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Walter Riddle sworn and examined : 

President.] You are a miner P Yes. 	 M. 

Whore were you last employed P in the Litligow Valley Colliery .Iwas there for fourteen months, 
W.1{idcllr. 

and about the same time in the Vale of Clwydd. 	 4 Alay, 1886 
When did you last work in the Lithgow Valley Colliery? On the night before the first accident 

happened, Saturday night ; I was working past the boiler I left work about 515 p.m. ; coining out 
towards the main tunnel I observed smoke; it became thicker towards the furnace; it was travelling 
with the air, and was very thick at the boiler; when we got past the boiler there was hardly any 
at all. 

Did you go to the boiler? No. We thought there was something wrong, and, personally, I thought 
there must be a fire in behind the boiler. I thought so because that was where the smoke came from. 

Had you any reason to suspect that the place was dangerous before that? No ; J had never been 
behind the boiler, and had never heard of a fire occurring there before. 
537. Are you quite sure of that? Yes. 
335. When you came out of the mouth of the mine, did you report to anyone P No ; except that we 
i old the man who was standing outside. The manager was not there, lie had gone home. 
.539. Did you follow him home? No; we told Younger, that was the man. 

Did you not tell anyone else P No it did not strike us that anything ve%' serious had happened. 
i first heard of something seriously wrong on Sunday atS o'clock. I proceeded to work again on flie  
Monday evening. I did not know that IDoig had been killed he was brought omit hefore I knew. 

have you had any experience of fire-damp or choke-damp? No. 
Had you any reason to complain of the ventilation of this colliery P No. 
Were you engaged at the operations that followed the events of 14th February P No : I did not go 

in any more. I am not working at the mine now. That is all I know about it. 
Do you know if there is any difference between the mode of working the Lithgow Valley Colliery 

and that employed in the Vale of Clwydd? No; I believe there is not any difference. 'l'he width Vt 

hording and the size of the pillars are the same, and the stoppimigs amid ventilation are equally good. 
Were copies of the different rules distributed among the men? No they were put imp at time 

tunnel mouth. 

John Davies swom'n and examined :- 

360. President.] What is your business, Mr. Davies P A uminer. 	 . 	Mr. J. Pavie. 
567. how long have you been a miner, and where P I have been thirty years a miner, bet i'eemi this ('ol,imv 
and the old country. 	 4 May, 1881;, 

565. Where have you been engaged at home P In Rhonilda, in outlm Wales. and Civm Avon. 
how long have you been in this Colony P Eight years last ZDeeenmber. 
1\Them  have you been working iimce you arrived iii this Colour 	I have worked in Newcastle 

then a few months at gold-mining ; and then I came to Litimgow. 
In what collieries have you worked since your arrival 	I have only worked in Lithgow Valley 

mine. 
have you ever been down any of the other collieries at Lithgoiv P I have been working in Lithgow 

Valley for six years. 
.573. Were you engaged in coal-getting P Yes. 

Had you any charge P No, I had no charge. 
You have had considerable experience as a in 	at home. have you had any experience of 

explosive gas P Well, yes. I have been nearly all my life-time at work where there was gas. We had to 
misc safety-lamps. 

That is, you are skilled in the discrimination of explosive gas called fire-damp? Yes. 
During the whole of the years that you have been engaged in the Lithgow Valley mine, have you 

seen any appearance of fire-damp? No. 
You are perfectly certain? Yes, and I have tried for it many tines. 
What induced you to try? Just for my own satisfaction. 
Did you suspect that fire-damp was preseit P No, I did not. I wanted to test the thing, and then 1 

was more satisfied. About six months after I started here, 1. was in one part of the workings, iiDdl 1 
thought to myself, " I wonder if there is any gas here," and I made the trial with a naked light, bitt I. 
could see no sign of anything in the shape of gas. 1 tried a mmmber of times. 
581. During the time that you have been enmployecl in Lithgow Valley mine, have you over seen mmmiv 
smoke in the workings P No. I never saw any smoke, not before the first accident 
552 Not in the m'mni tunnel 	W eli in the looming oilietnoes,  we saw a lmttl( m.,n of it in the boiler,  
but not in the workings. 
583. At the boiler, where there any tops taken down P Not by the boiler-it WOS up the tunnel about 
half a chain. 
384. Did you see smoke imangiimg about the boiler like a cloud P No. 

Or lower down the tumnimel? No. 
Suppose that smoke was hanging about the main tunnel where the tops were taken (101111, or 

about the boiler, where would that smoke be eventually taken to P When the skips w ould start to work 
it would be cleared away with the current of air. 

That is, the suction of the skips when in motion would produce ,in a ir-emirm-ent P Yes. 
5S8. Was there usually a good strong current of air in the tmumel P Ves. there was a stung current of 
air. 	 - 
58 all9. Did it make a impression on the flame of voni' lamps P Yes I hove Lad IIIV 10)111) pitt out scomes 
of times. 

Then how do you account, as a practical amid experiemmcccl momem', for the smoke lying in the tunnel 
in the mormmings P :'tfter the boiler was damped down at mmight mm little of it would work it,,  m'.nv out of 
the furnace-doors. 

The point I want to bring to you, Mr. Davies, is this : The main tmimmnel was the main in-take? Yes. 
Then how do you aeeomuit for the smoke going agaimmst the ventilating current, and lodming here 

above the boiler P Well, there beimmg no break in the roof, time smoke or gas would work back. 
Sf13. 
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Mr. J. Davic, 593. What, against the current? Yes ; because it follows the bottom more than the top. 
594. On a Monday morning, was it your custom to 'o early into the mine? I would go in about half-past 

4 May 1889. o'clock. 
505. Was the air as free on Monday mornings as other mornings? I never saw any difference. 

In the working places, was the ventilation sufficient? Yes, in all the places where I have been 
working there was; of course in some places there would not be so much as others. 

Did you ever have any conversation with the maiiager about the question of ventilation P No. 
Did you ever make any complaint to the manager as to the amount of ventilation? Well, at one 

time about the stoppings, that they ought to be filled up ; but that was nothing, as we had sufficient air. 
I only mentioned it because I could see what was wanted to be done. 

At the time when you called the manager's attention to the stoppings, were you in any apprehension 
of danger? No. 

Did you ever observe any choke-damp in the workings P No; I never found any. 
Have you ever travelled the returns? Not all of it; I have travelled some, part7  of it. 
Did you see any choke-damp there? No, never. 
Then we are to understand that you have never made a complaint about the ventilation. I suppose 

if there had been an insufficiency of ventilation you would have complained ? Certainly ; 1 should 
complain to the manager, or the undergrouud boss. 

Now, about this underground boiler you have incidentally mentioned-have you ever examined it? 
No ; I have not examined it much. I have been several times at it, and was round at the left-hand. side. 

Have von observed any accumulation of small coal on the left-hand side? Yes, there was a body of 
small coal tiere. 

What was the object of putting small coal there? For one thing, they had been cutting seine part 
of the top-coal away, and a little bit of the bottom had been lifted, and the coal was shifted to one side. 

How did you gain access to the left-hand side? So far as I remember, we used to have a long 
wire, and pass it through with a brush attached to the end of it. I believe I went in to give Passniore a 
hand. 

Then tell us how that operation was accomplished-did you put the wire in in front, and draw it 
towards the boiler? I think he used to put it in the front, and I would draw the wire across towards the 
niaiu tunnel, right through. 

Was it drawn right through the fire-grate? So far as I know, but I cannot say positively. 
Coming to the front of the boiler,-there was a brick building across the front of it, we understand? 

Yes, level with the front of the boiler, and there was another one close to the roof. There was a bit of a 
door through  which to get behind the boiler, but whether it was of wood or canvas I cannot remember. 

Have you ever heard of any fire occurring at this boiler previous to the serious fire of February P 
Yes; I forget how long ago, but there was a bit of a fire there. 

Was it months or years before this accident; you can tell that, I suppose? I believe it was about 
eight or nine weeks before the accident. I did not see it. Passmore told me there was a bit of a fire 
there, and. I heard some of the men talking about it; they did not say much. I asked Passmore if lie put 
the fire out, and he replied that lie had. I said, "You had better see that the fire is out, or it might bring 
you into trouble;" and lie said, "I am quite sure of it." 

Then you, as a cautious man, predicted danger from that fire? Yes. 
Were you quite satisfied when he informed you that the fire was out? Yes. 
Was Passmore a reliable man, in your opinion; could you rely upon his word? Yes, so far as Iliad. 

seen of him, you could rely upon his word. I never could find anything wrong with the man. 
610. Was Mr. Doig a reliable man, so far as you could see? He was. 

Did Mr. Doig and Passmore show an interest in the safety of the men? Yes. I have no complaint 
to make of the management. 

Did you consider it a dangerous mine to work in? No, it was, in my opinion, one of the safest 
mines that I ever worked in. 

Was the roof a good roof? Yes. In some places it was a bit heavy, but we used to put timber in 
then. 	 - 

Comparing it with the mines you have worked in at Home, you considered it a safe one to work in? 
Yes, certainly. There was much more danger attached to the operations of mining in the old country 
where I have worked. 

Have you ever paid attention to the stoppings of this mine? Yes; I have noticed them several 
times. They were composed of slack. 

Is that the usual way to put up stoppings in coal-mines? In this country, yes. But in most places 
where I have worked the stoppings were made of stone or brick-that was where there was gas. 

Were the stoppings used in Lithgow Valley mine made air-tight? Well, I do not think they ever 
could have been quite air-tight, because the material would slacken from the roof a little. 

Is it a bad practice to let a little air go through the stoppings-do you know whether it is good 
mining to ventilate the waste ? I am not well acquainted with English. [The question was put in 
Welsh.] Witness. I do not think so. 

.Presidenh.] What was the last day you worked in the mine before the accident? Before the first 
accident I was working between No. 1 and No. 2 cross-cuts. 

Were you working on the Saturday? Yes. 
When did you come out of the mine? I hardly know-I was on the back shift. 	 - 
When did you first hear of the accident P On the Monday morning. I did hear on the Sunday 

night that Passmore had come home bad, and I went to see what was the matter. He was in bed, and he 
told me that something came over him by the flue, and that lie was so bad that he could scarcely travel 
home. He also told me that there was so much smoke in the tunnel that lie could not go down. Then he 
went to the flue, and there was smoke going up, or something. 

Did that surprise you? Yes, I was surprised. 
Did you form any opinion as to where this smoke came from? No, I could not do that. 
Did. Passmore give you any opinion as to what was the cause of this P No. 
What did you do on the Monday morning? I went down to the pit ; there were a few men there, 

and just as I was going to enter the tunnel two or three men came out and said it was full of smoke. 
033. 
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633. Who were these men P George T[opkiiis was one, and I i'auiiot say whether Norwood was one of Mr. J. Davies. 
them or not. Thou I thought of John Don, and fold one of the men to run over to Mr. X nuDger s and 
see if he was at home. We made up our minds that lie must he in the iniime. Mr. Campbell was there 4 May, 1886. 
at the time, and James Doig. Then we thought to work the set-in " to restore the ventilation. AV c 
started the ciigiue and felt the rope drag; Ire could not work it. 	We then rushed into the main tunnel, 
dowii to the smoke. 
634. Was it the tail-rope that got tight? Yes. Well, we went in as far as Ave could, and began to opemi 
rome or two of the stoppi igs on the side of the tunnel, but we soon saw that we were doing wrong, and
we closed them up again, and went out. We talked about going for  Mr. Turnbnhl, andsome of the men 
went to Mr. Gell. 	 . 
(335. Did you form one of the rescuing pmtics I? Yes. We went insearch of Doig and his party. W o 
pro ceeded into No. 2 cross-cut, and opened up the first bord on the left-hand to the cross-cut, leading 
into a hord running lMu'allel -with and to the south of the tunnel. 

What was your ob1ect in opening up it stopping that had never been opened up before P Ave 
thought, as the smoke was so thick in the main tunnel, that by opening up the stopping we could take 
the smoke to the flm'st floor, and make that an air-course. 

Well, proceed. What did you do P We worked our way down till we came to l\[r. Turnbull, who 
had a brattiec, and within a few minutes after this the cry was that they had found lioig. 
635. A party of resellers had preceded YOU P Yes. 
630. Well, what did you do then P 1 went out. 
(itO. And that iumished what you had to do with the firstae eidciit P Yes. 
;i[. Then the nune was closed up ; is that so P Yes, it day or two after that, and it remained closed 
for some time. 

And then it was re-opened, and operations commenced for restoring the ventilation and putting out 
the fire P Yes, it was re-opened. They thought the fire WL5 out. 

Did you work in the mine after the opening P Yes, the whole of the t iinc. 
(iii. During this time, Mr. Davies, did the proprietors, Mr. Wilton amid Mr. (i-eli, visit you P Olm, yes 
they were there. 
615. Did they show anxiety for your safety P Yes; they were there during my shift. They told us to 
be careful, and look after ourselves. 
040. They cautioned yen not to rumu any risk P Yes. 
017. Just about this time, or rather before, did you hear that someone had pulled clown a stopping in the 
main tunnel P -No; I never heard of or saw it. 
618. At the time when it was resolved to close up the nune, did the men hold a ineetimgP On the Satur- 
day morning a  number of men were on the top of the pit, and we were talking about the possibility of 
putting out the fire. 

019. You did not want to be daumited P No. So we went to the Coin palm's ofilec, and we told Mr. Gell 
that we believed we could put the fire  out if they would pi'ovide us with material. 1 was one of tImoe 
who went. Mr. Gell thaimked us for our sympathy. I-Ic said lie was going to see the inspectors. 
650. What means did you intend to take to extinguish the fire P We thought to brat I he up with canvas, 
mmmiuke the stoppiimgs secure, and ihicim, by carrying the air down with us as close 115 possible to time fire, we 
thought to put a pmmimmp Oil the flat, and put the fire out that way. Sonic of us kmmew that there  was plemity 
of water in the swallow. 
051. Did you think you were likely to run any danger P No. 
652. Do you know the effect of choke-damp upomi time liumnait system P  1 never pi'ovetl it tipomi immyselt. 
053. if there was any danger attending the opeilimig up of this mimiile, were yulE prepared to take time risk 
of that danger when you went to Mr. Gell P Well, 1 could not see any dammgei' if we were allowed to 
have our own way, because Ave would carry the fresh air with us. 
(iS L But supposing danger to exist, wlmatever danger there was, were you prepared to take the risk? 
Well, I ran the same risk with the others, but I could not see any danger. 
(hiS. A hundred and one tlungs nught have occurred that mmo mnami could foresee P Oh, yes. 

Very well, the consent for you to make the trial was gim-en, and did you carry the air clowmm with 
you P Yes; we carried it right to the fire. 

Did you get all the material you required from the ouvmmer.s P Yes, we got everything ire wanted. 
You continued these operations oii for some time-can you say lieu-  loimg before the accident P No, 

I cannot say. 
Do you know time date wlicmi you resumed operatiomms P No, I cannot Say' 

0(30. Were you on shift when the accident occurred-that is the second accideimi P No. My shift was 
from 12 o'clock mnidnighit till 0 am. 
661. When the shift came within sight of the fire, where did you think the fire was located-did it seem to 
you to be on the right or left hammd side of the tunnel? So far as I could see. it was just in time centre of 
time tuimmiel. 
062. What was burning there P We could not see that, but we saw two flamnes. 
663. Did you ever get up to that? Yes, when we carried the brattice 0mm. Time fire was opposite the boiler. 
66 1. Did you see a fire burning in a pillar a few yards up the left-hand side of the tuimimel froin time boiler? 
Ohm, yes, time last few slmifts I did-omm Sunday amid l\[omiday morimimigs. 
(lOS. You saw a fire there P Yes, in time pillars on the left-hand side. 
000. Did you see the fire on the outside or the inside P On the immsidc, workiimg out 1 owards the tumimmel. 
667. Did you see this through a stopping P 	Yes. IL was on Sumiday morning. I had been on by thmO 
boiler, and had camime out for "a  spell. wimemi I heard something roaring at No. 35 stopping. Kirkwood was 
there. So we looked dowmm, and we sawtheLit of the flame at the bottoni of the pillar. Thmcstopping 
was on fire, and working out towards the timnmmel. 
60$. You could see from the stopping into the bord? Yes. 
609. Did time flue seem to extemid up towards the mouth of the tunnel? Yes. I macic a bit of a hole, and 
looking t lmroimghi it we could see the fire flaming up towards the north. 
670. \V'ehi, Mr. Davies, was that fail in the nmain tunnel, in front of the boiler, ii imeavy fall? Yes; T 
could see that imeavy rock and to1ls of coal had fallen away, but I could imot see the roof for the suiimhmuc 
and smnoke. 

Did you dirt your operatioimm to the removal of the debris? Ye:;  it was in iiiv ,hil't, 
'372, 
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Mr. J. Davies. 072. What effect would that heavy fall in the main tunnel have upon the ventilation? So far as I could 
see, it would stop it altogether. 

4 May, 1880. 073. After the fire had taken place, when you came to Tyndall's Iieadmg, were the stoppmgs there intact 
-tight I mean? There was only one stopping in Tyndall's heading, so far as I could see, and when I 
went close to it 1. found it tight. 
671. What was it formed of? Slack. 

Was there any timber? No, I did not see that, but 1 believe Campbell told me there was timber 
there. 

Have you ever seen an explosion of fire-damp? Yes. 
(;77. What is the effect of it-do you hear a report? Yes, there would be a report and a flash of light. 
I have experienced it in WTaIes. I was thrown down before the flame. 

And did it pass over you? It threw inc right before it till I came to the air-course, and when I 
passed the air-course the flame was done. 

Have you seen the bodies of men who have been killed by fire-damp? Yes. 
What appearance did they present? I have seen them with the skin burnt off, and all their hair 

singed. 
081. Did you see the bodies of the unfortunate men who were killed by this accident-did you see the 
bodies of Doig, for instance, or Younger? I saw Doig j ust before he died. 

Did lie present the appearance of a man who had been killed by an explosion? No. 
Did you see the bodies of any of the victims to the second accident? I saw the bodies of Lance, 

Allison, and Rawe. 
Did. Rawe appear to have died from the effects of an explosion? No. 
What do you think was the cause of his death? 1 would fancy that his death was caused by black. 

damp. 
Have you ever seen the body of a man killed from black-damp in the old country? I have seen one, 

that is all. 
What appearance did the body present? Very niuch like that presented by the body of Tom Rawe. 
Did you see Allison's body? Yes. 

089. What appearance did it present? Well, Allison seemed to be a bit burnt. His moustache was a 
little burnt, but there was no sign of burning at the back of his head. 

He had bruises about the face, had he not? Yes. 
How would you account for Allison's appearance? Well, I should think be had fallen into a fire. 

If he had been in an explosion his hair would have been burnt back and front. 
Were his clothes burnt in any way? I did not take much notice. 
Was his body burnt at all? His left arm looked as if it had been burnt. 
Well, Mr. Davies, towards the last shifts that you worked in the tunnel near the boiler, did you hear 

of any falls occurring in the gob (waste)? I did not hear any falls there. At about 4 o'clock on Monday 
morning-the last shift-the canvas door we had put across No. 35 stopping blew out, and the heat 
came out. 

Did you hear any noise before it was blown out? No, except a slight noise from the canvas. 
096. Was there any light put out? No, I think not. 

Did any gas come out? No, only a body of heat.. 
Were the G-overnment Inspectors present during your operations, and did they remain for any 

length of time? They were sometimes in longer than I was myself. 
Who attended most regularly, was it Mr. Rowan or Mr. Mackenzie? Both were in, but Mr. 

Rowan was in most. 
Did he give you any assistance? [The question put in Welsh.] Yes. He was there looking 

after us, and he was very cautious not to let us run into any danger. 
Then you have no complaint to make against Mr. Rowan or Mr. Mackenzie P Oh, no; not at all. 

I consider they were doing their best. 
Mr. Thomas.] Have you ever worked in a pit (in Wales) where you dare use a naked lamp? Ohm, 

yes; but that was when I was a boy, at Cwm Avon; we worked there with a naked candle, and used to test 
the gas with a naked candle. [Several questions put. in Welsh.] 

Mr. Uztrley.] What was the number of shifts you worked, say at the second accident, from the time 
of commencing until this last disaster took place? I cannot remember exactly. I was three weeks at 
night shift, and it may be a day or two, or perhaps three. 

How many hours were the shifts? Four shifts in twenty-four hours. 
Can you say who had principal charge of these shifts? No, I cannot. 

700. Who had charge of the shift you were on? I had. 
Are you employed in the Lithgow Valley mine now? Yes. 
What position do you occupy now? Well, I was doing brick-work last week. 
Mr. Uuley.] You have had some experience at Home in fiery mines; had you not an idea that there 

was some very serious danger in connection with the fire in the opening out of this mine? No, I could 
not see it, if we carried the air-current down with us. 

But you know from experience that it takes a certain quantity of pure air to produce an explosion? 
Yes. But after the test being made with a safety-lamp, I could see no danger, so iong as we kept air 
with us, and kept the black-damp away. 

Had you a safety-lamp ? No, none of my shift had, but I beard that some one had tested with a 
safety.lamp. 
112. Ae you aware whether any attempt was made to discover gas during your shift, either by yourself, 
the inspOctor, or anybody else? No. I do not remember. 

President.] You have already told us that you have tested the workings for gas? Yes; that 
was some time ago. 

.31r. Uurley.] The question I am asking is whether, after it was decided .to re-open tins mine, any 
attepapt was made by the inspector, or any one else, to discovel' gas by means of a safety-lamp? Not 
with a safety-lamp. 

15. 
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Presideni.] With any other lamp? Yes. 	 Mr. 
JEEr. Jnesj You have stated that you did not anticipate any danger but did you accept whatever J. Davies. 

risk there inirht be front a possdlc accident? Yes. 
71g. Presuient.] Were you satished that the owners, inspectors 	n , and maagers did everytlung that 4May 1880.  
man could do to ensure your safety P Yes; they could not have done more. 

Henry Grant sworn and examined 
71. President.] \\liat  is your Occupation, Mm. Grant 	I have been It miner all my life. 	 Mr. 

Where have you been employed P 1. was employed in Lanarkslnre, Scotland. 	 It. Grant. 

And how long in this Colony P Seven Veins. I worked for it few weeks in the .Esklanlc. and I lien 1 
caine to Lithgow Valley. T was working as a davinait, and attending to the little engine at themuider- 4 Ma 1880. 
ground boiler. 

Was it your duty I o visit the working-face? No. 
have you ever seen fire-damp in any of the mines you have worked in P Yes. I was worhuig at 

Moss End, 10 miles front (l lasgow . Ihav e had experience of fire-damp in the old ioiiiitr. 
72:3. Have you ever experienced it in the Iiithgow Valley Colliery P No, never. From what I have seen, 
I should say that black-damp was present ; but certainly no fire-damp. 
72 1. Where would the black-damp he? In a part of t lie old vorhings. 
725. .l[ave you ever heard of fire-damp being seen in the Lithigow Valley workings P No, I never have 
heard of such it thing. 
720. Did von ever put up any stoppmgsP 1 have occasionally, when 1 have been sent for. 
727. Did you put them imp carefully ,  P Yes. We made them as t ighit as we (0111(1 In the ordinary way. 
Soumetimes they would shrink a UI tie, aid if we saw thteni draw air we would rd iim'im and make thenm 
tight again. 
72k. Did you think them eIlieicmit stoppimigs P 'Well, T never saw slack stoppings till I came here. 

'What sort of stoppings did you see elsewhere P Brick St oppiligs. 
But did these slack stopplugs ausiver their pinpose --was the ventilat ion sufficient P 	1 was not  

often in the face ; I cami only speak of the main roads. 
however, von were careful to make them as tight as you could P Yes. 
Was Doig very pai'tieimlai' on that poi it P So far as my knowledge ailoivs me toimdge, 1 think It(, 

very particiilu' on that poilmt. 
Von say you attended to the undergrouiid boiler and engine P \es, at night. 1 was engaged 

pupimig the water. 
1 [ow was the boiler bitib 	It was placed in the centre of It hoid, and enclosed by a ln'ick buildimg. 

733. Was the coal pillar protected by bmiekworlc P No. 
736. What did the pavemnciit comisist of P A portion of it was coarse coal l inches t lnck. 
737 Was the floor taken up under the boiler ,  Not that I am aware of ; 1 cauimnt say. 

But you (-,in5eiii5 of that )art in front of the boiler-was it I aken (tilt u- lucre you cleaned the fire? 
No; it was not cutaway to the rock. The coarse coal was not raised. 

Well, in front of the boiler, was there a brick building P Yes, front pillar to pillar. 
How many feet of a passage existed between the left-hand side of the boiler and the coal pillar on 

that side P Abocmt S or 9 imichmes. 
7-I4. how did you geti(CCs5 to that side of the boiler P X Lit of screen cloth protected it. 
7-12. Was there any close and air-tight building between the boiler and the tunnel P The boiler wits pro-
tected by two walls. 
713. Wlmeim you caine to the boiler down the I unned, you raised this screen to get there P 'Yes, there was 
it screen. 
7-14. In raising this screen, and coming to the side of the boiler, was there an accumulation of small coal 
there') les, a portion was fallen off, it was not removed in my I iine. 
745, Where did the flues of the furnace commence P They commenced front the back of the boiler, 
and took the smuoke direct front the fire into the old worlcimigs. 	They were about 1 1 or 15 yards long, I, 
think. 

Ilotv did you clean these fhmes P We had some wire about it,, thiit'lc as a peiei, to winch was 
attached soimie bimsh. and this was pulled through fronttime back and ret mmrmied again. 

Did you ever, front curiosity or duty, travel the return road when cleaning these pipes P to. 1 was 
only too glad to get out on aecoimmut of the snmoke andheat. 
718. How were these fire-clay pipes supported P They were held imp by iron rails. 

What was lying omi the pavement P A sort of small coal and soot. 
\Vould small provocatiomi raise a lire there P Yes. II have seen it at this spot twice. There was no 

flame though. TIme fire was always lint  out, as we had plenty of water. I do not kmmow how long ago it 
is that these fires happened. I saw one six or seven mmiommths before this accident happened, and 1 heard 
of one six or seven weeks before the accident. 

Thmemi you have heard of one fire and kmiowmi two to have occurred yourself, that makes three fires 
tin tIer tites (' Ii re-tI av liii 1(25 P 	"ie. 

Was this boiler divided at onc time by a cumt-lhum'tttmgh P 	Yes ;  there was It tltce where Ne. Doipr  

once took its to take coal out for time furnace". 
Was that in the coiner of the boiler, just between the cormier and the umaimi timunel P Yes. 
Was the pillar to the left-hand side split with a cimt thii'nugh P 1 do not k now 	I never wemmt dtwmm 

that way-that is, I never went that side of the pi)Cs. 
Have you seen smoke bangiumg about at the furmuace P 	Ve, but I canuol say lion it 	e amim there. 

756. Are you aware whether the left -hand furnace that took the air was kept going at night P It was 
damped down at night. 
737. That is • on Satmmrday night it W' tumId lie la iii petl dt iw mm. and (lie ii oi let' w as also di iii 1ted tb WI m ) 	Yes. 
758. Supposing a fire had occurred amiywhere in the vucimiitv of that boiler, front any caine, oil Saturday 
night, when would it be llotieed P That 1 cannot say. 1 arrived at 3-23 on Saturday morning, and never 
knew about anything occurring. I was not back until the Monday morning-that was when I heard of 
the accident. 

576-0- 	 759' 
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Mr. H. Grant. 759. Supposing, Mr. Grant, that the main current of air was from any cause directed into the boiler, and 
,-----' at the same time small coal below these flues was smouldering, what would be the effect of the fresh air 

4 May, 188. rushing in? it would have the effect of kindling it. 
Did the construction of that boiler over raise doubts in your mind as to its safety? Well, in any 

other underground boiler that I have seen in the old country all the top-coal was taken down to the 
rock, but in this instance I trusted to its being surrounded by water. 

Do you consider that these flues (the return air-course) were selected and arranged with a due 
regard to safety-should not the small coal have been taken out from below these pipes? Well, if they 
had been properly cleaned out the smouldering would not have occurred. 

Quite so. But supposing you had been manager, and your attention had been directed to such a 
smouldering as you have mentioned, would it not have occurred to you to remove that small coal to 
prevent another 'such fire occurring P Yes. If I had been " boss" I would have had it removed. 

W'ould you also have cleared out the accumulation of small coal round and about the boiler? Yes. 
'Would you have taken down the tops? Yes, that certainly ought to have been done. 

705. Above these fire-clay pipes, was the top-coal hanging? Yes. 
700. Well, supposing the top-coal had broken away in this place from the effects of heat, what would 
have been the probable effect? It might have taken fire. 

Do you think it would have been reasonable to suppose in connection with the late accident that 
something like this did occur? I cannot say that exactly, because everything was right when I was 
there. 

What width was the bord that the flues went through? Fourteen feet, I think. 
Were any of the tops down at all? A portion of the tops were down where they travelled in to inspect 

the flues. 
But I understand you to say that above the fireclay pipes none of the tops were taken down? No, 

it was all coal. 
Were the tops supported by timber in the flues? I was never there. 
Did any portion of the tops break away? Not in my time. 
Did you consider that this was a perfectly safe boiler? No, I did not consider it a safe boiler, 

owing to its close proximity to the roof and the quantity of steam and heat generated. 
Mr. ZVeiiso2.1 Concerning the fine in the old bord where the smoke used to go away, has that place 

ever been cleared of soot? No, I believe not. 
President] Were you one of those who took part iii rescuing the mcii Doig, Yoimger, and Rowe? 

Yes, I was there, and formed one of the exploring party. Martin was also one. I turned. down No. 2 
cross-cut to the right, and the men were found 12 or 13 yards off the first cross-cut. 
770. Did you follow the air in going down to Younger and Rowe? Yes; the ventilation seemed to be 
pretty well restored. They were lying clear of smoke and damp. 

Are you certain as to the position where they were found? Martin is quite positive in his state-
ment as to where lie found Doig, and traced with his finger on the plan to a point below No. 2 cross-cut 
lie pointed to a place considerably below-that is, to the east of No. 2 cross-cut. Do you still say it was 
not below, but above No. 2 cross-cut P The two that I saw lying there were above the cross-cut, but Doig 
was below. 

The first cross-cut is a few yards below the right-band furnace I Yes. [At this stage reference was 
made to the plan.] Dictated by the President : I am still of opinion that Vounger and Rowe were found 
between the No. 1 and No. 2 cross-cuts, and not in the position indicated by Martin and. hall. 

Did you take any other part iii the operations at the mine P No, not then. 
After Doig and. Xoungcr and Rowe were found, what did you do about the mine? I was put on to 

attend the furnace. 
When was that P Just after they opened up the mine the last time. 
Was the left-hand fLirnace kept gomg P Yes, at last it was ; it was the right-hand furnace that I 

attended to. 
Did you attend shift on and shift off until the accident occurred 7  Yes; I was there during the day-

time between 8 o'clock in the morning and 1 o'clock in the afternoon. 
Were you on duty at the time the last accident occurred? Yes. 
how were you apprised of that accident? I was sitting on the road at the right-hand furnace, and 

I never rig 	 w htly knew where I was until I looked up and found I as lying up against the drum at the 
mouth of the mine. I was sitting on some bricks at the place 1 have stated, when a rush of wind conic 
and carried inc out. A young fellow was there at the time, and he saw me. 

Is there not a gate or fence near the mouth of the mine, Mr. Grant? Yes, the fence was up. 
Is that not of a permanent character? It is only a slight structure ; one-half was kept shut. 
How do you account for the fence not being blown away? I cannot say as to that. 
Do you think it possible for a person of your size and weight to have been shot along a distance of 

100 yards by such a rush of wind? Well, I thought it was nigh on to that distance. 
Then, supposing that you had been blown 100 yards out of a tunnel and through these gates, over 

rollers and over rails, and beyond tins again 50 or 00 yards in the open air, how do you account 
for having escaped without considerable bruises or broken bones? I was shaken a great deal. 

Do you think it possible that a man could be blown out of a mine -through gates and up the open 
cut without all injury. You know one-half of the gate is always kept shut? I know; I struck my 
head against it. 

Would not such a blast have blown the gates off? Well, I got plenty, and that is all I can say. 
What I want to know, Mr. Grant, is, after considering the matter calmly, do you think it was 

possible P Certainly I do, I know von think I ani telling you a story. 
No, but I think you are deceiving yourself P No, I don't think 'I am. Jim Rowe was just the same 

way, and the boy was just the same. Jim Rowe had been sitting with me on those bricks when the blast 
came, and lie said lie was tossed over to the other side. As soon as 1 came to myself I ran for the furnace-
door, and having got it open the smoke was coIning back again; and when we went to the left-hand furnace- 

"  we found. the small coal had been forced. up against it, and we could not get it open. After that I 
assisted to get out the dead men. 

What space of time intervened? So far as I can learn, about half all hour. J had looked at my 
watch a few minutes befhre that, and it was then just a quarter past 3. 

790. 
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790. Then your watch was not damaged at all when you were blown out of the mine P No ; I had it kept Mr. U. Grant. 
in a little box it was not damaged at all, and was still going. 

Neither you nor your watch were injured P Well, I have been pretty bad since ; the doctor says 4 May, 1886. 
my system was shaken. 

You are sure you did not run a portion of this distance P No, I did not run I was blown out, and 
fell on my side. 

Was the furnace still burning when you got back P It was scattered all over; I got it right in 
about a quarter of an hour ; I had J ael( Sheedy to assist me. 

Was the fire completely blown out of the grate P it was all out and driven all over the place ; we 
put it in with shovels. 

Mi. Yeilson.] You are quite sure that the force of the blow was going tip the tunnel, and that you 
were blown to that distance 	Yes. 

Which way was the air going at the furnace 	Whenever I got the door shut it took the draught, 
and the air went down. 

You were perfectly satisfied that you had the two doors shut at the left and right hand furnaces, and 
the current of air was restored at once 	Oh, yes, sir. 
$04. Mi. Swinburnj Where were you sitting when this explosion took place, or whatever you term it P 
I was sitting on some bricks close to the door of the furnace, on the side of the main tunnel. 
805. Jrr. Neilson.] You said i.it the whole of the fire was blown out-was it blown out at the front or 
the back 	It was driven to the back, and front, and sides. 
800. Where did you find the live coal? All along the front it was smashed tip, and we put it in with the 
shovel. 
$07. Mr. Swinburn.] Can you account for some of the fire being at the front and some at the back P The 
blast would lift it to one side. 
80$. ilfr. Uur11.] You have sttitcd here that; lent von been manager you would have fixed that boiler 
differently ; did you ever suggest to the manager the propriety of making some alteration P No. My own 
opinion is that the top should be taken down for greater security but it would not be my place to make 
such suggestions when the manager could see for himself. 

Did you ever suggest anything of this kind to the luspector of Collieries P No, sir; 1 know my 
place. 

Then von knew of your own knowledge, and fi'oin your past experience, that this was likely to be a 
source of danger, and knowing this you still thought it was unnecessary to report such a thing to the 
inspector P I did not report it to the inspector because I had no right to interfere with another man's 
(ltitiCS ; if 1 had not been pleased with it myself I could have left it. 

Then you were pleased with it 	Yes, it was my work ; 1 never saw 1\Ir. Rowan, or any of them, 
when I was there. 

Mr. (bide11.] Did you notice whether any of these ashes accumulated at the furnace were strewn 
about' 1 (10 not know whether I had any ashes in my head at the time; 1 paid little attention. 

Mi. Sc inbern.] Did you observe any flame or light when the rush of air caine 	No ; it was only 
just a niass of smoke and dust. 
81 1. ('aim you assign any reason for this P No. I never was down hcyonrl the furnace. I know no more 
about I hat titan yourself,  

[hmarles Nom'ivood sworn and examined 	 Mr. 
813. PiesiJent.] What is your calling. 1\[r. \orwood ? I am a miner. 	 C. Norwood. 
816. Where have you worked in tIme Colony 	1. have only worked in time Lithgow Yalley mine ; I have 
worked there for six years. 
$17. Do you know anything about fire-damp or choke-damp P I have worked a little in fire-damp at I-Ionic, 
but I never saw it in Lithgow \"allev. 
81$. Where did you work in the old country P In the county Durham. 
819. 1-lave you ever seen explosive gas P Yes;i have seen it burn a uman ; I was working next to him at 
the time. 
$20. Well, did you eonsidei' the Litlmgow Valley pit a safe one to work in P I did. 

Had you any fault to find with the mnanagernemit of the mine, in connection with the character of the 
working; as to the size of the pillars, for instance, and the width of the bords, and the class of stoppings ? 
No, I had no fault to find in any way. 

Have you ever worked to the left-hand of the tunnel? Yes. 
$23. i)o you know of any reported encroaelunent upon Eskbank P No, but 1 have heard something of it. 
821. have you ever heard of or seen any pillaring in the workings to the left-hand of the tunnel P No, I 
have never heard of a-ny being taken out to the left or the right eithem', but it might have taken place 
without may knowing. 
$25. Have you ever inspected the underground boiler? No. 
826. Did you ever hear of ,in underground fire having occurred there before February P Yes, but I did 
not see it. 

Did the fact raise any feat's in your mind as to the safety of the mine P No, it did not. 
Where were you when the first accident. happened? I was at home I left home about half-past 4 in 

time mormmumg. When I went into the mine 1! was met by the smoke ; I was with I[opkins at the time, and 
after staying there a little while we retreated. We then went- into No. 2 cross-cut ; three men were 
supposed to be in there, as we had been informed by Martimi that he left theum at 2 o'clock, and it was  
thought they were somewhere in the cross-emit ; we went on as far as Tyndall's heading, but the damp or 
smoke took effect upon us and we returned ; we then went down the tunnel again, and fell in with 
Cmnnpbell and another man ; Caumphell asked me if I would go in again to find the muon, and I did so 
accordingly, after breaking a stopping, but I lost the use of my legs and was carried out. 

Did you take any other part in these operations P Not in the least. 
After the 5t0Jfl]1g was removed from the mouth of the tunnel, were you employed as a worker to 

extinguish time fire P Yes ; I went on ui.y own account. 
You worked for some time, immitil you saw time fire burnimmg, ivimen something occurred which deter-

mnimicd the owners to close imp time mine, and we have heard that time miners then held a meeting and came 
to 
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Mr. 	to some resolution; what do you know about that? I cannot say much about it, as I was not there; I 
C. Norwood. have heard that they did hold a meeting. 

And petitioned the owners to be allowed to extinguish the fire on certain terms-is that not so? 
4 May, 1886. Well, I cannot speak with certainty about that. 

Who chose you as a worker? No one chose me, but I was one of them. A certain line of action 
was agreed upon, and the men chose their own leaders, but I was not there when it was agreed to. 

As a matter of fact, permission was given to re-open the mine, and operations were resumed? Yes, 
permission was given, I suppose, by the inspectors. 

Did you anticipate that any danger attended this work? Yes, there was a little danger attending it, 
of course. 	

ZD 

Had you ever seen a plan of the working? Yes, I did see a plan of it, but I am not much of a 
scholar, and cannot say anything about it. 

As a working miner, do you understand the underground workings? Yes, I know all the bords and 
headings that have been worked since I have been there. 

Well, having got down to the seat of the fire, did you notice a fall in the main tunnel? Yes. 
839, Was it a heavy fall? No. 

Could you see over it? Yes. 
Did you think it blocked up the tunnel? No, I cannot say that; it was not a heavy fall of rock; 

it consisted mainly of tops, and we sent it outside. 
Coming to the boiler, were the tops on fire? Yes ; they were all down and burning, and we put 

them out. 
Did you see any fire in the old workillgs to the left? Yes; and a little burning inwards towards 

Tyndall's heading. 
When you were in at the boiler, did you notice the direction of the fire then? Yes; there was a 

little on the right and also on the left stretching towards the back of the tunnel. 
Have you ever travelled the flues from the boiler? No, never. 

840. In the course of your operations in connection with extinguishing this fire, did you hear any falls in 
the water? Yes. I have seen and heard them. I saw one on the Sunday before the last accident; it 
was over the boiler to the left. It was a heavy fall, and had the effect of putting my light out, as I was 
at work with the hose at the time, and it drove us back' 

Then you were on shift when the accident occurred? Yes; it was about 3 o'clock, or a quarter 
past. I should have gone off at 6 o'clock. 

Did you hear any noise or sound at the time? No; some of my companions said they did, but I 
could hear nothing. 

What was the first intimation you had that anything was wrong ? A heavy blast of wind came 
down the tunnel, carrying with it small coal and dust. 

Have you ever experienced a similar blast to that? Never in my life. 
How long did the blast last P As far as I can tell, the blast passed away quickly, and the smoke 

and stythe came gradually. We then went for the skips and pulled the rapper-wire; but the skips did 
not move, and then we all got out and travelled as fast as possible to the mouth of the tunnel. The 
strongest men took the lead, 1 suppose. I was behind, with Duncan next to me. The last thing I 
remember was Duncan telling me to come on" ; but I said I could not ; I was pretty well done. I was ZD 

lying down when the rope moved; I hung on to it; and as one of the skips came along I got into one 
of the skips. 

Did you see any fire on the road? Yes, and I saw fire in the stoppings; but we could not take 
much notice. 

Was the fire in any  considerable quantity? It looked as if a few hot cinders had beenthrown out 
of the grate. it was scattered towards the right-hand side. As far as I can say, the fire was about 20 
yards ahead of the skips, and 200 yards from the fire. 

Did you foresee any danger just previous to the accident? Well, I never saw any danger as regards 
what did occur. 

Do you think anyone could have anticipated such an occurrence? Well, I cannot speak for anyone 
else. But if I had anticipated it I should not have been there. I was under no compulsion to go. 
850. Did the owners and inspectors show a reasonable regard for your safety? Oh, yes; as far as I 
could see. They told us not to run any danger, and frequently told us to be careful, 

Had you any complaint to make as to the quantity of ventilation or anything else P No. 
Would you have complained if there appeared to you to be anything wrong? Yes, of course I 

should. 
Do you think the inspectors could possibly have foreseen and prevented the catastrophe? No, 

I do not. 
800. Could you throw blame upon anyone for the accident? No I do not see that I could. 
861. Then you think this was a pure and unpreventible accident ? Yes, I do I do not think anyone 
could have anticipated it. 
802. ilL'. .Daries.1 At what time did, your shift go on that day? At 12 o'clock. Mr. Wilton, Mr. 
Bowan, and Mr. Campbell were there. I think Mr. Mackenzie was away that day. 

ilL'. Swinburn.l Were they there at the change of each shift? Yes. 
Did you consult with them at any time, or with those that were leading you ? Oh, yes. We gene-

rally consulted with them as to how the work was best to be done. 
Did you take upon yourselves the whole of the responsibility? Yes ; we took the responsibility, 

with Campbell for a guide. 
Mr. Davies.] Who did, you recognize that you were under at the time of the accident? I considered 

that we were under Mr. Campbell at the time of the accident. 
807. Mr. Ourley.] Who had charge of your shift? Mr. Kirkwood. 
868, Did you ever hear Kirkwood mention anything about the plan of the mine P No. 

Or discussing the plan with the manager or inspectors P No, not in my shift. 
President.] Did I understand you to say that Campbell engaged you to work at these opera-

tions ? No, he did not engage us ; but we were working under him. 
Would he not select the leaders if he were your boss? Of course he would. 
Do you know whether the men agreed to give their services for a week for nothing P No. I know 

that I did not. I believe I heard so. 	 873. 
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The owners did not accept of your generosity-they paid you? Yes. 	 Mr. 
Mr. Jones.] Have you any knowledge of any pillars being taken out at any place other than the left- C. Norwood. 

]and side? No. 
All'. C'ei'ley.] Where was the locality of the fire you have referred to? It was to the left of the 4 May, 1886. 

boiler. 
870. How far from the boiler P About 5 or 6 yards. 

Mr. Us/er.] Did you ever observe that any of the pillars were less than 1 chain in width P No, 
I never did. 

You never saw any half a chain thick P No. 

ff'RD2',TESDAY2  5 MAr, 1SS6. 

THE PRESTDENT, 	 Mu. SWINBURN, 
Me. USI[IER, 	 Mu. CIJRLEY, 
Me. TI-IOMAS, 	 Ma. DAVIES, 
Ma. NEILSON, 	 Mn. JONES. 

Thomas Rodham sworn and examined :- 	
M President. What are you? I am a miner, and have been employed in the Lithgow Valley T. Rodham. 

Colliery for four years. 
have you worked as a miner in any other collieries P No. 	 May, 5 1880. 
At what bords have you worked in the Lithgow Valley mine P I have worked in the rise heading 

(Tyndall's) ; at Sam's heading (represented on the plan as the return air-course) I have also worked in 
the cross-cut where they are goillg to start now. 

Where were you working before the accident P Within a chain of the main heading where the skips 
come up. 

Contiguous to the tunnel face P Yes. 
What was the last day you worked in the mine P On. the Saturday, and left off at 1 o'clock. 
Did you observe anvtlung strange in the ventilation ? Not in the least. 

S6. Did you notice anything in passing the boiler? No. 
887. Nothing unusual? 	o ; I noticed nothing different from any other day. 
SSS. In passing to your work in the situation you have described, did you ever notice any smoke over the 
boiler on Monday mornings early P There was always a little in the morning when the fire was (laluped 
out, but we never took any notice of it. 

have you ever known that sinolce to be carried round the workings? No, it never caine round to us. 
Did von take any part in rescuing Doig and his companions P "Yes; I went up the rise heading 

that is next to the second cross-cut. 
1 [ow did you get into the rise heading P We broke a stopnng in the main tunnel. 
Was Mr. Turnbull on the scene before you went down P No. 
Who went with you P Charles Norwood, Mr. Campbell, and Langford. 

891. What did you do when you broke this stopping? When we caine to the air-course we turned to the 
left, and then to the right, until we caine to Lewis's heading, and, then on to Tyndall's heading. When we 
got there the air was fairly clear, and was travelling out round from the main drive. 
893. \'vere you one of the parties who found Doig P No. 

Did von take any other part in this investigation P No, not until we started to put the fire out. 
Were you one of those who volunteered to make the attempt P Yes. When it was determined to close 

up the mine we held a meeting opposite to the pit. 	We caine to time opinion that we could put out the 
fire, and we went to the office and told the owners that we would work for nothing for a week in trying t o 
put it out. They said they could not give its leave unless they obtained permission from the inspectors. 
They then interviewed the inspectors on the sub ect, and permission being obtained from them to open the 

mu mine the on formed shifts and appointed leaders. 
SOS. Did you apprehend any danger in connection with this work P Not in the least. 
S99. But supposing any danger to exist, did you agree to take the risk of it P Yes, or we would not have 
volunteered to work for nothing. 

What bargain did you imike with the pl'opraetors when you volunteered to (10 the work P That is all 
the bargain we macic. 

In the course of your operations, did you obtain from the proprietors everything you wanted, in the 
shape of materials P Yes, everything. 

Well, when you got dowu to the seat of the fire, did you observe that anything unusual had taken 
place at the main tunnel? Nothing but the falls at the top. 

Was not that unusual P Oh, yes. 
'Was it a large fall? Yes, it blocked up the tunnel, and the ventilation seemed to be stopped. 
Did you ever direct your attention to the underground boiler P Yes, and have passed and repassed 

it hmundreds of times. I believe there was one fire in its vicinity some time ago. 
Did you see it? No, but I heard of the men putting it out. 
Do you know if it was of a serious natum'e P No. 
Did it ever occur to you that this boiler was a source of danger P No; I never thought it was 

dangerous. 
Did you see any fire at the fall of coal P The coal was not burning in my shaft. 
Do you know whether it was burning P I cannot say. 

Oil. Did you in passing that boiler ever look up towards the left-hand P No; I saw fire to the right of 
the boiler when 1 was working there lately, and I have seen fire on the left and parallel with the main 
tunnel when going up that way. 
912. Coining to the main tunnel, and for clays before the accident took place, did you see any fire on the 
side of the main tunnel P No. 
013. Did you hear of any fire being discovered in the main tunnel P No. 
914. Did you form one of the shift that was on when the accident oecm'red P No ; I was not on that 
shift. 

915. 
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Mr. 	915. When you were working down at the face of the tunnel, did you hear any sounds as of falls? No. 
T. Rodham. 916. During the progress of your operations, did your inspectors and owners visit you? Yes; the in-
''' speetors used to visit us regularly. 

5 May, 1886 917. Did they remain any length of time? They would remain in ten minutes or a quarter of an hour, 
perhaps. 

What did they do? Well, I suppose they were looking after our safety. 
Did they seem anxious for your safety? Yes; the owners were in every night when we were 

working at the fire. 
Did they seem anxious so promote your endeavours? Yes; they did everything they could, and 

told us not to run into any kind of danger. 
Was Mr. Campbell, the manager, also present, and if so, what part did he take? He went in with 

us, and worked along with us many a time. 
Well, as to the supplying of materials, and the attendance of the inspectors, owners, and manager, 

was everything done that could be done to assist you in carrying out the work, and to secure as far as 
possible the safety of the men? Yes, undoubtedly. 

Have you had any experience of poisonous gas? No; I have been twenty-five years in mines, but 
never had any experience of that kind. 

Were you thoroughly satisfied with the ventilation of this mine, and with the character of the 
stopping? Yes. 

And you did not think this mine a dangerous one to work in? No; I thought it one of the safest 
mines I ever worked in. 

During these operations for extinguishing the fire, did you ever hear any sound of a fall in the roof? 
There was a bit of a fall straight ahead of us. 

But not in the old workings? No. 
028. Have you ever heard whether a large portion of pillars towards the left of your operations had been 
removed? Not to my knowledge. 
929. But they might have been removed without your knowledge? Yes, they might have been removed, 
but I think not during the time that I was working there. 

Archibald Dune sworn and examined 

Mr A. Dune. 030. President.] What is your occupation, Mr. Dune? I am a miner. 
031. How long have you been following that occupation? About seventeen years; I have been coal-

5 May, 1886. milling ten years. 
Where have you been working as a coal-miner? In Newcastle, and in the Lithgow Valley District. 
Are you a native of the Colony? No; I am a native of Scotland, and was born in Stirhngshmre. 
What part of Newcastle were you working in ? In Mmmi, Woodford, and Greta. 
In the course of your occupation as a coal-miner, have you ever had experience of fire-damp? No. 
Or choke-damp P Well, no, not till the late accident. 
Did you see any fire-damp at Mmmi? No, not while I was working there. I did see it once when 

I was on a visit there-my uncle showed it to me. lie had a safety_lamp with him, and it filled with fire. 
038. What appearance did it present P It showed a red flame. 

How long have you worked in this district? About three years and ten months. 
In what mines have you worked here? Only in the Lithgow Valley Colliery. 
Have you ever been down any of the adjoining mines? No. 
Then your experience of the Lithgow District is confined to the workings in the Lithgow Valley 

Colliery? Yes. 
043. Were you employed as a coal-getter in that mine? Yes, for the last three years. 

In what portion of the mine did you last work? Down in the lower workings. 
Did you draw a cavil over all the districts in the mine, or only a certain section of it? We cavilled 

over the whole mine. 
046. have you been working all over the mine? Yes, with the exception of these two cross-cuts. 
947. Then you have never been working in No. .1 or No. 2 cross-cut? No. 
94S. But in all the others? Yes; I worked in every other heading in the pit excepting those. 
040. What width were you instructed to drive the working bords? From 7 to S yards. 

And leave what thickness of pillars P I believe they are supposed to be a chain. 
Have you ever known the pillars to be of a lesser width than that? No; I cannot say so in any 

bords that I have been working. 
Then you have never seen pillars of a less width? No. 
Have you ever seen evidence of crushing in any of these pillars? No. 
Have you ever seen choke-damp in the working places of Lithgow Valley Colliery? Never bad 

enough to put the light out; I have seen the air very thick at times down in time dip workings, about 100 
or 150 yards off the main road. 

What were the stoppings composed of? Of slack. 
056. Were they carefully put in? That I cannot say-I never put in any of the stoppings. 

Did it ever occur to you that they were carelessly put in 2  I think some of them were not vei' 
strong. They required trimming up now and then at the top. 

Did you ever complain of these stoppings to the manager? No; I did not think it necessary. 
Did you ever notice the Government Inspector paying official visits to the mine? Yes; I have seen 

him several times where I was working. 
Then this impression as to the ventilation was not strong enough to induce you to complain to the 

manager or the inspector? No ; I did not consider the ventilation was bad enough for that. 
Have you ever had occasion to complain of the ventilation in any of the places in which you were 

working in this colliery? No. Sometimes the air would be a little dull and thick, but if any mention 
were made of it additional ventilation would immediately be put on. If any complaint were made to the 
manager the subject-matter of it would be at once attended to. 

Did you think this mine a well-managed mine? Yes, I did. 
Did you think it was in any way a dangerous mine to work in? No; on the contrary, I thought it 

was the safest mine I had ever worked in. 
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had you ever seen smoke in that portion of the mine you were working in, to the extreme right? Mr. A. Dune. 
No, never. 

When did you last work in the mine P About four or five days before the accident; 1 was off ) May, 1886. 

through sickness on the day of the accident. 
Then you were not working on the day of the ac ndent 	I was not working on the Friday or 

Saturday. The accident happened on Sunday. 
In going to and from your work, did you pass the position of the underground boiler P Yes. 
I-[ad you the curiosity to inspect it ? No. 
Have you never been in there P 'No; 1 was at the colliery when it was being built, but I did not 

inspect it. 
Do you know whether the bottom coal was lifted when the boiler was being built?' 1 (10 not think 

it was. 
1[ave you ever been round the sides of this boiler since it was built? I was about half-way iound 

by the side of it. There was a canvas door which the men had to go through to clean the B neat the 
back. I remarked that it was too hot for me, and went out; that was not long after it was built. 

Do you know as a fact whether the top coal was taken down P 1 know as a fact that it was not. 
Did von ever go into the flues when the boiler was being built? No. 
Do you know whether the tops were taken down there P No. 

973. Going down the main tunnel and looking towards the boiler, could you see the fire ? Oh, yes. 
1 believe there was a brick wall built in the line of the tunnel-is that so P Yes. 
And there was a doorway there? Yes. 
Was there a wooden door hung there? Yes. 
Was it kept open or shut? it was mostly kept open. 
You are quite sure about there being a door P Ye. 
Was that door there three or four (lays before the accident? .1 cannot speak with certainty as to 

that. 1 was there when it was put up shortly after the boiler was built, but I have not seen it closed for 
a long time. 

Was the canvas door that vou have referred to air-tight? It was like a little trap-door that a man 
could crawl through. 

have von heard of a fire P fire having occurred at this boiler pteiottsly P 11 never heard of ally- 
thing of the sort imit ti I tli e Ii rst accident. au d t1len 1 saw it ill t 	I 
OS I. B Lit have ye vu u nuvur I iea id a nv of t I e I ic i in a k e ii re ark a b Lit a fire It a viii g occurred at that boiler 
before this accident? Well. yes. f  believe I did hear a man sac that lie got scalded in putting out a fire 
there. 

Did von ever suspect any danger was likely to arise in connection with this boiler? No, I did not. 
I understood you to have said that von never assisted in constructing the stoppings in tlnsniine P 

No, I did not. 
087. Did you consider that these stoppings answered the purpose of stoppings in directing the, ventilation P 
Well, so far as my opinion goes, 1 considered that they should have been constructed of brick. 
988. Wliere had you seen brick stoppiugs P At i\Iiminti ; in fact, 1 never saw any others until I caine here. 
089. But you have never complained of the ventilation or of the stoppings to the manager or to the 
inspector P No. 
OPU. Well, did von consider the ventilation of this mine suflicieut P Yes; as a general tlnng, it. was well 
VCI it ila ted. 
991 . Then if the ventilation was sufficient, is the lesson to he drawn from that that the stoppings 
answered or did not answer their p1pose P They answered their ptti'pose certaimily. 

As a matter of fact, then, the ventilation being sufficient, you did not sec any cause for complaint-
is that the correct way to put it P Yes. 

How far back from the last stopping was your working place P That I cannot say ; it would take 
about a week to work through where I was working, and then the air would be better. 
991. LFiirther questions on the subject were ansiverccl by the witness, and dictated tints by the Chair-
man :-It was shown on a sketch that the witness was working in a bord that in a few (lays would have 
holed through in another working place, which would have conducted the air through his road and 
rectified the ventilation. 
995. Peside.ntj When did you become aware of the accident of the 11th February? On the 1\Ionday 
unormnng ; a little boy caine to my plutee and told mc there was something wrong in the pit. 
096. Did you take any part in carrying down the air under the (lireetion of Mr. Turnbull P No. 

Did von take ito palt in connection with the operations connected with the first accident? No; I 
had nothing to (10 with the operations initil the brickwork was taken out. 1 was working at the furnace, 
and worked a shift on the Saturday night. Very little progress was inado on account of the smoke and 
damp. 

Did you continue working until you got to the prox nity of Tyndall's heading P Yes; we kept on 
working until 	came to within about a chain of it then we could see the fire right in front of us, in 
the middle of the road. We were stopped then. 1 forget what happened, but I know that it was a good 
bit after that before we -of to Tyndall's heading. 

Was it not determined to abandon the mimic P No, not at that time. 
1000. Do you remember what stopped your progress at that point P 1 am trying to recollect. I do not 
exactly remember whether it was then they put the steam on or riot. in my opinion the application of 
steam was not a success. 
1001. Well, Mr. Dune, for some reason it was determined to close up the mine, and the men did not 
approve of the procucecling, the result being that a meeting was lield at the mouth of the pit-is. that 
correct P Yes ; the nien agreed to try and put the fire out. Seventeen of us went as a deputation to the 
owners ; we saw Mr. (i-elI and Mr. Bushy, and I told him that we could put out the fire, and that we would 
do it for nothing if lie would find us the materials to work with. 
1002. Did you consider that you ruui any danger in carrying out these operations P No, not in the least. 
1003. But supposing there act uahlv was risk and danger to he apprehended, were on prepared to take 
the responsibility P It would depend upon how much the danger was.
1004. But you were the judge of it? So far as we could see, I did riot see any danger. 
1005. Well, supposing that danger did exist, and von could not anticipate it, did you undertake the 
respomisibilitv ? Yes, we undertook the responsibility I (liii for oni 	 1000. 
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Mr. A. Dune. 1006. In the prosecution of your endeavours to put out the fire, how did you arrange the shifts? There 
were eight men on each shift of six hours with a leader on each shift. 

5 May, 1886. 1007. Can you mention the names of the leaders P Gilbert Kirkwood was the leader of our shift; John 
Gibson, senior, was leader of the shift that relieved us; then there was John Davies and. either John C-eli 
or Joseph Williams. 
1008. Then the shifts were arranged by yourselves P Yes, they were arranged by ourselves; they all 
worked harmoniously together, and with a common object. 
1000. After thinking this matter over, Mr. Dune, can you suggest anything which might have been done 
during this time to avert the disaster? No, I cannot. 
1010. Did the owners provide you with all necessary material to aid you in your attempt to extinguish the 
fire P Oh, yes, we got everything -Ave wanted. Mr. Wilton was advised that steam was the best agent to 
put out the fire, and they put steam on, but it did not answer, that is, it had not the effect that was 
expected, and Ave afterwards tried water. 
1011. Do you attach blame to any one? No; Ave had everything we required to make the attempt. 
1012. Well, you got down in the course of time, and recovered the ground you had lost? Yes; we 
reached the seat of the fire; we reached Tyndall's heading. 
1013. Could you see whether the stopping was tight P No; the previous shift reached it first, and the 
fire had reached up to it. 
1014. Did you, on going down to the boiler, notice anything opposite to it in the main tunnel P Yes 
there was a heavy fall there which obstructed the tunnel; it reached close up to the roof, 
1015. Did you observe any smoke and all,  going over the fall? No. 
1010. Do you know when this fall took place P No. 
1017. Was it there when you arrived at the seat of the fire P Yes ; and Ave heard several small falls in 
the main heading from time to time. 
1018. When you got down to the seat of the fire, what course did the return air take P It went round 
by Tyndall's heading, where Ave took down the stopping; a portion returned by the boiler. The same (lay 
that the stopping 	 m at Tyndall's heading was taken down I knocked out some brickwork on the boiler side, 
and found the smoke coming out thick. We saw the fire right over the boiler in the return—in the flues; 
it was burning briskly ; there was fire to the left-hand side; it was all over the top of the boiler, and 
covered the whole space of the bord that had been cut out for the boiler. The fire seemed to be burning 
on the top-coal. 
1019. Did you direct your attention to the left-hand side of the tunnel, a few yards up from the boiler P 
Yes ; Ave were filling from the large fall in the tunnel and from the side of the boiler at the same time, 
and half a chain er, an back from the boiler, 	further u 	n p the tunnel, a fire was observed through a little hole 
in the stopping. 
1020. Do you think that this fire you mention had eaten its way UI) through the pillar that had been split 
opposite the boiler? When they cleared the stuff from the left-hand side of the boiler they opened a 
stopping and could see the fire distinctly burning up towards the mouth of the tunnel. 
1021. What progress had you made when this fall took place on the day of the accident? We had got 
down rather more than a chain, back from the boiler. A fire was found here by another shift the night 
before the accident ; the whole of the boyd was one mass of flame; Ave opened it up and cut through 
the top-coal which was burning, but Ave could not play the hose on it as it was eating towards us ; they 
therefore cut through the tops in order to get the hose to operate, and they could then see fire for about 
a chain in any direction they liked to look. We extinguished the fire where we discovered it last, and then 
put it out in the one next to that, and Ave then played the hose over the boiler ; but Ave had to clear away 
the stuff in the straight-down. An air-tight canvas stopping was placed in the cut through where the last-
mentioned fire was smothered, and also in the cut-through a half a chain below that, where they had dis-
covered the fire a few days previously ; attention was then directed to the removal of the fall in the centre 
hean.0 with the object of taking the ventilation current away from the fire. The next proceeding was 
just P, faw nutes before the accident; time men were about three-quarters of it chain from the boiler, 
preparing to eree the canvas in front of it to take the air off that side altogether ; one man was at the 
hose, others were at the brattice, and there were four of us at the pump; Kirkwood, the leader, being 
seated alongside of the immin ; he had just risen with the object of going out of the mine when 
there was a loud report, and all our lights were blown out ; the report sounded like that Avhich would be 
produced by a heavy fall, and it seemed to me at the time to come from about the middle of the tunnel, 
behind us ; but we found out afterwards that it was not so, for in that case of course we could not have 
got out. 
1022. Well, after that, what happened P Kirkwood sang out, Come oim, boys, there is something wrong," 
and we all ran, and had got about 25 yards when there was a second report—a very loud one, like a cannon 
going off. 
1023. Did you think it was in the same direction as the other P Yes, it seemed to come from the mine 
direction. When I first heard it there was a strong pressure of air coming in, and when the second report 
sounded it seemed to be very close; a powerful rush of wind followed, and I expected to be blown off 
my legs; that lasted about two or three seconds ; I then ran again, and when I had got about 25 yards 
further the air became very thick and I could scarcely breathe, and was then I sang out for them to 
run. We kept on, and some one sami out to get into the skips; sevciil of them got in, and seine one 
pulled the rapper-wire, which I heard fly back. I afterwards got out cf the skips and pulled the raler, 
but it did not work, and then one of the Mantles sang out, "Come on, boys, let us try and save ourselves." 
We then proceeded to go out—Williani Mantle was first, Tom Mantle second, I was third, and Kirkwood 
was fourth. I knew the positions of the men from their voices ; I did not hear the voices of any of the 
other men. Kirkwood ran against me, and I heard his matches rattlind; and William Mantle said. " Do 
not strike a light whatever you do." 
1024. Did you think there was fire-damp in the mine P No, I never thought it was fire-damp. 
1025. Did you think anything at the time as to the cause of this phenomenon P Yes ; I thought it 
was a heavy fall right across the main tunnel, and that it would block us in. Mantle seemed to be of the 
same in 	by n-hat he said afterwards. We had got about 20 or 30 yards from the skips when I fell 
over Tom Mantle. I said, "Are you all right?" and he replied, " Yes," and I never heard him speak after 
that. We then saw fire, and I said to Bill Mantle, "We are done for," and he replied, "Yes, I am afraid 
we are cooked." I thought it was the tail-end of the fall. When I came up to the fire I made a rush 

to 
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to get through it, as there appeared to be a streak of better air beyond. After that, we got down low, Mr. A. Dune. 
and crawled along ; I believe it was assuming that position that saved our lives I think the other men 
must have kept on their legs too long. 	 5 May, 1886. 
1026. Atr. Davies.] Then you found relief when you got down near the ground ? Yes I found I could 
breathe better. When I had gone a little further I felt someone coming up behind mc, and it turned out 
to be Jack Duncan. I asked him if any of the other men were following, and lie replied that he did not 
know. I crawled out then, and met Campbell and George Rowe coming in. 
1027. President.] Then did WTilliam  Mantle get out before you? Yes. 
1028. Do you say that you met Campbell and George Rowe P Yes ; at least I thought those were the 
men I met, but 1 have been informed that I was wrong. 
1029. You say that in going Ul) the tunnel Mantle called your attention to some fire. When you got up 
to that fire, what did you find it to be-was it coal burning P Yes, red coal, like what would be taken 
out of a fire-place. The fire was about 3 or 4 inches in depth. 
1030. Can you say what position in the tunnel it was in? I reckon it was about 250 yards from the 
boiler. 
1031. About 10 chains P Well, I am only guessing. it seemed to be at the particular spot where the 
tops had been cut up to the rock. 
1032. You have told us that your first impression was that it was a heavy fall in the centre of the 
tunnel? Yes. 
1033. And you discovered that that was not the case P Yes. 
1034. Have you since formed any opinion as to the cause of this catastrophe P Yes; I believe it was an 
explosion. 
1035. Of what? Of gas of some kind; I cannot say what. 
1036. Could it not have taken place from a fall P Yes I have seen heavier falls than that. 
1037. Would it be reasonable for any other person to have an opinion that the accident was the result of 
a fall? Oh, yes. 
1038. Can you give us your reasons for thinking it was not a fall'? I could not see where a fall could 
take place back there and bring the fresh air in from the mouth of the tunnel. 
1039. But it appears that a force was applied to the ventilating current at some point between you and the 
daylight. Would not that accelerate the ventilating current P ii suppose it would. 
1040. Did you observe that the stoppings were blown down as you caine up the tunnel P No I did not. 
1041. But you have heard since that they were blown out? Yes I know since that several stoppings 
were blown out on the left-hand side. 
1042. With the knowledge before you that these stoppings were blown out, do you not see a reason for 
the return of the air after the first rush P The only reason I can see is that when the fresh air struck up 
against this fall it rebounded on to us. It seemed to me that the air went about half a chain out of the 
tunnel before it started to come back again, and took its regular course. 
1043. Then the fresh air was going in the tunnel in its regular way, but a considerable portion went into 
these stoppings P Yes. 
1044. The effect of that would lie to draw the smoke and damp up to the point where the air was gaining 
access? One portion was driving the noxious gas down on to us. 
1045. If the stoppings had not been knocked out, would the effect have been different-that is, could the 
men have got out',,  Yes, I am quite sure of that, if the stoppings had not been blown out., and made it 
passage for the foul air, we should have had no trouble. 
1046. In other words, Mr. Dune, the carbonic acid gas was pouring out of the stoppings, and the air 
current was driving it in front P Yes. 
1047. And you were meeting this cui'roiit which was charged with and poisoned by the noxious gas? Yes. 
1048. In your opinion, could this accident have been foreseen? No I do not think it could have been 
foreseen. 
1049. Did you ever anticipate any danger P Not in the slightest. The only danger I anticipated was 
from the roof, which we could not see for the smoke. 
1050. During the progress of the operations for extinguishing the fire, did the owners show reasonable 
concern for your safety? Yes, they did so; they could not have been more anxious and careful. 
1051. And can you say the same for the inspectors 	Yes; I have heard Mr. Mackenzie warning us 
several times, but Mr. Rowan was there more often than Mr. Mackenzie, and lie (Rowan) was continually 
warning its. Mr. Wilton was frequently in the mine. 
1052. Did the inspectors seem to understand the serious import of their duty? Well, that I cannot say 
-I do not know what their qualifications are. 
1053. Still you say that they frequently warned the men against running into danger, and that of course 
would be a part of their duty P Yes. 
1054, Do you think that this accident, from whatever cause it arose, could have been foreseen and 
prevented P No, I do not think it could. 
1055. And you do not think the inspectors could possibly have anticipated the catastrophe P No; I do 
not see how they could. 
1056. Do you think everything was done that should have been done for the safety of the men? Yes 
both the inspectors and the proprietors were particularly careful. 
1057. Have you any complaint to make against any one in reference to this catastrophe? None whatever. 
1058. .2Ir. .Neilson.] In creeping out of the mine on the occasion of the accident,was the air hot above 
and cool below ? It seemed to be about the same, very hot above and below I thought my inside was 
burned out. 
1059. Mr. Gurley.] When it was resolved to grapple with the fire, was the plan of the mine produced 
previously-I mean amongst the men and the inspectors and the proprietors-with a view of discussing 
the system of ventilation, the nature of the returns, &c. P No. 1 never saw the plan until Mr. Fletcher 
showed it to me when lie came up after the accident. 
1060. .2LLr. Us/icr.] You have made a statement with respect to seeing fire at different places in the tunnel-
how long do you think it would take for the fire to get such a hold as that P I can scarcely answ'er that 
question. We know it would take some weeks at all events, and we know for a fact that it had been 
burning six weeks. When we opened these two stoppings half a chain and a chain back from the boiler 

g the fire was travellin at a great rate it was like looking into a coke oven or a blast furnace. The first 
fire, when we got down to it, would not more than cover this table. 

576-H 	 1061. 
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Mr. A. Dune. 1001. Mr. Jones.] When coming out of the tunnel, did you notice how far these red coals extended up 
the tunnel-I mean the live coals that you noticed on your passage out and which you say were about 

5 May, 1886. 3 or 4 inches in depth? They extended for about 10 yards, I think; they were scattered all along 
the road. 
1062. .Mr. Swinburn.] Did you ever travel from the left-hand furnace in the return towards the boiler? 
No. 
1063. Do you know anything about the return at all? No. 
1064. Are you aware whether any pillars were taken out on the left-hand side of the tunnel? Not that 
I am aware of. 
1065. Can you give any reason why such a big fall should take place if there were no pillars taken out? 
No, I cannot; when I said it was a fall in the early part of my evidence I explained that it was only the 
impression made upon me at the instant; I have since thought it was an explosion. 
1066. Where did you think the explosive gas came from? I thought it was gas generated by the burning 
fire. 
1067. President.] Supposing you were assured that a large area of pillars had been removed in the 
position where you heard these falls, would it cause you to alter your opinion? Yes, it would, but not 
otherwise. 

Wm. Tait sworn and examined 
Mr. W. Tait. 1068. President.] What is your occupation? I am a wheeler; I have been twelve years in the Lithgow 

Valley Colliery; I have been four years a wheeler; before that I was a miner. 
5 May, 1886 1069. Have you ever worked in any other collieries? Yes; I have worked as a miner in the Eskbajik, 

Vale of Clwydd, and Bowenfels. 
1070. Generally, is the mode of working coal in Lithgow Valley Colliery different from that adopted in 
the adjoining collieries P No; I do not think there is any difference. 
1071. Is there any difference in the stoppings used in this mine from those used in the adjoining collieries? 
No, I think not; I have helped to put the stoppings in; they were carefully put in, and could not have 
been better constructed. 
1072. Did you find the ventilation good in the workings where you were engaged? Yes. I had no fault 
to find, and I never heard any of the other men making any complaint. 
1073. Have you seen this underground boiler? Yes. 
1074. Have you examined it? I have been in the back part of it; I did not see anything particular; I 
did not notice whether the tops were down; I was in the right-hand return, but not the left. 
1075. Did you ever hear of a fire having taken place at that boiler before? Yes; I have heard of a fire 
being there, and that it was put out. 
1076. Did you ever hear whether the bottoms were taken out? No. 
1077. When were you apprised of the first accident? On Monday morning, at twenty minutes to 6 o'clock; 
I was in the stable when one of the men came to me and said I had better not take the horses in as the 
place was full of smoke. I said to my mate, "We had better go in and see what is the matter." On going 
to the pit I went in to a distance of about 300 yards from the mouth of the tunnel, passed the second 
cross-cut, the air there being quite clear. We found some difficulty when we attempted to get down 
beyond the smoke; we heard that the late manager and Younger and Rowe were in the direction of the 
second cross-cut; meantime Martin come out and said John Doig was found. At the request of Mr. 
Turnbull, I then agreed to lead a party to go round the old workings, to seek for the other men; I took 
six men, and sent a party of seven with a man named Sheedy; I went up No. 2 cross-cut to the last 
stopping, and within 20 yards of the face; I went straight down the return, and when down 200 yards 
the other party came up, and as our lights met they shone upon the bodies of Younger and Rowe. 
1078. Was Hall with your party? No; I do not believe he was there at all. 
1079. Were you employed in any other way in the mine? I was engaged in trying to put the fire out. 
1080. Individually, did you consider there was any risk attached to that work-was there not danger to 
be apprehended P I could see no risk. 
1081. But whatever risk there was, or might be, did you agree to accept that risk? As an individual I 
did not suppose there was any risk; if it did exist it was unknown to me. I was not prepared to take 
any risk, because I could not see any danger. 
1082. Do you mean you could see no danger whatever? Well, I could see a little danger, but I would 
not go into it. For instance, I saw a certain amount of danger in the rock overhead, but I tapped it with 
my bar, and if necessary it was taken down. 
1083. Did you see the fall that extended up the main heading? Yes, the heaviest portion of it was right 
opposite the boiler. 
1084. Would you think that fall blocked up the tunnel? In my opinion it did; the smoke was not going 
over the top of it. 
1085. Did you direct your efforts towards the boiler? Yes. 
1086. What did you see there P Coal and rock had fallen there. 
1087. Was there any fire? Yes; we put it out, and sent the stuff away in the skips. 
1088. Did you observe any fire in the direction of the old workings? Yes, both straight down and to my 
left. 
1089. How far to the left did it extend? About a chain I consider. 
1090. After that, and going back into the tunnel, did you see or hear of any fire to the left of the tunnel? 
Yes, we went back about a chain and opened a stopping, and there was fire in there as far as the eye could 
reach. I did not hear of any stoppings being opened further back. 
1091. Had you any reason to complain of the amount of ventilation supplied to you while you were at 
work? No; it was a little warm, of course, down at the fire, but that we anticipated naturally; the air 
was perfectly good outside the brattice. 
1092. Did you think any danger was likely to arise? No. 
1093. Did you hear any falls occurring at this time to the left of the tunnel? I heard falls both straight 
down and to the left of the tunnel. 
1094. Can you localize the position of this fire you saw burning; was it on the top of this large fall, or 
did it extend further? It was extending upward; it was straight over the fall; I consider the top-coal 
was burning and falling down. 	 1095. 
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1095. Have you known a fall similar to that in your experience? I have known a great fall of tops in Mr. W. Tait. 
the Eskbank pit. 
10.96. Did you see the bodies of the men who were taken out of the pit after the accident, and if so, what 5 May 1886. 
appearance did they present? I saw no signs of burning except upon Allison. 
1097. Might not the marks upon Allison have been caused b other means-might they not have been 
bruises P Well, I may have been mistaken. Yes, they might have been bruises. I did not notice that 
the hair was scorched. I knew Hyde his body showed no signs of bruises ; the face looked just the same 
as if he had been asleep. I believe all of them had sonic marks on them except ilyde; Toni Mantle had 
one on his right temple. 
1098. Well, did you go into the tunnel to recover the bodies? Yes, 1 saw Henry Grant at the mouth of 
the tunnel; lie said he thought it was an explosion. 
1099. Did lie say what happened to bun P No, lie did not; we stayed there till the skips started, and five 
skips came out. 
1100. What did you do then? We went into the tunnel; the air was very tlnck ; we got down to within 
50 yards of where the bodies were found. The first moan we came to was Ivilliaill Mantle, a living man 
lie was struggling along the road, and we fetched him out. I then ran in and put a stopping 111)011  the left- 
hand side, thinking that would be the best means of driving the air down to the men, and I helped to put 
up four more while 1. was putting up the stopp igs the other men passed inc; I heard someone say, 

Here they are " The air by this time had very much improved. 
1101. Mr. Ourley.] Who was the manager of your shift P .John Gibson was supposed to be leader, but be 
was bad and could not attend, and 1 believe Rodham was acting in his place. 
1102. Previous to your commencing operations to grapple with the fire, did you know anything of the plan 
of the mine P No; I never saw it. 
1103. Was the mode of operations ever discussed between the management or the inspectors and your- 
selves? Not that I am aware of. 
1104. President.] Do you know the geography of the mine? I believe I know the mine pretty well. 
1105. You are not a surveyor? No. 
1106. But you have an accurate knowledge of the geography of the mine? Yes, from one end of it to 
the other, where I have worked-on the right-hand side. 
1107. Mr. Jnes.] You have worked in various bords? Yes. 
1108. Do you know of any pillars having been taken out in any direction? T have no knowledge of any 
removal of pillars I believe they were split down hehmd the boi]er. 
1109. Have they been taken out or split in any other part of the mine? I do not believe any were taken 
out to the right-hand side. 
1110. President.] Could they have been taken out without your knowing it? Oh, yes, that is quite possible. 
ifli. Or before you entered the employment?  Well I would not say that, because the tunnel was not 
50 yards in when I commenced. 
1112. Do you know of any pillaring having taken place towards Eskbank? No; I believe, though, there 
were some pillars split to the left of the boiler. 
1113. Would that weaken the pillars? Yes. 
1114. All'. cm'leq.] Do you know whether both furnaces were kept going during these operations P Yes, 
I believe they were both kept going; in fact I may say that I know they were. 

John Dixon sworn and examined :- 
1115. President.] You are an Inspector of Collieries, Mr. Dixon? Yes; I am Inspector of Collieries Mr. J. Dixon. 
for the Northern District. 
1116. Would you state, Mr. Dixon, uhat has been you experience in coal-mining? I have been engaged 5 May, 1886@  
in mining for about thirty-three years. I have had experience of coal-mining in the north of England, in 
a place called Haswell; that was a fiery mine. 
1117. Then in this Colony, how long have you been connected with coal-mining? Well, I daresay I have 
been engaged in and about the mines for about twenty years. 
1118. When were you appointed inspector? In 1882; about four years next June. 
1119. In the discharge of your duties as inspector, did you over visit the collieries in this district? Yes. 
1120. how often? Only twice before Mr. .Roivan was appointed. 
1121. You inspected officially the different collieries in this district-will you name them? The Bowen- 
fels, Lithgow Valley, Yale of Clwydd, and Eskbaiik. 
1122. Generally speaking, was the Lith ow Valley Colliery constructed on much the same style as the 
adjoining collieries as regards the mode of ventilation and character of the stoppings P Yes. 
1123. And also as regards the size of the pillars and width of the bords P Yes. 
1124. Then it was in no way singular in comparison with the other collieries of the district? No 1. did 
not remark anything singular about it. 
1125. In the matter of ventilation, for example . I had no fault to find in that respect. 
1126. How long is it since you last visited the mimic ? it must be something over three years. 
1127. Are the stoppings that direct the air current similar in construction to those employed over the 
whole district P So far as I can remember, yes ; 1 think 1 only went in twice. 
1128. Can you toll us the general thickness of the coal-scam ? The coal-seam worked in Lithgomv Valley 
is about (I feet ; of course there is the top-coal; that would be about 3 or 1 feet; on the floor there is It 

foot of wild coal, and then you come on the hard rock. 
1120. Above the top-coal, what is there? Conglomerate. 
1130. No bands of shale and sandstone ? No. 
1131.. Wlmile you were inspecting the district, in what part of the Lithgow Valley Colliery were the 
workings centred P Principally what I would call straight down ; there was only about one split there 
straight down in the main tunnel. 
1132. Were any workings started. towards Lskknnk at that time P I do not know; the working was 
straight, so far as I can renmember; but only haxing been twice there I could not be expected to get a 
very good grip of things. 
1133. Do you consider the Lithgow Valley coal-seam to be of an inflammable nature? No; 1 never heard 
of it, or came across it. 

1134. 
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Mr. J. Dixon. 1134. Is it a gassy coal, in the sense of coal-seams, such as you worked in when you were a boy? 
'-" No. 

5 May, 1886. 1135. I mean does it give off light carburetted hydrogen or fire-damp? I should say not. 
1136. Have you ever heard that carburetted hydrogen gas had been seen or heard of in connection with 
this mine? I have never heard a breath of it. 
1137. Would you be surprised to learn that it has been seen? I should be very much surprised, accord- 
ing to the nature of the coal. 
1138. When you visited the Lithgow Valley Colliery, were your visits of such a nature that you would be 
likely to have seen fire-damp if it existed? Yes; I have been in every working place and part of the 
return, and I think I should have found fire-damp if it had been present. 
1139. Have you ever received any complaint about the condition or ventilation of this mine? Not a 
breath of complaint from any source. 
1140. Had you ever any cause to complain about its condition or ventilation? Never. I found it a very 
nice little mine, and one easily worked, that is without any special difficulties. 
1141. Do you consider it was a dangerous mine to work in? Not at all. 
1142. Did you know Mr. Doig, the late manager? Yes; I knew Doig for many years. 
1143. In your opinion, was he a capable manager for the mine? Well, he was a man who had had a 
good deal of experience in this district. 
1144. Was he a careful manager ? I always found him a careful man. 
1145. Was he a man who considered the safety of the men? I believe he had the welfare of the work- 
men at heart. 
1146. So far as you know, did he enjoy the confidence of the owners? I think so. 
1147. Had you confidence in him? To manage a mine like that I had. 
1148. Do you of your own knowledge know whether his requests for material for carrying on the mine 
were readily responded to? So far as I know, he never made any complaint about that. 
1149. Was he sole manager of the colliery? That I cannot say; so far as I know, he alone was 
manager. 
1150. Then, so far as you know, all power was vested in him? Yes. 
1151. While visiting the colliery, did you ever have occasion to inspect the plans of the mine? No; I 
never saw the plans up here; I never had occasion to ask for them here; I have seen a tracing. 
1152. When did you see the tracing? I was in Newcastle then, and I think I saw it in the Colliery 
Record Office with Mr. Mackenzie, 
1153. Did you ever direct your attention to the scale of the plan? No, I did not; I know it is not on 
the usual scale. 
1154. Is that an objection, Mr. Dixon? I have no objection to it so far as I am personally concerned. 
1155. Are you aware whether the plans were regularly kept up ? I cannot say that. 
1156. Would that devolve more upon the Examiner of Coal-fields, Mr. Mackenzie? No; as a rule I take 
the plans round periodically to be kept up, but I cannot say as to this one. 
1157. Had you any reason to suppose that these plans were inaccurate? No; such a thing never entered 
my head. 
1158. Did you ever have reason to suppose that the plans were not kept up to date? No. 
1159. Did you receive complaints as to the ventilation? No; I never heard a complaint, and I was among 
the men a great deal. 
1160. And, in point of fact, you never did complain to the manager as to the ventilation ? No, I never 
did. 
1161. Did you find a readiness on the part of the manager to carry out your wishes? I did. 
1162. Then as to these stoppings in this colliery, what are they composed of? Of small coal-slack 
stoppings. 
1163. Are they the same in other collieries in the district? Yes, they are all about the same. 
1164. I suppose there is always a large quantity of small coal left in the process of working ? Yes, a 
large quantity in some cases. 
1165. And they utilize a portion of the small coal for making stoppings? Yes. 
1166. Do you consider these small coal stoppings effectual for ventilating this class of mine? I do not 
consider small coal stoppings effectual anywhere. 
1167. Is it possible to ventilate such a colliery with such stoppings? Yes, it is possible, as proved by 
experience. 
1168. What is your reason then for saying that you do not consider them a proper class of stoppings P 
My reason is, that the further the workings extend the greater would be the pressure on the stoppings, 
and there is a danger of a waste of air. 1 consider that all main-road stoppings should be of brick or 
stone and plaster. 
1169. Have you the power as inspector to dictate to the manager as to the material to be used in the 
construction of these stoppings? No; I do not think there is a word in the Act as to stoppings. 
1170. Do you know any country where inspectors are invested with such powers? I think they are in 
England. 
1171. Are you sure? I think so; I have the Act at home. 
1172. Had the underground boiler been fixed when you visited the ILithgow Valley Colliery? I cannot 
remember that boiler; I have puzzled my head over it a good deal. If I did see it, it has gone from my 
memory. I do not know where it was fixed. 
1173. if you cannot remember having seen the boiler, of course you will not recollect whether you ever 
inspected it. Did you ever see the flues leading from that boiler? I have not. 
1174. Do you consider it safe for smoke and hot gas to impinge against the coal for such a long di stance? 
Not by any means. 
1175. Have you any experience of underground boilers? Yes; there is one at work in Newcastle. But 
it is built up with brick, and there is a well of water to drop the ashes into. The soot is carried upon 
flat sheets of iron, and is swept up every day. The flue is carried on sheets of iron, and the smoke and 
waste go circulating with the return. Nothing can get near the roof or sides. 
1176. Do you consider it safe? Yes, or I should have something to say about it. 
1177. Is the return air-way in the mine you mention regularly travelled? Yes; there is plenty of room; 
it is the largest in the G-lebe, and is very easily travelled. 
1178. The brickwork goes from the surface-how far P 8 feet on each side. From the flues there is 
nothing but the bare coal. 	 1179. 
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1179. When you stated that you considered it unsafe for smoke and hot gases to impinge against Mr. J. Dixon. 
the coal pillars, it must be unsafe in the case you have cited 	.1 understood you to say that the smoke 
came direct out of the chimney out on time coat. 	 5 May, 1886. 
1180. Do you know anything about this underground boiler in Lithgow Valley Colliery? Nothing but 
what 1 have heard. 
1181. 1-lave you formed any opinion as to whether it is a dangerous boiler. Is it within your knowledge 
that fires have occurred at this boiler? No, not except the recent one. 
1182. if the return air-ways conducting the smoke of time boiler were not regularly cleaned, and the soot 
caught fire, would that be a source of danger? Undoubtedly it would. 
1183. When did you arrive at Lithgow Valley after the accident? On Nonday, the 15th February, after 
the bodies were got out. 
1184. Did you assume any responsibility or take any charge? No ; Mr. Turnbull had charge when I 
got up. 
1185. Can you describe the position of affairs when you arrived? The operations underway were 
that Mr. Turnbull was trying to force his way down to the seat of the fire as soon as possible, by 
means of bratticiug ; but when he heard that we were on our way he suspended operations till we should 
arrive to applaud or condemn the action which he had taken. Mv own opinion was that the fire was not 
far away, as I believed it had started on the Saturday night, and, if such was the ease, if we could only 
get to the seat of the fire it might be got under. On arrival, however, 1 learned that somebody had gone 
into the pit and broached a stopping, and a cry was raised that this man (Davis) was down the tunnel 
and was lost. Mr. Turnbull then sent in a search party ; we followed it for some distance, and while 
we were waiting for breath these men came out with one lamp between them to the east of the old 
workings. Davis had done this unknown to Mr. Turnbull or anybody else; the consequence of his 
action was that the smoke backed up the tunnel ; and all the time I was there we were not able to get 
as far as Turnbull had put in his brattice. My counsel then was to shut the place off, and it was shut off 
so far as the tunnel was concerned ; after this I left, and I was not there again until after the second 
accident. 
1186. Did you see the deceased manager? I did; I was there when he died. 
1187. And also Younger and Rowe? I saw Rowe. 
1188. What appearance did the bodies present ? Well, it is past all power of description to describe 
what Doig was like. He seemed to be in awful agony, his body being drawn up, and yet he was 
insensible, as if he was strangling all the time ; he was also discoloured in the skin. 
1189. What was the appearance of Rowe's body? Quite peaceful, as if death had taken place quickly. 
1190. Were there any marks of burning? No. 
1191. Do you think it likely that these men died from the effects of an explosion ? No. 
1192. How do you account for their being in the positions found P I believe, in the first place, that the 
fire occurred at the boiler on Saturday evening after it had been damped down, and at the time Hall 
and his father came out the fire had caught hold, iwLsinucli as one of them turned sick, and had to stoop 
down in order to get out; in the meantime, from Saturday night till Sunday evening, when Doig and 
these men went in the smoke had backed away, and when they went in, finding the place full of smoke, 
Doig probably said-" There is no chance to get along here, let us try some other plan"; and I suspect 
he went into the second cross-cut ; he would naturally conclude that he might by this means get down 
to Tyndalls heading and reach the stopping there. Then, having got a good distance down, and the lamp 
going out from want of oil, they, in my opinion, must have lost themselves ; meantime, I am under the 
impression that a stopping must have been broached somewhere down there, and the foul air came 
through and enveloped them; then possibly Doig, being the younger of the three, struggled away some 
distance, making for fresh air to the second cross-cut, and that meanwhile the stuff was thickening so fast 
that time older men succumbed. Doig, as we know-, lived for several hours afterwards. 
1193. Then, Mr. Dixon, how do you account for so much smoke backing up time main tunnel P We 
have had evidence that when the operations for putting out the fire had enabled the men to get down to 
the seat of the fire they saw, and partially removed, a very large fall in the middle of the main tunnel. 
1194. Do you think time occurrence of thatfall had anything to do with the backing-up of this smoke? Yes, 
and I believe there was a fail behind the boiler interfering with the left-hand return. 
1195. In your opinion, was it an error of judgment on the part of Doig to go off the main in-take and 
(lou-n the return, where, as the pit was full of smoke and choke-damp, you would naturally expect the 
poisonous gases to be swept round? Yes; the poor fellow is dead, but if you want my opinion, I should 
say it was an error of judgment; he should have kept out of the smoke at all events. 
1196. In other words, as the greater proportion of smoke and damp would be there, you mean to say 
that his travelling in that direction pointed to an error of judgment P Yes, that is my opinion. 
1197. Mr. Davies.] You of course formed that opinion in calm monients-Doig was doubtless full of 
excitement at the time? Of course-I can easily put myself in his place. 
1198. President] When did you arrive at the scene of the second accident, Mr. Dixon P The day 
after it occurred ; the accident occurred on the 19th April, a Monday, and I arrived on the Tuesday. 
1199. Did you inspect the bodies of the unfortunate men who were time vietims of that accident? I saw 
three of them. 
1200. What appearance did they present? Just as if they were in a nice sound sleep. 
1201. You do not think they died in agony? No; I do not believe they did. 
1202. Have you ever seen people succumb to the effects of carbonic acid gas? I have seen people 
insensible from it, but not die. 
1203. 1-lave you seen the bodies of men killed in an explosion of fire-damp? I have seen them very near 
dead from such cause ; the appearances are very terrible to look upon. 
1204. Did time bodies of three men present any such marks ? No, none of them. - 
1205. What appearance would you expect those killed by an explosion to present ? 1 should say they 
would be charred-bimrnt to a cinder almost. 
1200. Mr. Davies.] What about time effects of after-damnp ? The effects of after-damnp would be the same 
as choke-damp. 
1207. Fie.suilent.] Did these bodies present any (if the appearances of being seorcimed by fire-damp P 
No. 
1208. iou have heard a descriptiomm of time occurrence that preceded time last unfortunate calamity; to 

u-hat 



62 	 ROYAL COMMISSION ON COLLIERIES-MINUTES OF EVIDENCE. 

Mr. J. Dixon. what can you ascribe that blast of air and gas? I have thought the matter out for many an hour since 
,-.-L-- and I have come to the conclusion that it was caused by an immense fall to the north of the main tunnel. 

5 May, 1886. 1209. At what particular point would you say P Somewhere in the vicinity of the fire. 
1210. Have you ever heard of a similar occurrence P I have been in falls where I was nearly carried off 
my feet; I may mention one that occurred just before the Lambton miners' strike, in the Newcastle 
district, when a big current of air came right away from the back. 
1211. After a fall, is the current of air readily restored P Yes, almost immediately. 
1212. That is one way of diagnosing a fall? Yes, I should say so from my experience. 
1213. In your experience, and looking at the accident in a perfectly dispassionate manner (I am aware 
that you were not present to direct operations at the moment of the accident), do you think that such a 
disaster could have been avoided under any circumstances P No, I do not; every man carried his life in 
his hand. 
1214. Could it have been foreseen? No; 1 should say not, under the circumstances. 
1215. Had you confidence in the skill of those who were superintending the operations? Yes. 
1216. Mr. Thomas.] Do you think there is danger of another fall taking place of two or three times the 
magnitude of the last P Undoubtedly there is danger of another fall. 
1217. Do you think the barriers that have been erected are sufficient to resist a heavy fall? I would not 
undertake to decide; I do not know the thickness of the barriers; I think 27-inch barriers backed up 
with small coal behind ought to be sufficient to resist almost anything. 
1218. Mr. &vi'nbztrnj Are there any pillars between the boundary of Eskbank and Lithgow Valley 
mines taken out do you know? I believe an acre of pillars has been taken out there. 
1219. Supposing the Lithgow Valley mine were flooded in order to extinguish the underground fire? I 
should think the water would tail into Eskbank. 
1220. I believe the lower workings of Lithgow Valley are driven to the northern boundary? The lower 
level goes right in towards Eskbank boundary, and I should think the Eskbank people are also forward 
to the boundary. 
1221. Would you not think there would be a liability for water to pass through say a narrow pillar under 
pressure P If the pillar were any way thin no doubt it would work through. That is the cause of all the 
trouble. 
1222. Mr. ItTeilsonj Have you had any similar experience in this Colony, Mr. Dixon-as to the fire, I 
mean? Yes, twice. In Brown's A. A. Company tunnel and Greta. 	 - 
1223. Was there not a great similarity between the fire at Mmmi and this? I think so. It was owing 
to an accumulation of soot. 
1221. Mr. Davies.] Two opinions have been expressed as to the cause of this accident, whether it was 
occasioned by an explosion or a fall. You believe it was a fall. Now, Mr. Dixon, questions have been 
asked as to the state of the bodies after the accident. Is there any difference in the appearance of a body 
after death from black-damp and that of a body after death caused by after-damp? I do not think it; 
there is a similarity. 
1225. Then might these men have died from the effects of fire-damp? Certainly not from fire-damp. 
1226. I do not mean the immediate cause of death. I am speaking about after-damp? That is a different 
matter. 
1227. President.] But after an explosion, Mr. Dixon, I believe a mine presents evidences of that 
explosion P Yes, certainly. 
1228. The atmosphere also gives certain indications. What is the state of an atmosphere after an explo-
sion-is it high or low? It is very high. 
1229. What course does the explosion take when there is a reservoir of carbonic acid gas? The blow 
is against the wind. A vacuum is formed, and then there is an inrush. 
1230. I believe you inspected the tunnel as far as anyone could penetrate after the accident. Did you 
see any evidences of an explosion of fire-damp P No; I saw no evidences of fire having burned or 
scorched anything. 
1231. Mr. Uurley.] In the event of these stoppings having been built of brick or stone, would that have 
had a tendency to prevent what occurred? No, I think not; if it had not found vent there the blow 
would have found vent up the main tunnel. 
1232. President.] What distance is it from the right-hand furnace to the mouth of the mine? 
Between 30 and 40 yards, I should say. 
1233. And froni the mouth of the tunnel to the drum, what is the distance P Perhaps 50 yards. 
1234. We have been told that a man was blown from the seat he was occupying at the furnace right out 
of the tuiincl and out into the air as far as the drum, and yet he was amongst the first to go into the 
tunnel again. Do you think that possible P I do not credit it. 
1235. We also have to consider this, that a light structure, such as the gate at the mouth of the tunnel, 
remained quite uninjured P Such a foroe of wind would have blown it away, especially as it presented 
such a broad face to the blast. 
1236. Mr. Curley.] But you were blown off your feet in the Larnbton mine by a rush of air? Yes, but 
that is different to being blown a hundred yards. 
1237. Mr. Usher.] Did you pay any attention to the size of the pillars on the occasion of your two visits 
to Lithgow Valley mine? I did pay some attention. 	I found all the bords and headings were alike- 
they were driven about the same width. 
1238. If the pillars are of the extent shown on the plan, how could such an extensive fall have taken 
place? I believe this fire has eaten its way round the pillars and weakened them. I believe it has 
wound its way round and round and weakened them all the way along. 
1239. Mr. iS'winburnj Then you think the fire has been there for some time P I do not ; but I 
think it has done its work since February. 
1240. Were you ever behind the boiler in the return? No; I do not speak from experience. 
1241. Mr. Jones.] Did you ever measure the pillars? No, I do not think I did. 
1242. Mr. Swinburn.] How did the fall bring the carbonic acid back to suffocate those men? If we get 
a fall through the stoppings here, and get an extra pressure on the lower ground, the carbonic acid gas is 
pressed in, and by-and-by it comes back; besides which, it was, I believe, working  back from the fire to 
the left-hand working, and it would meet them as the current returned. 
1243. Then there must have been a large proportion of the mine looked up without ventilation? At the 

times 
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time I examined the furnace, after the fire occurred, I could see the men labouring as if they had as Mr. J. Dixon. 
much as they could do to live. 
1244. Mr. Curleyj You have just said, Mr. Dixon, that you, as inspector, had no power to compel the 5 May, 1886. 
proprietors to use other than slack stoppings 	Yes, I did say so. 
1245. You have read the 25th section of the Act, I suppose? Yes, many a score of times. 
1246. Have you ever ordered that brick stoppings should be erected in any colliery when the order was 
not complied with P I have never used that section for a stopping in the ordinary sense. I have used it 
many a time, but it can only be applied in cases where there is dan(,er. 
1247. The 25th section of the Coal-fields Hegulation Act provides :- 

"If in any respect (which is not provided against by any express provision of this Act or by any special 
any part thereof or any matter tlnng or practice in or connected with danger not rule) any inspector finds any mine or  

any such mine to be dangerous or defective so as in his opinion to threaten or tend to the bodily injury of v,ddfor by 

any psmi such inspector maygive notice in writing thereof to the owner or agent of the mine and shall 
state in such notice the particulars in which he considers such mine or any part thereof or any matter 
thing or practice to be dangerous or defective and require the same to be remedied and unless the same 
be forthwith remedied the inspector shall also report the same to the Minister. If the owner or agent of 
the mine objects to remedy the matter complained of in the notice he may within seven days after the 
receipt of such notice send his objection in writing stating the grounds thereof to the Minister and there- 
upon the matter shall be determined by arbitration in manner provided by this Act in relation to 
the snecial rules and the date of the receipt of such objection shall be deemed to be the date of the 
reference If the owner or agent fail to comply either with the requisition of the notice given by the 
inspector when no objection is sent within the time aforesaid or with the award made on arbitration within 
twenty days after the receipt of such notice or the making of time award (as the case may be) he shall 
be guilty of An offence against this Act and the notice and award shall respectively be deemed to be writ- 
ten notice of such offence Provided that the Court if satisfied that the owner or agent has taken active 
measures for complying with the notice or award but has not with reasonable diligence been able to 
complete the works may adjourn any preceedings taken before them for punishing such offence and if time 
works are completed within a reasonable time no penalty shall be inflicted No persons shall be precluded 
by army agreemuent from doing such acts as may be necessary to comply with the provisions of this section 
or be liable under any contract to any penalty or forfeiture for doing such acts." 
The Witness-That section only applies where there is danger. 
1248. dlIi. Curley.] That may be your opinion, Mr. Dixon, ,it all events we have the statement that you 
have iiever tested the matter? Never in relation to brick stoppings. 
1249. Virtually then you have never tested the power which the clause gives you? Oh, yes, I have, but 
not in relation to stoppings; if I thought they were dangerous 1 would, and then the manager could 
appeal to the Minister. 

John Bewick Turnbull sworn and examined:- 
1250. Presidenf What is your profession, Mr. Turnbu]l P I am a colliery manager, and am at 	Mr. 
present manager of the Vale of Clwydd Colliery. 	 J.B.Turnbull. 
251. Where have you gained your experience? I served my apprenticeship in the North of England. 

1252. Have you had any experience of fiery mines? Yes. 	 5 May, 1886 
1253. You know what fire-dam]) is, and the effect it will produce? I have seen it, and experienced a 
little of it. 
1254. And carbonic acid gas, and its effects P Yes. 
1255. What experience have you had in this district P I have been here about three years. 
1256. Have you inspected all the collieries in this district? No; none whatever except my own. 
1257. Have you any knowledge of the workings of the Lithgow Valley Colliery? None whatever, only 
by seeing the plan. 
1258. Is the working of the coal-seam in your colliery attended with any special danger? No; there are 
portions near to the rise where the roof is bad. 
1259. What about the dip workings P The roof is good, never saw a better. 
1260. Has the seam in the Lithgow Valley mine the same character as the seam in your colliery? I 
think it ha-s a more tender roof-that is, the top-coal. 
1261. How many feet do you work? I am working, in my left-hand district, 5 to 8 feet in the dip 
workings. 
1262. 8o far as you know, is not the seam much the same as that in the Lithgow Valley mine? It seems 
to me to be a different class of coal. 
1263. But it is the same seam P Yes, the same seam continues right through. 
1264. Do you leave any coal on the roof? Yes, about 4 feet 2 inches; that is the tops. 
1265. Do you leave any on the bottom? None whatever. 
1266. What width do you work your bords? Eight yards, and leave 4-yard pilla 
1267. What kind of stoppings do you use? Well, there is a stone band on top of it portion of the coal, 
and we work up to that, but when it comes down we use it for stoppings. 
1268. What thickness do you hnild these stoppings? From about 4 inches up to 10 inches. 
1269. Do you consider these stopings sufficient for the purpose? Yes, they are very good stoppings we 
generally back them up with small coal. 
1270. Are they  liable to consolidate after being put up? I never found any set. They come down an 
inch or two in sonic places, and then we fill them up again, utilizing for this purpose the small coal. 
1271. Do you think the working of the Lithgow Valley coal-seam is attended with danger? If they 
work their coal on time same principle as I work mine, 1 should say there was no danger, certainly. 
1272. 8ay they were leaving chain pillars and 7-yard bords, would you consider that dangerous? 
No, 11 would not. 
1273. Have you ever heard of any danger attending the working of time Lithgow Valley Colliery? None 
whatever. 
1274. Did you ever hear that any of the men had apprehended danger? Not with regard to the pressure 
of the mine. 
1275. You have said that you saw the plan of the Lithgow Valley mine, Mr. Turnbnll-did you see it 
before or after the accident? I saw the plan on the morning of the first accident, at 8 o'clock. 

1276, 
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Mr. 	1276. Do you recollect the date. The reason I ask the question is, that you are the first witness from 
J.B.Turnbull. whom we could ask that question 9 It was on Monday, the 15th February. 

1277. The fire was discovered on Sunday, the 11th,  and you were sent for on the 15th? Yes. 
5 May, 1886. 1278. It is a matter of history how you were sent for, Mr. Turnbull. Then, when you were examining 

the plan did you hear, or did you inquire, as to whether any pillars, or any considerable area of pillars, 
had been worked to the north or left-hand side of the tunnel? No. I, on arrival at the mine, went 
into the left-hand furnace, and attempted to go down the left-hand return, to see if the statement was 
right as to the area of the return. 
1279. Could you proceed any distance for the water? I think I got about 12 or 14 yards. The tops had 
been standing and the bottoms filled up with ashes, there being about 9 or 10 inches on the top of the 
water. 
1280. As a matter of fact, it was impenetrable—you could not proceed? No, I could not get there. I 
think the ashes had been wheeled from the furnace into this water, which naturally made it level until 
it reached the top, and then of course they could not get any further. I threw a stone and found the 
bottom of the water there. 
1281. Do you know whether the body of water extended to the Eskbank boundary? It could not get 
out of the swallow. 
1282. Returning to the inquiries you made when first you were sent for, did you ascertain whether any 
of the rise pillars had been taken out or worked to the left-hand side of the tunnel? I never made any 
inquiry as to the pillars. I do not know whether they had been stripped or removed. I went past the 
furnace, but could not get further after proceeding for 10 or 12 yards. 
1283. Was there any return by the left-hand furnace? Yes, there was. 
1284. The furnace was burning? Yes. 
1285. Did you go into the right-hand furnace? Yes, when first I went into the mine. 
1286. Was there much gas passing? Yes, very strong. 
1287. Did you see the influence of the gas upon the flame? Yes, a beautiful blue flame; I put it down 
to fire-damp. 
1288. Was the fire dull or lively at the time? It was very dull. 
1289. Had fire-damp been passing over it, would the fire have been dull? No; I should think it would 
have been bright. 
1290. Then, do you desire to change your opinion as to the character of the gas? I cannot say, because 
I did not take very much notice as to the character of the gas when I first entered the mine—I was more 
anxious to discover the men who were inside. 
1291. You went into the right-hand furnace to satisfy yourself as to the state of the return? Yes. 
1292. Well, what next did you do? I went past the furnace about 30 yards; when I got to the furnace 
the trap-door was standing wide open. 
1293. Then I can readily understand how it was burning brightly. And when you got down this 30 
yards, did you observe a large accumulation of ashes? Yes; I went through the ashes to get into the 
return. 
1294. What was the state of the return at this time? Well, a man could live in it for an hour or two. 
1295. What did you then do? I then came out and shut the furnace-door, and authorized the men to 
put bags on the top of the furnace-door. I then went out to the next cross-cut, and found that it was 
open; some canvas had been pulled down. There was at this time about 3,000 or 4,000 feet of air coming 
out and going down to the furnace. I authorized that to be put up. No. 2 cross-cut was also down, and 
I was half inclined to close that up when I was told that there was a party of men in there. I then pro-
ceeded further down the tunnel, made all the stoppings good on the way down, till I came to the seat of 
the smoke. When this party of men who had been in No. 2 cross-cut came back they told me that Doig 
and some others were in the right-hand district. I then broke a stopping on the right-hand side and one 
on the left-hand side. I then formed a party of men, and sent them into the cross-cut, and when they had 
been in about an hour they told me that they had got Doig. It was Sheedy who told me, and I instructed 
him to send a party of six or seven men for the other missing men; and I watched to see that the smoke 
did not come back. 
1296. Did you ascertain whether Doig was found? I tried to go myself, but could not get there. 
1297. Why were you prevented? Because of the foul air, so I went and increased the ventilation by 
taking down a right-hand stopping. Where the bodies were got out I went down myself. (The plan 
examined.) 

[The witness's explanation of the operations on the plan were dictated by the President, as follows:—
"The point where Doig, Younger, and Rowe were found, Mr. Turnbull believes to be a spot 
indicated on the plan by marks 0 0 considerably to the south and east of the situations 
referred to by Martin, Hall, and Durie. 

1298. .P'residen.] Well, Mr. Turnbull, Doig and the other men being found, did you think it was an 
error of judgment for these men to go into the return when they knew that the mine was full of smoke 
and gas? Well, I cannot say; I can only tell you that I would not have done it myself. 
1299. To put it in another way: Do you, with the knowledge before you of the pressure in the main in-take 
of smoke and gas, consider it a safe proceeding to go into the return as these unfortunate men did? No, 
certainly not. 
1300. Did any of the men report to you that the return was comparatively free from gas? Never. 
1301. Did any of the men report to you that previous to your arrival they had reached or approached 
Tyndall's heading? I think Martin said they had been so far along the cross-cut. I then said I would 
go. But after trying and failing in the attempt, I came back and put on more ventilation. The search 
party would never have got there had I not put the ventilation in. 
1302. Well, Mr. Turnbull, statements have been made here that before you arrived on the scene a party 
of men had been down to Tyndall's heading, and returned, and suffered inconsiderably, to put a mild term 
upon it? Yes ; Sheedy was one, I have heard, but I would not be quite sure. 
1303. When the bodies were got out, what did you turn your attention to? I came out and met Mr. 
Mackenzie and Mr. Rowan. I explained to them what I had done, and they approved. I told them 
that I was going down the tunnel at the rate of 40 yards per hour. We went to the Company's office, 
and there met Mr. Wilton and Mr. Gell, and I asked them to go into the mine. When I got into the 
tunnel I found that the smoke had come back 400 yards from the point I had reached when I went 
away. 	 1304. 
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1301. You left the smoke at what point? About 3 chains back from the boiler. it scented that a Mr. J. B. 
luau named Davies had opened the furnace-door, and 1i]ed down the stoppiligs, and the canvas was fulibuhl. 
pulled (lO\Vil in the list and second cross-cut. 	Ihe iii€n told me that Bob Davies was in the lililie, trying _ 

May, 1856. to get i'ound behind the fire, and Mr. Dixon and II caine to the coiiclusioii that he imtst be lost, and we 
went off to find him, but met hint and soilie others Coining out. After Doig was found 1 went out and 
fornied a party of six mcii, and another of seven, to seek for the bodies of I ouliger and ]owe. I told 
theiii 1 would watch the ventilation, and for them not to go beyond a certain point. Shortly afterwards 
they caine and told me that the bodies were found. 
1305. What was the ultimate effect of the action taken by Mr. Davies in opening the stoppini.s ? Well, 
it simply undid my work. A fter the bodies were got out 1 went up to the office, and on coming back again 
found that the smoke had returned 100 yards up the tunnel, it was utterly impossible to get down to 
where my canvas was fixed, whereas I had expected to get to the seat of the fire at 6 o'clock at ]iighit. 
1306. Did you (to your work over again? No. Mr.Mackcnzie and Mr. Dixon decided to close the mine, 
I drove the smoke, however, back 150 yards in their ic'nce. 
1307. You came to the eomielusion then that you were making progress against the fire? Vcs; I told 
them I would have done that. 
1305. Do you think the fire would draw any air front Eskbank? 1 know the water from Litligow Valley 
mine runs that way. 
1300. Does it run freely? That I cannot say. 
1310. When the inspectors decided or advised the owners to close up the mine, did you take any furl icr 
part P No, I did not. 
1311. Did you come to any conclusion on the subject of closing the mine? Well, if they had asked nie 
to close the mine, and 1 had authority, I should have told them I would not (to anything of the sort. 
1312. Yet, in the face of that, Mr. Mackenzie came to the conclusion that it would be advisable to close 
the mine lip? Yes. 
1313. And is that all you know about the fire in Lithgow Valley mine, Mr. Tnrnbidl P That is all. 
1314. Supposing there is any opening out of IEskbank into Lithgow Valley maine, will it feed the fire 
that is burning at the present tune? (if course. 
1315. Do you think Mr. Ciell gave Davies pernlissioli to interfere a lie (lid? He sas he did not. Mr. 
Wilton also says that Mr. (lcll did not tell l)avics to go into the mine. 
1316. Do you think Davies made a mistake P11 cannot say that. 
1317. 211r. .Yeilson.1 At all events it was done? Yes, it was domie. 
1315. (Jliairman.i Well, I (-all quite understand your feelings ill getting your work undone in this 
way. But I would like to know a little more about it. You say you were in the act of rapidl- regaining 
your lost ground P Ye, I was down beyond the fall of tops, and if I had got it down to where the to1is 
were lii) I could have put more h)1'(sut'e 011. 
1319. have von ever seen this underground boiler P Never. 
1320. Well, the sutoke oil leaving tins underground boiler went into the left-hand return? Yes. 
1321. Tile left-hand return, so far as we have ascertained, crosses over more I han a hundred yards of tvat er, 
the height of which has not been acertti ed. What would the effect on the return air be after danipi ug 
down the furnace? it would naturally stop the pressure altogether. 
1322. it would cool down the air and restore the equilibi'iuni P Of course it would. 
1323. Wotihl that be sufficient to drive back some of the fumes ii'ont the hniler P It would go into the 
in-take itself. 
1324. Then as to another point, a considerable current of air was woiit to go do\Vit the main tunnel, I sup-
pose,--ivliat would the effect upon the boiler be if the main tunnel were closed up by it fall P It would 
sto1) the pm'essclrc' again. 
1325. What would be the effect upon the returns with a fall stoppi ig the ventilation below the boiler, ainl 
with Tymtdall's heading stopped with air-tight toppings. What condition would you expect to find the 
returns in P Very bad. 
1326. Titeim I understood you to say that von left mtftet' Meors. \{ackenzie and Dixon told you that they 
had determnuied to have the nunc closed P I promised them that I would see to having it closed. 
1327. Did you tell Mr. Mackenzie your opiluon as to that P No 1 did not say co to Mr. Mackenzie, it 
would not be my place. I promtnscd Mr. (lell and Mr. Wilton that I would assist thient itt closing tip the 
niine. They would have left it closed up vet. 
1325. What induced theni to open it? Well, I had nothing more to (to with it, my Conipanv prohibited me 
from acting. 1 told Mr. Wilton that I would uitdei-tike to open the nnne, if they could get perumission 
from my ('omnpany, and if they would provide Inc with the material 1 wanted. Mr. Wilton did not get 
peruti sion from niy ('ouipaitv, and Ihierefoi'e I never went. 
1329. Did you thunk it was a right course to open the mine P 1 did not take it into account; 11 mlever inter-
fered in any way with them. 1 did uiakc a t'cmnark at one timtie, and of course I put my foot into it, so I 
vowed I would not say anything more. 
1330. What was that remark P Oh, it was just a little private remark. 
1331. ('all you mention it? I do not thti ik I could at the prcsemit tinic. 
1332. Well, unless it has a distinct beaming upon the ease, I do not think it will be necessary? It has notlung 

\vliatever to (to with it. 
1333. Jfr.Curie1.] have you any idea of the modes operand employed in the attempt to put out this 
fire? None whatever, except that 1 heard they had put on a steani jet at one time. 
1331. A/i'. .N'ciison.] Do vout know anything about this last accident? No. The last word I had about 
the matter was when I saw Mr. Wilton in the office, and when 1 told him that I would undertake to open 
the mine, but must have the reins in my own hands. 
1335. Mr. Curie11.] Who was the party you left in charge whieit you left the miline to go to the  office to 
see the owner P liv. Scully. lie had to Watch the place where I had the bratticing. 
1336. Mr. Davies.] Dii this iiian Davies say anything P No ; Scully never reported to me. Davies had 
got Al himself. 
1337. Mr. C'arlajj.] You know the positions of the two furnaces in this mine P Yes. 
1335. Do you consider they imidicate good management? I would not like to say; it is possible they have 
all opin jolt as well as myself. 
1339. Did vott notice the ashes about the furnace P Oh, yes. 

576-1 	 1310. 
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Mv. I. B. 1340. What do you do with your ashes in Vale of Clwydd? I have them taken direct from the furnace 
Turnbull. and put them on the main road. 

5M1886 
1341. Would you consider it as a safe proceeding to stack these ashes in the mine after drawing them out ay, 	. of the furnace? All I can say is that I would not do it myself. 
1342. Mr. Usher. Did you ever measure the section of air in the main overcast in the morning? No, 
never. 
1343. 2iLr. Swinbnrne.1 Were you satisfied that the return at the left-hand furnace, at the time you saw it, 
was what it ought to be? I only penetrated about 12 or 14 yards; I could not go any further for water. 
1344. What was the area, so far as you could ascertain? From the furnace to where the tops are up, I 
suppose it is about 20 feet by 5 feet. 
1315. Was there a quantity of air passing through when you were there? Not very much. 

THURSDAY, 6 MAY, 1886. 

THE PRESIDENT. 	 Mu. SWINBURN. 
Mn. U,  SHER. 	 Mu. CUIRLEY. 
Mn. THOMAS. 	 Mn. DAVIES. 
MR. NEILSON. 	 Mu. JONES. 

John Gibson sworn and examined :- 
Mr.. Gibson. 1346. Presidents What is your occupation? I am a miner. 

1347. Where did you learn your business? I had a good deal of experience in Lanarkshire, in Scotland. 
6 May, 1886. I have been eighteen years in this country, and have worked for some time in Newcastle. 

1348. Have you ever had any experience of fire-damp? Yes; I was more or less in it the whole time I 
was in the Old Country. 
1349. How long have you been working in this district? Five years, three years of which I worked in 
the Lithgow Valley mine. 
1350. Do you consider this mine a safe one to work in P Yes. 
1351. Is it a good roof? I never worked in a better. 
1352. And how about the ventilation? It was very fairly ventilated. 
1353. Have you ever seen any fire-damp there? No. 
1354. Is it a coal you would expect fire-damp to exist in? No; I should scarcely expect it from the work- 
ings ; I never saw anything of the kind in the district. 
1355. So far as you know the coal does not give off this gas? No, it does not. 
1356. Do you know the situation of the underground boiler? Yes. 
1357. Do you know of a fire having occurred there before this last accident? Yes, just before last 
Christmas ; it was not a serious matter. 
1358. Was there an accumulation of small coal opposite the boiler? I did not see it. 
1359. Did you ever travel through the return on the right-hand side? Nobody ever travelled there, so far 
as I know, since I was there. A certain portion of air escaped by the mouth of the boiler; there never 
was a door there that I could see; a bit of a bag was hiuiig up there sometimes, and that was all. 
1360. Would this cause the air to escape? There was not munch of a draught that side; it occurred to me 
that there was something wrong with the return. 
1361. Did you think that was a safe boiler? Well, I did not pass an opinion upon it at the time, but I have 
seen more of it since, and I think it should not have been there. 
1362. But at the time it raised no suspicion in your mind? No, not a bit. 
1363. Did you ever see smoke hanging over that boiler? Yes, many a time. 
1364. Did that raise a suspicion in your mind that something was wrong? No, it happened muamiy a 
time. 
1305. When were you told that the first accident had occurred at this place? I was at home at the time, 
and was not going out that morning, or I should have been there; it was about S o'clock when word was 
sent to me; I went to the tunnel and went in as far as I could go; Mr. Turnbull and others had been in 
before me; of course I could do nothing more than go by his instructions. 
1360. Did you search for any bodies ? No; I saw them brought out. 
1367. From your experience, did you think it strange for the manager and his companions to go into that 
return when the main tunnel was full of smoke ? He might have had a purpose. 
1368. Supposing the main airway to be full of smoke, what condition would you expect the return to be 
in? Well, it would be full of smoke; I thought Doig and his party had been a long way down the 
workings, and the smoke came down to them while they were there, and I think, perhaps, their oil had 
failed; probably they were going down to get more oil when they were overcome by the foul air. 
1369. How did you come to think that P I inferred it from what Martin told me. 
1370. When the brick stopnngs were taken down, after the mine had been sealed up, was work resumed ? 
I was not there the last week before the accident. 
1371. Did you get down to the boiler when you were employed before this ; Yes, I was often there. 
1372. What was the condition of the main tunnel opposite the boiler, between that and Tyndall's heading? 
The top-coal was all down. 
1373. Did the fall interfere with the course of the air? Yes, until we cut a way through. 
1374. Did you see any fire in Tyndall's heading? No; there was fire right ahead of us; we could see a spark 
here, and that was like stars shining. 
1375. When you ceased working it would appear that the great body of fire was discovered? Yes, so far 
as I could learn, it was. 
1370. When the operations had extended down almost to the boiler, for some reason or other the men 
were suddenly withdrawn from the tnnnel, and it was determined to close up the mine-call you tell us 
what was the reason of that resolution? No, I cannot. 
1377. Do you know if that was the case? Yes, it was the case, but I was not on that shift at the time. 
1378. In connection with the operation of putting the fire out, you, I believe, were selected as leader? 
Yes, they selected me as one. 	 1379. 
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1379. Had you any fear of danger in connection with this work P No, I had 110 fear of daiiger, except, Mr.J. ibsou. 
perhavs, in connection with the rock above. 
1380. That of course wa incidental to your calling C 	 C May, 1886. 
1381. Was 	p'1ue brought to bear upon you Not that I know of I went just as the others went 
1 110(1 110 appreheiisioii of danger. 
132. 1)uring the course of operations, did Mr. Cainpbel I, the manager, the inspectors, and the owners 
visit you P Yes, very often I went on at 6 o'clock at night and conic off at 12, and. I saw thoni there 
both when 1 went and when I left. 
1383. Did they appear anxious for your safety, and supply you with all necessary iflilteruil P Yes. 
1384. So far as you can judge, did it appear to you that blame was attachable to any pers11 on account of 
this last accident P I cnInot see that bionic could be attached to anyone. 
138. You have thought of it seriously, 1 suppose P Yes, inaiiy a tniie. 
1380. 1.[ave you paid attention to the stoppings in this colliery P Yes. 
1387. Have you ever seen the same stoppiligs elsewhere P 1 never did at home. 
1.388. 1 [ave you ever seen any like them iii any other place in the district P 1 believe there were similar 
stoppuigs in the ironworks' tunnel, but very few stoppiiigs were used there. 
1389. Did you think those stoppings served their puiTose P Yes, they served their purpose sii far, yet 
there was tiothi ig secure about them. 
1390. Do you tinuk there would be extra security in tiumber in ease of fire P Well, the draught would not, 
have got through. 
1391. Would timber go quicker than small coal P 1 do not think it would go quicker than small coal and 
(lust. 
1392. Mr. Aeilson.] You know the left-hand furnace P Yes. 
1393. Does it take any more air than what goes over the boiler P Dli, es. 
1394. Mr. Swinbui.a.] Were you ever down in the workings at the left-hand side? Yes;1 have worked 
down that side. 
1395. Were you ever over that portion near the boundary of the .Iskbank Colliery, and if So, was there 
any water down there P Yes, there was oily amount of water there. 
1390. Are you aware of pillars being taken out down in that direction P They were not taken out ill 
toy ti vie, but I know they have been taken out. 
1397. how did you come to know P I wa-A told by the men who took them out. 
1398. Who were they? Robert Grant was one of them. 
1399. To what extent were they taken out? 1 cannot say as to that, but I think I was told that a good 
many had been taken out. 
1400. .liIr. Xeilson.] lEave ou had any experience of big falls P Yes, I have seen many a big fall. 1. saw 
a big fall at the Co-operative Colliery, Wallseuol, when the props and ulust and things were thrown 100 
feet above the surface. 
1101. Mr. Jones.] Have any pillars in this part of the mine been taken out P Not that I am aware of, 
the bords are all of the usual width, 8 or ii yards, some noght be inure, sonic niighit be less. 
1102. Mr. Uur/eq.1 Did you ever suggest to I lie muanagenient or ii lapel ors the puouiety of puttuig lii) 
brick stoppi igs P No. But I tluiik I did Oil one occasion say, ' I do not believe iii those stoppings, and 
if I had mv way I would have them eoiistrueted of brick on each side of the main drive." 
1403. ]Jfr. Davies.] Was this said to the proprietors or inspectors P [ think Mr. Wilton and Mr. Rowan 
were with me at the time. 
1104. ALe. Curley.] How long ago was this? I think it was about a fortnight before the late accident, 
my attention having been called to all escape in one of the stoppings. 

Edward Power sworn and examined:- 

1405. Pi.esiJent.] \%That  is your occupation? 1 0111 a coth-miier. [ have been at it about eight years, oim Mr. E. Power. 
and off. Ih -o worked in the Vale of Clwvdcl, the ironworks Tunnel, thu Eskbuuk, the ilernlitage, 
and the Lithgow Valley mines. I worked in the Litligow Valley none for about three years. 	 6 May, 1.886. 
1-100. Are you acquainted with fire-damp P No. 
1107. have you seen choke_damp or black-damp? Never, until the hate accident. 
1408. From your experience, is the mode of conducting underground operations at the Lithgow Valley 
mine siuiilar to the methods applied in the other eollieres P Well, I always thought it was comuduicted 
better in the Lithgow Valley mine. 
1109. lim what way P Well, for better all, ; themen seemumed to be more coumtented. 
1410. But the mode of working is ubouit- the same as to the width of the pillars, Sn'. P Yea, it was similar 
throughout the district. 
1411. Did you ever have reason to complain of the veutilation P No. 
1412. .l[ave von ever seen aiiv smoke ilangimg about auiy part of the mimic P Yes. I have seen a little 
where this boiler was. It would hang on the top in the mnoruliug before the set started to work. 
1413. Did you hear of all underground tire taking place at this boiler some weeks before the accident? 
Yes, I did hear the men t:mlk about it. 	I did not see it, because I was working in this new 
cross-eumt. 
1414. Did you ever surmise that the undergrouiul boiler was unsafe, or did you ever think about it P 
Well, I wheeled there for some two years, and I made a remark to the boss one time that the tops 
might possibly catch flue. 
1-115. Were they taken down P No. 
1416. \\Tho  was the boss P Jobmm Doig. 
1417. \Vhiat did lie sii-lI P 	e said, "No, they won't catch fire.'' 
1418. Where did this lire origimiate that took place a few weeks before the accident P 1 heard it was 
behind the boiler. I heard it from the, men who were engaged in putti ig it (lilt. 
1419. \Themu  did you become acquaimited with the first accident P I was, I believe, the first man imi the 
1)it . Atabomit 345 mm the Momiday imloruhiimg I was going down the mimam heading and conic to the smoke, 
I made all attempt to rush thirongil, but found I could not get in further. 
1420. Did it make you cough P Yes. I laid down 011 the side of the mood till the miners caine. We 
stopped till five imiore men cammme till, and I said we had better go and stop the horses. I went for that pur-

pose 
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Ir. E. Power, pose to the stables, and tcld the man in charge that he had better not take the horses to the pit, as the 
tunnel was full of smoke. 

6 May, 1886. 1421. Did you form one of the parties who went in search of Doig and his companions P Yes; I was 
with those who started for Rowe and Younger. 
1422. Where did you go P We went into the new cross-cut, and through a stopping into the old 
working. 
1423. Was the air bad? No; the air was very good, I think; the light burned well. 
1424. Where did you go after passing through this stopping P We went through some old bords, turned 
to the right for about 3 chains, and we found the men in a bord off the cut-through. 
1425. How were they lying when you found thcm P Younger was lying on his face, and Rowe on his 
back. They were very close together. 
112(3. Did you see their lamps? I saw two lamps alongside of Rowe. 
1427. Was there any oil in them P I did not look. 
1428. Did you test the quality of the air near the floor where you found the bodies-I mean did you put 
down your light P No ; I did not take it off my hat. 
1429. Did you see any of the men test the air P No; but I did hear one of them say, "Come away, chaps, 
the air is not very good here." 
1430. Did you take any part in the subsequent operations-did you volunteer to work with Mr. Turn-
bull, for instance P Not with Mr. Turnbull ; but 1 worked at the mine, when it was re-opened, the whole 
time. 
1431. When you got down to the position of the boiler, did you notice a fall in the main tunnel P Yes. 
it was a large fall, which obstructed the air-way. No air could get over the top till some of the rocks 
were removed. 
1432. Do von recollect that something transpired after you had got down to the boiler which determined 
the owners or the Government inspectors to close the mine P Yes. 
1133. What had you been using for extinguishing the fire up to this date P We were using water, and 
were getting on very well, only there was a lot of black_damp and smoke to contend with. 
1434. Then you did not know the reason why it was determined to abandon the attempt to extinguish 
the fire P No; but the miners thought it had not been properly tried. They believed the fire could be put 
out, and consequently made an application to Mr. Gell to be allowed to make the attempt. lie said he was 
quite agreeable, and then went to see Mr. Mackenzie about it. 
1435. How long after that did you receive perliussioli to make the trial P We commenced at 9 o'clock 
that night. 

[The witness here described the process of selecting the shifts and appoiptilig Icaders.] 
1436. Did you anticipate any danger from this work you had volunteerel to undertake P No 1 (lid not 
see any danger at all till we got down to the fall-this suggestel danger in the roof, but we used to 
sound the roof as we went along and put props up. 
1437. is that the usual mode of heaping up loose stone P I never saw any rock timbered in my life 
before. 
1438. Did they take down any rock P No; they tried to take some down, but it would not come. Then 
they played the hose on the roof to clear the smoke aw'ay, and while thus playing on it the rock came 
down and filled fifteen skips. 
1439. Did you undertake this work of your own free- -vill P Yes. 
1440. Were you at work when the accident occurred P No; 1 was going on to relieve that shift. 
1441. When you got down to the seat of the fire, did you notice any fire in Tyndall's heading P No, I 
did not; but I believe there was fire in it. 
1442. Did you see any fire about the boiler P Yes; I saw fire on both sides. 	I also saw fire in the 
stopping which had been opened in the main tunnel this side of the brattice. That fire was put out as far 
as we could reach, but I formed the opinion that the next shift would not be able to put it out with water, 
as it had got too firm a hold. I saw this on the Sunday night. 
1443. Were you ever in the mine again after that Sunday night P No, not until I came to brick these 
stoppings up. 	 - 
1444. Mr. lVeilson.] Was the fire at the stopping on the left-hand side of the tunnel spreading right 
across the bord P Yes, and working in the pillar right round as far as we could see. 
1445. Presia'ent.] Then it had evidently worked round from the pillar first P Yes. 
1446. Mr. curley.] How far would that stopping be from the flue on the main tunnel P About a 
chain. 
1447. President.1 Did the fire burn as if extending up parallel with the main tunnel P It was going 
towards the main tunnel. One of the men said to me as we were going home, "They will never put that 
fire out, and I will not go back any more." 
1448. While you were working, did you hear any sounds as of rocks falling in the waste P 1 heard cracks 
which I imagined came from the bottom of the coal that was burning. it sounded as if something was 
splitting with the heat. 
1449. Mr. Uurlel'j Did you report to the manager the condition of the fire every time your shift came 
out of the mine P No. 
1450. Was the manager present during your last shift P No ; he was at home ill. 
1451. Mr. Eeilson.j Was the manager in the mine between the time of your going out and the time that 
the accident took place P Yes, he was. 

H. B. Druery sworn and examined :- 

Mr. 	1452. President.] What is your occupation? I am a miner. I gained lily experience first in the North 
R. R. Druery. of England, in the county of Durham. I have been about nine years in the Colony following my 

occupation as a miner. 
6 May, 1886. 1453. Have you had any experience of fire-damp P Yes, at Home. 

1454. In what mines have you been employed in this district P I have worked in all exeeptmg the 
Eskbank. 
1455. Speaking generally, are all the Litigow eoh1ierie worked in about the same immuer? Yes, they 
are mainly worked on th sanie principles. 	 14o6. 
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1 t30. When were you last employed in the Lithgow Valley mine 2 \t the time of the first accident. 	Mr. 
1 137. And for how long before the accident P Seven or eight months. 	 R. R. Druoy. 

113* Was the ventilation sufficient in the mine while you were employed there P I had no complaint to 
6 May, 1886. 

make where I was engaged. 
1439. have von ever seen explosive (,as in the Lit1igov Valley mine P No. 
1I60. have you ever heard of it having been seen there P I cannot say that I have. 
1161. Not having made any complaint about the ventilation of the mine, then you considered it sufficient P 
So far as 1 WaS peisonally concerned, yes. 
1462. In going to and from your work, have you seen this underground boiler? Yes. I was called upon 
six weeks previous to the first accident by time underground manager, Mr. Passinore, to assist hitit to pitt 
out what was supposed to he a fire. The fire was burning behind the furnace, below the flues, among 
some slack. It appeared to drop off the tops or sides of the pillars. 

[\\itness  described the process of extinguishing the said fire.] 
1403. 1)id you suggest the advisability of removing the slack? I suggested it to Mr. Passmnore several 
imes. He said that the manager had seen it. 

itt; t. 1)id von eoltiinme to work iii tile mine? Yes. 
1 163. Dd you consider the boiler a source of danger? I did not consider it a soni'ce of danger in the taIe 
I n which I left it. 
1466. 1 [ave you formed a-nv OpI loll as to the source of this fire P Yes, I think it came from the fun ace, 
probably owing 10 some of the soot iIa.vmg caught fire on the roof and sides. 
14;7. Then there was it considerable unount of soot on the roof and sides P Yes. 
116* l)id \- oil ever travel in the left -hand return P 1 considered it impossible I have been just at the end 
of time pic. 
1169. 1 )o von k flOW the size of the shaft that leads from the left-hand furnace P I have been given to 
inolerst and it is 0 ft. in diamel cm. 
I 179. II ad you ever seen smoke hiangi mg about the boiler prior to this accident? I have seen steam amid 
smoke haiigi ig about the roof. 
1.171. i)o von ('onsiulir the mule was, it safe one to work in? 	I was not engaged as a tinner 	1 was a 
day- 
1172. 1)id von ever travel pretty well through the nu me P Oh, yes. 
1173. And (to von consider this mu ne. generally speaking. a safe cite P Yes. 
1 1.7 I.. Was the roof a good one P Yes the rock cover was the best I ever caine in contact with. 
1.73. \\iiat  Pith  if aiiv. dii von take in finding the late i\[r. Doig 1111(1 his comnpailions P On the i\Ioinimv 

nuollilig I went to vmik as usual : 1 was then eiigaged at the extreme end of what is kiiown as the second 
cross-cut. 0mi going iii past the ret mini I found the air thicker than usual. This was about 530 o'clock. 
1 179. 1)id von think ammvtliing was wring? 	Yes it led me to bclieve there was somnetlung radicall 
wrong, and I uvent to uvarn the mcmi who were working in the face. They acted upon my advice ininediateiy, 
and they, knowing the cross-cut road better than I did, took the other way mound. Going back again 1. 
was knocked down three times in succession b.v the stithe. 
1477. 1)id you take aumv part in the. recovery of the unfortunate men who fell victims to the catastrophe P 
1 went home, and on i'itnnimmg back again I mioticed a number of mcii who were sitting at the side of the 
tunnel, and I asked them if any instructions had been given to get the mcii relieved. They said 11(1. 1 
then sent for Mr. Tnrnhnhl, amid on his arrival, about 7 o'clock. we all went to the office to get the imhmui. 
The door was locked, and had to he forced in : themi we found the plan on the table After the iom  had 
been inspected amid discussed. Mr. Timnmihiihl ask hg inc a number of 9mmestions, which 1 answered to the 
best of mv ability, we proceeded to the pit again. 
I 178. l)o volt know that before this time one or two parties had pemmetm'ated the right-hand workings as 
far as Tvndills heading P 1 ime:mrd it spoken of, but did not place any reliance on it. 
1179. Were you one of the part es who found or searched for those mcmi P I was at the time engaged in 
the mnnu tunmiel with Mr. 'I'urnbull, trying to get in as far a-s possible. I was amnoiig the secomid pam'ty, 
and we went into the return of No. 2 cross-cut to the left. Having gone in as far as Ave could, we caine 
hack, and then we heard Mr. Turnbmmll and some others saving that the men had been found. 
1480. Did you take part in mtiy suhseqttcmit operations after the mine was closed up P No. 
1-181. You were not connected in any way with the la-st operations P No. 
1-182. .3Ir. Cio'Iey.i Did 

'
you hem' Mr. Turnbumll receive any instructions from the proprietors P 1 did not, 

only to make the best hue could of it. 
1183. After you mentioned about time position of this boiler to Mr. Passmnore, and you found that nothing 
had been done, (lid you comphaul to h)oig P 1 never mentioned. the matter. 
1-18--I. had ever such it tlnmmg as eheek-immspeet-ion taken place in connect-ion with this mine by the nimmiers 
themselves P Not that I am aware of. 
1483. Do you know that the muimum's have that plmmer under the Act of 1876 P Yes. 
148th. 1)0 you think that there would be any di Illeulty in carrying that out P Not that I can se. 
1487. .2111'. .Jinies.i You are not aware that the men ever tested the matter P Ni-i. 
1488. .3Ir. Davies.] l)tinimmg time eight nonths you wom'ked at the colliery, did you see the inspectors 
there fre1mienthv P I cami safely sax 1 saw thieni twice. 

\Villianm J\iamitle suvormm and examined. 

1489. .P'esidenf.] What is your occupatiomi P 1 mu a nummer. I have been working in the Lithgow Valley 	'h' 
mine, and was previomily emnplovcd at the I [ermitage Colliery. I have also worked in the Eskbtuik min([ W. Mantle. 
Vile of Clwydd. 
1190.....e the workings in I lie different moines in this district in which you have been employed all con- 6 May, 1886. 
dneted on the same or simmu lam' lines P Yes ; the stoppitigs are composed of the sanme materials, and the 
ijords are about the same width. 
1-191. A mmd as to the ventilation? They a-re all about time same. 
1492. Themi in the muattir of the Litlmgomv Valley mine ventilation, did you find that sufficient em' other- 
wise? 1 found it quite snllieient .1111(1 no cause to complain, nor have I heard anomie else eommmplaimi of 
the ventilation. 
1-1.9-3 have you had a-nv e'iperience of fire-clamp or choke-damp P No; 1 have never heard of it I Imive 
heard of black-clamp though. 	 1491. 
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Mr. 	1494. While engaged as a miner at this colliery, have you seen the inspectors of collieries paying visits for 
W. Mantle, the purpose of inspection? Yes. 
'' 1495. Have they spoken to you? Yes. 

6 May, 1886. 1496. Had you ever cause to make complaints to them about anything? No. 
1497. Then what part did you take in the first accident P I was not at the first accident. 
1498. Have you seen the underground boiler? Yes, I have seen it, but never inspected it. 
1499. Did you ever hear of a fire occurring there before this last accident. No. 
1500. Were you employed at the last accident? Yes. 
1501. Were you down at the seat of the fire? Yes. 
1502. Did you see a fall in the main tunnel? Yes ; it was a large fall, and a portion was on fire. 
1503. Did you hear about a fire in Tyndall's heading? Yes. 
1504. Did you hear about the stopping in that heading being on fire? Yes, and it was put out. 
1505. Did you see a fire in the neighbourhood of the boiler? Yes. The tops had fallen at the back of 
the boiler, and were on fire. There was fire at the side of the boiler also, and the corner of a pillar had 
taken fire. 
1506. Did you get to the back of the boiler? No. 
1507. So far as you went, did the fire extend to the left-hand side of the boiler? Yes. 
1508. Did you see a fire in the left-hand side of the tunnel, near the boiler? Yes. It was a heavy fire, 
and it had got a good hold of the coal. 
1509. Were you employed on shift when the accident occurred? Yes. About five minutes before the 
accident I was holding the hose to the fire, I and my brother. I caine back after being relieved by John 
Duncan, and had not been back more than five minutes before the accident happened. It was like a clap of 
thunder, and was followed by a rush of air which extinguished the lights. My hat and lamp were blown 
away. I was not knocked down, but it gave me a great shock. I then heard one man say, "Take to the 
skips." At this time we had all got hold of one another. Every one thought we were going to be 
crushed to death. We went for the empty skips, but they would not move, and I then pulled the signal 
wire, but it did not seem to act properly. We then got out of the skips and made for the mouth of the 
tunnel. 
1510. Did you see any red coals on your way out? Yes, about 13 or 14 chains from the boiler. It 
extended over 4 or 5 yards, perhaps a little more or less. 
1511. Did you experience any difficulty in crossing this P No; it was just a scattered fire. 
1512. Did the second rush of air contain a greater quantity of damp than the first? Yes; I believe it did, 
because the feeling of suffocation increased. 
1513. Did you see any stoppings blown down? Yes, a number of them, and I believe the fire was blown 
out from the stopping. 
1514. An hour or two before the accident happened you say the ventilation was sound, and that an hour 
or two previous to that you opened a stopping on the left-hand--which way did the fresh air take-did it 
rush through the stopping into the fire? Yes. 
1515. Did you extinguish this fire? Only to a certain distance. 
1516. You closed np the stopping P Yes, we bratticed it up again to exclude the air. 
1517. Did you foresee this calamity? No, I did not. 1 had never been in anything of the kind before. 
The last shift I got frightened of the roof coining down, as we could not see it for the damp and smoke. 
1518. That was a danger reasonable to anticipate of course? Yes. 
1519. Do you blame anybody for this accident? No, I cannot blame anybody for it. 
1520. Did you ever hear either the management, inspectors, or the owners asking you not to run into any 
danger? No. 
1521. Were they ever present during your operations? Yes. 
1522. Did they show any anxiety for your safety? I have not heard them, but I have heard other men 
say they did. I might have been out of the way at the time though. 
1523. They were present, however ? Yes, 
1524. And giving you a helping hand when it was required? Yes. 
1525. Then have you formed any opinion on this subject-can you attach blame to anybody? No; but I 
believe that if the skips had come out we should all have come out right enough. 
1526. But the rapper-wire might have been interfered with by the stoppings being blown out, might it 
not ? Certainly it might. 
1527. Then you do not attach any blame to the engine-man? No. 
1528. Was the rapper-wire free previous to this accident P Yes, I believe it was, because the skips were 
travelling in and out. 
1529. How long before? About an hour. 
1530. Could you have signalled with it five minutes before this accident happened? To the best of my 
belief, I could. 
1531. Then the wire got disarranged by the accident? Yes, I suppose so. 
1532. Mr. Swinburn.] Then the skips were there to take the debris, were they not? Yes. 
1533. AI. Curie9.] What was the stopping composed of that you bratticed up again? It was composed 
of slack. 
1534. What was it put up for? To travel the air in the right course. 
1535. And there was a fire raging at the inside of it? Yes. 
1536. Mr. Jones.] How many of these skips were there P There were five in the set. 
1537. Mr. Swin burn.] How could these skips come out, the stoppings being blown out and 2 feet of 
small coal lying across the tramroad? They must have been pulled over the top. 

John Sheedy sworn and examined 
Mr. J. Sheedy. 1538. Presidenf.] What is your occupation? I am a miner, and have been employed in the Lithgow 

Valley mine, where I worked for fourteen years. 
6 May, 1886. 1539. Have you had any experience of fire-damp at any time? No. I have not worked in the old country. 

I am a native of the valley. 
1540. Have you had any reason to complain of the ventilation of this mine? No; nor have I ever heard 
any complaint made. 
1541. Have you ever heard of any underground fire t the Lithgow Valley mimic before February last? 
No. 	 1542. 
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1342. What part did you take in finding Doig, Younger, and Rowe P 1 was in bed when my friend caine Mr.J. Sheedy. 
back from there and told me that a fall had taken place, and that there were three ineit inside. I put my '-•' 
clothes on and went down the pit and into Our own hord to the face of the cross-cut, taking a shovel with 6 May, 1886. 
me in case I might want it. The air at that time was very good. it was about 10 o'clock in the morning. 
1543. Was Mr. lurnbull present P Possibly so. T did not see him. 1 went in of my own accord. seeing 
a light come up from No. 2 cross-cut, 1 sang out, Who's that'' P it was \Villiam Martin, and he asked me 
where 1 was going, and I told him to look for the men. We struck the return and followed it down for 
about 5 chains, so far as I could guess. There was a heading about 2 chains off the return. here I 
eooeed, and almost at the nune time we heard a sigh. 
1541. I-[oiv far were you off the return when you heard the sigh P It would be about 4 chains. 
1545. And you had proceeded about 5 or 6 chains down the cross-cut? Yes. I said to Martin, There is 
one of the men there''; and I ran up and said, "It is Mr. Doig." 
1316. Do you understand the plan of the mine P NO ; I am a poor scholar. 
1517. however, you adhere to this statement that after leaving the cross-cut you went straight for 5 or 6 
chains, then you went a few chains down to the right, and there found Doig P Yes. 

On being further examined the wit ness admitted that lie and his compamon did not know exactly 
what they were doing or where they were, although lie knew his way. In fact lie could not 
locate the exact spot. 

1548. Doig was then carried out P Yes. Where we found him the black-damp was about 2 feet over his 
face, that is, lie was lying in a little over 2 feet of foul air. I put the light down, and it immediately 
went out. 
1549. Did you return for Younger and Rowe? No, I did not. I was affected by the gas, and when I 
got out I fell down. 
1550. Did you work at the mine after that P Yes ; at the right-hand furnace. I went on as soon as the 
men next re-opened the mile. 
1351. Did you have any difficulty in keeping the fire alight P The fire burned right enough, but it would 
not stop in very long. 
1552. Did you open the door to give yourself air ? Well, 1 could always keep in myself, but the chap who 
was with me could not. The air that kept the furnace alight was return air. The damp did affect me, but 
it was not sufficient to put the fire out. 
1553. Was there a large (luantity of air passing lip the return? Yes, a good quantity. 
1534. iiov often (lid you clear that fire? I used to (lear it every ten nun utes. 
1555. Were did you put the ashes? I put them a short distanee'froin the fire. 
1556. Have you ever known these ashes to take fire P No. 
1557. have you ever felt any heat among the ashes P No. 
1558. Did you speak to the manager about keeping so many ashes there P No. 
1339. jl&. Jones.] You have been engaged for a long time in the Lithgow Valley Colliery P Yes. 
1560. 1 [ad the pillars in any part of that mine been taken out P Not to my knowledge. 
1561. What is the width of the bords P Twenty-one feet. 
1362. Did they ever exceed that width ? Not to my knowledge, so long as I have been there. 
1363. You have never heard of bords being driven too wide then P No. 
1564. And never heard any complaint as to that? No. I think it was the best worked place in the valley. 
1563. JiI. .Ni'ilson.] You have had no experience outside the valley P No, excepting Mount Pleasant. 
1.566. .M-. Sw,nln'rn.l have you ever been down the left-hand side of the main tnmiiiel P Yes. 
1567. Do von know if there is a. connection betwein Lithgow Valley mine and Eshbank P Yes, there is. 
1568. have you ever seen much water down that part of the district ? No ; but I believe the water runs 
into the Eskban Ic Colliery. 
1569. Do you know if any pillars were extracted in that part of the district P No ; I do not know. 

Gilbert kirkwood sworn and examined :- 
1570. President.] What is your occupation? I am a miner. 	 Mr. 
1571. Wnlicre  have you follow-ed your occupation P I worked as a miner in Scotland 	 U. hirkwood. 
1572. And how long in this Colony 2  &bout two years. 
- 	 ............................................ 	(, May, 1886. ln,3. 'd here have you been engaged since you caine to this district P I have worked at time \ ale of ( lwdd 

and in the Lithgow Valley mine, where I was fireman and overman. 
137-i.. hlaye you had any experience of fire-damp in the old country? Yes. 
1573. While you were engaged as a worker in the Vale of ('lwvdd, did you ever see any fire-damp? No. 
1576. Nor in time Lithgow Valley mine P No. 
1577. Did you ever suspect its presence P No. 
1578. Do you think the seam of coal is likely to generate fire-damp P I do not think so. 
1579. have you had any experience of choke-damp P Yes ; but I have never seen it where the air was 
good. 
1580. But choke-dam1) rests in the old workings, as a rule. I iow long were you working in the Lithgow 
Valley mine P About eighteen months. 
1581. have you had any reason to complain of want of ventilation ? No; there was always good air when 
I was there. I never had ie-asOil to complain of the ventilation, nor of the character of the stoppirigs. 
I thunk the stoppi igs were carefully put up. 
1582. Have you ever heard the miners complain about the want of ventilation, or of the presemice of fire-
danip or choke-damp P No. 
1583. In going to and coming from your operations in the mine, had you occasion to pass the tinder-
ground boiler P Yes ; I passed it every morning. 
1584. Froin your experience as a foruier deputy, were you curious to see how that underground boiler 
was built ? I never went in to see it, but I (lid not tlnnk it should be there ; that is, so far in time work-
ings. I never travelled the return, and 1 never was in the left or right hand return. 
1585. Comiimg to the first accident, when were you first apprised of it? I was not there at the time. I 
appeared on the Monday at the accident when the bodies had been taken (lilt. 
1586. Did you take any part in the operations that were conducted by Mr. Tmirnbull ? No. 
1587. The mine was sealed up a day or two afterwards, was it not ? 1 simppose it was. 

1588. 
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Mr. 	1588. And it remained closed for some time? Yes, but I cannot say for how long. 
G. Kirkwood. 1580. Were you employed in connection with the operations after re-opening? 1 es. -"s 1590. Do you know anything about one of the priicipal stoppings being interfered with P I never knew 
0 May, 1880. one from the other. I had heard of a stopping having been opened at Tyndall's heading, but I cannot 

give positive evidence about that. Mr. Campbell told me. I never saw it myself. 
1591. When you got to the source of the fire, did you see anything in the main tunnel that attracted your 
attention? I saw the smoke and a fall when we went down to where the fire was burning. 
1592. At this time, we understand that operations were then suspended for a tune-do you know the 
reason why? No. 
1593. At all events, we have heard that a meeting of the miners was held after it had been determined to 
close the mine. Do you know anything about that? I was not one of those who collected at the pit 
bank, but I was told by some of them of the course which it was proposed to adopt. 
1594. Were you a worker? Yes. 
1395. Did you at that time anticipate any danger? No. 
1590. Was any pressure brought to bear on you to engage in the work? None whatever. The men 
selected me as one of the leaders. 
1597. Did you enter that mine as leader of a shift of your own free-will? Yes, but I always thought 
that the Company had to pay me I did not believe in volunteering. I was doing all I could to put out 
the fire to benefit myself. 
1598. Did the owners show a sympathy and regard for the safety of the men? Yes; we got everything 
we required, and we were told not to run into any danger. 
1599. Did your employers visit you during the operations? Yes; they were hardly ever out of the pit, 
and they showed considerable anxiety for our safety. 
1000. Some time elapsed while you worked on in order to gain the seat of the fire, and your efforts were 
at last rewarded by your being able to bring your operations down to the seat of the fire, and you got 
past Tyndall's heading. Did you see any fire there? Well, no ; there was a little fire in one of the 
pillars, but it was soon put out. I was not in the shift that first approached Tyndall's heading. 
1001. Did you hear that the first shift saw a fire there? No. 
1002. Do you know whether the stoppings in Tyndall's heading were on fire? No; the stuff that we lifted 
came out quite clean, without any appearance of burning. 
1603. As to this fall in the main tunnel, would that interfere with the air-course P Yes I think it did 
obstruct the air-course, because when w-e got to Tyndall's heading the air was more clear. 
1001. Did you turn your attention to the left-hand beside the boiler? Yes; there was fire there. The 
tops were down, and we put them out and removed them. 
1005. How far was this to the hack of the boiler? It was just at the back that we noticed the fire going 
tip behind us, and on the left-hand side a portion was on fire, and an attempt was made to put it out with 
water, but it was not entirely successful. 
1000. Did you observe any fire throuh the corner of the pillar above the boiler? Yes. 
1607. Did you think the fire had a from hold? It was flaming when I saw it last there. We had to 
brattice down the tunnel with canvas in order to reach the fire, the return being on the right-hand side, 
where the stopping was taken out. 
1608. Where were you at the moment of the accident? I was sitting  down at the time about 18 
yards above the boiler. 
1609. What was the first intimation you received of something unusual happening? Well, there was a 
shock like a great sough of wind. This was followed by a second report, much heavier than the first. 
1610. Did it knock you dow-n? Yes. I thought at first that the bratticing had given way, and I was in 
the act of rising when a rush of air met me and knocked inc down, and blew my hat and lamp away. 
1611. What did you suppose had happened? Well, I scarcely knew. I thought it was a blast. 
1612. Arising from what? Arising from the smoke. I did not suppose that there was any gas in that 
working, but I thought the blast might have been occasioned by the smoke rising from the furnace. 
1613. Have you ever heard of a smoke explosion? No. 
1614. If you inhaled black-damp, would it choke you? Yes. 
1615. Is not the action of choke-damp precisely the same when applied to fire-will it not extinguish it ? 
Yes, I suppose if I put choke-damp on a fire it would extinguish it. 
1616. During your long experience, have you ever witnessed the effects of a large and heavy fall? I have 
seen many a fall. The heaviest one in my experience was in a pit where the workings were 9 feet in 
height, and it extended over three or four rows of pillars. We were all knocked down, but it did not do 
any more damage. The workings did not contain choke-damp. 
1617. Supposing the waste between these pillars you have mentioned had been filled with choke-damp, 
what would the effect of a fall have been? It would have put the damp on top of us, and fouled the 
air-course. 
1018. Well, as to this last accident, did you suspect any danger? No. 
1019. Did you anticipate this calamity? No. 
1620. You looked upon it purely as an accident? Yes. 
1621. Did you think any blame could be attached to anyone on account of the accident? No; every-
thing was done that could be done. Messrs. Rowan and Mackenzie were there every day, and did all they 
could to assist the men, and look after their safety. 
1622. And did the owners exhibit due regard for the safety of the men? Yes; they could not have 
been more considerate. 
1623. JiLr. Jones.] Of your knowledge, have the pillars in any part of this pit been taken out? Not to 
my knowledge. I know very little about the workings. I have not been very long in the mine. 
1624. Jir. Davies.] Were the inspectors in during the last shift you worked? Yes, they were in the 
fore-part of the shift. 
1625. You have not been intimidated in any way, have you? Certainly not. I get nothing but what 
I work for, and I don't care for anybody. 
1626. ilfr. Jones.] Was permission sought from the inspectors or manager or owners before the mine 
was re-opened? I do not know anything about that. 1 was not there. I considered that I was working  
for the owners. 
1627. ]L&. Thomas.] I understand you to say that either the inspectors, the manager, or the owners, 

were 
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were always in attendance at the mine 	Yes, they attended every day. I have seen one of the owners 	Mr. 
sittinr there for five hours. 1 have not seen Mr. Gell so often. 	 G. ir w 
1628. hr. Curlcq.i About this boiler: I think you said you have sometimes thought it should not be 6Ma 1886 
there ? I never bothered my head about it, nor did 1 say anything about it-i. had nothing to do 	' 
with it. 
1629. But if you had anticipated dauger from that boiler, would you not have spoken to some one about 
it ? I never thought about there being any danger from it. 
1630. A\7 by did you think it was in the W1101W position then-you have already said something to that 
effect ? Well, 1 had never seen one, in such a position before. 
1631. That is, it was a little singular? Yes, that was my reason. 
1632. Do you know what distance it is from the mouth of the tunnel'? I cannot say ; I never 
measured it. 

President.] 30 chains down the tunnel. 
1633. Mr. Jones.] Were the inspectors present when the stoppings were taken down on the second 
occasion? I suppose they were, but I was not in the first shift. 
1634. JIfr. Usher.] What was the size of the pillars in the mine where these falls had taken place? I 
cannot say ; I never measured any of the pillars. 
1635. What was the width of the bords? Some were 6 yards, and some were only 5 yards, some 
were 7 yards, and sonic went as high as 10 yards. 

Joint Duncan swon and exami ued 
1620. Pi'esident.] What is your occupation P I ant a miner, aud have followed that occupation for 
fifteen years. I started working in mimics in the north of England. 
1637. Did you In the north of }ngiaimd ever become acquainted with fire-damp? I have never seen 
fire-damp. 
1638. Have you any experience of choke-damp or stythe P 1 have found it in plames where the pure air 
was not going its proper course. 
1639. That is in the gob P Yes. 
1610. 1[ow long have you worked in this district? Fifteen months. 
1641. In n-hat collieries? I have worked in the Eskbank, and at the Ironworks 'l'unuel and at the 
Lithgow Valley mine. 
1612. Is the same seam of coal worked at all three places? Yes, so far as I know. 
1643. Is the same systein of working pursued at all three places? Yes, just the same. The same size 
of bords, and the same width of stalls. 
1644. Did you consider it a dangerous or a safe seam to work P I thought I was as safe as 1 am sitting here. 
1645. had you any cause to complain of the ventilation of the mine? I have had to say nothing in 
regard to that. 
1616. Or about any other danger that you considered might exist? No; I never spoke to anybody. 
1647. Do you know the underground boiler? Yes. 
1618. Did you ever examine it? 	1 never saw- it until this late accident. 
1649. From your own knowledge, do you know whether a fire occurred at that boiler before this last 
fire? No. 
1650. have you ever travelled the air-courses in the Lithgow Valley mine? I have never been any-
where excepting my own bord. 
1651. Did you take any part in the search for the late manager and his companions ? Yes; we went 
along the second cross-emit down to the borcl on the left-humd side ; then we turned again to the right 
and across as far as we could get, and made out,  way to the left again. We could not get further in that 
direction, so we went to the right and straight ahead. 
1052. You turned off to the cross-cut and went straight down to the east? Yes. We found the men 
lying about 10 yards from the heading. 
1653. Have you formed any opiuiou as to how the men caine to be in that position? Well, I think they 
had gone down as far as they could, and their lamps going out for want of oil, they lost their way in 
the endeavour to get out. 
1654. Was the air in the passage where the bodies were found as piircm and breathable as in the return P 
I think they were found in time returns. 
1655. I understood you to say off the return P No, TO yards up the return. 
1656. Before you went in with the search party for Younger and Rowe, had Mr. Turnbull directed fresh 
air into that portion of time workings P So far as I know, the did. We opened the stoppings and closed 
them according to his direction. 
1657. Do you tliiiilc his action had any influence on the character of time ventilation when you arrived at 
the bodies P I think it must have had, because we could live in the air, and the mcii were (lead when we 
found them. 
1658. It is a matter of conjecture as to why they were found in that position, is it not? Yes. 

Plan examined for the purpose of indicating where time bodies were found. Witness is mnicortaiti 
as to the position pomted out by Mr. Turnbull, but he believes it to he about the spot. 

1659. Well, Mr. Duncan, the work was abandoned, and the resolution was arrived at that the mine shoimici 
be closed up-is that so P Yes. 
1660. Did you hear anything about any stopping0  having been surreptitiously opened P No, I do not 
know anything about it. 
1661. Well, with regard to this meeting of the men which resulted in their volunteering to put out the 
fire if the mine were re-opened-do you know anything about that P It was reported to me. 1 think 
it was Archie Dune who told me that the men were imp at the pit, and were going to volunteer to put 
the fire out ; I said I would do my best to assist with the others ; I was not present when it was put to 
the meeting, but I understood that the miners were to talce the mimatter into their own hands, and that 
if they succeeded in putting the fire out they would be compensated by the Company. I agreed to go 
with the majority. After we obtained permission to re-open the tunnel we assembled and took the 

576-K 	 shifts. 

Mr. 
J. Duncan. 

6 May, issa. 
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Mr. 	shifts. There were eight men in each shift I think; I was one of the first, and there were four men 
J. Duncan. picked for leaders. 

1662. Who picked them? I do not know. They were down in the tunnel, and four men were called in; 
6 May, 1886 think Kirkwood and G-ibson were among the number, I forget the others. The leaders took no more 

special interest in the work than the men. 
1663. In doing this work, did you agree to take whatever risk attended it? Well, I knew what the 
work was, but apprehended no danger; I knew that the only thing to contend against was the smoke. 
1664. Did you not consider that in putting out the fire some danger might arise? It never struck me. 
1665. At the same time you took your own risk P Oh, yes; I consider that I was running my own. 
risk. 
1666. Well, the miners having arranged their own work, did time owners show any concern for their 
safety? I think the men had it nearly all their own way, working the thing in a practical manner; the 
owners were in occasionally. I do not think they apprehended any danger. Mr. Gell was right in the 
midst of it, and if he had apprehended any danger I suppose he would not have been there. 
1667. Did they counsel you not to run any risk? Yes. Mr. Wilton said he would rather lose the mine 
than ever hear of a man's head being hurt. 
1668. Did you obtain all the materials you required for carrying out the operations? Yes, we had 
everything we wanted. 
1669. Well, the work proceeded in this methodical manner till you got down and approached the 
neighbourhood of the boiler, did it not? Yes. 
1670. When you approached the boiler and the cross-roads at Tyndall's heading, what appearence did the 
tunnel present? it was quite clear behind; sometimes there was a little smoke in the roof. 
1671. There was a fall opposite the boiler? Yes, a heavy fall. 
1672. Do you think it blocked the air-course? Yes, I think it did to a certain extent. 
1673. Did you keep both furnaces going? Yes, and obtained plenty of air for the purpose of our 
operations. In fact when we put on the second furnace it turned the flame of the lamp. We directed 
our operations to Tyndall's heading, because we saw we could get a direct return for the air. There was 
a fire in Tyndall's heading. The stopping was 10 yards off the main tunnel; we put the hose on to it; and 
opened the stopping at the mouth of Tyndall's heading, which gave us relief, the smoke passing round to 
the furnance. 
1674. Did you see any fire at the large fall in the main tunnel? Yes, we saw some fire there. 
1675. What did you see at the boiler? We saw fire on the right-hand side of the boiler. 
1676. Did you observe any fire to the left-hand in the old workings? Not just then. 
1677. When did you observe it? A day or two after that a man named Hyde said he could see fire in 
that direction. There was a stopping down about 9 yards back from the boile. 
1678. Was this on the main tunnel? Yes. We did not see any fire that time; but the next shift 
opened the stoppings and applied the hose, and, as we thought, put out the fire. A day or two after that 
a fire was discovered further up the heading. Of course it was opened in the same manner Tops were 
cut down and the hose played upon it, but without effect. 
1679. Was that fire still burning when the fatal catastrophe occurred? Yes, so far as I know. 
1680. Up to this time, was every precaution taken for your safety? Oh, yes, but I could not see any 
danger. The only thing I saw to be rather afraid of was the roof. 
1681. Did you take precautions to ascertain the condition of the roof? Yes; we had a long iron rod to 
sound it, and put props in occasionally to support it. 
1682. Did the Inspectors of Mines visit youe Yes, and remained with us two or three hours at a time. 
1683. Then you have no complaint to make of the Inspectors of Mines so far as the performance of their 
duties went? No; so far as I know they did everything they could to put the fire out, and they used to 
caution the men occasionally. I quite believe they performed their duty. 
1684. Coming to the catastrophe, can you tell us about that? Well, when the men were engaged 
putting the canvas up to carry the air into the main tunnel, I had just relieved Williani Mantle about 
five minutes previously. He said, Some of you boys come to the pump," and I went to the hose. The 
men behind me were putting the bratticing on. I was just going to shout to the men to knock off, as we 
were going to have something to eat, when I heard somebody shout, and turning round I saw some canvas 
fall away, and the men shouted to me to run. Then the other brattice gave way. The steam from the 
fire used to play on the brattice, which was smoking and hot, and it fell on my arm. It came away on the 
top of me, burning me, and I could not fight my way through, but I managed to get out and run against 
the pump; then a rush of air came through, and I got down on my knees and crawled along. 
1685. Was it a strong rush of wind? It was. Before the rush of wind I heard a noise like a dead sort 
of report, something like a cannon going off at a good distance; that was followed by another noise, but not 
so loud. By this time I was making tracks for the skips. 
1685a. What did you think these two reports were caused by? I had no time to think about reports or 
anything else. 
1686. As you proceeded up the tunnel, what took place next? When I got up Norwood was feeling for 
the rapper-wire in the tunnel; he said, "I cannot find this wire" (the signal wire), and I jumped into 
the last skip beside Buzza. The men were shouting that the tunnel mouth was closed in. 
1687. Why did they think that? I did not think much about it. The air was not very bad then. I 
passed Norwood sitting on the road. At this time choke-damp was coming in very strong down the 
tunnel. I was crawling on my hands and knees as well as I could, getting weaker every moment. Then 
I came to Mantel, Rowe, and Buzza; Mantel was gasping for breath; he was pleading with Rowe and 
Buzza not to leave him. I went past, and had struggled about 20 yards further, when Mantel 
said: "I cannot go on; I am done." Rowe said, I am done, too." I was creeping along as fast as I 
could, but at last I felt that I could not go any further. I told Rowe to lay aside out of the way. Finally 
I got hold of the rope, and I knew no more till I got outside. The skips went by, and I tried to grasp 
the last one, but I could not get up. I got hold of the rope again, and I held on till the skips stopped. I 
received a good supply of air from underneath the skips. At last, after a great trouble, I met 
Campbell proceeding down the tunnel; I told him that the men were down there; then someone took me 
out of the tunnel mouth. 
1688. You say the rush of air was preceded by two reports? Yes; there was a report first, then a rush 
of air, then another report. 
1689. What po8ition of the mine did they come from? They came down the tunnel. 	 1690. 
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1690. Can YOU say which side of the tunnel? No. 	 Mr 
1691. Was the rush of air attended by any flash or flame? I never saw anything of the kind. 	 J. Dunc. 
1692. Did some of the force get expended about the boiler? Yes. 
1693. In proceeding up the tunnel, did you see any red-hot coals? Yes, in two places. 	 6 May, 1886. 
1694. Opposite where? I cannot say that. 
1095. Was there a large quantity of live coal? There were three or four pieces scattered over the 
tunnel. 
1696. Can you ascribe that rush of air to any cause? Well, the only reason 1 could give is that there 
must have been an explosion. 
1697. I{ow do you know it proceeded from an explosion? 1 cannot prove it. 
1698. in your experience in mining, have you ever seen the effects of a heavy fall-have you ever felt a 
heavy wind blast P Yes, I have, at Home, at Westwood; everything fell before the rush of wind; the 
lights were blown out, but there was no black-damp. 
1699. Have you ever seen any gas in this mine? Never. 
1700. When you stated that an explosion occurred, that is only your opinion P Yes. 
1701. Did you ever think of the possibility of its being (Tue to a heavy fall of rock? Yes, that might 
have been the cause of it. 
1702. Have you ever heard of pillars being taken out to the left tunnel? No. 
1703. Do you know whether the pillars to the left of the tunnel have been robbed or split? No; I have 
not been down there at. all. 
1704. It is a strong roof, I believe? Yes. 
1705. Does the fact that you have not seen gas in this mine raise doubts in your mind as to the improb- 
ability of an explosion having taken place? Well, so far as I am concerned, I thought that perhaps a fall 
had taken place on the left-hand side, which would have a tendency to prevent the smoke going away, and 
it caused it to accumulate beinnd, and then perhaps a fall came and burnt through the stoppings. 
1706. But would a fall, forcing smoke out through the stoppings, constitute an explosion? I do not 
know that it would constitute an explosion; I never saw any explosive gas in that mine. 
1707. Do you think explosive gas could exist in the proximity of a fire? I do not know. 
1708. Do you know whether fire-damp will explode when a light is applied to it? Yes, I know that. 
1709. Do you know whether it is likely or possible for fire-damp to exist in proximity to a large under- 
ground fire and not explode? Yes, up to a certain time. 
1710. Have you ever seen or known smoke to explode? No. 
1711. Have you ever seen or known smoke to be used to put out a fire? No. 
1712. Do you know that it is done? I should think it might be. 
1713. Would choke-damp put out fire? I think it would. 
1714. Then if smoke is coniposed, for the greater part, of choke-damp, do you think it would be likely to 
put out a fire? Yes, if in sufficient quantity. 
1715. Do you think this accident could have been foreseen or prevented? No, I do not. 
1716. Do you think, from the care and anxiety that the manager and inspectors were showing for your 
safety, that they would have been likely to forewarn you of danger if they had supposed it to exist? 
Certainly. 
1717. Mr. .Yeilson.] Was the first rush of wind you experienced perfectly fresh? Well, I could scarcely 
tell as to that, owing to my being entangled in the canvas; but when I got outside of it I thought it was 
like Paradise. 
1718. That is, you judge by comparison? Yes. 
1719. After the second rush you found the black-damp, or whatever it was, coming down upon you? Yes, 
mixed with the fresh air, until we got to the skips. 
1720. How many stoppings were blown out? I was in the dark, and could not see anything. 
1721. It was the out-by stoppings that were blown out, was it not? Yes. 
1722. ./1[m-. Usher.] Do I understand you to say that you never saw fire-damp in the colliery you worked 
in at Home? Well, I was only a. boy at the time. 
1723. Did they not use safety-lamps P They used Jordie lamps with time lamp inside. 
1724. Mi'. Jones.] Have you any kaowledge of pillars being taken out in the direction where you heard 
the report coming from P Not in the least. 
1725. lJfr. Davies.] Could they have been taken out \VithoUt your knowing it? Oh, yes I had not been 
working there at all. 
1726. Mr. Jones.] What was the size of the pillars where you were working? About 20 yards. 
1727. Mr. Swiimburn.] Did you ever see any one bord holing into another? No; they were just about 
the usual size, 20 yards. 
1728. .A&. Usher.] Were they never less than that. P They were not exact to a foot. 
1729. Mr. Jones.] If the bords exceeded their width, was there any complaint made? Yes; some of the 
men were taken off occasionally for doing so. 
1730. Mi-. Davies.] Who controlled the operations when you went to the pit? The Company gave power, 
I think, to Mr. Campbell to instruct. 
1731. Well, did lie control operations? To a certain extent lie did; but; lie knew that be could do nothing 
in the case, as the men understood exactly what to do. 
1732. Do you mean to say that the men did what they thought proper, or did the leader of the shift 
control the shift P Well, lie was working time same as the other men ; all they had to do was to carry the 
canvas in. Every man was anxious to proceed with time work. 
1733. Did the inspectors watch over votn safety? Yes. 
1734. No once forced you to enter the mine P No; I went it, with the ulajority. 
1735. Previous to this, did you ever have any conversation with the inspectors as to the safety of the 
undertaking? I never said anyth ilig to them more than passing the time of day ; they could do nothing 
in the case whatever. 
1736. Do you know who the men were who went as a deputation to the proprietors to ask permission to 
re-open the mine? Archibald Dune was one, and there were some others whom I do not recollect. 
1737. Then there was no pressura brought to beam' upon you? No, none whatever. 
173.8. Then if anything had happened lo veil you would have had none to blame but yourself? Well, we 
never dreamt of anything L)ut I suppose we tool.; whatever risk there might be. 

1739. 
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Mr. 	1739. Mr. Usher.] Did you never expect to get any pay? After the first day or two I did. 
J. Duncan. 1740. Did you ever work in the in-by side of the boiler? Yes. 

1741. Did you ever observe any smoke in the main air-course? No ; I never was in the air-course on 
6 May, 1886. the other side. 

Robert Davies sworn and examined :- 

Mr.R Davies. 1742. President.] What is your occupation? I am an innkeeper at present. 
--"-. 1743. But before that, what was your business or occupation? I was a miner. 

6 May, 1886. 1744. How long ago is that? Two years ago, to the very day. 
1745. Where did you work at that time? In the Lithgow Valley Colliery. 
1746. In what capacity? I was deputy under John Doig. 
1747. Who succeeded you? Mr. Passrnore. 
1748. Were you deputy when the underground boiler was put in 	I was. 
1749. Did you superintend the operations? Only by instructions from the manager. 
1750. What instructions did you receive ? He was there all the time attending to it himself. 
1751. Was the boiler placed in an ordinary bord? Yes. 
1752. Did you lift the bottom coal ? No ; the bottom coal was not lifted. 
1753. Did you protect the boilers from the pillars ? No 
1754. How was the smoke conducted from the boiler? At first it came out and struck against the roof. 
1755. Did you take down the top? No. 
1756. Then it struck the top ? Yes; and he thought it advisable to have earthenware to run the smoke 
to the water. There were about 10 feet square of the roof taken down where the smoke came out of the 
mouth at that time. 
1757. How long was the boiler in operation before you ceased to act as deputy? About eighteen mouths. 
1758. Did you consider that boiler safe? No, I did not. 
1759. Did you mention your opinion to Doig? I said we would have bother with it. 
1760. What did he say? He said he did not think so. 
1761. Did any fire occur in your time about the boiler? Yes; two fires occurred. 
1762. When was that? I cannot give the date. 
1763. Where did the fires occur ? In the slack. Sparks from the flue dropped on the soot and kindled 
it. 	That is how I account for the fire. 
1764. Did you ever travel the return way from the end of the clay pipes to the furnace? No ; not these 
past five or six years, because it was so full of water. 
1765. Might that water not rise and cut off the air return? No; because it would run to the other work-
ings before it got high enough to do any damage that way. There were about 20 inches or 2 feet 
between the water and roof. 
1766. Do you think that that was a good way to conduct the return-way across water? No; I did not 
think it was. 
1767. Could you not have made a return air-way parallel to and nearer the tunnel? Yes; it could have 
been taken alongside tbe tunnel to within 1 chain of the boiler. 
1768. Where did you learn your business, Mr. Davis? In the Newcastle district and here. 
1769. Then you were never a miner in the old country? No, never. 
1770. You have had no experience of fire or choke clamp or any gas given off in mines, have you, Mr. 
Davis? I have experienced black-damp in that colliery. It came from the out-let running into Brown's 
colliery. 
1771. Out of the encroachment ? Yes. 
1772. Does the water flow from the Lithgow Valley mine to Eskbank? Not very freely. 
1773. Do you know whether any pillars were taken out on the left-hand side tunnel? Yes. 
1774. About what area would you say? About 1 chain or 2 chains. 
1775. How many pillars were taken out 	About three pillars. 
1776. Was that any distance from the boiler or tunnel? [Plan examined, and witness pointed out the 
locality.] A short distance to the north and west of the pillar the tops have fallen over a considerable 
area. 

[Examination of plan continued, and witness, in pointing out the course of the air-way, indicates a 
spot, about 60 yards from the left-hand furnace, where the water rises to within 12 inches of the 
roof.] 

1777. Did you consider this mine a dangerous one to work in? No, I did not. 
1778. Have you ever seen any gas in this mine? No; I have not seen any gas-only black-damp. 
1779. Yes, that is in all mines. Was this a well-ventilated mine in your time ? Yes. 
1780. Did you ever make any complaint as to ventilation? No. 
1781. Did you ever receive any complaint from the men? Occasionally; but whatever might be com- 
plained of would be rectified in a few minutes. 
1782. Then there was no serious complaint? No, none whatever. 
1983. Did the Government inspectors pay you visits in your time? Yes. 
1784. Who were the Government inspectors ? I believe they were Mr. Dixon, Mr. Lewis, and Mr. 
Rowan. 
1785. Did they make a minute inspection of the mine? Yes; they inspected all they could. 
1786. Was your attention ever drawn to the furauce, as to whether it was of ample capacity, for example? 
The furnace that is worked from the boiler does not interfere with the ventilation at all. 
1787. As to the other one? There was ample capacity in that. 
1788. Have you ever been in any other mines in the district ? No. 
1789. When did you resume your connection with this colliery? Did you come to the colliery when von 
heard an accident had occurred? Yes; I came to see Doig when I heard that he was alive. While I was 
there Mr. Gell and Wilton gave me orders to go into the mine and do what I could. 
1790. Did they tell you Mr. Turnbuil was in the mine ? Yes ; and I was to get time plan from him, as I 
would know all the roads better than he could possibly do by time plan. I went in and met Mr. Turnbull 
and asked him for the plan, but he would not give it to me. I told him that I had been instructed to do 
the best I could under the circumstances, and that I would give him help to the best of my ability. 

1791. 
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1791. What did he say P lie did not listcit to inc. 	
Mr.R.Davies1 

1792. And what did you do then ? I went in the niaiii heading to where the sinolte was accumulating, 
and Ifound three men therenamely, David Owen, Peter Owen, and William Hall 	

6 May, 1886. 

1793. \Vhat did you do then? 1 did the same as Ihad done previously, to get the fire out when the 
smoke accumulated in my own time. \Ve found that the right-hand furnace was stronger in power than 
time little One; I got to the back of the furnace, opened the doors, leaving the air to come out in that way, 
so as to give the other a chance. 
1794. You thought the fire was behind the boiler P Yes, I did. 
1795. When was this previous occasion you refer to? About two and it  half years ago. 
1796. how did you discover that fire? I accidentally went iii on the Sunday and found smoke in the main 
heading, the same as this time. 
1797. i[ow far up did it come on that occasion? About 2 or 3 chains up. 
1798. Then it did not come up so far as on this occasion? No. 
1799. Well, what did you (10 then to put out the former fire ? I opened the doors of the right-hand 
furnace and stirred up the fires in the left-hand furnace, and 1 found that it drew away the smoke, and 
that I was enabled to get down, and we then put water on the fire; it was at the end of the pipes, about 
30 feet down. 
1800. Was it a large fire? There was about a ton of slack burning. 
1801. Did you find much difficulty in putting it out? No, not much ; we had a pumpuig engine, and 
used that to throw water on it. 
1802. How long did it take you to extinguish it? About a couple of hours. 
1803. \'erv well, coinuig to the last occurrence, I believe you took upon yourself the responsibility of 
undoing what Mr. Turnbull had (lone? Yes; I was instructed to do so. 
1804. Were you instructed to go contrary to Mr. Turnbull',  instructions P I did not know what his 

instructions were. 
1805. 1 thought you said the plans were with him? Yes, so i aid. 
1806. Did Mr. Gell tell you to take the power out of Mr. Turnbull's hands? No ; he told me to go down 
and do the best I could. 
1807. I[owever, you took down a stopping on the right-hand side, I believe P I opened the furnace-door 
and pulled time canvas off the stopping at No. 2 cross-cut to send the air by the nearest cut. 
1808. Had time men been got out at this time P This was 3 or -1 o'clock in the afternoon. 
1809. Do you know whether considerable progress had been made inptitting downthe smoke? The 
smoke was in the same place as on the Sunday, according to the men who were there. 
1810. Mr. Turnbull tell,  us that the smoke proceeded down at the rate of 40 yards an hour, and when lie 
Caine at 8 o'clock in the morning lie was within 3 chains of the boiler P 1 will show you the exact spot 
where it was. (Diet oted bq President.) 

[Plan e.va;nined. Mr. Davies, referring to the plait, stated that when lie arrived at 3 o'clock in the 
afternoon the smoke stood in the main tunnel at about 10 ehahis from time fire, and that be 
took upon himself the responsibility of opening the door of the right-hand furnace, andof 
opening time canvas in front of No. 1 cross-cut, and thus cutting off the air from the mine ; at 
the same time lie stirred and put fresh coals on the left-hand furnace. Witness explained 
that this was the mode lie had adopted it the first fire, two and a half years ago, to clear the 
mimic of smoke.] 

1811. When you extinguished time formner fire, did it ever occur to you that it would be prudent to 
remove the slack where it occurred ? The manager was with me in the works extinguishing the fire. 
1812. Yes, but did it ever occur to you that it would be prudent to do so? I thought it would be advis- 
able to shift the slack. 
1813. Did you say anything to this effect to the manager? No, 1 did not. 
1814. I cannot understand you people at all? The mnanager was present with inc at the time, and did not 
want me to advise him. 
1815. Did you think this was a damigerous boiler after that? Well, I think it is a dangerous boiler to be 
in where it is. 
1816. Would the tops remaining there be a source of danger? At the end of the pipes they were pulled 
down to the rocks ; that was where the flue caine out. 
1817. Where were the ashes put that you drew from the furnace? They were drenched and put on 
one side. 
1818. Were they not takemi out of the mine? No; they were put on the road mostly. 
1819. Did you consider there was any danger from time ashes being accumulated P No danger was 
experienced in my time. 
1820. Is that all you kmiow about the accident? Did the inspectors say anything when they discovered 
what you had done? They censured me. 
1821. Did you offer any defence? Yes; I offered time same defence 1 have offered now, that I had been 
instructed to go into the midne and do what I could in the light of my experience. 
1822. Did. Mr. Turnbull say anything? Yes; he censured inc in the same way. 
1823. What was done aftW your action was discovered? I cannot tell what was done ivlmen I was not in 
the mimic ; 1 only know that I went away when they censured me. 
1824. Did you ever return to the mine ? No. 
1825. Mr.Dacies.] Did i\lr. Gell or Mr. Wilton say anything to you about takimmg down the stopping? 
No, neither of them. 
1826. Did they see you? They knew about it, I suppose. 
1.827. Mr. Jones.] Does not the water flow up under the pipes you have spoken of P Had the water not 
been there, would not the fire have taken a greater hold P \\Tehl,  yes, provided it had enough time it 
would have spread over a larger area. 
1828. Did you ever see the colliery plans while you were deputy under Doig ? Yes, dozens of times. 
1829. Did Doig do his own surveying? Yes. 
1830. Was there anybody else ? -No; excepting Mr. Gell on one occasion, who was afraid of this 
encroachment. 
1831. 1-Lave you any km.iowledge of the pillars near No. 2 cross-cut P Passimmg through the.pihlamu where
the men were found, were those pillars all right ? Ves, hit pillars were all right there, opposite where 
the smoke was at the time the roof was down on the right-hand side. 	 14i2. 



78 	 itotAl, COMMISSION ON COLLIERIES-MINUTES OF EVIDENCE. 

Mr.R. DaTieS. 1832. JW'. Swinbi&mn.] Did you ever have any conversation at all about the returns? No; I took my 
t-"-' instructions, and did no more. 

6 May, 1886. 1833. Did you ever have a conversation with the management or manager about the return from the 
furnace to the boiler? No, not exactly a conversation. 
1834. Still you were not satisfied. Why did you not report to some official about it. Did you not think 
it was your duty? I did report it to the manager, and that nas all I cculd do. 
1835. Then you did report it? Yes; I reported it to the manager. 
1836. .Mr. Yeilson.] Assuming that it is considered necessary to drown out this fire, when the water is 
put on a level sufficiently high for that purpose, would it not also flood out the Eskbank Colliery? The 
water must rise more than 17 or 18 inches at least before it flows over to Eskbank Colliery. 
1837. Is the Eskbank mine to the dip of the Lithgow Valley Colliery? Yes. (Dictated by 
President.) 

[On eammination 0/plan. From the encroachment made on the Lithgow Valley side from Esk- 
bank there is a narrow heading driven down along the boundary to join another heading 
that at a previous time had been driven up towards this encroachment. The water in this 
boundary road stands within 17 inches of a point where it would run into and inundate the 
Eskbank Colliery.] 

1838. Mr. Cuuley.] When you met Mr. Turnbull after going into the mine there appeared to be a dis-
agreement between you. Did it not occur to you that the best thing to do under the circumstances would 
have been to go out again and consult the proprietors, considering that Mr. Turnbull was in charge? I 
did not know that he was in charge. 
1839. When he would not give up the plan, did it not occur to you that the best thing to do would be 
to go out? I tried to save the mine. 

.RIDAY, 7 MAY, 1886. 

THE PRESIDENT, 	 Mn. SWINBURIN, 
MR. USHER, 	 Mit. CURLEY, 
Mit. THOMAS, 	 Mit. DAVIES, 
Mit. NEILSON, 	 Mn. JONES. 

Robert 0-rant sworn and examined 
Mr. R. Grant. 1840. President.] What are you? I am a miner. 
t-'-s 1841. How long have you been occupied in that calling? Twenty-one years. 

7 May, 1886. 1842. Where? Most of the time in Scotland. 
1843. Have you ever had any experience of fire-damp? Yes; I have worked where there has been fire-
damp for over fourteen years. 
1844. Have you ever actually experienced it? Yes; while I was working in a large colliery in the 
Monckland district. 
1845. How long have you been employed in this colliery? Seven years, most of the time in the Lithgow 
Valley mine, and ten months at Eskbank colliery. 
1846. As an experienced miner, have you observed any material difference in the mode of conducting the 
workings in Eskbank colliery and in the Lithgow Valley mine? No, I have not. 
1847. Do you consider the Lithgow Valley colliery a safe or an unsafe mine? I considered it safe during 
the time I was there, but I have not been there during these last fourteen months, having been laid up 
with rheumatic fever. 
1848. Had you any fault to find or any complaint to make in regard to the ventilation? Once or twice I 
had occasion to complain about the ventilation at Tyndall's heading, but the matter was remedied the 
next day. 
1849. Was it a serious complaint? Well, I do not know what you would call a serious complaint. It 
is not nice to work in the midst of bad air. 
1850. Did you ever see fire-damp in the Lithgow Valley mine? No. 
1851. If fire-damp existed in the mine, where would be the most likely spot to find it? It would always 
be found in the highest level. 
1852. While engaged at the Lithgow Valley mine, did you ever work to the left or north side of the 
tunnel? Yes; I have worked on both sides, from the top flat right down towards the lower level. 
1853. Is the top fiat situated to the rise of or above the underground boiler? Yes. 
1854. Does the top fiat approach the Eskbank boundary on the left-hand side? Yes; and goes forward 
to the boundary. 
1855. You have heard of the encroachment, that is the communication between Eskbank and the Lithgow 
Valley mine, have you not? Yes. 
1856. Do you know whether the encroachment came from Eskbank or the Lithgow Valley mine? I dc 
not think it came from Eskbank, for I have heard it said that Doig wanted a place to take his water away. 
1857. Do you know the size of the pillars in this mine? I do not think there are any two of one size. 
1858. What is the largest size? Some of the pillars, 1 believe, measure 16 yards, while others only 
measure 4 yards; some are larger and some are smaller. This is the case all through the left-hand 
workings. Some of the pillars, I believe, only measure 3 feet. 
1859. Do you know whether the pillars were taken out for a considerable area from the left-hand side of 
the tunnel? I know a good many were taken out. 
1860. Do you not think it an extraordinary thing that some pillars should be as much as 16 yards, and 
others in the vicinity only 3 feet? 1 had nothing to do with that. 
1861. But was it not an extraordinary proceeding? Well, 1 should not have done it. 
1862. Was this area of pillars that you speak of as taken out contiguous to the Eskbank boundary? Yes. 
1863. Were any pillars taken out close to the main tumel? Not that I am aware of. 
1864. Have you ever known any of these large pillars being afterwards split? Yes. 

1865. 
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1865. Have you split them? Yes; we split the pillars 7 or 8 yards, the width of the working bord. 	Mr. R. Grant. 
1860. Did you work during the operation of putting out the fire P No. 
1867. Have you ever heard of any fall-; occurring in the situation to which you have been referring, that 7 May, 1886. 
is, when you were working in the mine? There was one heavy fall close to where I was working about 
three years ago. Coal came away to the rock. 
1868. If a strong body of rock broke, would it break suddenly? No; it would give you some warning. 
You would generally hear a crashing sound before the fall. 
1869. You are positive then that for a considerable area of the north workings the pillars have been 
systematically left of small size? Yes; I have seen two men working opposite to one another and holing 
through. 
1870. What part was that? More to the right-hand side of Tyndall's heading, about 60 yards from the 
main heading. 
1871. Then the pillars are left with more care now than they were some time back? Yes. 
1872. Have you ever seen signs of the pillars crushing? No. 
1873. il/i-. IsTeiison.]  Has you experience been confined to Scotland and the Lithgow Valley mine? Yes. 
1874. What was the nature of the coal you worked in Scotland, hard or soft? Both hard and soft. 
1875. Did you work pillar or stall? I have worked both long wall and pillar. 
1876. This is a very open seam, I believe? Yes. 
1877. Concerning the statement as to the late manager Doig driving towards Eskbank to get rid of the 
water-had they any means of puinpilig the water in the Lithgow Valley mine P They had this boiler 
for pumping the water up from the main heading to the lower workings. 
1878. Was that water puuiped to the surface? No; it never came to the surface. 
1879. Do you know if this pump was constantly kept going P It was kept going when it would work, 
but sometimes it would not work for as long as four or five hours at a stretch. 
1880. Seeing that the water was not pumped1 to the surface, where would it go to? It would flow to Esk- 
bank, 
1881. You are quite certain that pillars have been taken out on the left-hand side? Yes. 
1882. Mr. Jones.] You say these places were driven to Eskbank for the express purpose of getting rid of 
the water? Yes; it was the common talk among the miners at the time. 
1883. Was this done before time straight-down road was troubled with water? No; it was afterwards. 
1884. Then do you only learn this from talk that took place among the miners? No; there were men 
working night and day at it. 
1885. Mr. Davies.] And were the Eskbank people aware of it P That I cannot say. 
1886. Mr. Citrley.] Was this communication with Eskbank that you have spoken about made prior to the 
erection of the boiler? Yes. 
1887. Mr. Jones.] How long? 1 cannot say how long. 
1888. Then how do you trace the express purpose that Doig had in getting rid of the water when no boiler 
was erected P There was a pump connected with a spindle of the fly-wheel, and when an engine was 
going it pumped the water from the main heading. 
1889. Mr. .Neilsoiz.] What was the character of the roof above the top-coal? Strong rock. 
1890. lJfr. Curley.] Do you know the nature of the return from the boiler up to the left-hand furnace up- 
cast? I cannot tell the state of it at present; it never was in a good state. I do not think anyone 
could travel it properly, because it. was full of water, and in some places we had to cut the top-coal to leave 
sufficient space for the air to pass. 
1891. Supposing a large fall had taken place, do you think that a very large displacement of air could 
have come from that quarter between the boiler and the left-hand furnace up-cast on to the main tunnel? 
No, I do not see how it was possible. 
1892. President.] Could an explosion have come? Yes. 
1893. Are you aware that fire has never been traced within 7 or 8 or 10 chains of that? I do not 
know that. 
1894. If you were told it was so, would you alter your opinion? I do not know how that could be told. 
1895. But there were men down there, and you were not? Well, T do not know. 
1896. Mr. Yeilson.] Assuming it to have been an explosion, where would the generated gas, when it was 
ignited, go to? It would go about the workings, I suppose, but the flame might go round about and still 
not go near the men. 
1897. President.] Indeed, what is the usual course of an explosion? Always against the air. 
1898. If you were told that in this case it came with the air, would you see reason to alter your opinion? 
I cannot say, I am sure. 
1899. The evidence goes to show that the force of the blast came down the main tunnel? The force of 
the explosion came out of the mouth of time tunnel. 
1900. Did you see it? My own father tells me he was pitched out 50 or 60 yards. 
1901. Your father was an overman? Yes. 
1902. You have formed a very decided opinion without sufficient data? It is only my own opinion, and 
every man is allowed to have an opinion of his own. 
1903. Mr. Gurley.] Do you know whether Doig or any other person in the mine went on the top of this 
large fall you speak of as being near the encroachment in order to ascertain whether there was anything 
like explosive gas there P Not that I am aware of. 

William Hammond sworn and examined 
1904. President.] What is your occupation? 1 am a wheel-roller by trade, but a miner by occupation. 	Mr. 
1905. Were you employed at the Lithgow Valley Colliery P Yes, for three years; I was engaged as a W.Hammond. 
drayman. 
1906. Had you any previous experleilce of coal-working? No; I was never in a mine before that one. 7 May, 188. 
1907. What do you know about the first accident-where were you? 1 was going to work at 4 o'clock in 
the morning to bale water. I went inside the tunnel as far as I could, but 1 was stopped by the smoke, 
and returning went to the day boss, Mr. IPassmore, and told him there was something wrong. He said he 
was aware of it, that he had been in there, and that I was to go in and fire the furnace. 
1908. Did you do so? Yes, I went in and fired the furnace, as he told me. 

1909 
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Mr. 	1909. Did you know then that Mr. Doig and his companions were inside the mine? Not until breakfast 
W.Hammond. time; it was a good bit afterwards ; I cannot say what time it was exactly; there was then a pa1ty in 

search of them, consisting of Hopkins, Rodham, and Nowood. 
7 May, 1886. 1910. And where did you go? We went into the second cross-cut and got in the air-way and travelled 

down a good distance. I then told my companions that I would not go any further, as I had been in the 
furnace where the gas was strong, and felt weak. 
1911. How many pillars down from the cross-cut did you go ? I cannot say exactly-about a of a mile, 
I suppose. 
1912. And then you returned ? Yes, I returned then and went to look after the furnace again. I fired 
the furnace as long as I could, and found I was obliged to go out. 
1913. 31r. Davies.] At what time did you speak to Mr. Passmore? It was getting on towards 5 o'clock. 
He said he had been there all night and felt sick. 
1914. Did you see Robert Drurie in the mine? I saw him just as I came out of the cross-cut. 
1915. Did you have any conversation with him? Yes; he remarked to me, "You should not have gone 
in there, as I have been in and fell down three times myself." 

George Hall sworn and examined 

Mr. G. Hall. 1916. President.] What is your occupation ? I am a miner. 
1917. How long have you been a miner? About eight years now. 

7 May, 1886. 1918- Where have you been working lately? In Lithgow Valley Colliery. 
1919. Have you ever been out of the district? Yes. 
1920. Where, and in what part? I was employed in Bundemoona, on the Southern line. 
1921. As a miner? Yes, as a coal-miner; and also at Ringwood. 
1922. How long have you been working in the Lithgow Valley Colliery? I cannot say exactly how long 
I have been working there. 
1923. Well, about how long? About eight mouths, perhaps. 
1924. Were you employed as a coal-getter? Yes. 
1925. When were you last in the Lithgow Valley Colliery? It was on a Saturday; I do not remember 
the date. 
1926. Was it on February 14? I cannot say what date; I believe it was some day in February though. 
1927. When did you leave the mine on that day? About 540 p.m. My father, Buzza, and Riddle were 
with me. I came straight through the main tunnel. I was working through the south, and on going up 
the tunnel I recollect passing the underground boiler. 
1928. Did you observe anything in there? When I left my bord to go out there was smoke on this side 
of my bord. I said to father, "What is this ; I never knew anything like this before." Father said he 
did not know. I then came along, and when we came to the fiat we had to make way in order to get out. 
1929. Was the ventilation good at this time? Yes, but it was carrying smoke with it, and I had never 
observed smoke in that situation before. 
1930. In coming along the tunnel, did the air still contain smoke? Yes; I went to the boiler-door and had a 
look in, and there seemed to be smoke coming over the top from the flue. It seemed to be coming through 
the door on the left-hand side. 
1931. Was the smoke dense there? I did not take a great deal of notice. 
1932. Did you think it was unusual P I cannot say; I was never in that place before. 
1933. Did your father and Mr. Buzza go into the boiler? I do not know; they went ahead of us. We 
had no skip to fill. I do not think my father did go into the boiler; he was a little sick. I have never 
seen smoke in the main tunnel upon any previous occasion, and. I used to go past every night and every 
morning. I did not pass the boiler during the eight months because I was employed in the cross-cuts. 
1934. What took place after you had seen this smoke in the boiler? After I had looked in there I came 
out, and it was then about five or six minutes to 6, and I saw Mr. Fassmore, who was with a man named 
Henwood. I said. to Mr. Passmore, "There is a great smoke in there, and it seems to come from the 
boiler." 
1935. Did you tell Mr. Passm ore that smoke extended down the main tunnel? I told him it was past the 
flue. lie said, " All right," and that was all that passed. I was on night-work at the time. 
1936. What impression did you form when you inspected the boiler and saw the smoke coming out from 
behind it? I never took any more notice of it. 
1937. Did you not form any impression as to whether it was something coming from the boiler itself, and 
that there was a certain reason for it? I did not think a great deal about it at the time; it was apparently 
coming from the back of the boiler, and was of a blackish colour. 
1938. In the course of working in the mine, have you ever found reason to complain of the ventilation? 
No; I always had good air wherever I worked. 
1939. Did you ever suspect danger from this boiler? No. 
1940. Did you ever suspect danger from the existence of any poisonous gas? No. 
1941. Have you had any experience of choke-damp? I never saw it before this occasion. 
1942. Have you ever seen fire-damp? No, I have not. 
1943. With respect to this particular case, do I understand you have never had the curiosity to go into 
this boiler and see whether the coal was protected from the influence of the flames? No ; the first time 
I went there was the occasion I have mentioned when I put my head through the door and had a peep 
round. 
1944. Can you form any opinion as to the origin of this fire? No; I never formed any particular opinion 
about it. 
1945. Have you observed the character of the stoppings that have been put in in this colliery? No. 
1946. Do you know what the stoppings were constructed of? Yes, of slack; I have never seen any 
brickwork. 
1947. Did these slack stoppings answer their purpose, so far as you know? Yes. 
1948. Do you know what kind of stoppings are put in the adjoining works, Eskbauk I mean, and Vale 
of Clwydd? I d.on't know. 
1949. Have you ever put in any of these stoppings? Yes, a few. 
1950. What thickness were they? I do not know exactly; but I should say about 3 feet on the top. 

1951. 
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1951. Of course they would be much thicker on the bottom P Oh, yes. 	 Mr. G. hail. 

1952. Were you working at the fire when Mr Tnriihuil took ehare? No. 
1953. After the pit was sealed up ar.d re-opened again, were you one of those who were selected to work ? 7 May, 1886 
Yes. 
195 1.. Did you work the whole time 9 Yes. 
1955. I [ow was the work conducted, that is, what was the length of the shifts P Six hours. 
19,50. I [ow inaity men to each shift P Eight. 
1957. Was there at any time it greater number than eight men in a shift P There udght have been ten, 
but not more. 
1958. Was there a leader or deputy to each shift? Yes; a leader. 
1259. Do you recollect when you got down almost to the seat of the fire that you had to abandon the 
w-ork for a time? When I went to the fire first I kept away a good distance for a while till I could see 
what it wits; I could 1uist see the fire, bitt did not think there was any danger. 
19110. \\hat  were you dung ?The first time I went I was bratticing down with wood and camas. 
1 Oft. Did YOU have tunple ventilation P Yes. 
19(12. Was the force of ventilation sufficient to carry down the smoke P lea; it was sit flicicitt to iariy 
(VcrVtlt iii g before it we could get down to where the tire was. 
1911:1. \Vhat attipped YMW Inodrets event ittlIly P 1 do not know I went to Sydney after that, and liii 
not get hack till last Friday. 
lOG I. \otm had worked down the tunnel by means of lrafl icing until you got to Tviidall a cross-cut, then 
somnething happened which e.tnsed the work to be abandoned ; don't you know what that ivas P No, 
tion t. 
19(15. Did you know the work was abandoned for a time and the Govcrnmncitt inspectors resolved to close 
the pit up again? Yes; but I do not believe 1 was in at that time it was the shift before ours. 
1966. Was everything done that ought have been done to assist you in your piogreas P Yes. 
1967. ])it you got evervtlnng von wanted in the shape of material P We got everything we req tire!. 
190b. Did you know there was any danger in undertaking it work of that description, that is, re-openmg 
the pit P 1 did not see any danger. 
lOGO. Did you think there was no danger in Be appearance of the smoke on the lower flat 9 Yes ; no it 
1 got iii)  as far as the boiler. 
1951 1)o you not think there would be danger in a place choke-full of poisonous gas? Well, [suppose there 
would be; 1 felt it little hit uuiusiuitortable at first, but afterwards 1 did not care. The melt were aliXioitS 
that the pit should be re-opened, and there was IL nieetnig in coinmeetioit with he niattcr ; 1 was not 
bocselit myself, but said I would go uvitli the uiiioritv of the m= I believe a i'elolntiolt was passed that 
the owners should be requested to allow the tacit to extiilgiuisil the tire. 
1971.   Were you working at Tvndahl's heading when the aedcnt occurred P \\e were working OIL the 
left-hand side. 
1972. Did you ever hear the reports of falls anywhere in that direction P Yes; I have heard it few fills 
at the buIck to the left of the boiler. 
1973. Did they appear to be some distance Win the boiler P Yes ; one or two seemed to 1)3 stone dis- 
tance away. 
1971. Were the reports very loud 7 No, not very loud, it 1150(1 to drive the air hacic it little, also the 
snioke, which would come straight in our faces. I was working below the luntt ice, and the smoke muse,1 
to ('01110 up Tvndall'a heading. The pinup we had been working was close to the boiler, and the fire was 
bnnnng on the side of the boiler as I have mentioned ; then we got the iops (101111 and applied tim water; 
that was the last shift we worked ; it was on a Sunday. 
1975. Were the inspectors of co]iieries there dnvmg the course of operations 7 Yes ; they were there 
day and night. 
1976. Who was there? Messrs. Rowan and i\Iuta'kenzie, 
1977. Did 1\Ir. Rowan take an active part in superintending the operations? lea ; be used to be there 
pretty well all the time. 
1975. Did he assist von in any way P Yes. 
1979. Did he give you orders P Sometimes, 
1950. Was Mr. Campbell there at that the P ics, and Messrs. (hell and Wilton. 
loSt. Did the give YOU instructions what to do P They always told its to st(l)  if we saw any danger. 
1052. Did they show much concern for your safety 9 Yes ; they did everything they could, and said 
they did not want to see any more lives saeuiheed. 
1 9s3. Presideni.1 Then, from your knowledge, do you consider that the inspectors of collieries know 
their duties? Yes, I do. 
I 951. Did they share equal riAks with yourselves P Yes. 
1955. Did they ever shii nc their work P Certainly not. 
1 9sf. And they shared whatever danger there might be equally with yourself P Yes. 
1957. lies 31 t'. l\Iutckenze given von instructions P 	Yes, he hits in some tiuitgs. 	1 have kitowit loin to 
stop all 1ev, and very itigli all oil' night. 	lie took as act ire a pat as the Othel,s. 

'l'helt you have no fault to Ihil or ciutipleiuttl to make so fan as the inspectors are concerned P 
\dtie whmavever, 

I i)a9. They showed, in your opat 111. greet aimi iety to fiirt her the progress of the work and to protect you 
from danger P Yes. 
1ID0. I imndcrstaumd you to say thet von cannot speak as to the' cause of the accident, as you were not ire- 
semd in the mine at tie tutte P 	NO. 	1 may c:iv that I. ail in a \ollumttd':'r Counp:omv, aiti weitt to Sydney 
to be present at the Ilittamputent. 'l'ltat is why I was away it time time. 
1991.   Did you see the bodlies of the unfortunate Ineil who were killed P 	Yes, 1 saw all of them. I 
helped to take Mantle imonie. 
1992. Wt're YOU one of the relieving party that went iii to take thtenm out 9 No. 
I 993 What will the tppearunld'u' of the hodi 	Dii 'ot 'it' llvdlt' P 	No: 1 did not see momueii of lion, 
as he was qiii'hiv taken iuiuioe. 	I sew liucee. 	lie sie'lid'il to be sutithi'ri'd AN ith hituk-tiuttup and 
sitmoke. 
199 1. Did you see any cdolawo of Lnrniitg on any of the hodie 	The wily one I saw was that of Lance 
Allison, 	He was llmlm'nd'd a little On ltits tee auth lingers. 

571 -TA 	 1995. 
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Mr. G. Hall. 1995. Mr. Ourley.] Describe the appearance of the burns? His fingers looked as if they had. been 
burned. I believe he was using the hose, and possibly he got burned that way. 

7 May, 1886. 1996. Was his hair singed? No; I believe not. 
1907. JIr. Davies.] When you came out of the pit after seeing the smoke, who was it you reported. to? 
When I came out on the Saturday there was Mr. Passmore, and Mr. Younger with him. There were also 
two or three more present. I did not see who they were, whether working men or not; but I told Mr. 
Passinore there was a great smoke in the tunnel, and he said, "That's all right." 
1998. President.] Had you ever any occasion to make a complaint about the general conduct of the 
mine? No. 
1999. Mi. Curley.] Were you among the parties who first went in after the discovery of the smoke? 
Yes. 
2000. Were the inspectors present? Yes. 
2001. And the proprietors? Yes. 
2002. Did you ever hear them express an opinion as to the nature of the work? No ; but I heard the 
inspectors and Messrs. G-ell and Wilton say that if we saw any danger we were not to proceed. 

James Rowan sworn and examined :- 
Mr. J. Rowan. 2003. Pesident.] What is your profession, Mr. RowaI1? I am Inspector of Collieries for the 

Southern and Westeni Districts of the Colony of New South Wales. 
7 May, 1886. 2004. How long have you been engaged in mining pursuits? Since I was nine years of age-about 

thirty-five years of it. 
2005. Have you had extensive experience? Yes ; I have been through all branches of coal-inmmg, both 
at Home and abroad. 
2006. In the working of coal and ironstone you have had extensive experience? Yes. 
2007. In what district in the old country? In Scotland-in Lanarkshirc, Renfrcwshire, and StirIing 
shire. 
2008. During that time, have you had occasion to meet with fire-damp or explosive gas 	Yes; I have 
had a good deal of experience in fire-damp in Lanarkshire and Renfre\vshlre. 
2009. How often do you inspect the mines in your district, Mr. iowan? Every eight weeks, more or 
less. 
2010. You inspect the mines every eight or nine weeks as a rule ? Yes. 
2011. In the course of your professional duties you have visited Lithgow Valley Colliery ? Yes, I visit 
Lithgow in the regu1ir circuit of visits. 
2012. You visit it periodically? Yes. There is an interval of eight weeks between each inspection when 
all things go reularly 
2013. When did you make your last inspection before the first accident in February last? On December 
the 15th. 	 - 
2014. Then your next visit of inspection was almost due when that accident took place ? Yes; ; it was 
just about coming round. 
2015. Can you give us the date of the first accident? On February the 15th I received a telegram from 
the Examiner of Coal-fields that the Lithgow Valley Colliery was on fire, and I was there next morning. 
I got the telegram in Wollongong. I received it on the Monday, and was here on the Tuesday, and 
went down the mine. 
2010. On your arrival I suppose you heard that three men had lost their lives ? X es-Doig (the 
manager), Rowe, and Younger. 
201 7. On your arrival, what responsibility did you take ? Well, I took no particular responsibility, so 
far as that goes, except to go into the mine, and give assistance, to see if Ave could beat back the smoke. 
I worked hand-in-hand with the other men. 
2018. How long were you thus engaged ? From 2 o'clock till 6 on the Tuesday morning. 
2019. At that time-6 o'clock-what agreement was arrived at? 	It was agreed upon by the proprie- 
tors that it would be better to close up the mine. 
2020. Did you agree with them? Yes. 
2021. And accordingly the mine was closed up, I suppose ? Well, not at that time. Mr. Turnbull, the 
Manager of the Vale 4 Clwvdd Colliery, waited. on Mr. Dixon, the Inspector for time Northern District, 
and myself, and said that the men of the Lithgow Valley Colliery were very anxious that they should be 
allowed to go up the No. 2 cross-cut; and after he had laid down his plan in connection with tim method 
to be employed. in getting up there, ho said he only required six hours in which to accomplish the task. 
We agreed to allow him to make the trial, limiting the time to the six hours he had asked for. His object 
was to get up to the face of No. 2 cross-cut in order to see what difficulties there might be in the way of 
putting up a stopping there. 
2022. That is practically what has been done now? Yes. 
2023. Did you have any power to stop him from doing so P No; when pressure was put upon us we 
agreed that the six hours' time should be allowed for the trial, and Mr. Mackenzie and myself stood there 
to see that 4,000 cubic feet of air passed up the cross-cut from the main tunnel. At the same time we 
had two men watching where the smoke was, to see if it came back at all. 
2024. Then, Mr. iowan, what did you do? Well, he went up, and I kept watch mvithi Mr. Mackenzie at 
the cross-cut. I think he (Turnhull) was away about half-an-hour when I heard the cry coming out 

Help 	I told Mr. l\Iackenzie to stand there, while I went for lights, as it would be no good for mcii 
to go in in the dark and when I got out Mr. Tnrnbuhl was out he was carried out. He had been over-
powered by the gas-that is to say, he was at the last stage. 1-Ic had power in his limbs, but gave way  
when lie got out into the fresh air. 
2025. What next took place P It was then decided to hermetically close the mine. 
2026. There was a brick stopping placed across the main tunnel? There were four substantial brick 
stoppings put in-one in the tunnel; one at the right-hand furnace, to separate it from the tunnel; one 
at the surface up-cast ; and one at the top of the left-hand furnace shaft, which excluded the ingress or 
agrcss of time air. 
2027. During your periodlical inspection", did volt thoroughly examine the whole of time mimics In this 
district 	Yes; I made inspections of the whole of the mines in time Lithgow Valley district, and 
eiamined all the working places of the men.  

2028. 
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2028. You visited the working places? Yes ; I may have passed a bord or so, but I have been in nearly Mr.J.Rowan. 
all the working places and travelled the roads. 
2029. speaking generally, are the mines iii this district around Lithgow all worki ig on the smile principle 7 May, 1886. 

a w s to 	idth of bords, and thickness of pillars, amid the character of the stoppiligs ? Yes, generally 
speaking. The stoppings are of slack-that is, they are not confined exactly to slack coal a lot of them 
are mixed with timber, and many of thenm nra propped up on each side. Nevertheless, we term these 
slack stoppings. 
2030. Have you ever received any complaints as to the way in which the collieries are worked in this 
district 	No ; I never received a complaint either by word or letter, except on one occasion a man in 
the Eskbnnk Colliery told inc something about all engine. They wanted a night watchman put on ; the 
mimatter was put right. But as to defective working or bad ventilation, 1 never received any coniplamt 
either by word or letter. 
2031. 1 [ave you ever made any complaints to the manager or owners of the Lithgow Valley Colliery? 
Nothing hut sinail mnisceilamieous things, smicli as a prop here and there being wanted. 
2032. N erely incidental matters, 1 suppose 	Yes. 
2033. i)muing your inspections, (11(1 you notice time state of the workings, time size of the pillars, and the 
width of the bords 	The pillars were about a chain, I think, and the bords 7 yards 1 thought them of 
sufficient size along the main lmetdings; I know in the early history of the mine they have been cut away 
a little. L never could see anything out of the ord nary way. 
2031. Did you consider this coal-seam iii the Litligomi-  Valley mine a dangerous seam to work ? in what 
aspect, Dr. Robertson ? 
2035. in any aspect. Does it generate gas 	Photo-emrbnretted hydrogen gas P No; I have been through 
the waste workings myself and in company with others, and 1 never saw the slightest signs or indications 
to give me the idea that there was any explosive gas in the maine. 
2030. Have you ever heard it said or ivinspered that explosive gas existed in the mine P No ; I never heard 
such a suggestion made. 
2037. Time workimgs of the Litligomv Valley mine ale of all extensive character, I believe ? Yes. 
2038. Cmi you tell us whether you ever measured the area of the coal that has been worked, and that 
standing in the pillars 	1 cannot say that I have. 
2039. Ii ave you ever formed cmi estimate 	No. 
2010. 1 [ave you observed the workings of recent dale? Are the pillars left more regular or of larger 
size? V's, the system has been very well carried out of late. 
2011. \Vlmat has been the average size of the pillars? About a chain, so far as I could see I consider they 
were good substantial pillars. 
2012. Did you observe whether the pillars had been robbed or spilt in any of the, districts after being 
formed P No ; I (lid not see ammything of that kimmd, on the occasions that I visited the mine, where the men 
were working, or round about where they were working. 
2013. \Vhat was the character of the roof ? I have prepared a section, which will best supply an answer 
to that question. 

[Mr. Roivan hands in a section of the whole coal-seam. 8cc Appendix, plan No. 0] 
2011. Was there any provisiomi made imi this colliery for vemmtilatimig the waste workimmgs ? Yes; it travelled 
m'niimmd the front workimmg after leaving I lie i mimi ii tmmnel and caine out of the sci'oimd way to the da. 1 
have travelled roinmd about that part. 
2015. \Vem'e they walled off iii any way to prevent the mmmcii froin emmtem'ing there alommg the mmiaimm roads P 
Yes, stompimmgs were iii along there. 
2010. A mid the hack return way.', were the mmmcmi pm'eemmtel from eimterimmg these wastes P No, there was 
110 pi'eventiomm ? I wemmt there myself several times. 
2017. And you say that you fommd no explosive gas P No sigim of it. 
2018. On the slmppositiomi of this coal gemmerating chmoke-dammip, would these wastes act as a store-house? 
There might be a little down iii the lower part of it ; but timcro is it good current of air always gomlmg iii 
the, impier  portion of the workimigs. 
2019. I.{ave von ever seen or imemrd of aiiv portion of the pillars over to the right or left imamid of the 
tunmiel imaving been worked P 1 have heard of some pillars being taken out towards the Eskbauk 
bomiiidai'y. 
2050. Ave, you aware whether the roof fell in when these pillars were taken out P That I cannot vouch 
for. 
2051. Have you ever been in this portion of the mine P Wrell,  no ; the men had not been working there, 
and I did mint consider it necessary to visit the aim miclommed portion of the mine. 
2052. Do you know any reason why this pii'ticvmlmi' portion of the waste was seleete(l for pillaring P I 
have Imeard that it was for seine m'eason or otimer ; I think it was to let the water down to Eskbank. 
2053. Ibm 'mit know any part of the milme to be filled with ehmoke-damnp or water? I believe there is a 
swallow of about 3 ehaiims 0mm time left-hand side, and a portion of water lies there. 
2051. Do you know ivimether ehmoke-damimp existed in any quammtitv towards time Eskbank boundary P As for 
that, I do not know, as I was oimly roumimi in that direction seeing if anybody was working there. 
2055. if light earbum'etted imydm'ogen ,as had been pi'esent there, could it have escaped your observation P 
No, not in the workable pom't ions of the pit ; and from the m'oad I travelled iii the returmi froimi wimem'e the 
mmmcmi were vorkimmg, and, as I have said, I have never seen any immdication of it. 
2050. .2I,'. (br7e'.1 In tins ease time retimi'im i'miims, I undem'stand, from the dip to the very rise of the work-
immgs P Yes it will be imeariv 70 feet vertically down from where the immen were workimig. 
2057. J-b'eshlent.] Have you been along the bouimdai'y of the Eskbaiik pit P Yes, 
205S. Wimmt is the state of time lulimi's  thmem'e-are they ci'ushied or open omm the boundary P There is a large 
fill along the bonndu'v, and 8,000 cubic feet of air j)asses doug the margin of time workimigs. 

[Plan of Eskbank produced and inspected. 8cc plamm, A ppemmdix No. 8.] 
2059. Does any portion of that air come into Lithmgov Valley P It passes to the margin of the "cave-in" 
to the furnace in Eskhmaimk. 
2000. You have heard of all eumcroacluumemit from Ekbumk into Litimgow Valley property, Mr. Rowan P 
Yes, I have heard of it. 
2061. Is it to the rise or to the dip of the mmmiii tumimiel in the Lithmgouv Valley mimic ; does the coal dip to 
the emicroaclimnent or rise towards it P The dip is from the entrance to the fall. 
2062. Can this encroachment be visited at preseiit P No, 1 do not think so. 

2063. 
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Mr. J. Rowan. 2003. And we have seen that it cannot be approached from Eskbank? No, there is no possibility of 
(-'- 	getting to it. 
May, 1880. 2001. Can the water travel through this encroachment? Well, I do not know; it is expected that it did 

travel in that direction. 
2005. If it did not travel there, how could they get rid of the water in Lichgow Valley, as we have 
evidence that no water in this mine is pumped to the surface? Well, the encroachment being made, no 
doubt the water will go there. 
2000. But are you aware whether or not it does go there P Yes, I suppose it does. 
2067. Where is the water in Lithgow Valley pumped. to? It is pumped up to where the encroachment 
is made, and discharged there clown to the waste. 
2068. Would a great fire raging in Lithgow Valley be sufficient to draw air through this encroachment P 
It would be a question of fire and heat certainly. 
2069. Do you apprehend any danger of fire extending to Eskbank from Lithgow Valley? That is a 
question I cannot answer upon my oath ; I may have an opinion upon it. 
2070. Well we want your opinion, Mr. Rowan; do you apprehend any danger in that direction? W eli, 
no ; as far as danger goes, that would be a very slow matter; it would give plenty of time and warmng. 
2071. In other words, it is a matter for futnrity? Yes. 
2072. Supposing that the Lithgow,  Valley mine were flooded with water, what effect would that have 
upon the Eskbank woricinon P So far as I am aware, there is no encroachment made except at that 
particular place (referring to the plan) ; and I believe that part is above the origin of the fire it good bit. 
2073. But if the mine were flooded with water up to that part, would the water, after flooding the 
Lithgow Valley mine, pass into the Eskbank workings P Not until a vertical pressure is put upon it. 
2074. Is there any vertical pressure or head" upon the water that runs at present? I am uncertain as 
to this. 
2075. Is it an open coal? It is a pretty firm coal ; it has very few joints in it. 
2076. Is it a favourable coal for the passage of water? It might sweat through it. 
2077. It would depend upon the head? Yes. 
2078. In Eskbank the workings have gone forward to the Lithgow Valley boundary, and we know that 
the shell that remains between is very thin P Yes. 
2079. Of course they have stripped it there P Very much so, as far as Eskbank is concermieci. 
2080. If at any future time an attempt were macic to flood the Lithigow Valley mine, would the same 
process flood Eskbank P I do not clearly understand you. 
2081. Supposing they flooded Lithgo\v Valley full up with water? If it came up to the level of the 
encroachment P Yes. 
2082. That is, it would run into Eskbank P I suppose so, if the water they are pumping there goes 
away now. 
2083. What means have been taken to fight the fire in Lithgow Valley mine? 

[Mr. Rowan, in answer to the last question, referred to the plan, and his remarks were dictated by the 
President, as follows -Strong back stoppings, marked thereon in red ink, have been pcit in to 
support the workings to the left of the tunnel, and to the east of No. 2 cross-cut, from the 
workings to the west of No. 2 cross-cut; that these brick stoppings are further strengthened by 
10 feet or so of small coal and debris piled. up at the back ; and that the left-hand furnace is 
specially sealed off by stoppings in the return and from the tunnel.] 

2084. .211r. Thomas.] Do you suppose the fire is still raging, Mr. Ilowan? 1 think it is still smouldering. 
2085. President.] is it possible to estimate how long the fire will smoulder? That is a question I 
cannot answer. 
2080. It will not burn without oxygen P No, of course not. 
2087. Quite so; you see, Mr. Rowan, for the purposes of this examination, the Commission is not 
supposed to know anything ; what would be the effect of its own combustion P It kills it; the coal 
generates carbonic acid gas, winch is fatal to light and life. 
2088. I understand that you have had no cause to complain to the owners as to the working of the Lit.hgow 
Valley mine? No, except as I have stated, in respect to certain minor matters, which were instantly 
remedied when pointed out ; I considered it to rank on an equality with any colliery in the district, both 
for ventilation and safety; so far as I could see, there was no visible danger. 
2089. You apprehended no danger from. any source? No. 
2090. Have you received any complaint from the men on the subject of pillars or pillaring, or gas having 
at any time accumulated iii the mine? No ; I never received any communication of that lcind whatever P 
2091. Was this mine in any way singular or different from any of the neighbouring mines P In my 
Opifli011, 110 ; it seemed to ranic on the average about here ; that is, it was conducted in the same way. 
2092. Will you describe on the plan the course of the ventilating current P 

[Mr. Rowan, in referring to the plan, indicates the right-hand air-current, as marked by red arrows, 
the left-hand air-current being marked with blue arrows.] 

2093. President.] Then as to the ventilating current, how was it directed ; can you tell us how these 
stoppings are constructed? They are constructed of small coal and timber, and built up in the ordinary 
way of putting 111 slack stoppings. 
2094. have these stoppings proved sufficient for the purpose of ventilating this mine? Yes; 7,000 cubic 
feet of air passem Tyndall's heading or convenient to it, and 5,000 cubic feet of air goes up the No.2 cross-
cut; there has been an average of 12,000 cubic feet of air for the last half-year in and around the mine. 
2005. Returning to these stoppings, have you seen the same class of stoppings used in Britain P No, 
not exaet!y the same stoppings; we had a great deal of brielc in them in fiery mines. 
2096. Could any defect in these stoppings be readily rectified P I should say so. 
2097. Then you made no complaint to the manager on this subject P No, because I got the requisite 
amount of air in the mine. 
2098. Have you received any complaint from time men P Never a complaint, good, bad, or indifferent, in 
connection with the stoppings. 
2099. have they been found in coiiformnity with the Act? Yes, 
2100. liad you power to dictate as to the class of stoppings to be used? No. 
2101. Would this be an arbitriry power to place in the hands of an inspector P I should think so. If I 
were a colliery manager, and any attempt were made to dictate to me as to the class of stopping to be used, 
so long as I had a sufficient quantity of air, I should require to know the authority for such dictation. 

2102. 
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2102. You think then it would be an arbitrary power to pI:tce in an inspector's or any one individuals Mr.J. 11,wan. 
hands 9 Yes. 
2103. You think it would be a power that would be likely to be abused 9 Yes; I thi ik it would probably 7 May, ISSG. 
be  likely to be abused in oome eases of course it would depend upoll the man in whoin a siipiemne control 
of the hind might be reposed, but I would prefer not to have such povei 11 would prefer to be guided by 
the law in connection with it. 
2101. That is, you would wish it to be first authorized by statute 9 Ye, because there must be a halaiice 
of Opinion. 
2105. Mr. Cerleq.J Do you know what the law really is on this point, Mr. Rowan 2  There is mm law, so far 
as 1. know, in eunneetiomi with stoppuigs. 
2100. lIace von read the Act,-caii von reler to a clause in the Act referring to stop plugs, and tell us what 
it sacs regardiuiu the matter 9 	o, I cannot do that. 
2107. Fresident.J Did your examination include testing the quantity of air passing through the mine P 
Yes. 
2 lOS. Can you give its the quiuititv per man that passed 9 Yes ; it would average perlwips 150 feet per 
maim 1 may say, howcvcr, that unv examnmiation appears in the half-yearly report, and will be duly 
1uiblishod. 
2109. Did it occur to you that the late manager. Mr. big, was stiiited of his pover as to incurring the. 
necessary expenditure in the conduct of the mule 9 Ill c was a re.or vd moan, but lie never gave moe to 
niolerstand that there was anything of that kind, and I had never any rca on to press him on that subject. 
I have no complaint to make about the m:uuagement of the mine. 
2110. Iii regard to that second outlet, what is its positIon 9 Runnimg parallel with the main heading, at 
the outcrop of the second cross-cut. 
2111. TJnder the existing Act, could voit enforce the making of that 9 No. 
2112. At your various inspections of this mine, did vi require to see the coIl em plans P Yes. 
2113. Did you consider them sufficiently accurate? Without any special measurement I hint 111) might to 
believe but that the workings were fairl%- represented. 
2111. Can you identify the original plan (plait produced). Is this ii 9 1 have not a shadow of a (lonbt, 
although it is in rather a muddled state, that that is the plan. 
2115. Ry whom was that plan made, do von know? By i\lm. Doig, the late mmiammaocm. 
2110. Did you consider _Mr. Doig an accurate and skilled surveyor 9 1 cannot i- ouch for his abuli y  as 
siurm-evom, but the plan-,were in accordance with the Act. 
2117. Do von know when this mimic was last survived 9 1 cannot sac, only 1 have no doubt that it was 
surveyed further on than it is dated. 
21 Us. Did you lodge nov request to have the ilami brought up to (late 9 	; I did not serve him 
iulhcially with notice. 
2119. Did you report this to the TIxaminer of Coal-fields? I never reported it to hum, but lie hues often 
requested inc to see that they \vere kept up properly it was a gem eral order. 
2120. Returning to the air-current--the current was produced by mncamms of furumaces? Yes ; that was the 
motive ioiver. 
2121. And the positions of these furnaces ale shown upon the plan 9 Yes. 
2122. Did you consider the original plan of the colticuc faithfully ponrtrmmyed the workings P I had ]to 
reason to doubt it. 
2123. \\as  this plan exhibited to you in its Present dilapidated condition 9 Yes. 
212 I. Did you ever suggest the plopriety of there being a more presemitable plan 7 It was not in that 
condition before the fire lmroke out ; people were runmmimig about with it durnig the exciteimmemit, and I Slit)- 
pose it got knocked about inthat way. 
2125. Do you know whether the plaits of this colliery were kept in accordance with the provisions of time 
(oal-mmimmg Regulations Act? Well, 1 often pressed lnmn very  much to kee1) it up, and lie always pro. 
jmnsed that lie would I told himmi that it was highly necessary to keep it up to date. 
2120. For what purpose is the left-hand furnace used? For takuimg away the smoke and keeping the 
euimvcmmt going omi the left-lmamid side. 
2 12 7. lEave you travelled timis return 7 Not that back return--it was looked upon as a cliii nnev flue. 
2128. Was the right-hand furmiace solely kept for circumatimig the ventilating curreumt 9 Yes. 
2120. What quamilitv of air would ordinarily pass over this furnace? 1. have seen it as high as 10,000 
feet. 
2130. What quammtity could the return waste pass on the righit-huammd side-the return air-course 9 A miy 
amount, because it was full of wide bords. 
2131. 1\[uch more than the furnace could take? Yes ; there ivan no limit to it. 
21:12. What was its size amid dimxuemmnions 9 About 20 yards fronm the emmtrancc to the turummel amid 7 
yards fromuu the right-hand, 9 feet bug; hcatimig surface, 6feet long; shaft, 22 feet deep; elmimnney-staek, 20 
feet, diamncter (I feet. 
213:3. Were these air-ways durumg your inspections kept free and open 7 Yes, free and open. 
2131. Can you describe to its the conditiomi of the left or mmorthmern return 7 Well, 1 have gomue (10 cmi the 
iccond furnace a imillar  lemmgth, but never waded through the swallow of water. 
2135. What was the distance between the to1) of the water and the roof 9 About is imiches. 
2130. What was the width of the return 9 At its lowest dimensions about 7 yards ; that would g 	its s 
about 13 feet of an area. 
21:37. What is the size of the left-hand ventilating shaft 9 I suppose about 10 square feet, and 0 feet in 
(hiaulieter, giving 2 I feet of area or fhiercabomuts. 
2135. Do vou consider that the left-hand return on the to1) of the water had all area correspomiding to the 
size of time left-baud shaft 9 Oh, yes. 
21:39. Had you any fault to hind with the, left-hand muir-course 9 No, 1 did mu&mt see that there was any
reason t( fimuci fault ; it did not seeni to hue that any more water could rise, and there was sufficiemit area 
for the return to pass away ; that swallow would be about 3 chains in length. 
2110. Did you eoumsidcr that the vemitilalimmg furnace was cumuisirmicted so an to protect the roof and sides of 
the uumimme 9 Yes, and as a proof of it, the top-coal is stamidiimg on the to1) of the furnace yet. 
2111. As a matter of prccmmtmtion, do you ihuimuk the top-coal Iiouild be takemm down from the roof of  a 
fumri:ace P That muav be a quuestion. But there is 15 incItes of space for the air to pass over. 

2142. 
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Mr.J. Rowan, 2142. Did you anticipate any danger from the state of the roof and sides? No. 
2143. And you thought that suffidient precaution had been taken to ensure safety in this respect 9 Yes, 

7 May, 1886. it appeared so to inc. 
2144. Does all the return air pass over the furnace-grate 9 Yes, it passes over the grate. 
2145. Where the return air of a mine passes over the furnace, can you readily detect the presence of fire-
damp? Certainly. 
2140. Have you ever seen any appearance of gas in this furnace in the ordinary state of the mine? No. 
2147. Have you ever seen light carburetted hydrogen in this furnace? Never. 
2148. If the return air contained any appreciable quantity of light carburetted hydrogen, would you 
detect it here? Yes. 
2149. By what means P By the "Davy" lamp, or by its effect upon the flame of an ordinary lamp or 
on the furnace. 
2150. If it had been carbonic acid gas, what effect would be produced on the furnace? The effect would 
be exactly the opposite. 
2151. You have said that you had not detected the presence of light carburetted hydrogen in this colliery 
-have you specially tested for this in the course of your regular inspections? No, except in a cursory 
way. I have put down the light when travelling the workings. In fact I may say that I have tested for 
my own curiosity many times, and found no evidences of explosive gas. 
2152. Were the abandoned bords in any part of the mine filled with carbonic acid gas? Not to my 
knowledge. 
2153. In the course of working a colliery, what circumstance would be most likely to force out any gases 
from the waste into the air-passages? Either an explosion or a heavy fall of the roof would cause a dis-
placement. 
2151. If light carburetted hydrogen were so forced out, would it show at the furnace? it would depend 
upon the proportion. 
2155. Some of it would likely be mixed to an explosive point, in which case when would it show first in 
the returns? It would show on the furnace fire. 
2156. Supposing it was forced into the in-take air, when would it show- ? It would take the first light, if 
air were supplied to bring it up to an explosive point. 
2157. And if the quantities were comparatively small 7  They would pass away with the air. 
2158. When a quantity of carbonic acid gas is forced out into an air-way, does it not occupy a defined 
position in respect to that air-way; would that gas, until diffused through the atmosphere of the mine, 
occupy a specific position? Decidedly; it would take to its own gravity. 
2159. Have you ever known of accidents occurring in the old country from a want of knowledge of these 
facts ? Oh, yes. 
2160. Can you recollect any? Yes, in the case of men not taking the proper position. I have seen many 
cases where men have had to be carried out through ignorance on this point. 
2161. The reason of my asking you that question, Mr. Rowan, was, that a certain accident occurred in 
the district in which you were brought up, and I thought you might recollect it, and be able to tell the 
gentlemen of the Commission something about it, but I see you have forgotten it? No; I cannot 
recollect it. 
3162. Do you know how- light carburetted hydrogen gas is produced. I am asking you these questions for 
the purposes of this record? it may be produced from bituminous strata. 
2163. Have you ever known that gas to be chemically or artificially produced? No; certainly not. 
2161. As far as you know, it is one of nature's mysterious works ? Yes. 
2165. If uncombined with air, will light carburetted hydrogen gas explode? No; it would put out a light. 
2166. in a mine where light carburetted hydrogen has not been found, is there any possible way of 
anticipating the fouling of the air-current by this gas? No ; and this is shown in the English Act, which 
provides that it is only when the pressure of this gas has been actually found that they are called upon 
to examine for it. 
2167. That is to say, in Britaii1, managers are not called upon to examine until they have seen cause? 
Exactly. 
2168. In a mine exceptionally free from gas, how would you account for the abandoned bords or return 
air-ways being filled with carbonic acid gas? The material itself generates it, and it sinks to its own 
gravity in the old workings and lies there. 
2169. Does all animal life exhale carbonic acid gas? Yes. 
2170. And the results of these products of life in animals, or of combustion, might be carried into the 
wastes? Yes. 
2171. In these wastes where the air is stagnant, would the foul air be likely to liberate the heavier gases? 
Yes. 
2172. Then in this way you would account for the result of animal life and of combustion having a 
tendency to fill the wastes? Yes. 
2173. And in this way a large waste is a great storehouse for waste gas? Yes. 
2174. Returning to the ventilating furnaces, are you aware whether the ashes draw-n from these furnacem 
were removed out of the mine-say the right-hand furnace? Well, there is a store of them lying up on 
the top there, but they told inc they were going to put them on the road. 
2175. Were these ashes drenched, when drawn, do you know? Yes, they were drenched with water, and 
put to one side. 
2176. Do you consider this storing of ashes to be unsafe? Yes, unless they are thoroughly burned, and 
soaked with w-ater. 
2177. Would you store them up against pillars of coal? Not unless they were going to be speedily 
removed. 
2178. Have you observed any appearance of danger in this case from following the practice? Well, it 
would be much better if they were removed. 
2179. Have you suggested any alteration? Yes. 
2180. To whom P To the manager; I told him it would be better to make doubly sure. 
2181. What did he reply? He said he would have them taken out. 
2182. How long was that ago? Oh, it is since the accident; I thought you were referring to the present; 
I did not complain before. 

2183. 
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2183. As to the underground boiler, what was its purpose 	The underground boiler was to pump water 	Mr. J. Rowan. 

from the dp workings to where the encroachment was made at Eskbank. 
2181. i[ow numny chains from the tunnel's mouth is the boiler situated P Thirty-six chains, more or less. 7 May, 186. 

2185. At what distance off the tumcl is the nioutli of the furnace P About 12 or 11 feet. 
2180. Were the boiler fires open to the tminel P There was a door there, but it was very often loft open 
a little. 
2187. Have you inspected this boiler P Yes, I have, to see that it was in working order, and to ascertain 
from the furnace-man as to the cleaning of it he told me it was cleaned twice a week. 
2188. Have you ever inquired as to whether the bottom coal was lifted at this boiler P Yes, I made 
inquiry; they told me that they were not certain, but thought it was founded on the rock; I know myself, 
however, it is standing now. 
21S9. Do von consider that the coal at the sides and top is sufficientiv protcetedi against fire. Ought it 
to have been removed P Well, I never saw any particular danger ; there is a passage on the side and a 
passage on the top, and water lying close handy, which, accordiimg to Pierce, is a very good thing. Part 
of the tops were taken down above the boiler. 
2190. Have you ever seen the flues of this boiler where they discharged the smoke to the return P I have 
gone about half a chain along the pipes ; they are built upon bricks to carry thein off the floor. 
2191. Themi the smoke was conducted from the boiler through day pipes into the return air-way, and the 
return air_way is shown upon the plan with bin e amrows P Yes. 
2192. Did any portion of the exhaust air of the mine mix with this smoke P There might be a general 
leakage going through I the stoppiugs. 
2193. The air from below the boiler would mix with the smoke P Yes. 
2191. Did the arrangement of this boiler ever suggest to you the presence of any danger P No ; 1 did 
not see any danger to be anticipated. 
2195. And of course you did not express any tear on the sub1eet P No. 
2196. Do you know whether the pillars in time line were protected from suioke in any way P 	No ; after 
it canie out of the flue for half a chain length it had free scope out ward. 
2197. Supposing this mine to the north had given off light carburetted livdrogeii gas, would voll have comi-
sidered this method of demmhimmg with the suinke a safe one P _\o : 1 should have called it in question very 
quickly. 
2198. Then the ,as,  from the furnace lid not i 	uommgh ativ brick flue P \o ; there is it half ehtu iii of 
18-inch flue going from I hat. 
2199. You have said that the smoke (lischargetlover time water. (.ould you proceed1 down the air-way any 
considerable distance over that water P 1 believ yu e o would be in the depths of the swallow there. 
2200. How high had the water reached upon the coal P The roof would be 18 inches of space fronm the 
water. 
2201. Do you think ii fire could extend in that direction over this swallow-could it burn the upper coal 
on the tops P 1 do not think so I iTo not think the tops could catch fire ; I do not see how it would be 
possible. 
2202. Well, this boiler is submerged in water-is it likely that a tire could make rapid progess over the 
tops of this boiler? No. 
2203. Would you be likely to discover it in any way 	You would be likely to liseover it by the smell, 
say. 
220 I.. Would you discover it from the up_east shaft P Do you macan in the return air_way P 
2205. Yes P Certainly. 
2206. Is it your opinion that if the tops caught fire in this situation that its progress iii the course of the 
return air_way would be slow P Yes, out account of the water lying there. 
2207. Did the return air and smoke from this furmmace, in passing through this return, impinge agaiist 
the small coal or slack stoppimigs P No ; it had a free opeim i mm g over the swallow of water. 
220$. Was the hollow of any commsiderable length P Three chains, so far as I can judge from going down 
I did not measure it with time chain. 
2209. Altogether, did von consider the arrangement of this flue it good one P 1 cannot say that 1 found 
any fault with with it ; it was built over with brickwork, amid it was safe enough for a small engine. 
2210. Would the state of the mnimme have been remedied Lv putting down it shaft at the dip of the main 
tmmmmmmel P Mm'. Doig told me he was going to put down a shaft at the lower end of the tummel, and take 
off the drainage water down there. 
211. Did yotm ever ascertain whether this flue or return was regulari\ travelled and inspected P They 

told mime that they cleaned the flues twice a week. 
2212. The return air-way-was that regularly travelled P I cannot say. 
2213. What was the temperature of the retimm'mm air_way P We did not take temperature, but I should say 
it would be ninety degrees or so. 
2211. In the vicimuty of the left-hand furnace-shaft, I think you have told us-what was the nature or 
capacity of the air-way passimmg there? When I went down it was about two pillars lengtlm ; an ordinary 
heading, about 6 yards, the full heiglmt of the coal. 
2215. Comnimmg down from that furnace, what was the elmaracter of the return P it was pretty good. 
2216. ilomv far would you have to go before you got to the water P You would have to go 40 yards from 
the furmmmmce. 
2217. Did l\Ir. Tmirmibuhl ever make a. remark mm the state of timmmt furnace and return P No. 
2218. On the nlornimmg of the first accidemmt, did  he not s:lv that lie iveut some distance--14 yards-duuwmi 
there, and was stopped by the water? lIe may have said so, limit. I have not the slightest l'dtcoiled'tiOmi of 
it. 	I kmuow I passedl it good distance down and diii mmot see mummy water. 
2219. Gemmermmlly speaking, mire ummtlemgmommmel boilers a fruitful source of ummmderground hi'es P Yes; and I 
should be glmol if all mimmdergrouumul boilers were to be worked by compressed air or steamim frommi a surface 
boiler. 
2220. Have yomm ever olnem'veul smuall coal piled imp at the side of this bui Icr. No they may have had an 
ordimuam'y stack of coals there. 
2221. I stq pose it foul flue would be liable to ignite P Ohm, yes. 
2222. Tlmn, if they were not regularly ('leammed, would not timat be a source of thinger P 1 considered that 
The flues were elemmmied two or I hree limume, a week there could be mmii dammger. 

2223. 
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Mr.J Ilowan. 2223. Did they sa.y whether they removed the cleanings of the flue-unless this were done a spark might 
be a source ofdanger? Yes, under certain circumstances; but where they would be lying on coals buried 

May, 1886. in water I do not consider there would be much danger. 
2224. Had you heard of any fire at this boiler previous to the last accident? No; I never heard of it 
until I heard it at the inquest. 
2225. How many fires have you since heard of as having broken out at this boiler before the last and fatal 
accident? I have now heard of two fires. 
2220. Were those fires not reported to you? I never heard a solitary word about them; no report what. 
ever was made to me concerning them. 
2227. In the case in question, what, in your opinion, was the cause of the fire ? Well, we know that on 
ordinary occasions when cleaning out the fire, especially on Saturday night, they leave a good amount of 
red coals lying, and then put on their fire. It is possible they may have done so, and as the stock of coal 
is only put in to supply Sunday there may have been an extra quantity of fire put on to the floor, and the red 

m embers of the half-burnt coal ay have ignited and the fire quickly spread. 
2228. Have you any reason to suppose that the origin of this fire differed from those that occurred before? 
I should think so. 
2229. We understand that the fires before occurred at the back of the boiler and on top of the water? I 
never heard that except at the inquest. 
2230. Have you any reason to suppose that the north return was closed on the main in-take ? No. 
2231. When you got down to the seat of the fire, did you see any fall in the maiu tunnel ? Yen 
2232. Was that a heavy fall? Yes, a heavy fall from the to1), 

ro 2233. Did it stop the pgress of the air? Yes, I should think so. 
2234. In the light of subsequent knowledge, what effect would that large fall have upon the progress of 
the fire? it would spread it very rapidly. It would be like putting a bellows to the fire. 
2235. Was the fire localized or diffused over a considerable space? It was spread over a considerable 
space. I saw it burning from the 35th stopping over the main heading. 
2230. About what clisfance back should you say? It is diflieult looking through smoke, but I should calculate 
there would be about 10 yards of it burning. 
2237. Did you entertain any suspiCion that the fire extended further than you have delineated on the plan? 
No ; we thought that was about the extent of the fire. 
2238. Did you entertain anr suspicion that it had returned parallel with and a considerable distance up 
the tunnel : No; but I did so-, that she had kindled at the fire, and was bnrning down the heading or 
across Tynclall's heading. 
2239. How did you account for the fire extending across the main tunnel? Sinply because there was 
more relief to be ,of about that way, and as there was dry material there. 
2240. In the early part of your evidence you said that you arrrived at the scene of the accident early on 
the Tuesday morning-who was superintending operations on your arrival ? One B. B. Druery was 
leading a shift of men, and lie told me that an attempt had been macic to bear back the smoke and open 
up another stopping. 
2241. Was Mr. Druery in charge of operations ? He was in charge of that shift of men. 
2242. What course did you imrsue  on arriving ? We were trying to get down to the seat of the fire by 
means of canvas, and to close up the stoppings to the right of the tunnel, but the smoke was so great, 
and coming out in such volume, that it was determined to seal up the mine ; but before it was finally 
closed, as 1 have told you, a trial was macic to travel up the second cross-cut. 
2213. Did you take any responsibility ? No ; I had written instructions from the Department that the 
owners of the Lithgow Valley Colliery intended to re-open the mine ; that I was to render any assistance 
that I could, but that I was to take no responsibility for the re-opening, as the responsibility must rest 
with the proprietors and the manager. 
2241. And did you state this circumstance to those in authority when you arrived P I said to them that 
I was here in answer to a communication as to the re-opening of the mine, and I wished to know what 
method they were going to adopt. 
2245. And you ascertained that? Yes. 
2240. After the mine was re_opened, you got down almost to Tyimdall's heading, and you then thought it 
right, or the owners did, to abandon operations-what reasomi was assigned for that course, for it has not 
been made perfectly clear P Well, after we reached the 35th stopping, we saw a fire burning across 
the headimmg. There was an idea that the mine was merely in a smouldering state, and that it could be 
dealt with by taking the stuff away in Sid5, but after seeiimg this fire, and as we had no appliances such 
as a 'ump or water at hand, I reported to the Examiner, Mr. Wilton amid the manager being there, and 
we tlmought it best to withdraw the men. Mr. Mackenzie and I gave orders accordingly; but on the 
same mnornimig, somewhere about 9 o'clock, Mr. Wilton and Mr. (fell informed it,,  that the men had inter-
viewed them, and said it was all nonsense stopping the mine, and that if they were provided with a pump 
and water they would go and stamp out the fire, and do the work for nothing. 
2217. Did you hmmr tlmem make this offer I No we were informed Lythe prsip1ietors. Mr. \Viitou so id lie 110(1 
pipes that lie could 1ay on to four tanks, besides whmicim a miner renminded him of the swallow of water at the 
fire. These tinngs having been put before us, we said it might be worth the trial, and we let them have a trial 
in that w av ; the men were only to work six-hour shifts, AN-1th a leading man to take charge of each shift. 
2248. Did you select any of those leading men P No. 
2249. But you approved of the plan proposed? Yes. 
2250. Do you know whether this fire was suspected before Sunday, the 11th? No. 
2251. Have you heard any report to that effect? No. 
9'252.  On your arrival on the ground, did you make any investigation as to the cause of time first fire? No. 
2253. Did any report reach you that any of the woricers had known of the fire or suspected it before 
Sunday, the lltim P No. But I mimade ,in examination of some of the men 1 inquired of (frammt, asking hminm 
if lie had seen any fire ; lie said lie had moo; seen It or suspected it ; lie said that if there had been any 
fire lie would have cictectesl it quik1v, as lie was short in the breath. I also asked Fassimmore, who said lie 
had left the pit at half-past 3 or 4 o'clock, and there was no sign of fire then. 
2251. We have particular evidence as to the finding of Doig, Younger, and Rowe-can von point out 
on the plan where their bodies were foumicl P I can only do so from imif'ormation I received from one of 
the vohmntcers-John Sheedy. I showed imium the plami, as he kimew the workings pretty well, and lie 
pommtesl out where they were found. [Position bmshicafed on i±ill  of the mine.] 	 2255. 
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2255. Can you give us aiiy idea why Doig and his party should have travelled this part of the worki igs P Mr. J. Rowan. 
No ; except that lie may have had some idea that lie could get opposite the furnace mId open up a stop-  
pmg at Tyndall's heading, andlw doing that perlaps be enabled to q uench the fire with water. 	 7 May, 1880. 
2256. But (10 volt not think that iii a iniiie, as lie knew, with tile (Haiti air-course hill of smoke, the Opell. 
ing of a stopping like that would be it dangerous proceci]ig 	It was highly dmutgerous, no doubt. 
2257. And, Mr. Rowan, with a niiiie or the tunnel lull of snioke, what condition would you, as a practical 
man, expect the maui tulluel. to be iii 	That is easily surmised. 
2258. \'/ell, say, would it be worse or better P \Vhy, worse, of course. But, of course, one does not like 
to speak strongly of a demuti mall. 
2259. We quite understand that and now, speculating on what von have known from siih)sequeuit 
operations, can you assign any,  reason why the returns where I)oig was fou md were less foul i hi:ui I he 
main in-take P 1 call account for that iii two ways: i t, time first phuce, t he general lea kage that would be  
coming through would be very much diluted, and a fall that existed (town about the furnace would have 
some influence on the nature of the returns. 
2200. Did OU inspect the body of Mr. Doig and Ins couipamiio]is P 1 did not see them. 
2201. Was this fall you speak of iii flue iiam I umnel below orabove the boiler P 	It was chiefly 
below. 

2202. Then, in view of these facts, can you suggest aiiy reason for iDoig and his compalluoums being found 
where the air was comparatively breathable P Well, 110; except what I have stated, that there would be 
a general leakage coming through (the stoppings), seeing that there was a stoppage in the maui way, 
and it would be so diluted that it would be somewhat free of gas after it had aceumnuhited. 
2263. We have evidence that the lamps of these men were found empty of oil—have you any suggestion 
to make as to that P \\ell, I suppose they flade an effort to get I imrommgh, and I have slight reason to 
believe that as soomi as lie got relief the smoke began to surround him, and in beatimig a retreat lie lost 
his way, as lie was in the dark, their lamps having givelu out. 
2201. Then the reason you assign seems to point to this, that Doig and his companions reached that 
stoppuig at Tyndall's heading, and got some relief? Yes, I think so. 
2265. But You are not very positive P No. 
2200. If you were told that two p:irties had gone into the umi mc I n search of IDoig, and followed or traced 
his footsteps, and penetrated as far down as Tyndalls heading, where the air was niolerately breathmahle, 
would you think that your theory was tenable P Well, it is so coinplieatcml a matter that it is di liieult to 
have a clear expressiomu of opinion upon it. 
2207-8. John Sheedy, in his evidence, stated without any Iieitatiomu that lie went dowli to wh 	ii ere oig was 
found, and found the unfortunate man lying in a stratum of clmoke-daunp--do you tlnnk this probable P 
By that time no doubt all the lower portions were pretty well tilled up ; 1 am really lotlu to 
express an opinion upoti it. 

2269. In the course of the operations for eXtilmgmuslnmlg the fire. were the mcii liberally supplied with all 
time requsite materials P Thcv had evcrvtlong that they required; for nmvself. 1 1(11(1 the men, amid 1 call StW 
it without fear of coumtrmudiction, tlimit they were not tryimug to save life but property, whmchi was a vcu'y 
secondary consideration. 1 said to them. " Xouu have oiiIy one life to lose; be very carcful ; (to hot 
venture one foot when you see any danger.' 	[ was at this, tune going away. 
2270. Did you observe the owners of time nune prcseumt during flue operations P Ye ; Mr. Wilton was 
in daily muttendmnmce, and I have been with lmini as long as six hours at it sti'etcli. 
2271. Did I-ic secin anxious for the safety of the nien P Yes ; I have heard lnni say that lie would sooner 
lose the whole of the estate than that omie man's life should be sacrificed. 
2272. You were kind eiuough to inakea plan showing the limode of taking the air down for the purpose 
of extinguishing the fire—will you be good enouugh to explain the nature of those operations? The tirst 
operation consisted ill removing time cover fm'o]n the road in the uj-cnst shalt. and taking doivuu the 
stoppings leading to that fmmrnaee. These operations were c:mm'riedomi with safely-lamps 	Ill lowering 
the lanmp down the lip-cast simaft from the surface the strength of the gas almost extiuguishemi the light. 
31000 cubic feet of air per minute was passing timrough the furimace shaft. Beyond the air-cmirrent carbonic 
acid gas existed as it wall, and extimuguisimed the lamp. The next step ivmus to allow muhomit (lOOt) cubic feet of 
air to pass down the main tiuminel into No. 1 cross-cut. in order to (to this they had to take down it 
principal brick stopping acm'oss the mimic. This quantity of air was commtiuned for the peritmd of about out 
hour, the m'eturn air extimuguiishing the lamuip. That, adding to the waste as  of time muine the percentage 
of fm'esh air necessary to make light carburetted luydrogeim gas explosive, tests were applied with the m'esult 
that the lights coumtinued to be cxtimmgumished. After s:mtisfyimig ourselves that no explosive gas existed, time 
i'igiltl]and fu'imace was kindled ; thereupon 9,000 cubic feet of air was passed domvn the ma-ill tulumuel to 
No. 2 cross-cut per minute. This was on $atnrday the 20tlm. The furnace Wiis theli kept goilig contiiouousiy 
until Moiuday mmuornimmg the 22nd, hut no mcii were peimimitted to entci' time mine. 	On the 
Monday morning, 1, accommipanied by Mr. Cammmpbefl, the mammager, pi'oceeded down the nmiime 
entered No. 2 cross-cut, mmd, with 5,000 cubic feet of air, sumcccedcd in pushimmg time aecumlnu-
lated gas before its for upwards of 100 yards, the safety-lamp test indicating the ahseumce of 
fire-damp. Later omi in time dat', feeling assured as to the commctitiomu of No. 2 cross-cut, 
a canvas stoppiuug was placed at the julmctio]l of this cross-cut whim the ]mmaimm tuiiinel, and about I 000 cubic 
feet of air per nuumute allowed to scale thmroughi to keep this cross-cult clear. Progi'ess was made by opening 
a]md elosimug the stoppiumgs on time m'ight-hmaumd side of the tuitìnch, pilmim' by pillar, until we reached time :15th 
stoppiumg, about 1 chuailu west of the boilei'. The operation of opeumimug and eiosiumg time stommiuugs \\ -:us 
necessarily atteumded ivith some hihculty aimcl dauiger. 1 was so almxious to (llStH'e the safety (It I iue ItOh 
that 1 reinaiuied with them for eighteen hours mit a stretcim. On i'caehiumg the 31tim stoppi mg, omu time m'ighmt_ 
hand sidt', we \Vi'O ulisaqoimited (>11 opcmmimmg timmut stoppiumg not to get relief for thme  air, the czurbouuic acid 
gas rolhiumg out. 	We pm'oceeded douvmu m- till time cmunvmus umumder somue dithicmdtv, time simioke imeiumg strommg uiutil 
we reacimed the :15t ii stompiimg, ivimemi uve got relief. 	Tiue returmu air and smmioke (lumrimmg timis I immme was Immkeuu 
hack on the m'ighit-immmmmd side of the canvas to stopping No. :12. On :mpprommchmitug jNo. 35 we thuen discovered 
the fire burning across the Imealling. The fire w:us burning across the maimi tunnel from No. 35 down-
wards. The body of the fire seemed to be about opposite Tvndall's heading. It was at this stage, mmd 
having reached this poiumt, that it wasc'omisidereil advisable to uvitlidm'auv lIme men. The men and owuors, 

howem-em'. 

NOTE—NO 31 5topping briag in a hollow, the witness desires to substitute No, 35. 
576—M 
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Mr. J. Rowan. however, came to an arrangement, that received the approbation of the G overnment Inspectors, to re-open 
c —'- s the mine. In consequence steam was laid on to conduct water from a hollow above this position (see 

7 May, 1886. plan), and this necessitated a stoppage of five days. By this time the smoke and gas had backed up the 
tunnel to about the 20th stopping. On Sunday, the 28th March, the gas had been beaten down the tunnel to 
within 20 yards of the seat of the fire, when steam was laid on. The steam was laid on within 10 yards of 
the seat of the fire. The miners were then withclrawii. On Thursday, the 1st of April, the miners 
resumed work, they being engaged clearing away the burning coal, and continued to do so until the day 
of the calamity, on Monday the 19th. A brattiee was put.across the mine at the nearest point possible to 
the fire, with the object of driving back the poisonous gas and extinguishing the flames. 

The witness here described the minutie.] 
2273. About this time., were the operations of the men engaged in putting out the fire hampered or 
endangered in any way by the surreptitious opening of a stopping? Have you heard of such an occur-
rence? Yes, I have heard something of it. On the 29th Mr. Campbell, the manager, went in to see if 
be could get sonic timber for some purpose, and he thought there was a. current of air coming through 
one of the stoppings in the old workings. Looking up to the top of the stopping he found that it had 
been opened to the extent of 3 inches clear. It so happened that this particnlar stopping had been thoroughly 
wedged up two days before. There were in the immediate vicinity certain evidences on the ground of 
some persoll having recently been there—about 5 yards from the stopping. 
2274. Did you discover a less amount of ventilation coming down? I was not there- at the time ; but Mr. 
Campbell drew my attention to it, and told me how he had discovered it. He had thoroughly secured the 
stopping two days previously, and in his opinion it was not the result of accident. It was stripped right 
along. 
2275. .11[i'. Davies.] Would it not be difficult for a man to take away a strip like that from the top, if a 
man had to do it with his hands ? It would be to some extent diflieult certainly. 
2276. President.] Could a man do it with his hands, or would the assistance of an instrument be 
required? It would not be past arm's length there. 
2277. Could a pick be used P I do not know but, nevertheless, the stopping was stripped as stated. 
2278. Was a watch kept to see who went in or out? Yes ; and the watchman was supposed to let no one 
go into the mine without an order from the manager—no matter who he might be. 
2279. What conclusion did you conic to on the subject P I cannot say ; I am not going to express an 
OpilliOfl about it. 
2280. Who was the watchman P The furnace-man. 
2281. All-. Davies.] What was the current of air passing down the tunnel on the day of the accident? 
I tested the air-current by means of the ruienonieter ill the presence of the mnaitager, and Mr. Willis. a 
clergyman, who had the curiosity to be there, and the instrunieiit megistered. 20,000 cubic feet of air per 
minute. At No. is stopping I got a register of 14,880 cubic feet. 
2282. Where was the balance of the air going? To the cross-cuts, taking the air iji that direction. At 
No. 32 stopping I got 14,700 cubic feet. 
2283. Then the stoppmgs were tight? Well, it was a fair test. This quantity still continued to the seat 
of operations, with the exception of any allowance for inevitable leakage. 
2284. How were the shifts of the men arranged? There were forty men, divided into six slnfts of six 
hours each. Leaders were appointed to each of the shifts. 
2285. President.1 if any danger occurred, did you take a share of that danger P Yes I should have. 
shared it fatally had. I not been away that same day. 

The witness here handed in the copies of two letters appended, viz. : One to John Mackenzie, Esq., 
Examiner of Coal-fields, and the other to Joseph Campbell, Esq., manager, Lithgow Valley 
Colliery, marked A and B respectively. 

A. 
Sir, 	 Eskbank, April 17th, IS84. 

For your information, I beg to say that I will leave Lithgow on Monday, noon, 19th instant, for Wolloagong, as 
there are six accidents which happened during the last month—four in Kembla Colliery and two in Bulli Old Tunnel. 
Each accident requires to be examined and reported. 

To-day (Saturday) I was down the Lithgow mine, and took a register of the air-current, viz.. —At the entrance 
of the tunnel, 26,000 cubic feet of air per minute ; about 18 chains from the entrance of the tunnel, 14,880 cubic feet 
of air per minute; 32 chains from time tunnel mouth, 14,700 cubic feet of air per minute. The seat of fire has been 
reached at a chstanee of 36 chains from the entrance of the tunnel. Forty men are employed (ten men on each shift) 
clearing out the burning coal and other debii.i. There is a heavy fall of top-coal and roof behincl the brickwork of the 
boiler ; the fire under the fall is still smouldering. 	 I have, ike., 

JAMES iOWAN, Inspector of Collieries. 
John Mackenzie, Esq., Examiner of Coal-fields, Newcastle. 

JJ 
Sir, 	 Eskbank, April 17th, 1884. 

Before leaving Lithgow for Wollongong, and in accordance with the provisions contained in the 25th section of the 
Coal Mines Regulation Act (1876), I hereby give you notice that the Lithgow Valley Colliery must be thoroughly venti-
lated before the miners resume work (for the purpose of getting coal) and all entrances to any place not in actual course 
of working, and suspected to contain or be liable to engender dangerous gas of any kind, shall be walled or fenced off, and 
a danger signal placed at such entrance so as to prevent access thereto. 

I have, ike., 
JAMES iOWAN, Inspector of Collieries. 

Mr. Joseph Campbell, Manager, Lithgow Valley Colliery. 

2280. Piesident.] You have already told us about this fall in the main tunnel—was it entirely 
removed? No. 
2287. Did you see any tire among the abandoned workings from the boiler towards the waste, parallel 
with the main tunnel'? I went down twice, my last visit being on Monday morning. I am not aware 
that I did see it. The fire seemed to have a good hold to the left of time main tunnel. 
2288. Did you suspect that the fire had eaten up at the back of the main tunnel for any considerable 
distance P I do not think so. 
2289. Did you give any advice to the men, and explain to them their dangers and perils P Yes; I worked 
with them and stuck to them all the time. 
2290. In the course of time work, did you hear or -see any falls in the old workings P No.- 
2291. Under whose directions -did the mcii work ? Under Mr. Campbell, the manager. 

- -. 	2292. 
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2292. Can you tell us the names of the five men who were killed at the second accident? I do not know Mr.J. Rowan. 

all of them. There were Buzza, Thomas Rawe, Thomas Mantle, Isaiah Hyde, and another (L. Allison). 
2293. When did you arrive after the accident 	

- 
I arrived by the mid-day train. 	 May, 1888. 

2291. Did you inspect the maui tunnel at all ? Xes-tlie stoppmgs were blown out from the left-hand side. 
2295. About nhat was the number of the stopping at which the force of the accident seemed to concen-
trate? We only got down to the t cvent iethc stopping owing to the smoke. Here there wasa lot of debris 
and confusion. 
2290. Have you ever considered what the calamity might be (hue to 9 	I aliT of opinion that a great fall 
had takefl place in the interior of the back workings, on the left-hand side, and that this caused a dis-
placement of the carbonic acid gas and smoke, which by the force of the blast found its way through the 
weaker points on the main current. 
2297. .I)o you think that this could be referred to as an explosion of fire-damp 9 	1 really cannot see 
where an explosion of fire-damp could cinder any circunista.nces take place there. 
2295. Did you observe any signs of all explosion. None whatever. 
2299. Do you know what the state of the atmosphere was immediately after the accident-I mean 
from illqulrv 9 Going clown on the following day there was a great deal of smoke and vapour in the 
main tunnel. 
2300. Would that be due to an explosion P No, certainly not. It was lust as if a mass of abomination 
had been disturbed, and it was all ldocvn up together. 
2301. You have stated that you did not see and did not hear that the fire had crept up behind the 
main tunnel 	Not further than the first pillar lungth. 
2302. have you heard any of the survivors state that whilst making their escape they passed over red- 
hot ashes in the tunnel at or about the twenty-fourth stopping 9 1 have heard it, and give them credit 
for thoroughly believing that they think they saw it. But I can quite understand how men in such a 
state uught imagine that they went over ground which in reality they had never passed over. 
2303. Had fire-damp existed, was this twenty-fourth or twenty-fifth stopping a likely stopping for fire-
damp to lodge P It is quite foreign in primople to suspect such a timing. It would have been away in the 
higher galleries of the workings. 
2304. It has been said that there was a second blast almost sinitiltaneoulywith the first, and coming from 
lmehnnd the boiler. \Vhat would that i idii e to your mind P Well, when the great concussion of air 
took place there would be a certain amount of atmosphere in the main heading, and I believe that the 
effect w,ul lice felt at the top just where the opposite current was coining clown, and to my mind it was 
the effect of re-action. 
2305. Supposing that explosive gas was p1ojetctl with sufficient force into the main tunnel, what course 
would the blast take P The explosion cvoulcl be seconclar. 
2309. Supposing explosive gas was proiected into the main tunnel, where would the force of the explosion 
be most noticed-would it go with or against the air P Well, I am of opinion that it would go in the 
direction where it would find the readiest course. 
2307. in any case, Mr. Romvan, what are I lie physical signs of an explosion-would you see a flash of 
flame, or what P Well, if it had been no explosion that had caused that amount of damage I believe the 
flame would have shot out of tIme tunnel nont hi. The explosion would be caused by the oxYgen from the 
it moosphere. 
2305. Does that iudieate the course that an explosion generally takes P Yes. 
2309. And is not that a reason wily the course of an explosion is generalhv against the air-current 9 

Yes. 
231.0. Whmat is the state of the nOn sphere after aim explosion? -It raises the temperature of the 

atmuosphiere. 
2311. Are you aware what the state of thic' atmosphere was, what temperature existed immediately after 
tins accident occurred P 1 am not aware. 
2312. Do you know whether any length of timne transpired between time accident and the finding of the 
bodies P So far as I can cuiclerstand, the men were all out iii about an hour. 
2313. how can you account for red-hot ashes being strewn across the tunnel-you say the men must have 
deceived themselves ; how do you aecoimmmt for it 7 1 should say that ashes had been blown from the fire 
owing to the concussion of air. 
231 1. 1[ow could they have been carricci across the chain of water you have indicated P Well, by that 
timne it is likely time coal would have i.)eelm burmnng on the top of the water; 1 believe it was a reality 
to the men themselves, and I give them credit fer sa.vimmg it in good faith bitt I do believe they were 
mmustakemi iii the distance. 
2315. Did you see the bodies of these live unfortummate men P Yes. 
2310. Did you form any opinion as to the cause of their death P Yes ; 1 was of opinion that they died 

from the effects of carbomuc acid gas. 
231.7. Was this accident expected by you P No, not in the least. 
2315. 'l'hmen, dlo you think it can be dime to any defect in the, carrying out of the (.'oal-mnimies Regulations 
Act P 1 do not think so ; there was a fire iii the caine to be put out, and the men accepted all risks in 
the same way as a fire brigade would do jim putting ouf a fire on the surface. 
2319. Then von think the accident was clime to causes beyond human knowledge ; would it have been pre- 
vented had every hue, word, or clause of the Coal-mines Regulation Act been rigidly complied with P It 
('0111(1 not have been prevemmtccl. 
2320. If you had heard or observed that the Act was evaded, would you have taken action P Yes, most 
decidedly ; I should have seen there was clamiger to life and limb, and would not have allowed it. 
2321. Have you ever heard whether mmmiv of the men foresaw this accident P No. 
2322. Have you ever heard it said that such an opimIiomm existed '? All the opimuiolms I ever heard were in 
conmlecticmmm with the re-opening; some said it shiommld be filled up with gas, but they were all rumnours and 

relmomts. 
2323. If it were reported to you that a statement had been made that the accident was due to the neglect 
of the owners, managers, or inspectors, would you give such statement an unqimalified dleflial P Most 
decidedly I should. 
2321. We imnclerstand that the workings to the rise of No. 2 cross-cut are scaled off from that portion of 
thie mimic where deleterious gases exist by brick stopping."? Yes. 

2325. 
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Mr. J. Rowan. 2325. In prosecuting work in this No. 2 cross-cut, are you sure that in continuing its present direction it 
will not hole through on some of the bords to the old part of the mine P No; No. 2 cross-cut is to be 

7 May, 1886. driven at a different angle, and if it did go through anything there would be 12 feet of solid that would 
be an ample barricade, in my opinion. 
2326. .Mr. Usher.] Would the flooding of the abandoned workings be the best way of dealing with this 
conflagration? Yes, I believe so. 
2327. Mr. .Neilson.] Do you know whether the Lithgow Valley Colliery pumped any water to the surface? 
It does not pump any water to the surface. 
2328. Wbaf is the use of that engine down below? I have no doubt they put it down with the intent of 
pumping water into the Eskbauk Company's ground. 
2329. In case of it being decided by the owners or anybody else that the Lithgow Valley mine was to be 
flooded, would not the Eskbank Colliery be drowned out? When the water comes up to that level in 
the Lithgow Valley mine we all know where it will go then. 
2330. Does the Lithgow Valley Colliery make water? Yes. 
2331. And no water is pumped to the surface? No. 
2332. Is there any other colliery or creek where the water can get to? No, I do not think so; I believe 
it goes to Eskbank. 
2333. Are the Eskbank workings extensive? Yes, pretty extensive. 
2334. Then it will take an immense amount of water to fill them up? Yes; but no such a thing could 
happen till the water came up to the level. 
2333. How long is it since you left Wallsend, Mr. Rowan? Three years. 
2336. Were you in the Wallsend or Co-operative Company in 1879? Yes. 
2337. That was a large fall at Wallsend 'P Yes; I was there at the time. 
2338. Did you hear of the effects of that fall? Yes; the skips were knocked out and the men injured. 
2339. President.] Can you tell us the resisting power of those brick stoppings which have been put in 
in the Lithgow Valley mine? No, I cannot; I know they are put in substantially, with 10 yards of debris 
and small coal to back them up. 
2340. In your opinion, supposing a similar fall to that which has recently occurred, or one of double the 
force, were to take place, are these stoppings of sufficient strength to resist the effects-of course I am 
merely assuming that it was a fall? Well, we do not know the balance of the force of the last fall, 
because it had light material to remove. Seeing that these stoppings are so substantial they ought to 
withstand a great pressure, but I could not say how much they would stand. 
2341. Supposing another fall was to take place of sufficient force even to remove these stoppings, what 
would be the result P The result would be that it would roll in upon the main air-course and up the 
cross-cut. 
2342. I think you told us in your evidence that the heaviest pressure appeared to ba at No. 20 stop- 
ping P I cannot properly judge, because I could not get down any further than about the twentieth 
stopping. For all I know they may have been heavier down below. 
2343. In that case, whether this was an explosion or a fall, it must have come from the left-hand side, 
somewhere either to the north, or down towards the Eskbank boundary? Yes. 
2344. As a practical luau, and apart from all chemical reasons, an explosion of gas is always directed 
where there is the largest quantity of air to feed it? Yes. 
2345. Was there any fire or indication of fire-damp on the props or brattice, in the straight run or tun-
nel? No ; there was nothing  to indicate the presence of an explosion. The props were not singed. 
2346. Is the heat from the Lithgow Valley fire likely to draw a considerable amount of air from the Esk-
bank pit falls P It may possibly be so. But when we believe the mine to be hermetically sealed up we 
cannot suppose there would be any  great quantity of fire burning there. If the fire were raging we might 
look for something of that kind. 
2347. JEEr. C'urley.] What is the state of the mine, with regard to the in-take and the outlet, at the 
present time? Up No. 2 cross-cut, right along the working face, and back to the furnace, there are 
two ways to the day, and altogether three openings at the present time. 
2348. Has the Company ever made any reports to you about these accidents P No, not in an official way. 
We have talked over them, but there have been 110 written communications. 
2349. Do you consider that in compliance with the present Coal-fields Regulation Act? Well, I think 
there should be a little consideration taken in a case like this. We were all there. The country knew 
of it. I have no doubt when they settle down they will send a report. 
2350. President.] Who telegraphed to you, Mr. Rowan P I received a telegram from Mr. lIaekenzie, 
the Examiner of Coal-fields, and he got his information from Mr. G-ell. 
2351. That appears to be all right; you got the information from your superior P Yes. 
2352. AIr. Curley.] Well, Mr. Rowan, although you knew of this accumulation of ashes at the right 
hanclfurnace, von never made any official complaint to the management with the view of remedying these 
matters, or did not imagine they wanted remedying P I considered that they were sufficiently informed. 
I certainly never made all official complaint. I never saw or heard of any fire there at the boiler. 
2353. Did you ever go into the left-hand furnace after the second accident P Yes; Ave put in a stopping 
there. 
2354. Did you notice whether any top-coal had fallen there P No; I did not see any there. 
2355. I suppose you had several conversations with the proprietors about the question of putting  this 
fire out? Yes. 
2356. Did it ever occur to you that brick stoppings would have been better, especially as you knew the 
state of the return P No; 'I think it would have been worse to have brick stoppings, and for this reason, 
that the blast would have found a vent on each side, and rolled down in a solid column upon the men, 
and not one of them would have come out. 
2357. President.] have you observed the state of the top of this left-hand air-shaft on the surface? 
Yes. 
2358. What is it covered with P It is covered with inch deals, made air-tight with clay. 
2359. After the blast, what appearance did it present? It presented the appearance of having been 
violently shaken, but the shock had expended itself before it reached that point. 
2360. AIr. Umrle.] Would the quantity of ashes you noticed at the right-hand furnace be a source of 
impediment to the proper ventilation of the mine P I think not; there was plenty of space for the air 
to go in. 	

2361. 
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2361. Would the air-course have been improved if the mlies had not been there P I do not think so ; I Mr. J. Rowan. 
had no reason to coinpiam of the Vale of Cl\vydd ventilation, and they have only 10 feet of return. 
2362. What is the position of the left-hand furnace shaft P It conducted the ventilation at an angle into ' May, 188G. 
a brick chimney. 
2363. Would not that have a tendency to prevent a strong clear air current going U P No ; I do not 
think so. 
2301. Where do you think will be the weakest point in connection with the stoppings at the present 
time P Well, I believe there will be less force iipoii the left-hand stoppings, sinply because it has a 
greater way to travel, and must ps many an acute angle. 
2365. Still, with the stoppings being up, and if no vent could be obtained, then the concussion would be 
all the more forcible P Tins lim no connection at all with the old workings. ()it the former occasion it 
had two outlets to go down the main tunnel now it is properly walled off. 
2360. Do you think that it was possible for fire-damp to accumulate on to1) of that fall on the Esk-
bank boundary P To my mind it is quite clear that light earburetted hydrogen gas could not be manu-
factured from the burning coal. 
2367. \Vhere was this smoke going to (from the fire to the left of the boiler)—wliich furnace was it 
going to P I believe the great body of fire burning was sending its smoke in different directions it was 
going to Tyndall's heading, passing the other regions, up by the left-hand furnace, and dowmi to the lower 
\vorkmgs, which were pretty well full up. 
2368. You must admit this, that this force of head coming to these two opposite furnaces must have had 
tremendous draught power on these old workings when they were c!osed up P No doubt there must have 
been a great suction power. 
2369. Mr. .Zceilson.i Previous to the fire, Mr. iowan, what was the ordinary rate of ventilation? I think 
it was 12,000 cubic feet of air per minute .1 think it has gone as high as 17,000. 
2370. Could the products of combustion entering into that waste in the neighbourhood of Eskbank boumi- 
d u y and lod,nib in the i itie left by a gte it fqll—could these products of combustion be i.,nited 	o 
2371. lIfe. Cerley.] From this big body of fire that was burning, would the air not take the nearest course 
to time furnace? The air always takes every advantage ; it takes the nearest course. 
2372. Was there relieving power towards time left-hand furnace for that body of fire'? There was a good 
return ; I have seen it as inghm as 7,000 cubic feet per minute, but you have to take leakage into considera-
tiomm, as I have already stated. 
2373. Did you ever make any experiments as to the power of time draught at the fnrnaee previously P 
No ; it was going on in the ordinary way ; the mcii were working in safety, and I did not think it mmereAsarv. 

Mr. Curley having asked the witness several questions in relation to the possible existence of 
fire-damp in the mine.- 

2371. President] Supposing, Mr. iowan, that explosive gas escaped in a cavity of the roof towards the 
boundary of Eskbank, if the left-hand ret urn acted as a suction power sutlicient to draw fire-damn p 
from this cavity, would it not mix with the carbonic acid gas which you have stated filled the 
workirors near to the main tunnel I Yes. 
2375. Tn that case, would the gas explode? No ; even one to four would put it below exploding point. 
2376. Then you coimsider the products of combustion were sufficient to render the explosion of fire-damp 
inpossible P Yes. 
2377. jlIi'. Cur/eq.] I think you said you had 110 1)0w' tinder the Act to say what niaterials these stoppings 
should be composed of? Yes. 
2378. Mr. Cnrley here read sub-section 5 of section 12, of the Coal-mines ilegulation Act. 

If at any time it is found by the perso]m in charge of a mine or any part thereof or by time Examiner 
or inspector that by reason of noxious gases prevailing in such mine, or such part thereof or of 
any cause whatever the mine or said part is dangerous every workman shall be withdrawn there-
fromand the Examiner or inspector shall ispeet the same and if the danger arises from imiliam-
mnable gas shall make such inspection with it locked safety-lamp and iu every case shall make a 
true report on the condition of such mimic or part thereof anti no workman shall except in so far 
a is necessary for inquiry into the cause of danger or for time removal thereof or for exploration 
be re-admitted into the mine or such part thereof as was so foumid dangerous until the same is 
stated by time Examiner or inspector to be safe Every such report shah be recorded in a book 
winch shall be kept at the mine for the pumpose and shall be signed by the person reporting. 

2379. President.] That does not provide for a partiemmlar stopping P There is nothiit- about stoppings 
there. That section only contemplates certain action being  taken in case of danger being seen or 
apprehended. 
2380. life. Cur/eq.] But you have power if you apprehend danger? Yes. 
2381.. President.] Did you apprehend danger P No I did not apprehend danger. 
2382. Then the section does not apply. 1 suppose that is what you mean P Well, if I had apprelmended 
danger 1 should not have gone there. 
2383. Mr. (Yurley.] And you have never refrained for fear of in any way exceedimig your duty as an 
inspector P No, sir, so far as 1 know. 
2384. Mr. Usher.] During your several inspections of this mine prior to the two accidents, did it ever occur 
to you that it would be advisable to sink another slmaft to the extremne east of the workings I Well, that was 
1ken about, and Mr. Doig said lie was about to commence a shaft, and do away with time little emigine. 

TUESDAY, 
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TUESDAY, 11 MAY, 1886. 

THE PRESIDENT, 	 MR. CU1ILEY, 
MR. USHER, 	 Mn. DAVIES, 
Mn. NEILSON, 	 MR. JONES. 
Mn. SWIIYBTTRX, 

Dr. 	2385. Dr. Chas. Gibbons, M.R.C.P.S., was next called, and, having been sworn, put in a statement of the 
C. S. Gibbons, evidence which he could give, as follows —On April 19, I was sent for to go to the Lithgow Valley mine, 

as there were supposed to he men entombed. On my arrival, I attended to those who were brought out alive, 

11 May, 1886. and then went into the pit along with several of the searchers. We were obliged to stop some distance from 
the pit-mouth, owing to smoke coming from the left side of the tunnel; but were able to go on after fresh 
stoppmgs had been put in. On coming to the deceased men, I noted the positions in which they were 
found, and which were almost identical. The bodies were face downwards, with the mouths partly open, 
as though in the act of gasping, and the pupils were largely dilated. On examination, I found in each 
case the chest was more or less collapsed, and several, small burns about the bodies, which woulil most 
likely be caused by contact with flame. From all I saw and found by examination, I formed the opinion 
that all the five deceased men lost their lives by suffocation, owing partly to a want of air (probably there 
being a vacuum formed by the heated air), and partly to the inhalation of some noxious gas, which, in my 
opinion, was carbonic dioxide gas.—CHXELE5 S. GIBBONS, 10th May, 1880. 
2380. President.) Then you have come to the conclusion, doctor, that these men died from suffoca-
tion P Yes. 
2387. And from the inhalation of carbonic acid gas? Yes. 

Maurice Asher, L.C.S.I., &c.,&c., sworn and examined:— 
Mr. M. Asber, 2388. President.) Did you examine the bodies of the five men who lost their lives at the second 

L.C.S.I. 	accident P I did. 

11M6 
2389. What opinion did you form as to the cause of their death? I was of opinion from their appear-

ay, 188 . ance that they died from suffocation, probably caused by inhaling carbonic acid gas. 
2390. Have you had any experience of fiery mines charged with carburetted hydrogen gas? No; I have 
not seen any victims from an explosion of gas. 
2391. Did the bodies of these men hear any marks of burning P Yes; I am of opinion that there were 
burns 011 the body of Allison. From the shoulders down to the hands and, fingers there were marks which 
I believe to have been burns. 
2392. Have you heard whether Allison was dragged by a rope up a considerable portion of the tunnel? 
No ; I cannot say that I have. 
2393. W'ell, supposing he had been thus dragged along over a rough surface through the tunnel, would that 
have accounted for the marks you saw P No I do not think so. The appearance of the marks was 
exactly similar all over. The edges were well defined, and there was no sign of hemorrhage. 
2394. Did his face bear any marks of violence? There were no marks of violence on his face, so far as I could 
detect. On the back of the head there was an incised wound. I did not notice whether the clothes were 
torn in any way. I do not think it would be possible for a body to be burned and the clothes remain 
intact—in fact it is improbable. I believe all of the men had shirts on, although I did not see them 
until the following morning. I would not be certain that the marks I saw were burns, but they bore 
the appearance of burns. 
2395. Then you are doubtful on the subject, and you are of opinion that the actual cause of death was the 
inhaling of some irrespirable gas? I am quite certain that the burns did not cause death. 
2390. Mr. .ZV'eilson.) Was the hair or whiskers singed? Not to my,  knowledge. The hair I know was 
not burned. 

James Doig sworn and examined :- 
Mr. J. Doig. 2397. President.) What is your occupation? I am a miner. I have . been connected with milling 
'-"-- 	since I was about twelve years of age. I have worked in the Lithgow Valley mine between three and. 

11 May, 1880. four years. I have only worked in that mine in this district. The late manager was my brother. I have 
had no experience of fire or choke damp .1 have never seen or heard of them in the Valley. 
2398. Have you ever heard of the miners complaining of the quantity of ventilation in this colliery? 
No; so far as I was concerned, I was quite satisfied with the amouiit of ventilation. 
2399. Do you know,  the underground boiler? Yes; I have been working backwards and forwards about it 
at times. I do not know that it was safe; I have seen coal pretty well all round in the boiler. 
2400. Have you ever been at the back of the flues P Yes, two or tlmme times. They were very warm 
somnetinies. I have not heard of any underground fires there, except about eight weeks ago. I heard of 
one then, but did not witness it. 
2401. Did it never strike you that the arrangement of that boiler was not conducive to safety? So far as 
the management of the colliery goes, I cannot say as to that. I think the jresent manager knows all about 
these things. I know that the smoke would accumulate sometimes at night, but it would be carried away 
with the ventilatiomi currents into the old workings. 
2402. Do you know how all these stoppings were constructed P Yes; of slack. Great care was taken 
in putting them in. I never heard any complaint of their quality. I was in the pit on the Monday 
morning that the accident tooid place. Whemi I heard what had occurred, I went as far as I could into the 
mine—some 20 or 30 yards ; then I had to turn back. Mr. Turnbull had not then arrivedi. 
2403. What part did you take as a rescuer of these unfortunate men? I colninunicated with Mr. Gell, 
one of the proprietors, and suggested that he should send for Mr. Mackenzie. After that I went to the 
pit. In the meantime Mr. Turnbull had been sent for, and they proceeded inside the mine. I did not 
accompany Mr. Martin, but, when I was standing half-way between the tunnel and the second cross-cut, 
he came out and told me that Doig had been found. I asked himn if he was living. fTc replied, "Yes." 
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I then proceeded to help carry him out. I took no part in the subsequent operations. I have not been Mr. J. Doig. 
in the mine since, excepting as far as the first furnace. 1 have been into the ventilating furnace to put  
coal on. The ashes were never taken out from alongside the boiler, and there was no water i brown on 11 May, 188. 
them, so far as I know. I never cleatiet the fire, nor have I seen it cleaned. 
2404. As a matter of fact, then you cannot speak from personal experience? No. 

John White sworn and examined 

240;. Pes ideaL] What, is your occupation P 1 am a miner. 	 Mr. J. White. 

2400. ITow long have you been mining in this district P Twelve years. 
2107. Have you confined your operations entirely to this district? Yes : I have been nine years in the IlAlay,1886. 
Lithgow '\ alley Colliery wi bout stoppilig. 
2408. Have you ever worked in Eskhnik P No. 
2409. have you ever in the course of your life seen fire-dauip P No I never did. 
2410. Have you noticed the underground boiler in this colliery? Yes ; I was there before the boiler was 
put in. I saw the first brick that was ever laid. 
2411. Were you present at the building of it 	l\o ; hut I used to pass it. 
2112. Do von know whether the bottom coal was lifted P Under the boiler it was, but not at the back 
I believe it was lifted under the fire. 
2113. Was the top-coal taken down- No. 
2111. Have you over noticed smoke hanging iii the virinity of the boiler P Yes, very often ; nearly 
every day I passed it both morning and evening. The smoke had to travel at the back about 30 chains. 
I have worked in ever y part of the mine . A great portion of the left-hand returns where the smoke 
passed away was partially filled with water. in some plates the water would be almost level with the coal. 
You could not get in to see. 
2415. have you ever seen that yourself P Yes, T have. I have cut I lirough in one place to let the water 
through that was ,j ust at the back of the boiler. 
2410. Have you worked at the left-hand side of the tunnel. towards Eskbank P Yes right to flue 
boundary. 
2117. Is any portion of the olLs n' n'inut'ed there P 	es'. just about tine;' pillars this side. just at the 
back of the last explosion or fall. It is about; three pillars back from the boiler, allowing a chaill for 
each pillar. 
2418. '\Vere there aity pillars removed further up the tunnel P No, not ouie ; I believe Hobert (rauit was 
the man who took the pillars out. 
2119. Up towards the left-hand of the tunnel and near the mouth, were the places worked wide there P 
Some of the bords there are very wide, and the pillars are left very thin. Some of the bords would 
average 10 yards wide. 
2120. And is each divided from the adjoining bord by a narrow pillar P Yes. 
2121. The miners are very fond of doing that. I believe P Yes; to get the coal down. I have seen the 
bards holing through to one another I have often done that myself. 
2122. That is, you were doing a (,00d thnng for yourself? Yes; the coal was coming easy. 
2 123. Was this on the north side P Yes. 
2121. 1 [ave you ever seen any falls in this mine P Yes, I have. 
2-125. I [ave you ever been over these fall-, with a naked light P Yes. 
2126. Did you ever see any appearance of explosive gas? Not a bit. 
2127. II [arc you ever heard of gas in this mine P No ; I never beand of such a thung. 
2 I 2. Have you over complained about the ventilation of this colliery? Well, I did once ; it wasa long 
inc ago we complained to Doig. 

2 129. \Vhat was the nature of your complaint P We complained that we could not keep our lamps alight. 
2130. What was the cause of your being unable to keep your lamps alight P We put it down to this, 
that we were working too close together, namely, five of its, and we put the blame on the smoke of the 
lamps. 
2431. Was it removed P Oh, yes it was removed without hesitation. They took some of the men out 
of the hmeaulimig, amd the air was then quite different altogether. 
2132. Siucc that time, have you ever made a complaint? No ; the ventilation has always been sufficient 
since then. 
2133. 1 [ow long mvas that ago? About eighteen months. 
2131. l[ave you ever heard of any underground fires occurring in the vicinity of this boiler? No; they 
say there was a fire at Christmas, but it was unbcknow'n to me. 
2135. Did you entertain any fear of danger from this boiler? No ; I never thought of it for a moment. 
2430. Wliat do you know about the first accident? 1. caine down about 730 on the morning of the 
accident, being on the back shuft ; I met the foreman, who said it was no use taking the picks, as I would 
not be able to get iii ; I said 1 would try ; 1 got in 30 chains, within a few chains of the boiler, and I met 
smoke about 25 chains down I got (lowli S chains beyond where I met the smoke I did not take any 
part iii rescuing Doig or Younger ; 1 did tint worlc with Mr. Tnrnbull ; 1 was outside, putting in timber 
and one tlnng and another. 
2437. Did you go into the tunnel towards the evening again P No ; I went in with the forenoon men, 
about ii o'clock, to make the fire up. 
2438. Do you know ]low far %[r. Tni'nbull got the smoke down? No. 
2139. Did you work at the tunnel during the operations preceding the second accident P Yes, all the 
time ; I was engaged at the furnace; I never saw the lire there. When they told me about an explosion, 
I told them it was not all explosion ; I was not at the furnace when the accident occurred 1 was in my 
own house; I was to go on at 4 o'elocic, and thus happened about 330 ; I saw all the men carried out. 
2410. Why did you not think it was an explosion P I believed that it was a fall of the tops caused by the 
heat, certain props having been withidi'awn in the vicinity by Mr. Campbell, the present manager. 
2-1 Ii.. Did you ever hear of a fall oF roof causing suvii a- rushi of air? Yes', I remember one in the 
hermitage colliery ; a fall took place about the breadth of this room, and the air came down and put all 
our lamps out. It was about 20 yards away. 
2412 You saw the pillars in the vicinit .y of thue fire, were they of verysinall size Yes, they were very tlnn 

2443. 
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Mr. J. White. 2443. How many yards wide do you think P I worked in there myself, and noticed one which, I suppose, 
could hardly have been more than 2 yards wide. 

11 May, 188. 2444. .21&. Usliei'.] At the time Mr. Campbell withdrew these props that you speak of, was there any 
fall P No; it was about three pillars back from the boiler. 
2445. What thickness would they average? In some places 7 yards wide, while in others they would not 
average above 2 yards. I believe some of the pillars were taken out; I cannot say to what extent; I was 
working up the other side at the time, but I know the props were taken out. 
2446. Did you ever travel to the back and left of the boiler? Yes; to the Eskbank boundary. I 
travelled, that four years ago. 
2417. Do you know whether a proper return has been kept on that side? No, but of course the 
day-men used to look to that. It was not my place. 
244S. Has a proper return been kept to your knowledge P I cannot say whether it was or not. 
2449. So that you do not actually know whether the return was kept good or not? No ; I do not know. 
2450. Mr. .ZTeilson.1 Have you ever heard of any heavy fall taking place in the vicinity of the Eskbank 
boundary P No ; 1 know there was a fall in the main heading, but nothing to speak of; we called it 
nothing. The bords were driven from the other side then. 
2131. Have you ever heard of any previous fire at the boiler? Never, except what I have mentioned. 
2452. Mr. Jones.] Did Grant relate to you that he was blown from the furnace door to the right-hand 
side of the drums ? Yes. 
2453. Do you know if he received any injury? He has not done any work since, but he did not scent 
to have received any injury at the time. 
2154. .Me. G'nriey.] In that place mentioned where the water is, if a fall had taken place there, would 
there be sufficient force of air coming to blow out the stoppings ? It is not all water ; it is a swallow. 
2455. Supposing that opposite where the water lay a stopping were blown out, do you think there was 
sufficient space between the water and the roof to allow a sufficient force of air to blow out the stopping ? 
In some places it would not, because the water is too high. 
2456. Presiden/.] I believe there are two swallows, are there not, one near the boiler, and another 
ilearer to the left-hand furnace? Yes. 
2457. Was there all open space between? Yes. The water is up to the roof at the back of the left-
hand furnace. 
2458. ALr. Usher.] In going over the falls you referred to in a former part of your evidence, did you 
observe whether the top was rock or shale? There was no rock, only the coal. 

Joseph Campbell sworn and examined 
Mr. J. 	2459. Prcsidcnf.i What is your occupation and present position? I am at present manager of the 

Campbell. Litilgow Valley Colliery. 1 was formerly employed asan engine-driver. 
2160. What are you by professioii . I am a nnner. I learned my profession in Northiuniberland, 
England. 
2401. And being brought up in Northumberland, were you accustomed to deal with fire-damp ? I have 
seen fire-damp frequently. 
2162. And therefore you would recognize it if you saw it again? Yes; I know it when I see it in my 
lamp. 
2163. How long have you been in Lithgow? Seven and a half years. 
2464. At what mines ? At all the mines excepting the Ironworks. At the Eskbank, Vale of Clwydd, 
and the Litligow Valley. 
2165. Have you ever discovered fire-damp in any of these mines? Never. 
2466. Have you ever heard of it in any of these mines? No. 
2467. Judging from the appearance of the coal-the strata above and below-would you consider that 
seam likely to give off gas? Not in my opinion. 
2468. Where have you worked in the Lithgow Valley mine? I have worked in the right-hand district 
of the main tunnel, also in the left-hand, but it is a long time since I was in the left-hand side. It was 
about five years ago. 
2469. have you worked in the coal adjoining Eskbank? Yes. 
2470. Was any portion of the pillars taken out there? Yes; some of it was taken out. 
2471. Can you say to what extent? I cannot exactly say. I should think there would be about five 
pillars split and taken out. They were not taken clean out, a portion of them being left standing. 
2172. Coming to the main tunnel itself, were any pillars taken out there or robbed? Not that I am 
aware of. 
2473. Were any left small? Yes, but none robbed. 
2174. Were any taken out contiguous to the underground boiler? No. 
2475. Did you draw any props from the top of the coal near the boiler? No. 
2476. A few pillars back, I mean? No. I drew props out from that portion of the mine I have referred 
to, down by the boundary, but that is a good deal more than three pillars away fromthe boiler. The 
plan will show it. 
2477. Are you not aw-are that one pillar back from the main tunnel the pillars are left much smaller than 
has been the rule ? I cannot say; I did not take sufficient notice. 
2478. Was that portion worked before you left? They were busy working there when I went. 
2179. Do you know as a fact that the pillars were left smaller ? I do not know it as a fact. 
2480. Then, as to the mode of working this colliery, was it worked in any different fasinon or style from 
that pursucil in the adjoining collieries P I do not think it was. 
2181. Was it worked much in the same way? Yes. I think sonic pillars are smaller here than in the 
Eskbank when I was there. 
2482. Have you ever seen any appearance of these pillars crushing under the superilleUlnilent weight P 
No. 	When there was a large fall in Brown's pit I heard a rumbling of pillars ill the Lithgow pit. 
2483. Were the stoppings in the Lithgow Valley mine erected in the same fashion as in the adjoining 
collieries? Yes. 
2484. Then it was a district custom that was followed? Yes. We always put slack stoppings in. The 
custom is the same in Eskbank as in the Lithgow Valley mine. 

2485. 
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2 13.3. Was timber used to strenthea them 9 Some of the stoppimigs had timber in them. 	 Mr. J. 
2 ISG. Were they carefully constructed P I cannot say. They were never under my supervision. 	Campbell. 

2-1S7. In your opinion, were they sufficient for time pt1rps required of them? I think they were for 
the iuiposes of ventilation. 
21SS. have they conducted the ventilation in a satisfactory manner? ie. Before the accident over 
14,000 cubic feet of air was coming down to the men. 
21S(.). Was that a proof of your statement that they were sufficient for their purpose? In my 
opinion, yes. 
2 M. Did you ever complain to the late manager of the ventilation or management of the pit? No. 
2-191. Have you ever heard of any complaint? No, never. 
2492. You have already stated that in the course of working this coal you have not detected any fire- 
damp; after the nec ident, did you detect any indication of fire-damp P Not in time least, and I have often 
searched for it. 	 - 
2193. Had fire-damp ever existed, would it, in your opinion, have been detected after the accident P I do 
not know ; it is hard to say; but I think we should have found it before if there had been any there. 
21-9 I. Where do you think you would have foumol it ? In the highest level. 
2 195. Did you ever suspect gas inmy p irt of this colliery during time progress of the operations for 
extinguisiting the fire? 	o ; I never h0d the least suspicion. 
2 lOb. if it never existed before the accident, you know no reason why it should have existed after the fire 
was discovered? 	o, I do not. 
2 197. Have you ever heard of an open colliery fire generating fire-damp 9 Never. 
21-98. If it were possible for an open fire to generate fire-damp, where would this fire-damp have been 
detected 	I cannot see how it would be possible to generate it. 
21-99. Well, I daresay a good many people are of your mind, but just suppose it were possible for an open 
lire to generate fire-damp, where would it have shown its presence, or where would it have gone in the 
workings P It would have taken the highest level. 
2300. Suppose it had taken directly to time return airway, where would you have discovered the fire-damp 9 
We should not have discovered it at all, owing to dmo air that was returning ; if it caine back in large 
(luau! ties it would fire on the furnace. 
2501. About this underground boiler, did you see it built P No. 
2302. Did you inspect it during the course of its erection? No ; I had nothing to do with it. 
2503. Do you know whether time tops were taken down over it? There was one baud taken down, I 
know, but all the top-coal was not taken down. 
2501. Was the bottom coal removed P I cannot say. 
2305. 1-live you ever seen or heard of any former fire occurrium' here? Yes. 
2506. When P I cannot say the exact date ; some time previous to the accident close on twelve months 
I should say. 
2307. Do you know whether it was a serious fire? I cannot say ; I only heard of it. 
2.505. Do you know what was done at the time P No, I do not. 
2300. Regardimug this rapper-wire, how was it liming P It was hung on props and over small pulleys. 
2310. I-low Avai this rapper or signal wire disarranged by the accident? I cannot say ; wliemu we went 
(lo\Vli the tunnel I saw it was covered up with slack ; what was ahead of that 1 (10 not know. 
2511. When you went down time tunnel, immediately after the accident, did you attempt to work this 
wire? No. 
2312. Do you know whether it was really blocked? I cannot say ; no one attempted to work it after the 
accident. 
2513. Have you heard that it was blocked P I think so ; my judgment is that there was sufficient to 
prevent it from working. 
2314. How could this wire have been hmmng so as to avoid the possibility of its being disarranged by such 
an accident? I cannot say ; it would be a difficult matter. 
2515. What caused this engine to start at first to pull out time skips at the time of the accident? It was 
the suggestion of one or two men who thought that in all probability time millers had sought refuge in 
the skips. 
2516. It was not because the wire acted, was it P No ; they had no intinmatiomi outside. 
2517. Was time rouid blocked up by debris? Yes. 
2515. ('an you suggest any means of protecting this wire from accident ; was it properly liming P I cannot 
conceive any other way ; if it had been enclosed in pipes it would have been impracticable, I think, because 
if the wire broke time pipes would have to be opened. 
2510. In working a colliery, can accidents always be foreseen 9 I think it is quite inpossible you cannot 
tell what may happen any (lay. 
2520. Are there two separate and distinct outlets for the men from this mine P Yes. 
2521. In case of emergency, camu these two outlets be used P Yes. 
2522. In addition to these two outlets, could the air-shafts be used for taking out the men 9 Yes, but 
there are no apphamices ready. 
2523. Mr. Xeilsoim.] There is a main outlet, the furnace, and the travelling road, that is, three outlets ; is 
that not so? Yes; there were four outlets previous to this, but now one is blocked up. 
252-I. So far as the inlets and the outlets were concerned, was this mine worked in conformity with time 
Act? Yes. 
2325. President.] In the case of carbonic acid gas rolling imp from an underground fire, would it be 
possible to keep time return free from time gas P I cannot see how it would be possible. 
2529. If you had ten separate outlets, could you have kept them free from gas? No. 
2527. In prosecuting the work of getting the fire under, did you take down a large quantity of air 9 Yes 
on time Saturday before the accident there were 26,000 cubic feet of air passing the furnace ; a portion went 
up the first and second cross-cuts, and 1-1,700 feet went down to the men. 
2528. Would this air have the effect of increasing the fire? Yes. 
2520 And also increase time gas resulting from time fire? Yes. 
2530. And this gas went into the return P Yes. 
2531. Then only the main intake was really available for the passage of time men? That is all. 
2332. In your opinion, could provision have been made in the Mines Regulation Act to guard against such 
an accident? I do not think so, 

576-N 	 2533. 
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Mr. 	2533. If every possible precaution were taken to ensure the safety of the work, would Government, in 
J. Oampbell. your opinion, be justified in suspending the operation of the Act to enable an attempt to be made to 

recover a valuable colliery? That is a difficult question to answer. 
11 May, 1886. 2534. Do you think you ought to be allowed to extinguish an underground fire? There is a certain 

amount of risk connected with all fires. 
2535. No doubt; in an underground fire where you have two outlets, one an in-take and the other a 
return, the return must be fouled. Supposing it was so foul that no animal life could exist, would you 
then, in your opinion, be justified in putting out the fire? If sufficient precautions were taken to ensure 
the safety of the men, I would. 
2536. Well, granting that, do you think you would be justified in making the attempt? I should say 
yes. 
2537. Who was entrusted with the task of seeing that provision was made to ensure the safety of the 
men who were carrying out the work? Myself and, the underground manager, Kirkwood. 
2538. Who selected the leaders of the shifts? The men selected their own leaders. 
2539. Did you select any? No. 
2540. Did you ever offer any suggestion as to the mode iii which the work ought to proceed? Yes; the 
instructions were always given to the leader of the shift 
2541. Then you say emphatically that you did not take any part in the selection of the leaders? Yes, 
I do. 
2542. Was each of the leaders aware of the character of the work in which he was engaged? I should 
think so ; in my opinion yes. 
2543. Was any inducement held out to them, or any pressure brought to bear upon them? No. 
2544. Do you consider this work was attended by any danger? I had no idea of any. 
2545. And you repeat that you are satisfied that everything was done to secure the safety of the men? 
Yes; if it had to be done over again I could not suggest anything better. 
2546. To bring your attention to the period nnmediately preceding this time, when the men held a 
meeting, and appointed a deputation to wait on the masters, can von tell us why the mine had been 
abandoned? You had got to the seat of the fire, von saw it, and forthwith the attempt was abandoned 
we have never heard any good reason assigned for that? I do not know whether it was intended to 
abandon the mine or not; however, I was not there that night ; I was knocked up, almost unconscious of 
what was going on, but I went to the pit next morning, and I heard that the men were commencing with 
the brickwork and st-oppings, &c. ; it appeared to me that they were going to close the mine on account 
of its condition, as we had no appliances for putting the fire out. It was a hopeless case until we could 
get appliances; we had no water for example. 
2547. Then do you believe that was the cause of the mine being abandoned for a period? Yes ; I think 
that was the reason. 
2348. When you got down again to the seat of the fire, did you satisfy yourself as to the cause of it? No; 
it was a mystery. 
2549. You knew that an underground fire occurred at that time? Yes. 
2550. And you knew that smoke and heated gas passed over unprotected heaps and portions of coal? 
Yes. 
2551. You knew that heaps of small coal had been allowed to lay at and around the furnace? Never 
nround it. 
2532. At all events you knew that an underground fire had occurred there, that the fire was burning 
round the boiler, and yet you say you never suspected the cause of the fire. Furthermore, you knew 
that certain men coming out on the Saturday before noticed an unusual smoke about the boiler and in 
the workings, and yet you say you did not suspect the cause of the fire? I suspected that it originated 
down by the boiler. 
2353. Before the first accident, did you know the course taken by the ventilation? No; only just what 
I have had pointed out to me. 
2554. You knew that it went down the main tunnel, when it, to a certain extent, stopped and returned, 
one portion up the right-hand and the other portion up the left-hand side? I knew that the bulk of the 
air went towards the right-hand workings. 
2555. And you also knew, did you not, that Doig and his companions had entered the right-hand air-
way? Yes. 
2556. And you knew that the main intake was full of smoke and choke-damp? Yes. 
2537. Did it not occur to you that it was a strange proceeding for Mr. Doig to enter the right-hand 
return under these circumstances? Yes, it seemed very strange to me. 
2558. Were not naked lights used in the work of endeavouring to put back the smoke in the tunnel? 
Yes; nothing else but naked lights were used. 
2559. To return to the fire-damp; if it had existed, would it have been possible to have used naked lights 
there, or in the return air-ways No. 
2560. Was evidence of the absence of fire-damp in that case clear and definite, in your opinion? Yes, 
certainly. 
2561. Were you aware that before Mr. Turnbull arrived a party or parties of rescuers had gone down as 
far as Tyndali's heading? Yes I knew that. 
2562. And that other parties subsequent to that had also, unknown to Mr. Turnbull, penetrated a con- 
siderable distance into the returns? Yes, I believe so. 
2563. And that also, unknown to Mr. Turnbull, these parties had discovered the bodies of the unfortunate 
men? Yes, I knew that. 
2564. And that the air was not loaded with choke-damp in the right-hand return? Yes, I knew that, 
too. 
2565. Did this circumstance excite any curiosity in your mind as to the reason why this return was not 
full of smoke and choke-damp? We have evidence that it was comparatively clear and free, and that 
men could live in it? Yes. 
2566. Did it excite any suspicion in your mind as to the cause of this apparently anomalous state of 
matters? I thought myself that there was a fall somewhere in the main heading. 
2567. And as a matter of fact when you got down weeks after that you saw a fall? Yes. 
2568. And was it a large one? Yes. 

2569. 
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2569. Did it destroy the air-way? Yes. 	 Mr. 
2570. Were you present when the last accident occurred',  \e ; I was present outside. 	 J. Camp e 
2571. How long had von been out of tic' mine ? I left it about 2 o'clock. 
2572. how often did you visit the underground operal lojis 	I VaS seldom away night or day. 	 ay, 

2573. Then what instructions did your owners give von as to the geiieial safety of the men ? They 
charged me very seriously not to allow the men to incur any risk ; they said they would sooier 1 se the 
whole of the property than that the life of one man should be sacrificed. 
257 I. And you carried these instructions out iii the course of the operations P Yes. 
2575. Did you discover a few das before the accident that a stopping had been surreptiliously 
opened P Yes. 
2576. What stof)ping was that? The twent -ninth stoppilig on the left-hand side. 
2577. Can you decribe what you saw 	On the second shift, before the discovery, I took three or four 
men in with me to examine these stoppi igs, and found that some of them were not altogether right, and 
I knit the men to work to tighten the stoppu igs that were loose ; subsequently I was down in that 
direction removing some timber ; mv lamp was haiging on a prop, and my attention was directed to the 
flame of a lamp Wbich I saw was bearing down towards the stopping. I thought that something was 
wrong, and upon investigatiou discovered that this particular stopping had been tampered with ; about 
6 inches of slack had been pulled from the centre of the stopping. 
2578. how could this have been done, Mr. Campbell ? I could not say, unless somebody pulled it down. 
2579. Was anybody admitted into the tunnel but the workers I No. 
2580. Then it would seem to lie between the workers P Unless someone got in without being  observed. 
2581. What object would an one have to gain I That I cannot say. 
252. Was there any watchman put on at the tunnel mouth? The man who attended to the furnace 
acted as watchman. 
2583. Did they ever admit anyone into the tunnel without an order I Not that I am aware of. 
2581. You have no doubt that these men at the furnace did their duty P None whatever. 
2585. Were the stoppings below blown out in the main tunnel at the accident which afterwards occurred? 
Yes. 
2586 Would not a similar cause account for a few inches being driven out of this stopping P I do not 
know. 
2587. Did you see any evidence of any person having been at this place where the stopping was tampered 
with P Yes. 
2588. Might some persdm have got into the mine without being observed P They might. 
2589. How could they get out again? They might wait for an opportunity. 
2590. What effect had this Up011 the fire P I do not know that it had any effect, excepting that it would 
take a portion of air from the main tuimel. 
2591. Was that noticed by the workers? No; I never heard them complain. 
2592. Did you anticipate or foresee this unfortunate accident P No. 
2393. Did ally maii express to you his doubts as to the general safety of the mine? No. 
2 59 1. Did you hear any sound of falls to the left of the tunnel previous to the accident? Some fortnight 
before I first got down to the fire I heard some falls on the main tunnel in front, but never heard anything 
to the left. 
2595. Coming to the 20th stopping again, did you see over the top of it ? Yes. 
2596. Did you see any fire there I No. 
2597. Did any maim hear falls before the accident? I have heard since that some of them heard falls, but 
they did not inform me at the time. 
2398. In the light of subsequent events, could you have anticipated this accidont? No. 
2599. In your opinion, what was the cause of the catastrophe I I think it was caused by a heavy fall. 
2600. Where could a large fall take place in these workings? It is hard to say. There might be a fall 
where these pillars were taken out. 
2601. In your experience, have you ever known of a very strong rush of wind occurring in consequence of 
a fall? Yes. 
2602. Where P 1 have known it in the Eskbank mine and in the old country. 
2603. Tell us about the fall in the Eskbank mine P I have been lcnocked down by the effects of a fall 
there. 
2601. What distance where you from the fall P About a chain. 
2605. Did it do any other damage? Well, it knocked the skips about that were close to us, and made 
the slack fly about. 
2600. In the old country, what experience have you had of a similar catastrophe to that which occurred in 
the Lithgow Valley mine? I have known falls occur there when all the lights have been extinguished. 
2607. Had the stoppings in the Lithgow Valley mine, along the maui tunnel, been built of brick, do you 
think the result of this aeciclemit would have been different? It is hard to say. 
2608. Supposing that there had been brick stoppings, and these stoppings had been blown out, what would 
the i'esults have been P I think the results would have been the same as we have seen in this ease. 
2609. Where were you when this accident occurred? I was sitting outside on the bank. I saw smoke 
coming out of the left-hand up-cast shaft, extending UI) to 15 or 20 feet. 
2610. Did you see anything reinaricable about the mouth of the tunnel? I saw some smoke coming out. 
2611. How long did it continue? For about two or three seconds. 
2612. Did you see Grant, the furnace-man, there? Yes. 
2613. Did lie seem to be in a dilapidated condition? Well, lie shouted out to me, and appeared to be in 
a very great fright. 
2614. Did lie tell you be had been projected out of the tunnel for a distance of 100 yards? No, but 1 
know chat it could not be a fact anyway. 
2615. Was Grant injured? I do not know. 
2616. Did lie complain? Yes, be complained, but I thought it was from fright. 
2617. Are the gates at the mouth of the tunnel permanent and strong structures? No. 
2618. Were they blown away by the force of the blast? No. 
2610. WThat force would be required to blow a heavy man like Grant out of the tunnel-would not such 
a force be sucient to have blown away these frail structures? It would have made a considerable im- 
presthon on them, anyway. 	 2620, 



103 	 ROYAL COM1ISSION ON COLLIERIES-MINtTES OF EVIDENCE. 

Mr. 	2620. Do you credit his statement? No; I know it is not true. 
J. Campbell. 2621. You think the man is possessed with a diseased organ of wonder. What did you do immediately 

11 Ma 1886 
after hearing of this accident? I scarcely knew what to do. As soon as I heard of the accident, I ran 
to consult with Mr. G-ell, and returned in three or four minutes. I did not see Mr. G-ell; he was not at 
home at the time. During my absence they had pulled out the skips. Young Norwood was in the skips. 
We had heard a cry for help from the tunnel, and we rushed in, Morris and James Rowe being among the 
number. 
2622. What did you see? We found Mantle about 3 chains down the tunnel. He was lying down 
and calling for help, and appeared to be very much exhausted. 
2623. Was he much injured? I never examined him. I saw him lying down, and gave him in charge of 
someone else. I then hurried on. 
2624. Did you notice whether the doors of the right-hand furnace were open? No, I did not; but the 
left-hand furnace door was open. 
2625. Well, after passing the left-hand furnace-door, what did you see? I found Dune and Duncan just 
past the left-hand furnace. They were going out on the main tunnel. They were standing when I came 
up to them. I gave them in charge of somebody, and went further on, when 1 found Kirkwood. 
2626. How many chains down was that? About 10 chains. I tried to get further down after this, but 
could not. The smoke was in the tunnel there, and the stoppings were down. 
2627. Was this spot the first place where you saw the stoppings blown down? No; 1 saw them before 
this, and noticed that the top was just blown out from the left across the road. We repaired these 
stoppings. 
262S. And having repaired the stoppings you went onwards? Yes. 
2629. Where did you come upon the first party? I was repairing one of the stoppings when the party 
ahead of me found Buzza. it would not be more than a chain from where we found Kirkwood. 
2630. That would be about 11 chains down? I would not be positive as to the distance. 
2631. Was he dead? I was told he was dead, but I cannot say whether he was dead when he was found. 
2632. Was the air very bad then? Yes. 
2633. How long would that be after the accident? I should say it would be about half an hour, scarcely 
so much perhaps. We then proceeded down for a distance of 18 chains, and we found Thomas Mantle 
at the bottom of the eighteenth stopping, with Lance Allison lying alongside of him; then I dropped 
the canvas immediately, ran down further and got to the next chain, and there found Isaiah Hyde and 
Thomas Rawe. 
2634. That was at the 19th chain? Yes. 
2635. Were these two lying together? Yes; I then called to the men to cease operations till we could 
find the lot and get the bodies out, because there was a doubt about William Mantle, although he had 
really by this time got out of the mine. We called the roll over, and I told the others to go outside and 
see whether William Mantle had got out. In the meantime I went 3 chains further down the tunnel to 
see if I could find any more. 
2636. Had you any difficulty in doing this? The smoke was very thick, as the stoppings were out and 
the air current disarranged. 
2637. Did you observe any cinders across the road when you were passing these stoppings? No, I did not. 
2638. At what stoppings did the force of the accident seem to expend itself-which of them seemed to 
have received the greatest amount of injury? I could not see very much difference in any of them. 
26:39. Were any of them totally blown out? No, not when I saw them; I think the largest hole was 
about 15 inches. 
2640. Did that extend right across the stopping? No, it was about the centre. 
2641. Were these stoppings closed up? Some of them were. As we went down those which had been most 
blown out were covered with canvas bags. 
2642. How far did you get down after the accident? I went down about 22 chains on the day of the 
accident. 
2643. Did you see any fire in the inside of the stoppings? No. 
2644. Did you see any evidence of an explosion of fire-damp in going down this tunnel? No. 
2645. Have you ever heard it stated that red-hot ashes or coals End been projected out from some of these 
stoppings P Yes, I have heard so. 
2646. And do you credit that statement? My own private opinion is that it was not so; I saw no 
evidence of it. 
2647. Just before this accident, was the return air-way to the left full of smoke or choke-damp? Yes. 
264S. Under the circumstances, is it possible for the waste there to be filled with or to contain any 
quantity of fire-damp? No. 
2649. Are you aware of the effect that choke-damp has upon fire-damp? No. 
2650. I will put it in another way-Does the presence of choke-damp render an explosion impossible? 
I have never seen any explosive gas where there is black-damp. 
2651. You know that choke-damp will put out fire, I suppose? Yes. 
2652. Knowing that, would you say that choke-damp must have the effect of preventing an explosion? 
I should think so; yes. 
2653. Do you know whether fire-damp would be given off by an open coal fire? I have already answered 
that ; I do not think it could. 
2654. Do you know of anything to justify the statement that fire-damp accumulated in the left-hand wastes, 
that is to say, the wastes towards Eskbank? I do not know of anything to justify such a statement, 
because I have heard Doig say from time to time that they could not get towards the Eskbank boundary 
for black-damp. 
2655. Did you inspect the bodies of these men? Yes, some of them. 
2656. What appearance did they present? They did not present the appearance of having been burned. 
2637. Did you see Allison? No, except when he was taken out of the mine. 
2658. Had these men clothes on? They had flannels on. 
2659. Did the bodies you saw differ in appearance from those of Doig, Younger, and Rowe? No, not 
the ones I saw. 
2660. What do you consider was the cause of the death of Doig, Younger, and Rowe? I consider that 
they died from the effects of carbonic acid gas. 

2601. 
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2001. And you attribute the death of these five men to the same cause? Yes. 
2002. During the operation of extiiiguisliing this fire, do you consider that the Inspectors of Collieries 	Mr. J. 

pedormed their duty? I do. 	 anipbe1I. 

it. Did they extend any privi1ees in any war? No. 11 May, 1886. 
2661. Did they suspend the operation of any clause of the Mines Regulation Act in order to favour any one 

ot that I am aware of. 
2005. Did they exhibit anxiety for the safety of the men P Yes. 
2000. Do you think they could have foreseen this accident? I should think not. 
2007. Do you think it was in the power of man to have foreseen this accident ? I do not think it was. 
2008. Could any application of the Mines Regulation Act have prevented it? Not that I iflfl aware of. 
2000. Leaving this OCCi(lCflt, the ionic is now sealed off, that is, the workiigs above No. 2 cross-cut from 
the inaor portion of the pit, by 27-inch stoppings, is it not so ? Some of the stoppings are 27 inches, 
but others are only U inches. 
2070. Is there any difference in the thickness of the stoppings on the left-hand side of the tunnel P Yes 
the first stopping is a 27-inch brick stopping to the left of the tunnel with Barlow rails helnnd ; there is 
another on the other side of 11 inches, and one of 0 inches inside the furnace in the return. 
2671. Is there any difference in the thickness of the stoppings to the right? Yes ; the first two stoppiigs 
to the right are 27 inches, and the others are 11 inches, with the exception of one, which is 18 inches 
thick, that is below the cross-cut. 
2672. Can von assgli any reason for the difference in the thickness of these stoppings? Yes, some 
of them were backed up by sneb a tremendous amount of slack that we considered 11 inches snflnient. 
2073. How many yards of slack were these stoppings backed up by ? They were of varinis thickness" 
some of them might be backed up hy 6 or 7 yards of slack, and some of them were built right up with 
timber, and filled in with slack behind and brick in front. 
2071. Then, in your opinion, are they substantially built stoppings P Certainly. 
2075. Are they built in with cement? No, lime. 
2070. According to the plan you are to go by, are any of the old workings forward to the line of the 
cross-cut ? No. 
2077. Are you aware that the plan has not been extended for a year? Yes. 
2078. In which case to continue No. 2 cross-cut in its presciut direction might open up some of the 
workings? I do not think so. 
2670. But it might? Yes, it might. 
2080. Supposing the workings were cut through, what would be the result ? Black-damp would come 
through. 
208!. Would it not be wise to swerve this cross-cut some degrees to the south? I have done so. 

How many degrees? 10 or 15. 
Are you aware that the water runs freely from Lithgow Valley mine to Eskbank? No, I am not. 
Did it once run freely? Yes. 
What is the reason it does not run now? Because stoppings have been put in at Eskbank; the 

water was pumped to deliver into Eskbank. 
2680. Then if it did not go, what would be the consequence P Tt would run back again. 
2087. Asa matter of fact it did not run back, or you could not have worked your mine? Well, the mine 
was not clear of water for four or five months. 
2088. What was the growth of the water? I believe they have been pumping and re-pumping it over 
again. 
2680. If water would run to Eskbank, would a fire draw air through the same place? Yes, I think it 
would. 
2090. Would the flooding of the Lithgow Valley mine have the effect of flooding Eskbank? If it burst 
the darns it would. 
2691. Mr. Jones.] Would not brick stoppings, hacked up by 6 or 7 yards of small coal, have been more 
effective in preventing a recurrence of what took place at the late accident ? Yes, I should say so; no 
doubt brick stoppings are the best. 
2092. By whose authority did you proceed to re-open the mine? By the authority of the proprietors, and 
with the concurrence of the Government Inspector and }ixamimier. 
2603. I understood you to say that the Government officials had nothing to do with the matter P Well, 
they were there to see that nothing was done contrary to the Act ; they were sent by the Government 
after having received notice. 
2694. Mr. Davies.] Was their opinion asked as to the safety of the proceedings? They were satisfied that 
we were doing right, or they would not have allowed us to proceed, I suppose. 
2005. AIr. Us/ier.] I suppose there was a reason for your having Barlow rails in No. 1 stopping? Yes, 
because we could not put an arch stopping there on account of the drift being so near to the main drive. 
2096. That is the left-hand corner of the shaft? Yes. 
2697. ALr. Gurley.] At what time did you commence operations? On 17th February. 
2008. When you took charge, did you consult with the 1rolrietors  and the inspectors upon the line of 
action that should be pursued ? Yes; I suppose you mean before we opened the mine. 
2090. I think I understood you to say that you found there were not sufficient appliances, and that 
determined, you on (losiug the mine again P Yes; but we did not expect that we should find any fire 
when we opened the mine; we expected that the closing of the mine would have put out the fire. 
2700. At the time that the men were working at this fire, in the event of anything occurring in the main 
tunnel, was there any other way out for them but that by the main tunnel? No. 
2701. There was no other safe means of egress? No. 
2702. Did you work during the day, or did you work at slight intervals? I was seldom out of the 
liii IIC. 
2703. Did you ever make any observation as to the current of air going up the imp-cast shaft? No; but 
we frequently took the register in the main tunnel. 
2701. Have you seen the ashes deposited about the right-hand furnace? Yes; there were some ashes 
there, but they were all deposited in the water. 
2705. Do you consider it advisable that ashes taken from the furnace fire should be deposited in the mine 
and stacked to such an extent? Well, 1 consider the best plan would be to take theni out. 

2700. 
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Mr. 	2706. Judging from your experience in Eskbauk as to the effects of a large fall, did it ever occur to you 
J. Campbell. in carrying out these operations that there was a possibility of danger from such a source? No, it never 

11 Ma 1886 occurred to me ; we never had the least apprehension of danger. 
2707. At the time of your consultation with either the proprietors or the Inspector of Collieries or the 
Examiner of Coal-fields, was the matter of a fall, or any other thing from which danger might be appre-
hended, brought up? No, never. 
2708. How far was this rapper-wire erected from the side of the tunnel? In some places it was pretty 
near the side-only a few inches from the rib. 
2709. How high from the floor of the mine? It varied; in some places it was not more than it foot. 
2710. In conducting these operations, did you ever refer to the Coal-fields Regulation Act at all to see if 
you were infringing any of its provisions? No; we had policemen watching us night and day, and if we 
had been doing anything wrong I take it that we should have been stopped; we conducted operations so 
far as we knew in compliance with the Mines Regulation Act. 
2711. IlIr. Usluir.] Would the fact of your swerving No. 2 cross-cut to the south rise prevent your holing 
in the old workings? That is the reason why it was determined upon; it was the intention to swerve, but 
not at such an angle to begin with. 
2712. Why was it the intention to do this? Because we thought it best to be safe; I have worked in that 
direction for a good distance. 
2713. Have you taken any precaution to prevent holing into the workings further to the south? Yes 
we have put some bore-holes in. 
2714. Do you know the size of the pillars on the south-east part of the workings? No, except by 
the plan. 
2715. Did you at any time accompany Mr. Turnbull to ascertain whether explosive gas existed in the 
waste workings? I accompanied hint when we took out the plug in the main tunnel. 
2716. Did he tell you he expected to find explosive gas? Yes; he came down and made an examination 
on the Sunday morning, and he made the remark when he came out of the mine that she was full of 
explosive gas. He went and told the company the same. 
2717. How did he try the gas? With a Davy lamp. 
2718. Was he very careful in approaclung the openings? Yes, very careful. 
2719. Who was present? Mr. Gell, Mr. Wilton, Kelly, and Morris. 
2720. What was the result of the examination? He distinctly stated that he believed it to be carbonic 
acid gas. 
2721. Did the gas extinguish the light? Yes. 
2722. Do you know the thickness of the rock overlying the coal-seam to the extreme workings? No, I 
do not. 
2723. 319. Jones.] Are you aware that the pillars have been very much robbed on the left-hand side of 
the main tunnel? I am not aware. 
2724. A previous witness has stated that they had been robbed to a very great extent? I did not know 
that they had been. 
2725. Did you ever visit the side of the boiler either previous to or after the first accident? Yes. 
2726. What did you observe? When I have been in during the morning I have seen a little vapour 
hanging there. 
2727. Did you ever have an opportunity of going in behind the boiler on the left-hand side? No. I 
have been behind the boiler since the accident occurred, and saw a fall of rock just close to the boiler; it 
was composed of coal and stone; it was not on fire when I saw it; I saw a flame behind the boiler after 
the first accident; I was in charge then; I kept putting on water and taking away the stuff as quickly as 
possible; I do not think the fire was put out. 
2728. What proceedings did you take after that? We commenced to build up the brick stoppings. 
2729. And you left the fire burning? Yes. 
2730. President.] In proceeding down the tunnel after the first accident, you say that the stoppings were 
down, and you looked through and perceived no fire. Did you see whether any top-coal had fallen? I 
did not.  

William Pitt sworn and examined :- 

Mr. W. Pitt. 2731. President.] What is your position, Mr. Pitt? I am manager of the Eskbank Colliery. 
,----_-- 2732. How long have you been manager of that colliery? Over ten years. 

11 May, 1886. 2733. Have you worked the coal along your southern boundary to the left portion of the Lithgow Valley 
mine boundary? Yes. 
2734. Did you work up to the boundary? Well, I consider not. 
2735. Have you worked over the boundary in any part? I think not. 
2736. Has any communication been made between the Eskbank mine and the Lithgow Valley mine? Yes, 
2737. Does water run between the two mines? I cannot say. 
2738. Have you taken precautions to prevent the water from running between these two mines-have 
you put in any dams, or by any other means endeavoured to stein the water? As we worked the pillars 
out we banked the slack well back. 
2739. You have worked the pillars out along the boundary, then? Yes. 
2740. What object had you in view in working the pillars out from that point? Simply that when we 
got to the boundary we took all the coal out. 
2741. Have you stopped pillaring that portion of your estate? That portion is already pillared. 

(Plan of Eskbank Colliery exhibited.) 

Dictated by the President. 
[In reference to the encroachment, Mr. Pitt pointed to the position on the plan where an encroach-

ment has been made, being the same as that shown on the Lithgow Valley plan. A large 
portion of pillars extending over some acres is stated by the witness to have been taken out. 
The witness also states that the place occupied by these pillars is perfectly closed. He 
explains that the effect of the Lithgow Valley mine being flooded would be to flood Esk-
bank also.] 

2742. 
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2712. Pisulrnt.] In your tei1 years' experience, Mr. Pitt, have you ever (liscoverell hue-damp in this Mr. W. Pitt. 
colliery P No; I never saw the slightest trace of it. 
2743. Mr. Dacies.] have you ever been where there is fire-damp P No. 	 11 May, 1886. 
2741. President.] Do you work N\ ith naked lights P Yes. 
2745. ATe. CU)'ley.] have VOLE ever searched, for fire-damp on the top of these large falls where the pillars 
are taken out P 	o far as we could, yes. 
27 1G. have you ever found any trace of lure-damp P No, never. 
2747. Pies ident,] htiive you ever heard of it P No. 
27•18. Mr. Usher.] Did you ever put iii any clay dams anywhere near the boundary P No, nowhere along 
the boundary. No provision has been made for damming back the water from the Lithgow Vallev mine, 
except banking the slack well up behind after taking out the pillars. A.t the seat of the encroachment a 
narrow ru) of coals was left in. 

[Mr. Pitt has 110 objection to the Commission, or a deputation from the Commission, visiting the Esk- 
bank workings with it view to enlightening tlieniselvcs upon the statement he has made.] 

Edward Ii el] sworn and examni ied :- 

2719 .President.1 You are one of the owners of time Lithgow Valley Colliery P Yes. 	 Mr. E. Gell. 
2730. ]iomv long have you been one of the owners P Ever since it has been opened—about twelve or 
thirteen years. I (to not kmuo\V the time exactly. 	 11 May, 1886. 

2731. What part have you taken in the uianagement of time colliery P I Inure not taken any part more 
than the other members of the ('omnpany since during the last five or six years. 
2732. have you frequently visited tile underground workings of your propemty P No. 
2753. how often did you visit tile workings 	11 had not been through the workings for four or five years 
before the last accident, and, as you can imagine, at that time they did not extend 10 any great distance. 
2751. To \viiomn did you delegate the charge of the umolcrgrouncl \vom1(i igs of your colliery P 	To i\[r. 
Doig, the late manager. Perhaps, if you uvill let inc gentlemen, I could give you a short narrative which 
so far as I am concerned, would put the whole matter clearly before you. 
2755. Very well, Mr. (hell, proceed P \Vhen we first opened this mimic we ,-,of Mr. Wimislii1) to come over 
to lay it out for it,,, ; lie performed that duty, and rcconnnencicd to us Mr. \\iiite  as it competent nhmnuager. 
He, however, had a failing that rendered it necessary that he should be suspended not very iomig a Nor his 
appointment. \\etheu, at thuerec'oiunneiidatioi of i\[r. \Vinship. got ii youngmannaincdwau. lie wasalsonot 
considered satisfactory, and did not remain imi our employ more than six or eight nioniths. We next engaged 
a Mr. Douglas, who was aim old practical Ili 	He had been engmmgecl at, and in fact I believe lie wmmsatthe 
opeiuing of the Eskbmunk mimic, and had time reputation of being iii experienced miner ; lie remained with 
us for some time, but he did not turn out vory well. You will nnuderstaiud, doctor, that at this time there 
were none of the proprietors living anvmvhere hear the spot. [lived in lkmtloum'st, and mused to come over 
here once it month to par the wages i did not very often remain more than a few hours ; I used to conic 
for that purpose solely. You will understand that we had not avery great knowledge of the practical 
part of the bmusiness—in fact INC trusted ent ilrely to the mcmi we had emuuployed. i\lr. Doig was emmuploved 
during the whole of this time as all unden,roui;d mflaiummger, and, as it matter of fact, we discovered that the 
whole of the managenment of the muiinc had devolved upon hini during the time whemu we were paying for 
other men to manage it; hence, when it became necessary to appoiumt it mie v nuanager, we thought it was 
about time to give Doig the position and the pay, seeing that he hind during all this time been performing 
the actual duties pertainimmg to tin' management of the mine for the wages of a subordinate. 	Tie was 
therefore appointed mimanager, amid the whole of time muanageunemut of time mine was placed in his hands. 
We had perfect commflclenee in his good judgment; he had everything that he required for carry ing out 
the operations of the colliery; and, so far as I know, all of his requests in eonmueetion with that part of 
the business were promptly attended to. 
2730. lie gradmmahlv worked himself imuto your confidence P Yes. 
2737. Then we are to umìclerstamud that all the unamuagemnent and care of the mine underground devolved 
upon Mr. Doig P Yes. 
2758. Practically he had sole mumaivagement of the mine P Yes. 
2739 Did you interfere with Mr. Doig in any war P Never. 
2760. i\Ir. Doig was a mmian in '.vhiomn you reposed the tmtmnost confidence P Lndoubtecilv. 
2761. You know this underground boiler P Yes. 
2762. have you inspected that boiler P No I was up to it during time time we were tryimig to extinguish 
the fire, but I never saw it before, 
2763. Did you ever hear of fires occurring at this boiler before the accident of the 11th of February P 
No ; it came upon inc quite as it revelation ; I have no recollection of hearing anvthnmg of the kind. 
2761. Had you heard of this oeemurrenee, would it have raised your sus100iomus as to the security of the 
mine P Yes, undoubtedly. Perhaps it may not be amiss if 1 state to you that I humuve some practical 
knowledge of, though I am not acquainted technically with, coal-ininimig, as I aiim all architect by profession. 
2765. Then you are (mite  certain that you did not hear of any fires having occurred prior to the one on 
the date mentioned? Yes. 
2766. Comimig to the morning of time accident, in February, when were you apprised of something being 
wrong? I was told of it about 7 o'clock on the l\Ioiiday morning. 
2767. And of course you caine to time mine P Yes ; I got up instantly and sent to Mr. Wilton, at time 

licrmnitage," and he uurrived at the mine shortly after I got there. 
2768. \Vliat was the positiomu of things at time mine P \Vehl, of course there was a great deal of coti-
sternal ion amnong the men, although the full extent of time disaster was not then known ; Mr. Turnbull 
was at once sent for, being a practical man. 
2769. Before Mr. Turnbuhl's arrival, did you hear whether any rcscuimlg parties had peuietrated into the 
mine P 1 cannot say that I remember that. 
2770. Well, on Mr. Turnbull's arrival, what conversation had you with himmu—what was the purport of it P 
'%\rell, I have no distinct recollection; of course you can understand that all was excitement, people 
running here and running there, and no one knowing hardly what to dl); as far as I was individually 
concerned I was to a great extent paralysed by the horror of the situation, and my recollection is not 
therefore very distinct as to particulars. 

2771. 



104 	 ROT.L COMMISSION ON COLLIEIiIES-MINrIES OF EVIDENCE. 

Mr. E. Gell. 2771. And when Mr. Turnbull arrived I understand you gave him instructions to do his best under the 
circumstances? Yes ; Mr. Wilton and I were both present at the time, and, so far as I can recollect, we 

11 May, 1886. did trust him entirely in the matter, as we were ourselves utterly helpless from want of knowledge. 
2772 You trusted Mr. Turnbull with the task of opening out the tunnel? Yes; there was first the 
rescuing of the men of course; but we gave him full charge also of anything he thought was necessary 
to be done. 
2773. Do you know, of your own knowledge, anything concerning the discovery of the men? Of my 
own knowledge, no. 
2774. After Mr. Turnbull had proceeded with the work whicli he had undertaken for some hours, do you 
recollect a man named Davis arriving at the mine? Yes. 
2775. Did he speak to you? Yes ; Mr. Wilton and I were talking in front of the house where John 
Do],,,  was lying between life and, death; there were a great many persons standing about, and a good deal 
of excitement prevailed, so that you can imagine that a person would pay very little attention to what was 
said at such a time. I only remember this man coining up, and with him, I think, Mr. 'Wilson, of the 
Zig-Zag Colliery, and they began to talk about what was best to be done under the circumstances. I 
have no recollection of anything more taking place than some observation being made, such as, 'Well, 
we shall all have to do our best," or, Everybody must do their best." For my own part, I do not think I 
said anything; it was represented by Davis afterwards that he was working under my instructions, but I 
do not remember giving instructions to any one. 
2770. had you any intention of superseding Mr. Turnbull P No ; how could I P 
2777. Shortly afterwards, did Mr. Turnbull come to you and complain that he had been superseded? I 
do not know that he eomplaiiied about being superseded. He did complain about this man Davis tearing 
down the face of the bratticing that he had put up, and I afterwards learned that Davis said he had done 
this under my instructions. 
2778. What did you say to Mr. Turiibull? I do not remember what I said; I presume I should have 
said that I did not give him any instructions, 
2779. Did Mr. Turnbull assign that as a reason for throwing up his charge? He never said anything 
about throwing up his charge, so far as I remember. 
2780. As a matter of fact, the mine was closed up shortly afterwards. Was any reason given for this; 
did Mr. Turnbull seem to be displeased or piqued at Mr. Davis interfering with his work P I think he was, 
but I am not aware that that was a reason why the mine was closed. The fact is, the whole thing got into 
confusion, and it was allowed to drift. 
2781. Did not Mr. Turnbull keep the men to their duty, seeing that he allowed things to drift into con-
fusion P Everything was placed under his charge, you say? Yes, but being a volunteer he was to a cer-
tain extent irresponsible. 
2782. When was the mine closed up, was it on the Monday? It was on the following day, I think, or ZD 

the day after. 
2783. You say you proceeded to the scene of the accident on the Monday morning about 7 o'clock? Yes. 
2784. 'W'ben did you learn that the mine was on fire? It was discovered to be burning before that day-
1 never heard of it until that morning. 
2785. When did you hear that the fire had been discovered on the Sunday? It was Doig's brother who 
came to call me on the Monday and told me. lie said that his brother and Charley Younger were in the 
mine. They  had been apprehensive that something had occurred, as a considerable amount of smoke had 
been seen issuing from the mine. 
2786. When did you hear that an unusual amount of smoke had been seen hanging about the boiler on 
Saturday night? I presume I may have heard it that same day, Monday. There was a great deal of talk 
going on about the matter. 
2787. I believe that one Martin, an engine-driver, accompanied Doig into the mine on Sunday P Yes. 
2788. Did you think it strange that Martin did not report the fire, and the fact that Doig had gone into 
the workings, when he came out of the mine ? He came out of the mine comparatively early on the 
evening of Sunday and went home to bed, and does not seem to have mentioned the subject to anyone. 
Do you consider that extraordinary conduct ? 'W'ell, I do not think I should have acted so myself. 
2789. Have you ever questioned Martin upon the subject P No. 
2700. We have been told that Mr. Passmore was informed about 6 o'clock, or somewhere about that time, 
on Saturday night, that an unusual occurrence had taken place in the region of the boiler, and that he 
replied to his informant, "That is all right," and moved off. Have you ever heard of this P No; I do 
know of it only from the evidence given at the inquest. 
2791. Then the mine was sealed up? Yes. 
2792. Was that in accordance with the directions of the Government Inspectors P I think so. 
2793. When did they arrive? I am not sure whether they arrived that night or the following day. I may 
say that my memory is not particularly strong. 
1794. Did they arrive early on the Tuesday morning? I really could not fix the date. 
2795. Were they present before the mine was sealed up? I should say no. I think it was by their 
instructions that the mine was sealed up. 
2700. 'What charge or responsibility did the Government ocials take on their arrival at the mine? 
They took no responsibility that I am aware of beyond what I ullderstOOd their instructions to be, that no 
risk of life was to be incurred. 
2797. Did you second their efforts in that direction? In everything. 
2798. The mine was closed for about a month, I think? I believe about three weeks. 
2799. What induced you to re-open the mine? Well, the impression was that the fire was virtually out. 
2800. Among whom did that impression exist? Mr. Turnbull, I believe, gave it as his opinion some two 
or three weeks before the openings were made that no fire existed in the mine. 
2801. Then you believed that the fire had been extinguished when you re-opened the stoppings? Yes. 
2802. How long was it before you got down to the seat of the fire, down to the boiler? I cannot say 
very distinctly-well on to a fortnight. 
2803. And you saw the fire burning? Yes; we found the obstacles greater than we had apprehended. 
2804. From what? From the fall of the tops and rock. 
2805. Had very much fallen about the main seat of the fire? Yes. 
2806. Did you proceed into the tunnel on the morning of your arrival? No. 

2807. 
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2K1i7. Dii yoU hear how far the smoke or choke-damp stood when von arrived on the scene P I caniiot Mr. F. GrIT. 
it (lid not niake much inpresslolt on my mind, as I was really too much pre-oeetipie1. 

2KOK. Did you visit the scene of the operations at the re-opening? Yes, repeatedly. 	 11 May, 1830. 
2809. Did you see a large fall in the immam tunnel opposite the boiler P Yes. 
2810. it was it very large fall, was it not? Yes. 
2S11. Did it obstruct the air-current to all appearances P Well, we could scarcely tell, as it was al nest 
iiiipossible to see the tops Owing to time density of the smoke, but there is no doubt that it was a very 
large fall. 
2K12. When was it von abandoned the attempt to extinguish Be fire at this time,. It appears you got 
down to the fire, and suddenly determined to close the mine-what was the reason of this ? You appear 
to be lahotiri ig under some iuisapprehueiision it was not that time. The time I am referring to was 
about a week or two before the iat accident. 
2K 13. We are informed that immediately after the opening of the tunnel for the first time the workecs 
proceeded down the tunnel and saw a the. it was then suddenly determined to close the nulile, and the 
men were accordingly withdrawn. We are also niforined that the stoppings were rebuilt, \vluen it eiN'unm- 
stance happened to which 1 shall refer innnediately. I want to know what the ressous were that caused 
you to abandon the attempt to exti igliislm the fire. We have been told to-day that it was for want of the 
necessary a1ipliammees-is that so? II have no knowledge of any di Iliculty of that kind arising. 
2K] I. ho you ru.mneiiiber the men lioldimug a mccii ug about this time at Be Lithgow nii me P 	Yes. 
2K L. W hat was the cause of their holdiig tlns meeting P I only know of nile nieet oig, niul that was 
when the mcmi expressed great dissatisfact ion at flue mud me being closed. 
2K10. Why did you close it at that ii me P That is time time to which I referred ; I really cannot tell you. 
I did not take it very active part iii the matter. Mr. Mackenzie and Mr. Romvami were there, as 1150 N i 
Wilton, part proprietor in the mine, who is necessarily it very much more energetic man ii an I 1101. 1. 
entrusted the matter entirely i ito their hands. 
2K17. Then you do not know the reason of the mine being closed P I do net remeiniser any plutieuullur 
reason. I may perhaps be allowed to tell you by the may, as an explanation of nmv apparemlt stupid ii 
that I have been suffering fronm an afleetion of the head for some four or live years, and by the advive of 
nmv medical man have taken two trips to Eurcipe in order to recover, so that you will understand 1 have 
been a great deal away from here. The result of this a0liction has also been to comusidiral dy affect umy 
ill eimm o rv. 
281M. Very well, Mr. a eli ; these men held a mneefi mug, when yilmt detcrni i ned to close the mimic. \Vhuat 
resolution (lid they arrive at P In calling it a mneetimug, 1 am mint aware that it was in orgiumized nile in any 
way. The men imseil very frequent lv to iuuass in couusiderable force about the niout It of the tunnel, and, so 
fir as I know, this was one of tie ne gatheri I ga. 11 owever, t Ii cv did speak to in(,, abiiuml; swaling up time 
mine. $oimie of theumi said they were perfeod.v satislieci that if she were nimee sealed ill)  she wommld not he 
opened agaimm. I mmiv say that a great number of these men have been working there frommm the conunmence-
mmmemmt of tile munmue ; aid .1 believe the whole of them, with very fey exceptions, would be extremmiely sorry to 
he ive the place. 
2819. Then, do 1 mmnderstamud that the meeting waA at lemmded by the mcmi. by the imlspectors, and by vommrsel f, 
and that it was ultimately agreed to give these mcii an opoll'tunniy of niak imig a trial to cxli mugmiislm this 
fire? 	Pardimi inc a mnomneuut. Omu this purtculiu' occastomi it was simggesteui by one of the immimiem's that we 
shomihul at tempt to work the crcss-i'ut on which we are now ivorki ig. 1\Im'. Tnruillumll and Mr. N o'1enzie, 
and, I thmimik, Inspeetoi' .Roivan, went to exaumumie this cross-cut ; mmd it resulted in i\h'. Tumriuluuill's gil ti iug 
overpowered by the gas, and he was carried out of tIme mimic. 'l'his, of course, caused fuither exciteimieimt 
and then there was some talk of shutting the tunnel lii). 
2820. Wimat answer did you give to the men P 1 do not remnenuher that I gave any ammswer, hut, we beimug 
down at the place-that is, Mm'. 3lackemiz44 Mr. Rowan, and Mr. 'Wilton-1 believe in arrammgemnent was 
conic to, and the men detem'nn imed to go to work. 
2821. Did you select the menP Oh, no ; Mr. Campbell did that, 1 suppose I (10 not remember. I (lid 
not take any leadinif part in the 1)110 less. 
2822. Was anY pressure brought to heir on the imien who emmgaged in this enterprise P Ohm, dear, no ; time 
pressure was on the other side. 
2823. Do you think the-i-  were fully alive to the danger which existed in connection with this emiterprise P 
I should imagimle so. 
2821. Did they know all you knew P Yes, and probaiuhv a great ulcal imiore. 
2825. Was it about this time that Mr. Camnphsehl was a1upoiumteul mmmammimger P 1 do not remmieruubuer time exact 
time when he was appoimitccl. I believe it ivas a (lay (Sr two after poom' Doig's death, it was imecessiury to 
have somiucone, and he was the likeliest man (in the spot. 
2826. You repeat, i\[r. Gehl, that you huave received no complaint as to the dangerous state of thus ummder- 
ground boiler P 	a word. 
2827. Did you know of the existeumee of any hwevioums  fire thmere P 	o. 
2828. Were you in any way warneul of thin circummnstiunce before it occurred P No. 
2829. You received no comnplaiuit from the imispectors as to how the muumme was ellludumctell P Not a word. 
2830. You received no eomnplaimmt fuom the immspectors as to the cummilition of the pitmit of the uimder-
ground portion of the works P Not a word. 
2831. (',in you assign any cause for this fire? Well, I could assign a cause. There are cirdumlmstflmiees coil-
imected with it of rather a suslocilulus character. 
2832. \\e shmomul d be very glad to hucam' your suuspicilltms if they ale fomiudeul on cummythu i lug I amigih he P ( )ume of 
lime men working in this mmline somiue week or two before the tire in Ieliu'narv 51w a light one luiEhit whem 
be was retmum'muimmg out of' time mine, and ivhuemi no one was suu1posed to be thery except himself. 	1 could mint 
say,  huow bug it immi ht be ; two or tlu Ice weeks. 
2833. Vm'v well P 'limit or itsclr uvus ciiusiuleued nilhu-r a suispiioums iuiimiuuistmuue. 	Thu 'as also heard it 
sluted that Doig muiude it reiniik to lure if the men about he uir-eoumne hr;vimug hucemi cluuuigiil. 
2831. \\'hmi did h0 make this remark P 	\hueim lie wus in vouicrnAion with one nf the muuen, I frrgct; 
which, either Martimm or Passiumore. 
2835. lie made a remark that the air-course was changed P Yes. I am not sumfficient ly pract icld as a 
mnimmer to know what might happen if suchu a change had been made, but the air-course was down the 
tunnel. 

570-0 	 2836. 
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Mr. E. Gell. 2836. That is, it went in the tunnel? Yes; it went a certain distance in and then turned round to the 
-"-. right and left, and it would appear that under ordinary circumstances the smoke would not come back to 

11 May, 1886. the mouth of the tunnel. In my judgment what did thke place was therefore a singularly suspicious 
circumstance. 	 . 
2837. You have spoken of a large fall having taken place in the tunnel in the vicinity of the boiler, and 
which obstructed the ventilation. Would that not be sufficient to account for the phenomena you have 
described? I do not think it reasonable to suppose a fall to have occurred at that early date, because I 
presume the heat from the fire brought down the rock. 
2838. Then it is very difficult to say when the fall took place? I remember hearing one of the men 
making a remark about hearing a heavy fall, but I could not fix the date. 
2839. What was the vocation of this man in your employ who had seen the light clodgmg about in that 
particular position about a week or two before this occurred? I think his name is Raymond. 
2840. Was lie the only one you ever heard speak of it? Yes, I think he was the only one. Then there 
was another suspicions circumstance. One of the stoppings was opened surreptitiously at the time when 
we were attempting to reach the fire. 
2841. Yes, we have heard of that to-day? Well, it seemed to show that some agency was at work trying 
to prevent our putting out the fire, and it was only reasonable to suppose that the same agency might 
have been employed to originate it. I would here ask you to allow me to make one more remark. You 
asked me if I had been at the seat of the fire. I may now tell you that I was there repeatedly, and 
remained there for several hours together. I stopped in the mine till 12 p.m. and 1 o'clock in the morn-
ing with the men, and went as far into the workings as any of them went. 1 mention this to show you that 
we-that is, the proprietors-could not have been apprehensive of any danger; and more than this, I may 
say, that Mr. Wilton, a few days previous to the accident, took my own daughters into the mine to see what 
was to be seen. That was done with my knowledge; and surely if I had had the slightest idea of, or the 
slightest ground to apprehend anything in the shape of danger, I should not have allowed my daughters 
to be taken into the mine. 
2842. What part did you take to ensure the safely of the men? We directed them to be very caret Lii, 
and not to run into any danger. If Ave did not give them specific instructions it was because we looked 
upon them as having more knowledge than we ourselves possessed ; but we impressed upon them to take 
special care of themselves, to sound the tops as they went along, and to take every possible precaution to 
ensure the safety of their lives, and to use timber wherever there was the slightest danger. 
2843. .21&. Swinburn. When the mine was cIosel, and the miners came to von, von gave them your con-
sent to open it again. Did you consult the Inspector or the Examiner of Coal-fields as to the opening up 
of the mine? When the men spoke to me about this matter I went and consulted the Examiner of Coal-
fields, also Mr. Rowan, the Inspector, and Mr. Wilton before I did anything at all. I did not then give 
any definite reply myself. The men came down to the pit and settled the matter themselves. 
2844. But you were a consenting party? Of course I was a consenting party. The whole matter was 
talked over, and there was a general consent that a trial to extinguish the fire should be made, the men 
acting so far on their own responsibility. 
2815. Pi'esident. That is to say, there was a meeting of the proprietors, inspectors, and inners. It 
was a consultation of everyone interested, was it not? Yes. 
2846. lily. Gerlej.i When you knew that the mine was on fire, and that Mr. Turnbull had withdrawn 
from the position in which you had placed him, as you state, did you ever cancel the appointment you 
made with Mr. Turnbull'? No I think it merely lapsed-that is to say, he ceased to do anything. 
2847. What would you estimate the value of the mine to be as a property, Mr. G-ell, say at the time the 
fire was ragmg? 
2848. Peesident thought this question ought not to be put, and it was not pressed. 
2849. Mr. Curleq. Did it ever occur to you at this time that the best thing you could have done would 
have been to obtain the service of some skilled mining engineer? No, it never did. In fact I was not 
aware that anybody possessed more knowledge than the men we had about us at the time. 
2850. As an architect, Mr. G-ell, do you consider that the services of a labourer stand in the same relation-
ship as those of a professional man, supposing an opinion to be required upon the construction of a building. 
2851. Pmesic7ent.] I am afraid you are scarcely complimentary to Mr. Turnbull. 
2852. Wi. Uuricy. As a matter of fact, Mr. (i-ell, would you not look to the managers of the neighbouring 
collieries as being most likely to render you assistance snider the circunistaisces in which you were placed-
and, in this ease there were also three Government inspectors on the scene, were there not ? Yes; 1. perhaps 
ought to have mentioned when you were asking me about this that I instantly telegraphed to the in-
spector, statmg the circumstances of our ease, and stating that Ave did not know how to act. 
2853. city. .Davies.1 Did Raymond give you any information about having seen this light before or after the 
fire took place? it was after the fire took place. I think it was about two weeks ago. lie told me that 
he had not mentioned the matter to anyone because he was afraid they would laughs at him. But he said 
he had told his wife about it. 
2854. Does it not strike you as being a flimsy occurrence on which to found suspicion? You will 
remember that I stated several reasons. The tearing open of the stoppings was one, and the change 
of the air-course was another. I put all three reasons together. 
2855. Do you know that when it was decided to re-open the mine whether the Examiner of Coal-fields andthe 
Inspector of Collieries concurred with Mr. Turnbull in the opinion that the fire was extinguished? Oh, yes. 
2856. One more question, Mr. 0-elI. I understood you to say that Mr. Campbell was appointed manager 
of the colliery on account of his being the likeliest man on the spot? Yes, he was recommended to Mr. 
Wilton and myself by mine residents in the valley who worked on the estate and knew him, as well as by 
persons who had been acquainted with him for a considerable time and knew his qualifications. 
2857. Then you thought that these persons were competent to form all opinion as to hiy qualifications? 
Yes; but besides that we had had some experience of him ourselves for some time past, and. previous to his 
appointment, lie was sub ected to in examination. 
2858. What did the examination consist of on that occasion? It was not of a scientific ehaaeter. It was 
as to where he had been, what had been his experience, and so forth. 
2859. Then you thought him fully competent to undertake the management of the colliery? We certainly 
believed so. lie had been underground manager for a. numnber of years. 
2860. Where was this, Mr. 0-elI P I believe lie occupied that position in the old countr. 
2861. Had you any documentary evidence of that? No ; it was of a merely verbal character. 	2862. 
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2802. President.] But what you wish to express, Mr. (ell. Is that you had perfect confidence in Mr. Mr. E. Gel]. 

Campbell, is it not so P Yes 1 would as soon take his word as that of any man I know. 
2803. .21Ii. .Yeilson.] i-Ic was a thoroughly practical man, was'nt he P I believe so. ILe had been working 11 May, 1886. 
for the Company for several years. 
2801. JlIr. Usher.] In what capacity P In many capacities. 	lb had been engaged in the mine laying 
the rails, and had been also driving the engine for some time. 
2805. Mr. Jones.] We have been told that shortly before the first accident you had commenced the sinking 
of a new shaft? Yes. 
2860. What was the special reason the late manager assigned for sinking that second shaft P Merely 
the viter dihculty, 1 believe. 
2807. Was there nothing further? It had notlnng to do with the ventilation, if that is what you are 
driving at. 
2808. 1 [ad'nt it anything to do with the removal of the boiler P No, nothing whatever. 
2869. Did lie never make a complaint to you on the subject or express a desire that it should be removed P 
No. 1 have heard him make a complaint about not having  sufiicieiit steam power, but never anything 
about the removal of the boiler, 
2870. how many shafts have you commenced on the estate-I understand you next went on the eastern 
extremity P Yes, that is the one 1 am speakiiig of. 
2871. had you come to the detcrmmatioii to sink another shaft P Yes, we had, and were in negotiation 
for a person to come and make a survey of the phice. 
2872. Did you intend to sink that shaft for ventilating purposes alone? No ; it was more as a right-of-
way or oimtlet for the men to get out of the tunnel. 
2872. Then it was not for the purpose of hauling coal out P No; it was as I say, more for the purpose of 
giving the men an easy way out. They would get out (lose from where they were at work. 
2971. You did not conteniplate any accident at the time of arrivin g at this determination P Not at all 
but still we thought it a \ViSb provisioli to do  this. 	We should not have hesitated to put down a dozen 
shafts if we thought it was necessary. 
2875. 1ff. Uurleq.] Where did you punip your water to, Mr. Gell P We pumped the water into the old 
workings, and it percolated away, where we did not know and did not care. 
2870. You were pumping your own water from your own mine and into your own mine P Yes. 
2877. Did it never occur to you that you were pumping the water from one part of the mine to another, 
and repuniping it over again P II have heard people say so ; but l)oig, who wasa good judge, thought 
otherwise, or he would not have done it. 
2878. Is there any encroachmnermt from Eskbank into your property P Yes. 
2879. have you substantial grounds for nmaking that statement? Ves. 
2880. nell  us what they are P I have seen it. 
2881. Did the Eskbank people ever speak about this P Yes; we have a written acknowledgment from the 
pri ipri etor. 
2892. Did you ever at any time put through a drive into Eskbank P No ; we broke through into where 
they had driven into our ground. They had driven through into our ground about three times the length 
of this room, and we strnck into that. 
2883. Was there any object in putting this drive in where you struck through into the alleged encroach-
muemut P No. I think we were working in that part of the property. 
2981. Was it in the ordinary way of urorhint P I believe so. I do not know anything to the contrary. 
2985. Did you suspect anything? No. 
2580. Did you think there was any object in putting this drive in, or any knowledge on the part of your 
manager as to what would likely be the result ? I do not know, unless it might have been to prove the 
fact of their having encroached upon our ground. Some rumour of their having made such all encroach-
macnt may have reached Mr. Doig, and he may have driven in to prove it. That I cannot remember ; but 
that he broke through I do know, for I went down at his request to see it. I also went to Mr. 
Rutherford, the pi'opi'metor, and brought him down to see it, and we have from him a written ackiiowledg-
ment of the fact that the emucroachnient caine froin the Eskbank Colliery. 
2887. Are you aware svluethier this opening was ever closed up by Doig P I am not aware. 
2898. President.] If the Litlugow Valley Colliery were flooded, would the result be to flood the Esk-
bank Colliery P Ves, I should say so, iumless they could wall up the headlimigs. 

John J\hlaekenzie sworn and examined :- 

2889. President.] What is your official position, Mr. Mackenzie P 1 am Examiner of Coal-fields. 	 Mr. 
2890. how long have you been Examiner of Coal-fields? I have occupied my present position since J. Mackenzie. 
1572. 	 . 
2891. Before coining to this Colony, had you any considerable experieuce in regard to fiery mines P Yes. 11 May, 1886. 

1 was appremmticed to the Earl of Crawford and Belaries Colliery, in Wigan, Lancashire, for five years. 
1 was also three years as assistant, and was in business on my own account for five years in the position 
of coal-viewer. 
2892. You have had experiemice of fiery mimics P Yes, considerable. The harley mine, for example, is 
one of the mimost fiery mines in the world. 
2893. Tn the course of your official eapaci tv, have you inspected the Lithgow Valley mine? The Inspec- 
tor of Collieries inspects them every eight weeks and reports to me. 
289-1. But as a matter of fact-  you have frequently visited and inspected the mines, have you not P Yes, 
but not lately. 
2895. Some tune ago? Yes ; previous to Mr. 1-Iowan's appointment I used to fill up the required tracings 
myself and go round the mines, especially- when Mr. Lewis was inspector. 
2896. During these inspections, did you receive any complaint as to the manner in which the Lmthgow 
Valley Colliery was worked P No. 
2897. Have you had reason to complain of the manner of working? No. 
2898. have you received any complaints as to the quantity of air circulating in the mine? No; it has 
been considerably more than was necessary, double perhaPs. 
2899. I-have you ever discovered the presence of fire-damp in this colliery or in this district? No. 

- 	 - 	 2900. 
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Mr. 	2900. Have you any reason to suppose that it existed? No ; I have every reason to suppose that the 
J. Mackenzie. seam of coal does not generate gas. I may also say that according to the special rules any man finding 

:the coal to generate gas should report it at once. 
11 May, 1880. 2901. Then you have never received any report, Mr. l\Iackeiizie? No. 

2902. Have you ever had occasion to report to the owners as to the state of the plan? No. 
2903. Or that the surveys were not kept up to date ? No. 1 gave instructions to the inspector that be 
was to have them kept up every six months, and that they should be forwarded to me. [Mr. Mackenzie 
here hands in a general sketch of the district, published by him in 1S77.] 
2904. President.] Have you seen this underground boiler in the Lithgov Valley Colliery P I have 
seen it since the fire, but not before. I saw that there was a large fire at the back. 
2905. Did you receive any reports about this underground boiler bc?ore the fire? No. 
2900. Were you cognisant of the fact that the top portion of this seam had not been taken down above the 
boiler? No. 
2907. Or in the flues ? No. 
2908. Had that been reported to you, what action would you have taken? I really could not say unless 
I saw the place myself. 
2909. Have you ever heard of underground fires occurring in this place prior to the fire of February? 
Not previous to the accident. 
2910. Then, in your severalinspections of this colliery, do you recollectwhether you havetravelled theleft-
hand return air-way ? I do not think I have; I just went round where the men worked. I may say I have 
a great many duties to perform in connection with my position, and I left the inspection of the collieries 
to the inspectors. t'nless there was anything wrong I had far more than I could do outside of that. 
2911. You cannot say therefore whether in your opinion thesereturns were safe? On, yes, I should say 
I could ; I have full confidence in my inspector, and he has reported to me periodically, and reported that 
everything was right. I have full confidence in him. 
2912. With respect to these two outlets, Mr. Mackenzie, has this colliery been carried on as required by 
the law? Yes. 
2913. During the progress of the work of cxtinguislnng the fire, were the return air-ways full of choke-
damp ? Yes. 
2911. Well, Mr. Mackenzie, the return air-ways being  fall of choke-damp and smoke there would be a 
difficulty about getting an alternative road for the men, would there not? You must recollect, Mr. 
President, that the second outlet would only be required when the mine was at work. 
2915. I wai coining to that, but certain statements have been made, and I want to hear your views with 
respect to them. 1 was going to put the question to you whether, under the circulnstanceLyou considered 
there was an evasion of the Act P No. [The witness's attention was called to the 5th general rule, 
being section 5 of clause 12 of the Act] 

If at any time it is found by the person in charge of a mine or any part thereof, or by the examiner 
or inspector, that by reason of noxious gases prevaling in such mine, or such part thereof, or of 
any cause whatever the mine or the said part is dangerous, every workmen shall be withdrawn 
therefrom, and the examiner or inspector shall inspect the same (and if the danger arises from 
inflammable ,,is shall make such inspection with a locked safety-lamp), and in every case shall 
make a true report of the condition of such mine or part thereof; and no workman shall, except 
in so far as is necessary for inquiry into the cause of danger, or for the removal thereof, or for 
exploration, be re-adu ittcd into the mine, or such part thereof as was so found dangerous, until 
the same is stated by the examiner or inspector to be safe. 

2910. Certain statements have been made, and we wish to arrive at the truth in regard to this matter ? 
All I can say is that the men were withdrawn therefrom, " to use the w'ords of the Act ; but we never 
anticipated that danger did arise from inflammable gas. I was confident that there was no inflam-
mnable gas in the mine. It was examined by meamis of the safety-lamp. Then again the rule says, "In 
every case the inspector or examiner shall make a true report of the condition of such mine or part 
thereof," &c., and all I have to say to that is that the men werenot working the mine-they were simply 
there for the removal of danger, that is to put out this fire. 
2917. Then you say there was no contravention of the Act? Yes. 
2918. Was the second accident due to the presence of irrespirable gas in the main in-take? Yes, choke-
damp. 
2919. It was due to carbonic acid gas, or perhaps carbonic oxide, which was in the mine at the time? 
Yes, it was. 
2920. Under these circumstances, would any number of available outlets have offered an opportunity of 
avoiding the catastrophe? I do not think so. 
2921. It has been stated in evidence that someone attempted to signal with the rapper-wire and found 
that it would not work. What was the cause of this ? From what I saw, it would appear to have been 
caused by the shack that had been blown from the stoppings by what I supposed was a fall of the rock, 
and by which the rapper-wire was covered over and rendered unworkable. 
2922. Could such an accident have been provided against in the hanging of this wire? Could anyone 
have possibly anticipated the accident which took place? I think not. 
2923. Was the wire fixed in the proper manner? Yes. 
2924. Is it possible in the practical working of collieries to guard against accidents to the machinery or 
the accessories of a mine? No. 
2925. Do you, as Examiner of Coal-fields, attribute any blame to the owners for the unworkable condition 
of this wire after the accident? No. 
2920. What, in your opinion, was the cause of this fire? It is impossible for me to say what was the 
cause of it. I believe it was caused near or at the boiler. 
2927. Did the boiler not raise a doubt in your mind as to the cause of the fire, especially when you heard 
that it had been the cause of three or four previous fires P Well, from the evidence nith respect to the 
first accident-, I was anxious to see the back of the furnace, in order to ascertain if it could have been 
caused by the flue. I maytell you, however, that when Mr. Campbell, the manager, with ourselves, was 
going to the 34th and 351 stopping someone went and opened a stopping, which he must have known 
very well would have prevented our doing what was required, that is, to send the return out of the furnace, 
because the black-clamp was thrown out upon its. 

2928. 
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292S. Did it not raise a doubt iii your mind as to the origill of the fiiy, especially Nvlam You lieam'd that three 	
,  or four undergrouitl fires levi occurred heto'e rouiii this boiler? I really cannot tell how the fire occurred. J.[a. kenzio. 

2921). 1)o you consider, as a practical man, that the return ar ought to travel over such a length of water 
11 with only a few II1LI1C5 Iiettveeii the to1> of the wter and the coal 	\1ut length of water are you 

referring to 
2030. There was a Swallow, a number of chains broad iii one place and a number, of chains in another, 
was there 1u)t 	I am not aware that it was so. 
2031. But I ant asking von the question, Mr. M:tckeuzie, whether this, iii your upon on, was it proper 
return for hot gise> to pass over such a length of water within a few incites of the roof 	I know of ito 
reason myself. Are you referring to the time before the lire or after? 
2932. It has been state hit evidence that tile smoke and choke-damp, iniiigiod with the return air, passed 
over a considerable portion of water which almost reached to the root, and we have also been told that this 
smoke, when the furtiace was damped, caine lj:tck again jut>> tile tunnel, so that mv (inestion is, do you 
consider that was a proper return 	I think it would bc quite snfhieietit myself for what was required of 
it prcvioui to the accident, that is, at the time the men were working there. 
2933. When did you arrive after time first accident ? I had notice early oil the l\Ionday morning, and we 
caine to Lithgow by special I rain. 
2931. Were von in vduiey at tile time 	Yes. 
2935. What (lid you do on your arrival ? Mr. Turnhsuli met me at the train, and asked inc whether I 
wished to go mto the mute at once. I said I first >vanted to see the phin, and went to tht office for that 
purpose . I then went into the mimic. 
2936). Did you take any responsibility or control ? No. 
2937, What had been done in time mimic up to this point? Mr. Tnrnbtih] had carried on the bratficing to 
withimn what lie thought was about 10 chains off where tli lire was ; but lie evidently cliii not get so near 
a that. 
2931. That would be 20 chains down, would it not P Yes. 
2939. You think lie was not so far down as that P Not quite so far, I should say. When we arriyed 
there we found that someone had taken down the braticing in No. 2 cross-cut, amid we nmaile sonic' 
imiquimies into the matter. Mr. Tnrnbull could not understand it. It was eventually fonnil that souuie 
maui named Davis had gone to tlic lmt'oprietois, and said that all Mr Turnbull was doing was wrong, and 
that if lie (Davis) were allowed to do it lie could easily put mn:m! ters right. At this time the smoke and 
carbonic acid were coining along fm'ont the lice over thc maui heading. 
2910. Did von generally approve of what Mr. Tnrnhnll had done P Ves. 
2911. And then ,vott say that when von acconmpaiiied Mr. Turnbihl down the mine von found that Davis 
ha I been interfering P Yes. 
2912, Diii Mr. Turnhull not discover that before vent' visit? No. 
2913. Did I understand you to say that ott your arrival Mr.'I'urnbuhl stated to you that lie had swept 
down the ga to witlnn 10 chains Of the boiler? \es, 
291-i. And that it had come back seine distance oving to what this man Davis had done P Yes. We 
±011113 Davis, and, in reply to questions fruit ins, lie said lie had the consent of time owners for what he 
ha-i done. It was lii'st discovered by Mr. Dixon, amid it was so sel'ious a limiter that if I had beuui in Mr. 
Turnbul l's place I would have pitched the mum out of the nfl ic. 
2915. Did you credit Davis's statenient as to hi having received in independent charge from the owners 
I cannot s:lV, because I knew that the owimet's were not aeqmiuminted with coal-mimi iumg operations. 
2011. \Vhiat did 1\lr. Tnrmmbutli (10 after Davis's interference P Next mnormiimig Mu', 'l'mmruibitll caine to me at 
this hotel, between 10 and it oclock, and said lie wanted to try still and put out the lire, and sliotved iume 
on the plait what lie proposed to do. 
2917. Had nothing been done to remedy or undo tviiat Davis had done P Yes; the brattiec-ciothi was put 
111) again. 
29 1-s. Had that the effect of driving the smoke down the tunnel ? I cannot say that. 
2919. Did Mm'. Tni'nbuiI remnedy, or attempt to remedy, what Davis had done In the way of interfering 
with his operatiomis P ie,s ; amid after that lie canie to inc timid suggested somnetinng else. 
29.5t). Is it correct that after Davis's intem'ference Mr. Tuirnbull took von domvmi and showed von how lie 
could force back the smoke in the tmmnncl at the rate of It) yards per hour? That was what I wanted to 
tell you. i\[r, i1ur1ibull caine to 1mw here and said that before closing the mine lie wanted to try amiother 
method. lIe proposed to take the bratticimig round the right-hanoi return and leave the mmmain heading. 1 
cliii not agree with him, so that idea was put an end to. He themi suggested another thing, wInch was that stop- 
jmiulgs should be put at the main headings amid left-hanoi side of the second cross-cut, timid that the mcii 
should be put to work there. 1 asked hint what lie proposed to do. lie said lie proposed to go and mark 
the second cross-emit ott time plami, amid that the cross-cut should be chained tip, and lie would go amid see thc 
exact width of the stoppimigs to be put iii. lIe said this would take hint about six hours. I saw no objection to 
that, and we went with mm, Imispector Rowan and mysehf were to stand at the junction of the maui 
headings and second cross-emit, and. Mr. Turmibtill and three men were to go up there as quickly as possible, 
meastue up and take the number of stoppings, and also the length of thiemn ; two menwere semit ahead 
along the uiaimt heading, with instructions to report to us every five minutes how the smoke and black- 
daimmp were coming back, so that we might not be closed in. They may have been in there about ten 
mimnites, whmemi two of them began shmoutiimg, ihIp, help." Two of them threw themselves in-ide the  
secomid cross-cut. I sang (Jilt, " Where's Mr. Turitbull P" they said, lie's all rig-hit', they're coming out ''; 
we ran in then, and brought lnmn omit, and the momnemit we got outside of the heading lie was overcome. 
2951. At this time, did you know whether Mr. Turnbull was takimig  down the smoke at the rate of -1-0 
yards -.in hour? 1 cannot say that. 
2952. Did lie show von that lie could do it at time rate of 10 yards an hour P I do not recollect. I 
i'emnemher Im is mentioning something about it at the time. 
2933. Why was this mine sealed. up P The evidence Ave have got ill)  to this moment goes to prove that 
Mr. 'L'urnbimhl shiowed to you that the smoke could be taken down the tuimncl at the rate of It) yards all 
hour? That must have been previous to his going up this second cross-emit and nearly lo.silmg his life. 
29.5 L. \Vell, the mimic was sealed up, was it not? Yes, 
2935. By whose instruction P By Mr. Tmmrnbull's instammetion, and with miiy consent, 
2956. Are you aware that, prior to Mr. Tnm'mibnll's arm'ivilig oil time scene, two exphoring or rescuing pal'tles 
had penetriteol the right-hand rettirn as far as Tymidall's heading P I do not know how far they got iii. 

2057. 



hO 	 ROYAL corssiox ON COLLIERIES-MINUTES OF ETIDENCE. 

Mr. 	2957. At all events they had penetrated a considerable distance into the right-hand return, that is, where 
J. Mackenzie. Martin and some others met them? Yes. 

2958. And they found the workings fairly free from gas? Yes. 
11 May, 1886. 2959. I-low do you account for the return being free from gas when the in-take was full of smoke? Had 

everything been right, would not the returns have contained more smoke than the in-take P I should 
think so, if everything had been going right. 
2960. We have the evidence of more than three parties that they had penetrated to Tyndall's heading 
and had not found much difficulty from choke-damp-how can you account for that? I cannot think 
they got so far as Tyndall's heading myself. 
2961. Did you think it a peculiar thing for Doig and his companions to enter this return when the 
tunnel was full of gas and smoke-did it not appear to you a foolhardy thing? Well, it is a thing I 
iniht not have done myself. I cannot say. You must recollect that Doig had been there and got round 
and perhaps thouoht lie could do the same aouin. 
2962. In the light of subsequent events, do you see any reason for this return being so free from 
gas P It has been stated that a fall of considerable magnitude existed near the boiler, in the main 
tunnel, and that this obstructed the ventilation. Would that be a sufficient reason for this return being 
in the state mentioned? You must recollect that the whole of the smoke and steam made from that fire 
were distributed over an area of, I suppose, round the No. 1 return, at least half a mile. 
2963. Do you think any obstruction of the main tunnel, below the boiler, would have atencleney to leave 
this right-hand return comparatively free from gas? No, considering the distance the return air had to 
travel to the right-hand furnace; at the time we visited these two furnaces both had black-damp in 
them. 
2964. We have it in evidence that these parties found no difficulty of breathing ; at the positions where 
the bodies were found the air was comparatively pure. Of what are the stoppings constructed in 
this mine, Mr. Mackenzie ? Of slack. 
2965. Is there any timber used to strengthen them? Yes, in some cases. 
2966. Were they efficient stoppings? Yes. 
2967. Did they prove sufficient to conduct the ventilating current in the mine P Yes; they had proved 
sufficient for fourteen years. 
2968. Was a large volume of air passing down the tunnel to the workings? Yes. 
2969. What quantity of air have you measured going down this tunnel, approximately P The day before 
.1 left, I think, it was 20,000 cubic feet. That would be about 11,700 feet at the extremities. 
2970. had you ever had cause to complain of these stoppings? No. 
2971. Had any complaint been made to your department about them? No. 
2972. Were they sufficient stoppings in the eyes of the law P Yes. 
2973. Can you give a reason why this tunnel was re-opened P The proprietors thought it had been closed 
long enough to put out the fire, and they determined to re-open it. 
2974. Were you as confident that the fire was out? No. 
2975. What part did you take in the way of re-opening the mine P I rendered every assistance I could 
in the matter. 
2976. Did you see that every precaution was taken to ensure the safety of the men ? Yes. 
2977. Did you attend the operations in l)En P Yes. 
2978. Did you consider any special danger existed in connection with this work P I knew that there was 
danger, of course, the same as would exist in attempting to put a fire out on the surface. 
2979. But I am speaking of special danger, Mr. Mackenzie. Did you believe that there was any special 
danger attached to it? I knew there was danger, but could not anticipate what has happened. I may 
say, however, that the danger signal was put at the mouth of the tunnel, in compliance with the Act, so 
that every man must have known of it. 
2980. Did the owners show a due regard for the safety of the workers ? Yes. 
2981. Did they also visit the scene of the operations P Yes. 
2982. Did they urge the men to exercise caution in the prosecution of the work P Yes. 
2983. Did you observe a large fall in the main tunnel, opposite the boiler P Yes. 
2984. Did this interrupt the air current P Yes. 
2985. Would this obstruction explain the reason why Doig and his companions were enabled to penetrate 
so far down the right-hand return? Yes, it is very likely. 
2986. Then where was the fire situated when you got down? I understand you ultimately got down to 
the seat of the fire? Where did you find it centred P The steam had put out what fire there was at 
the main-tunnel heading. There was a fire in Tyndall's heading, and that was put out. Then we could 
see about 12 or 15 yards ahead in the main tunnel, and we had to remove some of the stuff in order to 
get at it and at the boiler. 
2987. Did you observe whether the fire had spread out behind the main tunnel? I was not there at the 
very last. That was when I left. 
2988. Did you hear of the stopping No. 29 having been surreptitiously opened? Yes. 
2989. Did you see it P Yes. 
2990. Describe it P Well, you could see that somebody had opened the top of the stopping and taken off 
3 to 6 inches for a distance of about 14 feet in length. 
2991. What would be the effect of this act on the workers in the tunnel P The effect would be that 
the black-damp would come out from No. 34 stopping into the main tunnel. 
2992. Why, Mr. Mackenzie P Simply because the air would go from the main tunnel through this No. 29 
stopping which was opened. 
2993. What did happen P Why, when the stopping was opened the black-damp Caine out of it. 
2994. Did the air not go into it? No. 
2995. Mr. Campbell has stated distinctly as a reason why his attention was directed to this stopping, that 
the flame of his lamp was drawn inward, the air escaping to the left return, therefore black-damp could 
not come out when the air was going in? I think 1 have misunderstood you. What I mean is, that the 
fact of opening this No. 29 stopping would be to cause the black-damp to come from No. 34 stopping 
when that was opened. 
2996. Was a watch placed at the mouth of the tunnel? No, not before this; but afterwards there 
was. 

2997. 
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2097. Could anyone enter this particular part of the mine without being observed by some one of the 	Mr. 
numerous workers P It might be. 	 J. Mackenzie. 

2908. Is it probable P Well, yes, 1 should say so. 	
11 Mar 1886 

2999. What object could anyone have had in doing thi5 P That 1 cannot tell you. 
3000. It appears that no one was observed going in or coming out. This 1)0mg 50, unless it was one of 
the workers themselves, who could have done it. P That is the question. 	Someone did it, but who 1 
cannot tell you. 
3001. What effect would it have on the fire? It 1nevcnted it getting a return on the 21th stopping, 
which was going to be opened. 
3002. Was the effect instantly noticed on the fire, or was it discovered by accident? 	it was instiuitly 
noticed when the black-damp came out of the 3 Ith stopping. 
3003. Did the iiien work until this was discovered P Yes. 
3001. What effect would a small diversion of the air have on the fire? It would preveilt the workers 
getting any nearer to it. 
3005. Did the workers notice any inconvenience from the diminished quantity of air P No; there was 
quite sufficient air going all the time. 
3006. Then, Mr. Mackenzie, if there was 11,000 cubic feLt of air going down this tunnel, and only 2 or 3 
inches of the stopping opened, and only a small poron of air coming through this stopping, could any 
real mischief have been done without it:,,  being observed and rectified by the men P The only mischief 
done was to prevent them getting any nearer to the fire. 
3007. Supposing that there was,  aiiy jiistification for believing the openi ig of this stopping to have been 
surreptitiously or maliciously done, do you think it was a 1niideiit move to offer a reward of £50 ii the 
absence of any proof that anybody did open that stoppiiig-in oilier words, was it not casting a slnr on 
the workers thsmselvcs to suggest that any one of them could have been guilty of such an act? That is 
not for me to say, doctor ; 1 did nor have anything to do with it. 
3008. During the late operations, did you hear of any falls occurring in the old workings? No, not dur-
ing the late operations ; I afterwards made some inquiries (ii the subject. 
3009. Do you know that any considerable area of pillars had been taken out on the left-liaiul side of the 
tunnel? Ye Mr. Campbell tell" me that, what appears to be 66 	tare yards had been removed. 

[The pillaring operatiol is are shown by a lii iie circle nit the plan.1 
3010. in addition to ihee pillars Icing reinovnl, (I) you ktoov if any pillars were snliseguently robbed or 
weakened P 	o. 
3011. Were the borlls wide iii Ili is situation P They were about 7 yards in width. 
3012. Were a number of these pillars left unusually narrow P 	Yes ; on the left-hand side of the tunnel 
and nearer thereto than the portion where the pillars had been taken out, certain ranges of pillars had 
been worked considerably narrower than is customary, and the bords had been driven wider than 7 
yards. 
3013. Are you au-are whether the road from the tunnel to the Esbkank boundary was opened before this 
accident occurred? I cannot say. 
301.4. Do you know whether the workings were full of choke-damp in this direction just before the 
accident occurred? Yes; I think there is no doubt about it. 
3015. Have you ever travelled to the spot where the encroachment- is said to have taken place? Yes; I 
think I. was there once. 
3016. Did the Eskbank people pump the water from the Litligow Valley Colliery-that is to say, does 
the Lithgow Valley water run into Eskbank P The manager of Eskbank told inc lie had hardly any 
increase of water there. 
3017. But, as a matter of fact, would the water from the Lithgow Valley mine run into Eskbank P 1 
should say it would, but I cannot say whether they get any or not. Mr. Pitt, the manager, has informed 
me that lie has hardly any increase of water there. 
3018. if the way is clear for water, do von tlnnk it possible for the fire to draw its air supplies from 
Fskbank P I do not think so ; not from the mine itself. If you were speaking of crevices from the 
surface it would be a different thing. 
3019. Now, if the Lithgow Valley an ie were flooded, would the effect be to hood Eskbaiik also. 	Let 
it be understood we (10 not care front what side the encroachment took i1tce ; we have not lung to do with 
that. But if Lithgow Valley mine were flooded, would it flood the .Eskbaiik iniiie also P The water 
would naturally go there, but it might possibly put the fire (lilt here before flooding the ad,joiiniig colliery. 
3020. 1 low long before the second accident did von visit the workings in the I wi lie1 P 1 was there on the 
Friday beforo. 
302.1.. Why did you leave P I ((lily remamed till they took the debris away from the furnace, so that I 
could see, and, if possible, form an idea how the fire originated. I wanted to see for myself. We found 
the tops all fallen, and neither I nor anybody elsc could form an opinion on it. 
3022. Were the tops not on fire P Yes, there was no doubt about- that. 
3023. Then you were satisfied to leave the mine and everything iii charge of Mr. ]ownm P Yes. 
302-1.. Did you apprehend any special danger? No. 
3025. Did you aitticipate the accident? Certaily not. 
3026. When did you visit the scene of the accident? On Tuesday morning. A letter was brought to me 
at the Sydney Club, and I at once went to the Departnieitt of Mines, and arrived here by special train. 
3027. Have you heard or seen any fire at any of the blown-out stoppiiigs P No ; there was nothing of the 
kuid to be seen whule I was there. 
3028. \Vlieim the mcii went down to tel ieve the entombed me", do you know whether any of thent saw lire 
at the bl wn-ont sI 0 PP gs P I ca-mint say for uiyself. 
3020. it has been stated that live coal was blown out of these stoppiitgs ; it so, of course the coal mnst 
have eoiiie from the fire? Yes, 1 heard it spoken of in the evidence at the inqttcst. 
3030. Where, in your opinion, was the centre or force of this blast expended P 	i\[y opinion is this : that 
the fall took place where the boilers and props have been taken out. I may state, however, that I have 
put in writing my views on this point, a-s being a more colIvemneilt form. 
3031. Very well, Mr. Mackenzie, we will incorporate that in your evidence. 

The witness then read as follows :- 
Supposing mm. fall of rock to have taken place over an area of fbi square yards only where the pillars 

are 
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Mr. 	are known by Campbell (the manager) to have been taken out on the left-hand side of the main heading 
J. Mackenzie. and scat of fire, there would be an immediate displacement of 196,020 cubic feet of smoke, steam, and 

gases existing there, which smoke, steam, andgases would be forced out of the mine in all directions 
11 	ay, 856. and the furnace (5 ft. 6 in. by 4 ft. 6 in.) being unable to cope with this large and instantaneous body of 

foul gases, &c., driven iipoii it. it would force itself through the left-hand stoppmgs, where the men were, 
causing a rush of air inwards (towards and past the men) and outwards to the tunnel month ; and after 
it had exhausted itself, as it would do in it few minutes, a fresh current of air would then go down the 
main heading (the in-take), in which the men would then be enveloped in smoke and steam heavily charged 
with carbonic acid, carbonic oxide, and probably a small portion of suiphurous acid gases." 

The witness also included in his statement extracts from the special rules, as follow :-(4.) If 
any iidication of inflammable gas in any part of the workings, the same to be immediately reported to the 
manager ''; (12.) " No collier or other person shall go out of the mine on any full or empty skips unless 
by permission of manager "; (13.) Every workman shall inform the person in charge of the existence 
of any choke or fire-damp." 
3032. You see, Mr. Mackenzie, other theories have been put forward, and I purpose to put a few questions 
to you with respect to them. In the first place, considering the extent of the fire, and the time it was 
burning, do you think it probable that the gases resulting from combustion filled the waste workings P 

cry probably. 
3033. What effect would these gases have upon an explosive mixture of fire-damp P No hydrogen gas 
could exist in it. 
3031. it a reservoir of explosive gases existed, say at Eslsbank boundary, could it be drawn through the 
waste workings by the vacutun canse-1 by the furnace, and, having been drawn to the furnace, could it 
explode P Certainly not ; it could not explode unless it had ten parts of fresh air to mix with it 
3035. The returns also were necessarily charged with the carbonic acid gas; that being so, how would it 
be possible for fire-damp or light carburetteil hydrogen to have exploded at all? It is not possible. 
3036. What proportion of carbonic acid gas mixed with the explosive gas would prem'ent ignitIon taking 
place? About one in six or seven. 
30:37. Then, if you can conceive of it magazine or cavity filled with light carburetted hydrogen gas in any-
portion 

ny
portion of this waste, do you consider it is possible that an explosion could take place? It is impossible, 
to my mind. 
3038. You say that light earburettecl hydrogen gas has never been seen at this colliery? That is what 
I said. 
3039. Would the fire generate light carburetted hydrogen as ? Certainly not; and even if it did it would 
be in such infinitesimal quantities as to be incapable of doing any harm. 
3010. But let us suppose it certain condition of things, light carhuretted hydrogen gas is a product of 
nature, not of art-that is, it is not it gas that can be produced by synthesis ? Certainly. 
3011. Well, then, supposing for a moment that all the laws of nature were reversed in this case, and 
that light carburettet hydrogen gas was generated. from this fire, where would it explode-supposing the 
condition of things that I have stated were possible? It could not explode, because it would mix with 
the other gas and in effect would be neutralized. 
3042. But,supposing the state of things to be as I have put it-volt see, Mr. Mackenzie, we are supposed 
to know nothing for the purpose of this examination-let us supose such a case P Well, my own opinion 
is that the only place at which an explosion could have occurred would have been at the furnace. 
3043. Then 11 would put another question If fire-damp was never seen at the colliery before or clueing the 
fire, or since the fire, and that none of the appearances of an explosion of fire-damp were visible, do von 
see any lustification for the assertion of a theory that an explosion did occur? No, none whatever. 
3041. What would be the state of the atmosphere in the mine after an explosion? If an explosion had 
taken place the heat of it would be something lilce 1,5000;  the pillars would be charred, and the men 
might have been burned to cinders. 
3015. Were any of these conditions noticeable after the explosion at Lithgow Valley? No. 
3016. have you ever seen or heard of any unmistakeable signs of an explosion hero? No; I have cccix 
none 
3047. Or any appearance of it? None whatever. 
3018. What, in your opinion, was the cause of the death of these men? They died, I should sa.y, from 
inhaling  carbonic acid gas-choice-damp. 
3049. Did you see any appearance of charring or of flame having passed over the timber or the brattice-
cloth that was hung  in the mine? I was not there to see; Ave could not get near it when I visited the 
mine. 
3050. Was there any evidence of extreme heat? No. 
3051. We have beemi told that a loud report was heard, and that it was succeeded by it rush of air down the 
tunnel, then aixother crash or report, followed by a second rush of impure air, and that then it remained 
stagnant and impure, with no heat; would these phenomena pout to an explosion of light carhurettcd 
hydrogen gas ? I have already given you my own opinion ; there was nothing whatever to show that an 
explosion had taken place ; on the contrary, the appearances were all in favour of the occurrence being the 
result of a considerable fall of rock. 
3052. Had it been a question of fire-damp, what would have been the natural course for the explosion to 
take? My own opinion is that, if such it thing could have ha3pened, she would have fired at the left-hand 
of the furnace ; we know the return was heavfly charged with choke-damp ; I have seln this occurrence at 
home ; to my mind there is nothing to show there was an explosion. 
3053. have you had any experience of a wind-blast caused by a fall of the roof? Yes; I have seen one 
in Wallsend mine. 
3054. Was it a severe one? It was a fall of about 15 acres. 
3055. \\ere  the stoppings blown out? Yes. 
3056. What were they constructed of? They were brick stoppings, and these and the props and other 
things were blown about in all directions. 
3057. Would the force developed from a wind-blast, in your opinion, be sufficient to blow out a portion of 
SIOCId stopping P Yes, certainly. 
305* Did you foresee this accident P No ; I do not tlmimilc anybody could have fors seen it. 
3059. Was it dime, iii your opinion, to neglect or want of foresight P It was purely aceidcntal; no one 

'could have foreseen it, 	 3060 



ROYAL CO,fMISsION ON COLLIERIES-MINTJTRS OF EVIDENCE. 	 113 

3060. Was it due to any infringement of the regulations of the Act? Certainly not. 	 Mr 
3061. in your opinion, was anyone to blame? No one. 	 J. Mackenzie. 
3002. Was it a pine accident? Certainly. 
3003. An accident, that no one could have anticipated or foreseen 9 Yes. 	 11 May, 18 6. 
306t. Mr. Yeilson.] We are told, Mr. Mackenzie, that the water from Lithgow Valley Colliery is not 
pumped to the surface, and that it runs towards Eskbank-where does that water go to ? I cannot say; 
it has been a question for some time past. I went down to the Eskbank workings myself, and the man- 
ager said that he had no increase of water there. It was then thought that perhaps Doig might have been 
pumping backward and forward the water in the swallow. 
3065. But supposing that the swallow was full up ? When I last saw it the water did not increase at 
all but that will be a matter merely of commerce between the two companies in the end. 
3060. And the late accident occurred, in your opinion, from a fall? Yes. 
3067. Ilfr. Uurley.] Do you consider that this Company have complied with the provisions of the Coal-
fields Regulation Act? I do. 
3068. Take the 4th section, for example? (Section read.) 
3069. having reference to the plans, do you consider that the inspector did his duty in this respect? So 
far as that is concerned it is impossible for me to say if the plan of the colliery is accurate unless we test 
it. I do not think myself that the inspector has done anything wrong in passing that plan, supposing it 
to be accurate. It is impossible for us to tell unless a survey is made. 
3070. Do you consider the plan an accurate one of the mine? I cannot say whether it is or not; I 
certainly cannot say that it is not accurate. 
3071. Without an accurate plan of the mine, would you not be working  in the dark? We found that we 
were not working in the dark. We have found so far that the plan is accurate. 
3072. 2I&. Usher.] Did you find that from actual measurement? Sometimes a tape was used. 
3073. Mr. C'urley.] You have just read over a section of the Act. Have the proprietors of this mine 
complied with that section? Yes; as a matter of fact it is made out to a larger scale than the Act 
requires. 
3074. Has the inspector, in his reports in connection with this mine, pointed out to you the position of 
this boiler and rei;orted upon the accumulation of ashes in the furnaces? He has never mentioned any-
thing of this in ally of his reports. 
3075. What would be the distance from the tunnel mouth to time seat of the fire? About 35 chains, a 
little under half a mile. 
3076. Did you not consider that a watchman should have been stationed along this line during the time 
that your exploration was being carried on? No, or I should have suggested it. 
3077. Do you know whether any large fall had taken place in the mnine previous to this accident, that is, 
where the pillars are taken out? No; I have not heard of any. 
3078. Has any observation been made since, so far as it could be made on the left-hand side of the 
workings, to ascertain if any fall had taken place or not? I have inspected the surface and have found 
no sign, so far as that is concerned. 
3079. Did you notice anything underground? I have not been underground to anything like that distance 
smce; it was impossible to get to the place. 
3080. In the light of all your recent experience of this particular mine, do you consider that the slack 
stoppings were adequate for the work that was being done? Yes. 
3081. Mr. Usher.] When did you last inspect the Lithgow Colliery previous to the first accident? I 
really cannot say; I have not seen it smce Mr. Rowan was appointed; it was probably during Mr. Lewis's 
time. I did not have the same confidence in Mr. Lewis. The inspectors report to me every eight weeks, 
and unless I think it absolutely necessary I do not myself go to examine the mine. 
3082. What other duties have you to perform for the Government besides the inspection of collieries? I 
have to report on all applications for authority to mine, and to report on all work done on the ground; 
also as to mineral leases and a number of other things which just at the moment I cannot think of. 
3083. What proportion of your official time do you devote to colliery inspection alone? So far as that 
is concerned, I simply go to the collieries if the inspectors inform me that the Act is not complied with, or 
in ease of any accident where my presence is required; I should attend on receiving an intimation to 
that effect. 
3084. Mr. Jones.] We have been told that the accident caused several of these stoppings to be blown 
down. Would not brick stoppings have been more effective? I believe that if brick stoppings had been 
put inthat heading not one of the men would have been brought out alive; it would have taken so much 
longer for the smoke and steam, heavily charged with noxious gases, to get out of the mine; the whole 
tunnel would have been so filled with it that the men would not have had the slightest chance of 
gettimmg out. 
3083. That is in accordance with your assumption that the accident was caused by a fall? Yes. 
3086. Would not that be a reason for having a larger outlet? If there had been no noxious gases in the 
mine the men would not have been injured at all; time men were choked; the force itself was not so very 
great after all. 
3087. We have been told that in a considerable portion of this return the water was within 10 inches of 
the roof. Is not that an evidence that if there had been a larger and more efficient return this displace-
ment might have been prevented ? I do not think so umider the circumstances. 
3088. 2lL. Swinbern.] You have reports from the inspectors from time to time as they make their 
inspections, I understand? Yes; generally within about eight weeks. 
3089. Have you had no complaints from these inspectors as regards the working of the mine? No. 
3090. Now I am coining to the root of the matter, Mr. Mackenzie. We have evidence that the fall took 
place on the main air-drive opposite the boiler. Would that fall close up the air-course? I have already 
stated that. 
3091. Are you of opinion that the return on the left-hand side is a proper return? The reports that I 
had from my inspectors indicated that the mine was well ventilated, and that the men had twice the 
quantity of air required by law. 
3092. President.] There is another question I would like to ask about the stoppings that have been 
put in. Do you consider them sufficiently strong, I mean the recent brick stoppings? Yes; I consider 
them more than sufficiently strong. 

376-P 	 3093. 
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Mr. 	3093. In other words, they are strong enough to resist any ordinary pressure that may be brought to 
bear against them? Yes, or any extraordinary pressure either; they are efficient and capable stoppings. 

11 May 	3094. Have you ever seen in all your experience stronger stoppings? Never. 
[Mr. Maekenaie will mark on the plan of the district the approximate area of the workings.] 
The witness, before retiring, handed in the following prepared note, which was ordered to be 

included as part of the evi deuce :—As to steam and smoke containing percentage of carbonic acid, oxide, 
and suiphurous acid gases not being at floor of main heading where brattice for return was erected, the 
reason is plain: The fresh air coming into the mine was colder, and therefore header, than the atmosphere 
within, which was mixed with very large proportions of smoke and steam, charg3d with a percentage of 
carbonic acid gas, heated to the same temperature. The smoke and steam by their great buoyancy 
naturally lifted with them the rarefied carbonic acid gas, as the cold and heavy current of fresh air forced 
its way beneath by the ordinary law of gravitation. 

Accidents in Northern, Southern, and Western Districts, for the last ten years, ending 1885 :- 
North: fatal, 65; non-fatal, 206. South: fatal, 18; non-fatal, 46. West: fatal, 5; non-fatal, 3. 

APPENDIX. 

Memo. for the :Royal Collieries Commission. 

As desired, we have examined the portions of the workings on the south side of the main tunnel in the Lithgow Valley 
Colliery that we could enter, with a view to ascertain whether light carburetted hydrogen gas existed in any portion of the 
same, paying particular attention to all the working faces. Thence to the overcast and by the main return to the right. 
hand furnace. We also examined portions of the waste workings, and in no instance did we detect any appearance of 
explosive gas. 

There is a dip fault at the face of No. 1 cross-cut, where, if at any point, explosive gas might have been expected to be 
found, but such did not exist. 

We may add 
1st. We were shown a small hole recently made into the waste workings near the face of No. 2 cross-cut (on the east 

side), from which the manager, Mr. Campbell, removed the packing he had placed therein, xpecting that carbonic acid 
gas would issue therefrom to such an extent as to extinguish the light of our Davy lamp ; but no gas issued. 

2nd. Mr. Campbell informed us that immediately on putting his safety-lamp to this hole last night it was imme 
diately extinguished. 

JOHN USHER, 
JAS. SWINBTJRN, 

Lithgow, May 4, 1886. 	 Members of the Royal Collieries Commission. 

WE, the undersigned, made a visit of inspection to the Eskbank Colliery on the 12th May, and beg to report as follows 
In company with the manager of the Eskbank Colliery, we proceeded along the main easterly heading to the 

face, about 23 chains from the shaft. This heading has been discontinued owing to the seam dipping rather rapidly, and as 
a consequence is filled up to the natural level with water. 

In a drive a few yards to the south we found a fall which the manager informed us was the edge of the goaf, the 
pillars having been removed between that point and the boundary between Eskbank and Lithgow Valley Collieries—a 
distance of about 12 chains. 

We inspected other portions of the Eskbank Colliery workings between the point mentioned and the shaft as far 
as the goaf. 

We observed that air passes freely over the goaf, 	the direction of the Lithgow Valley Colliery. 
We examined the flow of water from the goaf at all available points, also at the outlet of the same into the sweep 

of the pumping shaft. The aggregate flow was but trifling; in fact, the manager informed us that he had never, during a 
period of several years, seen the flow from that direction to be so small, except during heavy rains. The inference that we 
draw from this is that the diminution in the quantity of water that formerly came from Lithgow is owing to the discon-
tinuance of the pumping operations in that colliery, arising from the fire. 

We concur with the manager in the opinion that the present flow is from the overlying strata, and that it is in no 
way connected with the Lithgow Valley Colliery workings. 

JOHN USHER, 
JAMES CURLEY, 
JOHN JONES, 

Newcastle, May 28, 1886. 	 Members of the Commission. 

Sydney: Thomas Richards, Government Frinter.-1886. 
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